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Highlights
2020

REVENUE'

{2019 £476.9m})

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

{2019: £194.3m)

NET OWN FUNDS GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS?

{2019: £159.7m}

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

gl et

{2019: 43.1p}

TOTAL DIVIDEND PER SHARE

{2019: 43.2p)

1 Throughout this report ‘revenue’ refers to net trading revenue (1e excluding interest on
segregated client funds and after deducting intraducing partner commissions).
2 The Group uses alternative performance measures 1o provide additional information on the
i performance of the business. For more detail. see our Key Performance Indicators on pages
. 22 and 23.
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Chairman’s
Statement

[
HE AL

When | ook back at the repositioning
of IG that has taken place over the
last 12 months, it's been an incredible
period of both positive progress and
continued strategic development.

IG is now better placed than ever

for the opportunities in front of us,
We've learned some valuable lessons
while making significant changes

to the top team, and have and will
continue to enhance our governance.
We've also worked hard to build trust
with our key stakeholders - vital
steps that will make us stronger as a
Board and stronger as a company.
Sigmficant and critizal progress
gamst the nevs sirategy

We've enjoyed fantastic performance
over the last four months of the
financial year in particular, and
demand from our clients has never
been greater. High levels of market
volatility gave existing and new clients
unprecedented opportunities to
trade ocur products, driving revenue
generation and, importantly, growing
our high-quality client base for the
future. Looking at the financial year
as a whole, we made significant and
critical progress against the new

strategy we outlined in May of last year.

Our strategy was predicated on new
products, new markets and combining
the benefits of our scalable platform
with local focus. During the year we
launched Spectrurn, our European
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multilateral trading facility, while in the
US we grew our US RFED anc DailyFX
businesses. In the Asia region, we

saw excellent performance in Japan
thanks to a new, localised offering,
and our new Chief Executive Officer
for Greater China is poised to drive
and develop our business there, which
offers a tremendous opportunity.

The momentum we've built in each
of our Core Markets together

with our portfolio of Significant
Opportunities has been encouraging,
and further positions1Gas a

global, diversified business.

Hastioneo of the Qompary

To be able to perform as strongly as
IG has done over the past year — even
prior to Covid-19 and the resulting
market volatility - is testament to
the resilience of the Company. IG
has always had relentless ambition
to keep innovating and improving
our platform, working to deliver new
functionality and capabilities for our
clients. This year we've experienced

. incredible volumes, which demands
" that we accelerate investmentin our
. technolegy and resilience. I'm sure

we'll start to see the benefits of this
investment coming through, in an
improved experience for our clients.

What makes me most proud is

the evident commitment of our
people and the strong and enduring
relationship we have with our high-
quality, sophisticated client base.
[t's at the heart of everything we do
and underpins our business model.
Our employees set us apart, and

I'm delighted that during the 2020
financial year we've continued to
build out cur strength in depth across
all levels within the business.

Govalantde To 0 avewih smbitione
Andy Green stepped down as Chairman
of the Board at the conclusion of

the AGM on 19 September 2019,

| would like to record the Board's
appreciation for Andy’s contribution
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to |G over more than five years and
wish him well for the future. | would
also like to thank Jonathan Moulds for
all of his hard work when he stepped
in as Interim Chairman between
September 2019 and February 2020.

At the end of the financial year, Pau
Mainwaring retired as Chief Financial
Officer (CFO). Charlie Rozes took
over as an Executive Directer and
CFQO with effect from 1 June, after an
extensive independently facilitated
search. Charlie brings significant
international, UK plc and Executive
Director experience, which will be
invaluable to tG's growth ambitions.
On behalf of the Board, I'd like to thank
Paul for his significant contribution in
supparting the business and helping
IG to successfully navigate a period
marked by significant regulatory
change. | wish him well for the future.

I'm very excited about the opportunity
to build a more coherent and
effective Board for IG. As part of our
continued focus on adding to the
depth and experience of the Board,
Andrew Didham and Helen Stevenson
were appointed as Non-Executive
Directors in September 2019 and
March 2020 respectively. In addition,
after the financial year-end, we've
further strengthened the diversity

of the Board with the appointment

of Rakesh Bhasin as a Non-Executive
Director, Rakesh brings significant
global experience, particutarly of

the Asia-Pacific region. I'd also like

to thank Stephen Hill, who retired
from the Board in April 2020 after a
nine-year tenure, for his hard work.

We'll continue to broaden the skills,
experience and diversity of the Board by
recruiting an additional Non-Executive
Director, and we're progressing well
with this search. In our strategy, we've
put a lot of emphasis on developing our
portfolio of Significant Opportunities in
the US, Japan, China, Emerging Markets
and Europe - through Spectrum, as
well as our newly launched |G Prime
institutional business. To support that,
we need to keep seeding the Board

and 1G as a whole with additional,
relevant skill, talent and experience.
This will help us more fully understand
how to operate successfully and
sustainably in those markets. A natural
by-product of this will be a more
ethnically and culturally diverse Board.

roory clnbid
I look forward to developing my role
to help bring it all together, so that the
Board functions as a collaborative and
high-performing team — one that has
the strong governance expected of a
FTSE 250 company, and everything
we need to effectively oversee the
strategy laid down by June and her team
last year. This will position us to hit our
strategic growth targets and deliver a
more global, diversified and sustainable
business. The most important thing
now is to execute our strategy,
which 'm confident all levels of the
Company will successfully deliver on.

None of this would be passible
without IG’s values and culture.

The culture at |G revolves around

an entrepreneurial, high-energy

and collegial mentality, which is what
allows it to innovate and evolve so
successfully. During the pandemic
this has continued unabashed, with
colleagues finding clever and creative
ways of encouraging each other to
get involved, and to remain socially
connected while socially distancing.

it was a fantastic response to keep
engagement high, especially for those
colleagues working and living on their
own, and one that showed very clearly
the culture of thoughtfulness and
camaraderie that exists in this business.

i
. |

We fully recognise cur responsibilities
to all cur stakeholders. (G wili continue
to face cutwards and communicate
regularly and effectively with all our
key audiences, mirroring the hands-on
approach we take with our employees
and our clients. Our clients are at the
heart of everything we do, and the
heightened market volatility we've
witnessed this year has been a fantastic
reminder of why so many sophisticated
traders choose to trade with 1G.,

As a responsible innovator, our
regulators are a key stakeholder for
our business. We'll continue to listen
to and engage with them over our
shared goal of best-in-cfass investor
protection, so we can truly differentiate
ourselves in our industry. |G continues
to build on the proactive working
relationships and constructive dialogue
we have with our regulators in every
jurisdiction where we operate.

ot s fournay
s yot te onime
We'll deliver a 43.2 pence per share
dividend in the 2020 financial year.
We're continuing to find ways to
reposition curselves in the minds of all
our stakeholders, evolving to become a
truly global, diversified and responsible
financial services business. 1G is only
one year into our three-year strategy
and, while we know there’s much more
to do, we're confident that we're picking
up strong mementum ~ and that the
best part of IG's journey is yet to come.

MIKE McTIGHE
CHAIRMAN
23 July 2020
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Our purpose

We exist to empower informed,
decisive, adventurous people
to access opportunities in the
financial markets.

Our values
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B | THE CLIENT

i

Our vision
To provide the world’s best
trading experience.
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Chief Executive
Officer’s Statement

Our primary focus is to provide a first-
class service to sophisticated individual
and institutional clients wanting to
trade complex products across a range
of financial markets. They choose IG
because of the strength of our brand
and our long-standing reputation as

a responsible partner and innovator.
We actively work to help our clients
achieve the best possible trading
experience through our strong client
service, expanding array of innovative
products, technology, tools and
educational content. Unlike many of
our competitors, our differentiated
business model is aligned with helping
our clients succeed, and we don't
benefit from client losses. Put simply,
our clients make our business. During
the 2020 financial year, we experienced
record client growth thanks to our
investment in our platform, the trustin
our brand and the extraordinary macro-
economic backdrop. While the longer-
term behaviour of these new clients is
hard to predict once we return to more
normalised market conditions, we do
enjoy market-leading client loyalty.

I'm proud of the progress we've made
since our strategy launch in May

last year. The solid foundations and
underlying growth that we established
in Q1 to @3, in combination with the
high market volatility in Q4, resulted in
a record-breaking performance for the
2020 financial year. While we recognise
that this period has been exceptional
because of the impact of Covid-19

on our business, the underlying
execution of our strategy shows that
our focus on achieving sustainable
growth and attractive shareholder
returns remains firmly on track.

Significant investment in our pecple,
communications and technology meant
that during lockdown our teams arcund
the world seamlessly transitioned to
home working and still felt connected
to 1G's vibrant global community. IG is a
fantastic company with talented people
at its heart. I'm incredibly proud of how
we've acted with agility and expertise,
both for the benefit of cur clients and in
executing our strategy in a challenging

~ external environment. As a company,

we've always ensured aur people and
their families had the support they
needed throughout the pandemic.

Covid-19 triggered extraordinary
trading volumes during months of
unprecedented market volatility. We
handled a sustained surge in trading
flows and onboarded a large number
of new clients - drawn to us by the

- investment we've made in our platform

and our reputation for delivering the
best service in testing circumstances.
lcommend all of our people for their
unwavering resilience, professionalism
and commitment to serving our clients
across this challenging period.

Wey aschiovements

In May 2019, we announced our new
strategy and three-year growth plan.
We set out medium-term targets to
achieve an average annual growth
rate of 3-5% per annum in cur well-

" established Core Markets, and to

expand our business by an additional
£100 million of revenue through
a portfolio of growth initiatives ~

" described in our strategy as Significant

Opportunities — by the 2022 financial
year, We remain confident in achieving
these targets, and as previously set out,
we're delivering a 43.2 pence per share
dividend in the 2020 financial year.
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Our strategy

A

o .

QUR
STRATEGIC
CHOICES

Operate a sustainable business model
Provide the best client experience
Win with our technology
Tailor client propositions
Broaden our product range

Extend our geographic reach
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As part of this strategy, we identified
four growth |levers to achieve our
targets. We're at different stages

of execution across our portfolic of
Significant Opportunities but are seeing
progress in all areas.

Our growth levers are:

Espanded gistribution channefo
= Creating corporate partnerships that
accelerate and expand our reach

A glebsl s with more lece[focwus
- Broadening our global network,
talloring products and marketing

to local heeds

Seutnented tareel rarhets

-> Customising our offering for our
tiree client segments - high-vaiue,
retail and institutional

ST S N HSTE I S

-3 Continuing te expand the trading
opportunities for our clients through
new and innovative products

Expanded distribution channels
Qur intention is to create partnerships
that accelerate and expand our global
reach, supplementing our heritage of
arganic growth in selected key markets.

We've made encouraging progress
across the year. We've strengthened
our Asia presence by recruiting key
people with strong local networks

- and expertise gained from working

© with banks, stockbrokers and hedge
. funds. Advanced discussions are also
' under way with potential corporate

partners who have large client bases
in Hong Kong and Japan. These large

i distribution partnerships require

long lead times to negotiate, reach
agreement and to implement, and are
a critical component of our long-term
strategy. We are integrating the first
non-1G broker on Spectrum, which
will expand our reach in Europe.

Current and potential partners

recognise IG's market-leading

. technology, our expertise in delivering

innovative new products, and our

" ability to seamlessly make markets that
~can be traded 24 hours a day. We're

excited by the initial response from
global institutions whose existing client
reach, when complemented by our

. lechnological capabilities and product
suite, will enable us to attract, grow,
+ and retain a broader range of clients.

- A global firm with more local focus
 Inthe past year we recruited new
~ senior leaders in several markets

outside the UK, who have guickly
helped drive our overall progress

- through their local expertise and

contacts. We've also adapted and

. enhanced our global products and

marketing to better meet local needs.

For example, we've used local japanese

- consumer research to fundamentally

redesign our platform. It now looks and

. operates in a way that best resonates
i with potential new Japanese clients.

We've worked with a high-profile,

local brand ambassador to support

our localised marketing efforts and
reinforce our brand aspirations in Japan.
These efforts resulted in substantial
client growth in our Japanese business,
within a market of £1 billionin

revenues and over 2 million traders.

- We've seen pragress in our local

" engagement and recruitment across
i other geographies, too. The new

" leveraged US FX trading capability we
' launched in Q3 of the 2019 financial

year is adding clients at an accelerating
rate. Our DailyF X offering has grown
by 71% year on year and reached over

© 27 million unique global readers. In
. Emerging Markets, across jurisdictions

where we don't have a physical
presence, we've seen our year-on-
year revenues increase significantly.
In Hong Kong, we've opened a new
office to establish a presence in
Greater China, and are in advanced

 discussions with corporate partners to

serve the professional investor market
in Hong Kong. We estimate that there

. are 500,000 professional investars in

Hong Keng and 2 £1 billion market in
products similar to those we offer in
other parts of the world, and Greater
China has over 4 million individuals who
may qualify as professional investors.

Segmented target markets
We've continued to customise our
offering for our three key client

© segments (high value, retail and
institutional) to ensure it effectively
i meets the needs of each.

For our high-value segment, we

. continually listen to their needs and
" experiences by supplying new and
; real-time content, tools and webinar

events with keynote speakers to
support their sophisticated trading
strategies. For retail clients, IG Academy
provides educational resources, both

. on desktep and on the go via a mobile

app. Retail clients also have access to
an enhanced library of trading videos

- and courses, with interactive tests so
" they can check their understanding.



We identified the underserved small
hedge fund and family office segment
as a potential £500 million market
opportunity for |G. With this segment
in mind, and despite the Covid-18 crisis,
we continued with the launch of IG
Prime in March. As IG Prime develops
further, it will give institutional clients
access to an increasingly broad suite of
prime brokerage services, all supported
by our global client network. It's early
days, but we've had a great response
from this new target segment - with
institutional active client growth of 59%
from the 2018 financial year to 2020.

Multi-product

Designing and launching innovative
trading products is a critical element
of our strategy, and we've continued
to expand our unique multi-product
range into broader markets. In
October 2019, we launched turbo24s
on Spectrum, ¥G's pan-European
multilateral trading facility (MTF). These
products are unigue in allowing clients
to trade turbo warrants 24 hours a
day, five days a week_The launch was
an important step in our strategy,
bringing a new, limited-risk product
into a well-regulated £1 billion market.

We've also strengthened our German
leadership team for Spectrum and
our German branch in order to

more fully exploit the potential of

our pan-European turbo24 product
throughout Europe. We're already
attracting new clients to IG and have
seen positive and consistent growth
since Spectrum was launched.

We're continually improving to meet
the needs of active turbo traders,
which make up a large proportion of
the Eurcpean securitised derivatives
market. Spectrum is currently
onboarding its first third-party broker,
which will enable the exchange to
offerits expanding product setto a
wider array of potential clients and
will mark a significant moment in its

. and the communities of which we

- of our continued commitment to
~ being a responsible market leader,
- this year we've strengthened our

. the IG Brighter Future initiative -
" acommitment to managing our
. environmental impact and improving

- aglobal scheme, supporting all the
~ communities in which we operate -
! and we've made significant progress.

* To deliver on our theme of education

"~ educational oppeortunities for the

the communities we belong to.
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¢ evolution. In addition, discussions are . ESTABLISHED THE
. ongoing with multiple large issuers |

- who have publicly expressed an ,
interest in working with Spectrum. !

By evolving cur product range we |G BRIGHTER FUTURE FUND

" deepen our relationships with clients

who trust our brand and are interested

in the innovative new services we '
can provide. We've also refreshed ] m
- our stock trading offering to provide

. amore compelling propositien and - SECURITISED DERIVATIVE
a better trading experience. We've CONTRACTS TRADED
. had encouraging client feedhack on . ON SPECTRUM IN THE LAST

these initiatives, resulting in new client * EIGHT MONTHS OF FY20
growth and more cross-sell clients.

A responsible market leader i
At 1G, we're mindful of the
responsibilities we have to all our i

" stakeholders - our people, our clients,

our shareholders, our regulators

are a part. As further evidence

new envirorimental, social and
governance (ESG) programme.

Inspired by employees, we launched

educational equality and social mobility.

In focusing on these two themes, we're
following the wishes of IG employees,
who, when asked to vote how they'd
like to see the business develop its

ESG agenda, overwhelmingly opted
for these choices. Importantly, thisis

and empowerment, 'm incredibly
proud that we set aside £5 million
from this year’s earnings to improve

least privileged young peoplc in
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This is the biggest community
commitment in IG’s history, and in the
UK we've already used £2 million to
build even closer ties with Teach First

- a brilliant charity working to build a
fair education for all. This fund builds
on the partnership we established with
Teach First last year, and will tackle
Covid-19's impact on the education of
the UK’s most vulnerable young people.

We've also formed a similar partnership
with Teach For All, which will enable
us to reach children in the other
countries where we operate, and
have set aside £2 million to work with
a range of their network partners

in the communities of which we are

a part. The remaining £1 million will
be used by IG teams to fund smaller
focal-led initiatives to support their
own individual communities.

Following several years of carbon
emissions reductions relative to
headeount, in the 2020 financial year
we entered into a programme of
activities, including carbon offsetting,
to achieve full carbon neutrality. As

of July 2020, we are a carbon-neutral
company in line with PAS 2060.

To oversee all this activity - and
underlining our long-term commitment
to ESG - 1G has also recently welcomed
our first-ever ESG Manager. This new
role wiil coordinate and build on our
approach, ensuring we deliver the

best impact possible.

Beyond this, our values - lead the way,
lave what we do and champion the
client - guide us in our daily activities
and provide the foundation for IG's
culture. These are powerful statements
and resonate loudly in 1G. | see them

in action every day, evident in our
behaviours and decision-making.

We've a long-standing tradition

of innavation, as we address the
evolving needs and interests of our
sophisticated clients. As a responsible
company, we regularly engage with
regulators giobally to stay aligned

as these authorities adapt te the

changing needs of their markets.
We've navigated well when regulations

i have changed in the past, and believe

© we have the depth and breadth to

continue to do so as markets evolve.

I'm pieased by the way we've built
new products and client offerings,

. while always placing appropriateness

. able to put our values into action.

and good client outcomes as our
top priority. Part of the reason that
nearly 240,000 clients chocse 1G

is that our own success is aligned
with theirs, thanks to our business
model that actively hedges client
positions. This is a key differentiator
that makes us more sustainable,
focused on long-term growth, and

Expert at what we do

. During our 46-year history, |G has

. developed a set of core competencies

 that sets us apart from the competition.

This year we've been able to leverage
these to aid us on our growth iourney,

- Cur business model means that

¢ capabilities, having launched our new

our revenue is earned from client
transaction fees, driven by client
volumes, and not positively or negatively
impacted by client performance, This
approach has positioned us well during

. recent market volatility.

We've continued to show our
innovation and deep-rooted technical

MTF, turbo24s and options accounts

. in Europe. We keep working to

- our clients’ trading experience

apply new technologies to enhance

. globally, across our products.

to deliver a consistent globat brand for
\G across all markets. This will further
position |G as a global leader in online
trading and a trusted partner during

" this year of record client acguisition.

Throughout IG's journey, we've
developed deep risk management
expertise, and have well-established
processes and technology to identify
and actively manage risk. During
periods of the highest volatility ever

. seenin the financial markets, our robust

risk-management process was key

in responding to the risks that arcse.
We've shown our many stakehoiders
that we have the capability and capacity
tc manage the risks we face, and can

- continue to aperate successfully under

extremely stressed market conditions.

Cur people and culture

" Our progress is testament to 1G's

people: their commitment, work ethic
and unfaltering drive to live our values
and do what's best for this business
and our clients,

We employ loval, dedicated, richly
talented individuals with a passion
to deliver. Our people remain our
greatest asset, allowing us to stand
apart from our competition both in
cur capabilities and our conduct.

Covid-19 also highlighted the caring

_ and charitable side of our workforce,
© with colleagues organising fundraising
" activities, sourcing equipment for care

workers and donating food to the less

_ fortunate. In London, for example,
- a matched-giving scheme saw our

people raise mare than £70,000 for

" the National Emergencies Trust, in

' We've also continued to build and

| We've reduced the cost of each newly-
i acquired client, by capitalising on our

expand our marketing capabilities.,

. multi-year investment in search engine

. optimisation and our application of

" science to make marketing spend more
+ efficient. This has paid dividends, best

: showcased by the consistent quality

i of our newly acquired clients - even

during Covid-19 volatility. On top of this,
we're successfully executing a rebrand

Krakow colleagues donated protective
medical kit to their local hospital; in

Paris teams provided meals for medical
" staff; in Germany employees donated

supplies to food banks; and in the US,

- India, Singapore and Australia cur

! teams delivered funding for a range
" of focal charities providing support
. to those affected by the pandemic.

Such acts of kindness and social
- responsibility are typical of the people



we have at IG, and I'm touched by
the way colleagues responded

to Covid-19 in their local areas,
but also how they supported and
looked out for one another.

Diversity and inclusion

I've always believed in meritocracy and
the transformative power of diversity
of thought at all levels throughout an
organisation. For any firm, such values
are important for success. Forus - a
global business with a local foeus, an
organisation that places innovation at
its core - they're absolutely crucial, and
we have more to do to achieve them.

QOur new employee-ied IG Black
Network is helping us create a culture
that's more inclusive, aware of bias
and rich in diversity. We're working
on expanding our efforts to ensure
that our culture is attractive to
employees from all backgrounds so
that learning and growth can take
place in an open atmosphere,

The IG Black Network joins our existing
family of diversity networks that include
IG Open, our LGBTQ+ network, 1G

Pact, our parent and carers network
and IG Inspire, our women's network.

In this cantext, I've been especially
pleased to welcome a humber of
senior women to executive roles, All
of them are bringing fresh thinking
to our business and enriching

our already wide talent pool.

In our international offices and other
business entities, I've also been
delighted to see us hire individuals
with deep local expertise - people
who understand the characteristics
of their markets and the requirements
of clients in their region. This idea is
central to our strategy of hecoming
a global firm with more local focus.
Qur recruitment approach is

clearly aligned.to that ambition.

It's not only in hiring new colleagues
that we've championed diversity and
encouraged fresh thinking. Internatly,
too, many people have changed roles

and been promoted into jobs outside
of what could narrowly be deemed
their ‘area of expertise’. We like to
cultivate internal talent - it's one of
the things | believe has made us such

" an enduringly successful business

over more than four decades. By
exposing ocur people to different areas

i of our business, we offer individuals a

chance to shine and to develop their
own careers, and allow for the cross-

- fertilisation of ideas and approaches.

- Looking forward

- 2020 7s the first full financial yeat

since the European Securities and

. Markets Authority (ESMA) implemented

new regulatory changes that impacted
a latge part of our core business.

Our robust business model and

new strategy faced these changes

~ head on and adapted to a new

market landscape.

! We've experienced record client

demand and results, driven in part by
the exceptional external forces, we've

¢ gealt expertly with the human and
- tactical implications of coronavirus

and, importantly, made strong progress

against our medium-term growth
targets. It's been a successful first
year in our three-year growth journey,
and I'm pleased with the strategic
progress and results we've achieved.

We remain firmly on track to achieve
our medium-term targets of a 3-5%
annual growth rate in our core markets,
and to add an additional £100 million in
revenue from the £60 million delivered
in the 2019 financial year from our

f portfclio of Significant Opportunities

by the end of the 2022 financial year.

Qur strategy has gained great traction
and we enter the 2021 financial year as
a business with momentum, capability

~and ambition. Given our innovative
. mindset, we also evaluate the broader

: opportunities open to |G as we consider

how best to serve our clients, and
we'll continue to assess these as we
execute on cur central strategy.

L mRTRODUCTION
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SHAREHOLDER AND COMPANY
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As we set out on the second year of cur
" three-year growth journey, we've every
reascn to remain excited by the future
and confident in our ability tc deliver
what we set out to achieve, Working
with our talented team, including our
new Chairman, Mike McTighe, and new
Chief Financial Officer, Charlie Rozes,
who both bring broad, international
experience and knowledge, I'm looking
forward to leading the business over
! the coming years to deliver positive
results for all of our stakeholders.

hgaaza

. JUNE FELIX
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
23 July 2020
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Strategic
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Significant
Opportunities

B

STRATEGIC
CHOICES

i

@3

> FOR MORE INFORMATION
PG. 39

+ More than doubled our client base
in a market with a £1 billion revenue
opportunity
» Appointed a high-quality Japanese
Chief Executive Officer
- Drove strong client acquisition through
multi-channel marketing and optimisation
of onboarding process
> Completed localisation of platform
and brand
-» Made encouraging progress on
partnership discussicons to expand
our product reach

. - Continued developing a stream of

innovative new products, offering
real USPs for clients

2m

TRADERS IN JAPAN

US

> Progression on our plans across our US

LY, /IE

businesses, which offers a compelling

proposition

Focused on integration of our three US

businesses (RFED, DailyFX and Nadex)

to amplify the IG brand and the US

opportunity

» Maintained leadership for a RFED’s service

and price in the US OTC FX market

- Received industry awards recognising
the quality of both our service and
technology

Reached over 27 million unique visitors

globally for our DailyFX website in 2020

Launched new capability for Nadex,

and are seeing early signs of renewed

momentum

¢.705,000

FUTURES AND OPTIONS TRADERS
IN THE US

E: inTrRODueTion
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» Moved forward with our plans to develop
and grow our Greater China business
» Appointed an experienced Chief
Executive Officer
-» Opened a new Hong Kong office to
establish a presence in the region
Held discussions with corporate partners
to serve the high-value investor market
in Hong Kong
- Hong Keng potentially has 500,000
professional investors
: Advanced partnership discussions with
major banks and securities firms in
Hong Kong

4dm

POTENTIAL PROFESSIONAL
INVESTORS IN GREATER CHINA

-» Launched and operated Spectrum, IG's
pan-European 24-hour multilateral trading
facility (MTF)
Introduced the unique facility for clients to
trade turbo warrants 24 hours a day, five
days a week

+ Saw over 150 million securitised derivative
contracts traded with IG Europe in the first
eight months

» Made progress on expanding Spectrum'’s
distribution opportunities through
additional brokers

> Launched unigue intraday securities
issuance capability

3 Continued discussions with additional
issuers who have expressed a firm interest
in issuing products on Spectrum

24/5

TRADING FROM SPECTRUM
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ESMA REGION

=-2%

M1-Q3 REVENUE

EMEAEX EU

+14%

Q1-Q3 REVENUE

-» Our overall performance in this financial
year is built on the growth established in
Q1 to Q3 period prior to the exceptional
increase in trading seen in Q4

> We focus on continuing to customise
our offering for our high-value, retail and
institutional client segments

ES mrnomLnTiss,

STRATEGIC REPORT
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SINGAPORE

+8%

Q1-Q3 REVENUE

AUSTRALIA

+10%

@1-Q3 REVENUE

-» The resilience shown by our business
throughout Covid-19 built on cur
significant investment in people,
communications, technology and our
core platform expertise

> Our successful havigation of the ESMA
product intervention in the 2019
financial year was followed by proactive
engagement with regulators

FOR MORE INFORMATION
PG. 39
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Strategic
Update

Our vision

is to provide the /\ﬂ

world’s best trading Operate a sustainable
experiencel business model

Our six strategic Extend our \ Provide the best
choices underpin geographic reach OUR client experience
how we operate STRATEGIC

and are the guiding CHOICES

principles we choose
to follow in pursuing
our vision. D

Broaden our Win with cur

product range technology ;

Tailor client !
propositions

Our values \

define our culture and are PR ,"_ |

embedded by our employees { ‘

to enable us to succeed and

deliver against our strategy. CHAMPION LEAD LOVE WHAT |

THE CLIENT WE DO
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Medium-term financial targets

REVENUE GROWTH

IN THE CORE MARKETS

BY FY22 (FROM FY19) TO £160M

A global firm Segmented Multi-product
with local target markets
focus

Growtl

levers

Expanded
distribution
channels

Poericrmsnoe -3 Robust pipeline ; ~ Tailored globa # LaunchedIG : = Launched

in 2019/20

Japan and lapan and family multilateral
Europe !y Useof office clients trading facility
-3 Discussions H well-known ~# IG Prime (MTF)
well advanced local brand benefited -? Achieved
inHongKong ambassadors, from new around 40%
and Taiwan for instance, management out-of-hours
with major in Japan hires with trades in Q4
banks and > Active dialogue strong prime on Spectrum,
stockbrokers with a major i brokerage showing key
- Integration japanese ; expertise USP for clients
of third-party securities firm § -} Augmentad 2 150 million
broker in 3 More than : IG Prime sales securitised
Germany doubled our force derivative
client base in contracts
Japan - FY20 traded in the
vs FY19 last eight
months of FY20
Py idie © - Expand ! -} Capitaliseand : < Furtherbuild ; =¥ Introduce
1o 20000 partnership tailor our US out |G Prime exchange-
opportunities  } product set for and expand traded equities
in Japan, Hong : the US market | suite of : to Spectrum
Keng and i3 Developour |  capabilitiesfor i s nteoduce new
Taiwan search engine | institutional products into
-3 Expand optimisation, ! segment Japan
partnerships socialmedia  : -» Continuete > Meet specific
to additional : and local drive new : regulatory
broker-dealers ; content in enhancements requirements
inltaly, France | every market and customised through
and other . Continue i productsfor  {jnngvative new
European new array of | our professional products
i markets marketing clients i - Capitalise
-+ Fxpand new i approaches -3 Position on our stock
white-labelling and I1G for the trading
capabilitiesto distribution transitioning capabilities in

under way in

Greater China,

new markets

product to
local tastesin

partnerships
already under
way

Prime brand :
for hedge fund :

of Australian
clients to
wholesale

Spectrum, IG's
pan-European

new markets

£
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Key Performance
Indicators (KPls)

Financial metrics

We use ten key metrics for our financial and non-financial performance.!
These also measure our ability to deliver shareholder returns through

revenue, profit and cash generation.

Revenue metrics

Client income represents the gross :
revenue generated from our products
and services, before hedging activity, !
which is an important aspect of our
business model. Net trading revenue
refiects the impact of hedging, and
our ability to monetise client trading
flows. Our target is to: (i} increase

the revenue generated in our Core
Markets businesses by 3-5% per
annum over the medium term;

and (i) increase revenue from our -
portfolic of Significant Opportunities FY1e FY20

{ CLIENT INCOME {Em}

644.5
959.4

NET TRADING REVENUE (£m)

o o o~ ) |

4 -] o -

g ] < ES

1

*

FY19 FY20 FY19 Fr20 Fr22
TARGET

+36% +29

by £100 million to £160 million in the
2022 financial year. +4 gcy
(4]

NET TRADING REVENUE
: FROM CORE MARKETS (£m)

{ CONVERSION OF CLIENT INCOME
! TO NET TRADING REVENUE (%)

~
r~
w

i Fy19  FY20

(6 .3)% pts

i NET TRADING REVENUE FROM
SIGNIFICANT OPPORTUNITIES (Em)

587
| 108.4

&

P FY19 FY20  Fyz2
: TARGET

+85¢

Defintions for the individual retncs con be found in the glussane of terms, on peae 209

2 Qver the-counter (OTC) leveraged activity remains the primary seurce of revenue for iG. reflecting 98% ot total revenue inthe 2020 financiat yeat For trisreason, ity appropriate
that this seament reniamg an orea Gf focus within these KPS, As woe ook 1o deliver on our stidtegy by movirid into new proguct ites and geographies wo mayin the future cfiogse to

nlredace differert nigtnics that oL us or qew bustness segiments




Profitability
metric

Cur profitability measure
indicates the extent to which
we're able to convert our
revenue into profit by well-

controlled cost management,

as we work to maximise value
for shareholders white
investing in appropriate
growth initiatives,

Cur operating profit margin
indicates our effectiveness in
managing revenue and costs
simultaneously.

: OPERATING PROFIT
i MARGIN (%)

404
45.6

I FY19 FYz0

5.2% pts

Shareholder
return metric

IG’s shareholder return
metric indicates the total
return, including dividenas.
We expect to maintain our
full-year dividend at the
level of the 2019 financial
year, which is 43.2 pence
per share.

! TOTAL DIVIDEND
i PER SHARE (p)

N
]
<

© 432

el

I FY19 Fy2o

Balancé sheet
strength
metric

Our balance sheet metric
measures the cash we
generate, it indicates our
ability to keep meeting our
financial obligations as they
fall due, including broker
margin requirements and
dividend payments.

i NET OWN FUNDS

i GENERATED FROM

i OPERATIONS AFTER
i INVESTMENTS (£Em)

™~
i)
0
-

2879
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Non-financial meirics

QOur two non-financial KPis focus on client meftrics,
which help to underline the longer-term health of

IG. Please also refer to the environmental, social

and governance (ESG) KPls on pages 60 and 61 for
information on our progress in our commitment to
our stakeholders, envircnment and community, These
client and ESG metrics help to provide context for our
broader progress, beyond our financial KPls.

ESGMETRICS
PG, 60-61

Client metrics

Qur client metrics reflect our continued focus on
growing the size and quality of our client base.
We work to retain and grow a high-quality, loyal
client base.

TOTAL NUMBER OF ACTIVE OTC
LEVERAGED CLIENTS (C0Q)

This is a measure of
client trading activity.
We use OTC leveraged
clients rather than total
active clients, as these
represent the majority
of cur revenues.?

1446
129.7
176.6

A
FY18 FY19 FY20

+36

PERCENTAGE OF OTC LEVERAGED REVENUE
GENERATED BY CLIENTS THAT HAVE TRADED
WITH IG FOR AT LEAST THREE YEARS (%)

This measures the value o~ w0 s
of client retention, an o i o
important aspect of
a high-quality, loyal
client hase,

29

FY18 FY192 FY20
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Stakeholder
Engagement

Seclion 172(1) stalement
by the Board

As a Board we continue to uphold the highest
standards of conduct and make decisions for
the long-term success of the business. We're
aware that our business can only grow and
prosper if we understand and respect the
views and needs of cur stakeholders.

Under the Companies Act 2006, the Directors must actina
way that they consider, in good faith, would be most likely to
promote the success of the Company for the benefit of its
members as a whole. In doing this, the Directors must take
intc account, among other factors:

- The likely consequences of any decision in the long term

-3 The interests of the Company’'s employees

= The need to foster cur business relationships with
suppliers, customers and others

> The impact of our operations on the community and the
envirenment

-. The desirability of the Company maintaining a reputation

for high standards of business conduct
- The need to act fairly between members of the Company

Our key stakeholders

The Directors have identified certain key stakeholders who
are essential to the success of our business - see pages 26
to 28.

The Beard will sometimes engage directly with certain
stakeholders on specific issues. This stakeholder
engagement often takes place at an operational level,

We consider key stakeholders when we discuss and

make decisions relating to strategic matters, financial and
operational performance, risk management, and legal and
regulatory compliance. Information in relation to these areas
is provided to the Board through reports sent in advance of

Board decision-making and stakeholder
considerations

1G, its Directors and management are fully committed 1o
effectively engaging with all key stakeholders. Below we

set out some examples of how the Directors have taken

inte account the matters set out in Sections 172{1)(a}-(f}
when discharging their Section 172 duties, and how this has
affected certain principal decisions taken by them. We define
‘principal decisions’ as those that are material to |G and are
significant to any one or more of our key stakeholder groups
- as sct out on pages 26 to 28.

In making the following principal decisions, the Board
considered the outcome from our stakeholder engagement,
as well as the need to maintain a reputation for high
standards of business conduct and the need 1o act fairly
between iG's shareholders.

Principol denioe:s: door-yeor plin ens Ladoet

The Board approved an updated financial plan (the 2020 pian}
to underpin the delivery of medium-term revenue targets

set as part of our original four-year plan - agreed in 2019

_ for the financial years 2020/23 inclusive (the original plan) -

and achieve our specific profit and earnings per share (EPS)

. targets and dividend payment for the 2022 financial year,

In agreeing the 2020 plan, the Board considered the potential

. impactthat each element might have on its key stakeholders.

In particular, the Board took into account:

-, Our relationship with and the views of regulators in the
countries where |G holds regulatory licences to conduct
its business. We referred to the latest applicable legislation
and regulations, held ongoing dialogue with relevant
regulators and ensured that the business initiatives in the
updated plan were inline with 1G’s regulatory risk appetite

> Theinterests of employees, through IG's continued

each Board meeting, and through presentations to the Board.

As a result of these activities, the Board has an overview of
engagement with stakeholders and other relevant factors,
which enables the Directors to comply with their legal duties
under Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006.

In May 2019, the Board agreed that its future meetings
should specifically reference certain key stakeholder
interests. We've now incorporated this requirement into the
Board cycle. As part of the preparation procedure for Board
meetings, we use template Board papers that require us to
identify relevant stakeholders who should be considered in
each proposed decision.

;

support for the People Forum. This provides a helpful
feedback channel to hear the views of employees, so

we can address matters raised. Also relevant are our
employee health and wellhess programmes and diversity
and inclusion policies, and our investment in software and
equipment, as well as our implementation of a working
style that enables employees to work effectively outside
of the office. This has ensured that our people have

been able to work from home seamlessly during the
Covid-19 pandemic

The needs of clients, through our decision to enharnice

{T infrastructure to ensure that our systems are resilient
and better able to support our clients’ demands. We
considered the number of clients, the demand to access
our services during pericds of increased client activity, and
the requests we've received to provide more advanced
features on our desktop and mobile platforms for clients
who use sophisticated trading strategies

&



-3 Qur existing relationships with suppliers, in particular
related tc our IT infrastructure, as a result of the changing
needs of IG and its stakeholders. These changes were
driven by the expectations of regulators, the needs
of employees and the demand from clients, as well as
shareholders’ interests in our decisions on cverseeing
casts and the nature and focus of future investrment

> The views and interests of shareholders, by ensuring that
our updated plan supported the sustainable growth of
the business, along with the delivery of our strategy and
shareholder value

Foirncipal degisicn 2; cotnraitrnent of £8 paililen te tae

113 Brighter Futwie Fond

The Beard approved a commitment of £5 million from our
profit before tax for the 2020 financial year to the 1G Brighter
Future Fund. This fund will be used to improve educational
opportunities for the least privileged young people in our
global communities, and to offer immediate assistance to
those that have been hardest hit by the Covid-19 pandemic.

The Board took into account the fact that many businesses
and individuals in the communities where we operate are
facing considerable hardship as a result of the Covid-19
pandemic. We also recognised that IG has been fortunate,
inthat our business has performed well during this period of
increased volatility in the financial markets. More information
about how the fund will be used can be found on page €1,

In deciding to create the |G Brighter Future Fund and
choosing where our investments should be made, the Boaid
took into account the views of our employees. We aligned
the fund with the priorities of the |G Brighter Future initiative
- priorities that the Board had set after consulting with our
People Forum and reviewing the results of ocur employee
engagement survey. We also took into account the views

of IG employees in setting asice a £1 million portion of the
Brighter Future Fund to respond to immediate crises tinked
to the Covid-19 pandemic. This money was divided between
each of IG's global offices, whose employees have proposed

the initiatives that it will support. The Board also approved the |

foermation of a Board ESG Committee, and an ESG Manager
was recruited.

More information about the Brighter Future initiative and
IG's other local-led charitable engagement can be found
on pages 60 and 61.
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i Frincipeldecision 3. Covid-12 - peopde cunsideration:s

| We successfully implemented our comprehensive business

[ continuity plan in response to the Covid-19 pandemic. Thanks
to our significant long-term investment in communications
and technology infrastructure, our people have been able to
work from home safely and seamlessly during the pandemic.

The Executive Direciors have been in regular communication
with employees to ensure their safety, and that of their
families, during this challenging time. We set up a Covid-19
Steering Group, including Executive Directors and senior
members of staff, to oversee our employees’ transition to

i warking from home, monitoring their health and safety,

and their ability to work effectively there. The Group

also considered the steps needed to alter the working
environment in preparation for employees returning to the
office, and how and when employees should return, on a
location-by-location basis. Our priority has been the health
and safety of our people, and we continuously monitor best
practice and government advice. We provide regular updates
to our peocple and to the Board.

The Board agreed to a phased return-to-work approach foy
all employees, taking into account our people’s safety when
commuting to work and adjustments to be made at the
workplace as a result of Covid-19.
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Stakeholder
Engagement

CONTINUED

At I1G we rely on building strong and
meaningful! relationships with our
key stakeholders. The premise of
these relationships is openness and
trust, to facilitate participation and
open dialogue. It is only by attentively
listening to cur stakehclders and \
trudy understanding them that we can
confidently factor them into Board
discussions and make decisions that
are considerate of their needs and
potential concerns, We understand
that each stakeholder needs to be
approached differently to achieve this,
and the table opposite highlights our
key stakeholders and sets out how we
engage with them.

Clients

Further information on how the
business has responded to
stakeholders’ key issues is set out in
the section on Board decision-making
and stakeholder considerations on
pages 24 and 25.

Our people

IG empowers informed, decisive, adventurous people to
access opportunities in financial markets. Qur clients have
high expectations of their trading provider. If we fail to meet
those expectations, our clients willgo elsewhere. There are
many companies operating in our industry, and we need to
engage with our clients to ensure that we continue to stay
ahead of the competition.

Cur clients use our trading platforms for hours every day, and
that makes them the most valuable source of feedback for us
~ helping us to provide the best experience we can.

Nurturing a team of talented and dedicated people is
central to our strategy, enabling us to deliver the exceptional
products and services that keep us at the foretront of our
industry.

LINKS TO GOVERNANCE SECTION
-) FOR DETAIL ON PRINCIPAL DECISIONS

PG. 24-25

Regulations affect how we're able to market and provide
services to our clients. It's essential that we engage with
our regulators to ensure they understand our products and
business model, so we can remain active in multiple regions
and keep growing into new markets.

By maintaining relationships with our key regulators and

actively engaging on both a local and global scale, we position
ourselves to be well informed about impending developments
in the regulatory environment.

°




How we engage

Day to day, we engage with our clients through our
customer support teams, who are multilingual, highly
trained and available 24 hours a day, 6.5 days a week,

365 days a year. Our gealis to offer best-in-class customer
service to all our clients, and provide a variety of channels
for them to get in touch with us.

We also provide clients with a range of tools and features
to help them with their trading, including a wide education
affering, plus breaking financial news and live analysis of
the markets. These are available for all clients to use ina
way that best suits them.

To ensure that we're meeting our clients’ expectations,
we conduct regular research to get their feedback on
our products and services. This feedback directly helps
to shape our prioritisation roadmaps and improvement
programmes.

We have a variety of means to engage with our people.
These include two surveys per year, functionality in our
employee communication portal that we can use to collect
feedback and comments at any time, and town halls and
small group meetings that allow our senior managers to
meet and understand our people’s views. Our employee
network groups also offer an important channel to better
understand the experience of our employeesthat are
currently underrepresented.

In response to the changes to the UK Corporate
Governance Code, we established asingle bodytoactasa
conhduit for more formal feedback and interactions with our
Board. The resulting People Forum is chaired by our Chief
Operating Officer, supported by the Chief People Officer,
any attended by a Non-Executive Director on a rolling basis.
Employees are democratically elected by cur people and
serve two-year terms.

We maintain constructive relationships with our regulators,
communicating in an open and transparent manner, and
ensuring that our actions are consistent with regulatory
expectations.

We work with our regulators in multiple ways - from
proactive engagement on new business proposals to
assisting in their investigations and regulatory requests.

Our employees around the world are responsible for
maintaining an open and constructive dialogue with local
regulators, to facilitate strong relationships and understand
the expectations that are critical to our business.
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What matters most

We provide access to the financial markets that enables our
clients to take advantage of opportunities. We can only do
this if our platform is stable, secure and reliable, and trade
execution is seamless. S0 the reliability of our technelogy

is paramount,

Education is also of high importance to our clients. We offer
a range of educational tools and materials, alongside demo
accounts where clients can educate themselves about our
leveraged products in a risk-free environment. We also offer
a range of risk management selutions that our clients value
as part of their educational journey.

Qur clients need us to be 'always on, as opportunities can
arise around the clock. Cur 24-hour trading coverage

is & unique selling point and a key feature of the service
we provide.

Clients also expect us to be there when they need
assistance, have anissue. or simply want to ask a guestion.
Access to IG's highly trained customer service team is
impaortant for clients whe rely on our expertise.

We hear consistently that our people want to be kept
informed about our business strategy and changes to our
industry. They want the ¢hance to be involved in planning
changes that willimpact them and their teams. They

also expect the organisation to provide opportunities

for development.

Regulators focus on protecting consumers from bad
outcomes, safeguarding our clients’ best interests and
ensuring that all clients are treated fairly. They also take an
interest in capital and liquidity issues. Regulators value firms
that respect and follow both the letter and the spirit of the
regulations and guidelines they set out.
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Stakeholder
Engagement

CONTINUT -:‘ |

Qur stakeholders Why we engage
Sustainability and social awareness are firmly embedded
\ into our purpose and values, and are integral components of

‘ |G's culture. We also recognise that community engagement
is vital to our ability to deliver long-term returns for our

/ stakeholders. These factors mean that we carefully consider

our impact on the communities in which we operate and

Co mmun ities on the enwvironment. Our commitment is embodied by

the Brighter Future initiative - explained in more detail j
on page 60.
The support of our shareholders is critical to IG. Staying '? t

abreast of their views gives us insight into the considerations
that drive their priorities when assessing us as an organisation.

“R' And by delivering for our shareholders, we help to ensure that

our business continues to be successfulin the long term.

Shareholders ! -

We engage with suppliers to develop mutually beneficial and
E lasting partnerships. Suppliers play an impoertant role in the
u quality of the service we provide, supporting us to meet the !
' high expectations of our sophisticated client base,

Suppliers

9 LINKS TO GOVERNANCE SECTION
FORDETAIL ON PRINCIPAL DECISIONS

PG. 24-25
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How we engage

.

Through the Brighter Future framewaork, we partner with
local charities that support the communities in which we
operate, and we also have partnerships at national and
global levels.

All of IG's people have opportunities to engage with our
partners — from our Chief Executive Officer’s membership
of Teach First’s Business Leaders Council through to
employee volunteering and fundraising. This work is now
coordinated by our dedicated ESG Manager and a team

of regional champions spread across our global network.
IG's environmemtal, social and governance (ESG) strategy is
overseen by our recently formed ESG Board Committee.

e et meeaseetasrasasrremararaeraraeraraaraerrasrarraTy Ty an e nnht iy

We maintain an open dialogue with our shareholders -
through one-to-one and group meetings, results webcasts
and roadshows, conference attendance, capital markets
days and the Anhual General Meeting.

Shareholder feedback, along with details of major
movements in our sharenolder base, is reported to and
discussed by the Board regularly. We consider shareholder
views as part of our decision-making process.

Qur major shareholders have direct correspondence

with the Chairman, Senicr Independent Director and
Committee chairs on significant matters as they arise.
One circumstance, for example, that would warrant
engagement with a major sharehclder would be propesed
changes to the Remuneration Policy.

b e ranTe A rA e eme e emmeatmee e ieasaemsesateermeratstoereranennnysintnnn

We freguently engage with our supplier base to ensure
that all parties are getting the desired value from our
retationship. Typically we do this through a series of
engagements, ranging from informal conversations for
exchanging information and discussing priorities to formal
interactions. The |atter might focus on contractual terms
or involve reviewing the performance of the supplier, to
ensure were getting value for the service being provided.
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What matters most

Our communities value sustained ang long-term support.
This is achieved through a combination of continual
dialogue, financial donations and meaningful employee
engagement. To date, our Brighter Future initiative has
committed over £5 million to our charity partners and to
critically important causes and campaigns. It also matters
to our communities that were conscicus of our impact on
the environment.

Shareholder discussions cover a wide range of topics,
including financial performance, leadership, strategy,
regulation and competitive position, as well as ESG
practices. Shareholders look to identify what will drive
sustainable improvement in our returns over the longer
term, with a particular focus on delivery against our
stated strategy.

The openness of management and the Board to the
views of shareholders is critical to the development of
investor trust.

We've found that cur suppliers value clarity on our
expectations of the relationship and the services they
provide, along with timely and reliable payment. Our
suppliers also appreciate fair, open and hohest two-way
communication and value the feedback we can give them,
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G enables clients to access trading
opportunities in a wide range of markets -
including stock indices, individual shares, forex,
interest rates and commodities - through
online dealing platforms and exchanges.

Clients can also access our stock trading platform, as well
as an innovative portfolio-based product for ionger-term
investment purposes. We offer the latter in partnership with
BlackRock, one of the world’s leading asset managers.

Risk profile

Cur business model is based on generating a return from our
services through transaclion fees (spread, commission and
funding charges) charged to clients. The level of revenue in
any periad is predominantly driven by the number of active
clients we serve in that pericd and the level of trading activity
undertaken by each client.

IG does hot seek to generate returns from actively taking
market risk. We don't take proprietary trading positions, and
our revenue is nct dependent on the direction of market
movements,

Under cur business model, we accept some exposure

to market risk in crder to optimise the efficiency and
effectiveness of our services to clients. We manage

the market risk we face in providing these services by
internalising client flow {allowing individual client trades to
offset one another) and hedging externally when the residual
exposures reach predefined limits. As a result, our revenue

is driven by transaction fees charged to clients and the level
of their trading activity, and isn't significantly affected by
movements in market prices.

Cur business moedel also means that we're subject to ¢lient
credit risk, counterparty credit risk, liquidity risk and capital
adequacy risk. We also face operational risks, including those
arising through technology, people, process and external
events. In addition, we're subject to conduct risk relating to
the way we deal with our clients and with the markets.

G operates in a dynamic competitive envircnment, and our
revenue is dependent on the number of active customers
and their level of activity - which is influenced by the degree
of velatility present in the financial markets. This means that
our business faces risks relating to market conditions and its
competitive position.

We operate in a number of geographic markets and are
regutated by different financial services authorities in those
regions. Their regulations affect how our business is able to
markel and provide its services to clients. The regulations
relating to the products and markets in which we operate

- are continually evolving. IG supports the objectives of national

regulators to improve client outcomes, however cur business
faces risks arising from potential changes in its regulatory
environments that may adversely impact its activities or its
competitive position.

The launch of new products and business initiatives may
introduce new risks. We ensure that these risks are clearly
identified and managed through our well-established

' control environment, which evolves inresponse to business

" developments. This means that while our risk profile may

change at a micro level, at a macro level the risks we face
remain fundamentally the same.

Our business model enables us to serve cur clients

effectively and to generate good returns for shareholders,
while maintaining a low appetite for those risks that we can
manage directly, such as market and credit risk. The Group

' has no appetite for liguidity or regulatory capital risk as per

requirements and regulation. This is reflected in the Board's

- Risk Appetite Statement and the Key Risk Indicators (KRIs)

used to monitor these risks. For more detail on how the

© Group manages various risks through employee training

and operational controls, please see an overview of IG's Risk

Management Framework on pages 50 to 59,

Clients

IG's clients are knowledgeable and demanding. They expect
a broad product range, exceptional service, outstanding
execution and highly sophisticated technology, which they
use to trade frequently.

The majority of cur clients are individual traders and
investors. However, we also provide services to corporate
clients and institutions, including asset managers, hedge

- funds, family offices and broker-dealers.

Regulators reguire firms to segment clients using
classification frameworks that allow these authorities to
provide clients with protection according to their needs.
Most frameworks have three categories - licensed firms,
corporates along with wealthy and sophisticated individuals,
and all other individuals. In the UK and EU these groups are
called Eligible Counterparties, Professionals and Retail,

. respectively.

A key part of IG's culture is to place our customers at

the heart of everything we do, which in turn embeds this
commitment at the centre of cur strategic initiatives. We
regularly seek and review feedback from clients, and this
enables us to develop products and services specifically to
meet the needs of active traders and investors globally.

Central to our commitment to our custemers is the quality
of our order execution. |G processes 100% of active

client trades automatically and never re-quotes prices.
Should a significantly better price become available for



customers during the dealing process, our innovative price-
improvement technology enables customers to receive that
better price during trade execution.

As well as interacting directly with clients, we also work with
a range of partners to provide I1G services to an expanded
distribution network, under our newly launched brand, IG
Prime. These partners are organisations that want to take
advantage of our award-winning dealing technolegy and
expertise. We're already offering a broad suite of partner
maodels under the |G Prime brand, and we're working on
developing these further.

Clients' investment requirements and appetite for risk may
change over time, affected by factors such as family or
financial commitments or the need to plan for retirement,
and this has offered IG the opportunity to broaden cur
product set to appeal to sophisticated investors who may
have evolving needs,

In 2014, we expanded our product range to include stock
trading, followed by the launch of investment portfolios

in 2017, Through these products clients can hold their
investments in individual savings accounts (ISAs) and self-
invested personal pensions (5IPPs). Cffering these services
allows us to deepen and lengthen cur relationship with clients
by catering for their evolving needs.

Early in 2019, we created an options account for European
clients to trade vanilla and barrier options over-the-counter
(OTC). Later in the year we also launched |G's on-exchange
turbo24 product, which offers EU retail clients the
opportunity to trade transferable securities in the form

of turbo warrants.

Appropricteness

Leveraged derivative products are not appropriate for
everyene, and good conduct by I1G is particularly vital in
relation to marketing and client recruitment, to prevent poor
consumer outcomes, When designing our products, we have
a clear and specific iarget audience in mind. We work hard
to ensure that our advertising reaches this target audience,
and that our clients comprehend the risks involved with IG's
trading and investing products, and understand how our
services work.

We alsc conduct rigorous checks to ensure that all our
marketing promotions are clear, fair and not misleading, and
that we're not downplaying risks compared to the benefits of
our products.

Before allowing a prospective client to open an account,

we carry out a detailed assessment to determine whether
our products are appropriate for them. We guestion
applicants extensively so we can assess whether they have
the necessary knowledge and experience to understand the
risks involved. We ask clients for details of their income and
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savings, both on account opening and at regular intervais
afterwards. As well as providing clear disclosures about

the features and risks of the product, and depending on

the results of this assessment, we may decline tc open an
account. Alternatively, we may provide an applicant with a
type of account where risk is limited, such as a stock trading
account. We may also close an open accountif a client’s
circumstances change and we belleve the account is no
ionger appropriate for them,

Citent ouicomnes

To consistently deliver fair outcomes and positive
experiences, we put our clients at the heart of everything
we do. We strive toc ensure that we understand their needs,
and we have a very low tolerance for poor client experiences
and outcomes. We're committed to continuing investment in
process, training, and culture to improve client experiences
and outcomes, and to address root causes wherever we

fall short.

Qur clients are knowledgeable investors and traders who
gain utitity out of thelir trading experience. They appreciate
the intellectual challenge of speculaling on market
movements, and accept that this may involve iosing money.
Our disclosures make clear that many of our trading products
are not long-term investment products, and as such we don't
see client gains or losses as the sole indicator on which to
judge client outcomes. Instead, we look across a broad range
of metrics - including overall satisfaction, appropriateness
trends, complaint statistics, trade-to-guery ratios, specific
causes of customer dissatisfaction, and financial outcomes
-to ensure that we're doing the right thing for our clients.

~ We also focus on providing our clients with the best possible

service by continuing our investment in our platform to
maximise its availability and performance.

Client sogaicition pad ceaentios

IG has a strong brand, built up over 46 years. We aim to
acqguire new clients through client referrals, word of mouth,
natural search and client manager relationships. This is all
supported by a targeted global marketing effort, with online
marketing managed centrally and local activity run by country
offices, though subject to central standards and oversight.
Our sophisticated online marketing uses an algorithmic
approach, enabling us to reach targer numbers of the right
prospects more efficiently and effectively, and to pursue
opportunity as it presents itself. We aim to react immediately
to global and local events, creating campaigns rapidly

and rolling them out to relevant regions, with appropriate
local adjustments,

As well as marketing our proeducts directly, we provide a
number of education, news and analysis services. These
encourage people to engage with 1G and to learn about our
products and how to trade effectively and responsibly. Our
offerings include online courses, webinars and seminars
via IG Academy, a suite of YouTube videos, and the DailyFX
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news and analysis website. These resources reinforce
our commitment to transparency, ensuring that new and
exisling clients are well-informed about IG's services and
the economics of trading the financial markets.

Our extensive educational resources include an introduction
pragramme that promotes responsible trading. Clients

can access expert tutorials, which cover everything from
fundamental trading concepts to risk management. 1G
seeks to ensure that this content is engaging and is targeted
towards client needs.

We also provide an extensive range of trading aids, such as
news, commentary and analysis - both in-platform and on our
website. We offer charting packages and various technical
analysis tools that help clients to screen markets for trading
opportunities, and they can choose to receive alerts when
their trading signals are triggered.

Chentrisk msnapement tools

We take our responsibitity to hefp clients understand the
risks associated with trading very seriously, and provide them
with tools to manage these risks. Given our business model,
it'sin IG's interest to develop lasting relationships with clients
- those who are more successful stay with us over the long
term and become mecre valuable.

|G has a number of services designed to help clients limit any
losses they may make.

Our close-out monitor (COM]) liguidates client positions when
their margin has been significantly eroded, and helps protect
clients by closing positions automatically. As at 31 May 2020,
99.99% of all client accounts were subject to the COM
procedure.

Clients can choose to attach guaranteed stops to their
paositions, so that they know thelr maximum possible Joss

al the outset of a trade. Qur innovative charging system
encourages clients to use guaranteed stops: no premium is
payable for attaching a guaranteed stop unless it's triggered.
G was the first provider to offer guaranteed stops on

this basis.

Since 1 August 2018, all Retail clients in the UK and EU have
benefited from negative balance protection. This gives these
clients the guarantee that they cannot lose more capital than
they have on their account.

In jurisdictions where negative balance protection is not
mandatory for retail clients, we offer a limited-risk account
through which every trade has a guaranteed stop, providing
protection on both an individual trade and overall account
basis. Qur turbo warrant and knock-cut option products also
give clients a way to trade with capped risk.

Revenue generation

We conduct our business through four revenue-generation
models: QTC leveraged derivatives, exchange traded
derivatives, stock trading and investments.

OTC leveraced derivatives

The majority of our revenue is derived from OTC leveraged
derivatives, where clients trade different types of derivative
instruments, including contracts for difference, financial
spread bets and options. These enable them to take iong
or short positions, for varied durations, in a wide range of
financial and other markets. They gain exoosure to price
movements in those markets without needing to buy or

sell the underlying asset.

Qur OTC leveraged derivatives are priced by reference to
prices in the undertying markets. When markets are open,
the prices of the derivative contracts are continually updated,

" reflecting the prices in the underlying markets. For the

majority of derivatives, the price includes a spread around
the underlying market price. For some derivatives on single
shares, clients are charged a commission instead, and the

~ contract does not include a spread. Clients are charged

funding when long positions are held overnight, and receive
funding when short positions are held overnight.

Our business faces market risk, as |G is the counterparty

~ to the OTC leveraged derivatives that clients enter into. We
" accept this market risk in order to allow instant execution

of client orders. We manage our market risk through
internalisation - allowing individual client trades to offset
against each other — and by hedging the residual risk above

. predefined limits, by entering into derivative contracts with
. third-party hedging brokers. We look to hedge our residual

market exposures in an efficient manner by grouping our
correlated exposures into asset classes. However, we are not
able to hedge our precise exposures perfectly, which gives
rise 1o basis risk.

Since we limit our market risk through internalisation and
hedging, cur trading revenue from OTC leveraged derivatives
predominantly reflects the charges paid by clients through
spread, commission and funding, less the costs incurred

ir hedging, and our revenue consistently has reduced
variability. Internalisation is key to our business model and
profitability, as it reduces the cost of hedging market risk in
the underiying markets,

The majority of the OTC derivatives that we offer are
‘leveraged’. Clients trade contracts for difference or financial

- spread bets cn 'margin’. This means they only need to have

sutficient funds in their account to cover the margin required
to enterinto a derivative contract, notits full value.



Margin is usually expressed as a percentage of the notional
value of the trade, and margin trading lets a client use
leverage to take a position in a market with a notional value
that is significantly greater than the funds they must deposit.
This means that leveraged derivative contracts magnify

the gains or losses a client can make relative to the

funds deposited.

IG faces client credit risk, as leveraged contracts can result
in a client incurring losses that exceed the funds in their
account, and they may be unable to fund those losses,
When setting the level of margin for each contract, we take
into account any relevant regulatory requirements and the
votatility of prices in the underlying market, which reduces
our exposure to client credit risk,

Qur OTC leveraged derivatives activity also gives rise to
liquidity risk. We trade cur hedging contracts on margin, and
are required to deposil initial margin with our brokers - a
percentage of the gross amount of open positions with each
broker. As this gross amount changes due to market price
movements, and as the nature of our open positions changes,
the consequent amount of margin we have tc deposit also
alters, as we're required to deposit margin with our brokers
on demand. This means that cur business faces liquidity risk
through our hedging activities, and counterparty credit risk
through the amounts we hold on deposit with our brokers.

IG sets its own exposure fimits against each hedging
counterparty, and large exposure rules defined by regulation
mean that our exposure to any one hedging counterparty is
also restricted. For this reason we need to maintain a number
of different hedging relationships to provide us with sufficient
capacity and diversification for our hedging requirements.

Exchiengs treced dlotivitives

Cur revenue from exchange traded derivatives is principally
derived from our ownership of Nadex, a US-based, regulated
derivatives exchange. Nadex clients can trade options

contracts on a wide range of underlying markets, with various '

strike prices and expirations. Clients become members of

the exchange, and pay a trading fee on each side of the
trade: once to open, and once to close. Under this model,
clients don't frade on margin, so these contracts don't involve
leverage. As a result, the exchange faces neither market nor
client credit risk.

In the 2020 financial year we launched Spectrum, our
Germany-based multilaterat trading facility (MTF), which
offers EU retsil clients the opportunity to trade transferable
securities in the form of turbo warrants, Spectrum offers
these securities on a wide range of underlying markets.
Clients can trade on Spectrum through a broker or bank that
has a standard membership of the exchange. All members
must fulfil the eligibility criteria set out in the rulebook as
required by the regulator.
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Prices for contracts listed on Nadex are provided by market
makers, who are also members of the exchange and pay
fees for trading. For Spectrum, we intend for liquidity to be

v provided by market makers, who rmust be categorised as
. market-making members of the exchange. At the moment,

|G provides baseline liquidity to Spectrum and operates as
one of the market makers to Nadex. We face market risk as a
result of this activity, and hedge this via third-party partners,

Stoech truding

We operate an execution-only stock trading platform,
through which clients can buy and sell individual shares listed
on exchanges around the world.

We charge a transaction fee for each purchase and sale
transaction, and a currency conversion fee for transactions
that involve different currencies. There is also a custody fee,
which may be rebated to clients who undertake a minimum
level of transactions in a set period. IG's trading revenue from
this service is reported net of the execution fees we payin
the market.

Clients fund the purchase of shares in full at the time of
placing an order. This activity doesn’t give rise to any market
risk or client credit risk for 1G.

Investroents

IG offers a portfolio-based investment service. From the
results of an online questionnaire, clients are advised which of
five portfolios comprising a basket of exchange traded funds
(ETFs) may be best suited to their needs. These portfolios
rebalance periodically. Alternatively, clients can choose their
own portfolio of ETFs to reflect their investment profile.

‘We charge a percentage fee on the value of the assets under

management, and our revenue from this activity reflects
these fees less the amount paid to the ETF provider.

Clients fund the purchase of their investments in full at the
outsct. This activity doesn’t give rise to any market risk or
client credit risk for 1G.
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Differentiation and core strengths

Business modeland risk management

As already noted, I1G's business model ensures that our
interests are aligned with those of our clients. As aresult of
the internalisation of client positions and our hedging policy,
we earn revenue from client transaction fees, andit is the
volume of client trading that drives revenue and not client
trading losses. Our business benefits when clients trade
well, as they are then more likely to continue trading. This
underpins IG's culture of championing the ciient.

IG has operated for 46 years, and we have well-established
processes for identifying and managing risks. We focus on
the long term, and on doing things properly to support a
sustainable, growing business.

As a result, our shareholders and IG's many stakeholders,
including clients, regulators and suppliers, can have
confidence that our business has the capacity to manage
the risks it faces, and that it will be able to keep operating
normally under stressed conditions and through financial
market volatility and operational risk events.

Braudend s poiclion

IG is a global leader in online trading and the trusted partner
for arcund 239,600 active clients. As a FTSE 250 company
with a market capitalisation of £2.8 billlon on 31 May 2020,
we have a long history of profitability and financial strength.

|G was created in 1974 as the UK's original OTC leveraged
derivatives provider. We introduced a completely new,
accessible way for people 1o trade on the price of gold, by
defining it as an index. Since then, our innovative, client-
focused approach has enabled cur business to grow, expand
internationally and broaden its product range, and today

IG is the world's No.1 CFD provider' as well as maintaining

its considerable UK market leadership in OTC leveraged
derivatives.

The unified gtobal I1G brand was established in 2013

through our acquisition of the IG.com domain. This pivotal
event gave us the framework to consolidate our global

web traffic through a single route, so as to focus on anline
leadership - something that is increasingly important for
acquiring, educating and providing a high level of service for
clients. Our recent introduction of our new brand identity

is another milestone for the 1G brand, and is a reflection of
our progressive growth strategy and commitment to keep
pioneering the way forward in the industry.

1 Basedenrevenu: excluding torex (from pushshed financial statemen's June 2020)

Chents and client expervience

IG's clients are of the highest quality. They are informed,
self-directed, sophisticated traders who are loyal to |G and
our services. Our business has the best client retention and
tenure statistics in the industry.

" Providing clients with the best service is at the heart of

our corperate culture at 1G. Our operating model and
offices around the world allow our business to provide an
uninterrupted service to clients. in addition to our global
network of offices, we have operations and development
centres in Krakow, Bangalore and Johannesburg that allow

' us to access the skills needed to support clients,

We offer a range of free seminars and online tutarials for
clients, and our client services team provides dedicated
24-hour support. This team is fully trained to understand our
products and how they are best suited to individual clients.
Theyre available through email, telephone and web chat.
We aim to ensure that correspondence with clients is always
clear and fair, and is never misleading.

To ensure that clients are at the heart of our business, we
encourage feedback and offer clear channels for comments
and complaints. We monitor our service standards closely by

_ regular tracking of Key Performance and Risk Indicators,

Feghinokooy and inngvs ticn
IG's success is predicated on investing in and developing
technology and innovative products that are market-leading

~and empowering for clients. We were the first company in our
. sector to launch an online dealing platform, in 1928, and the

* first to launch a mobile app with live price streaming, in 2003.
- We first offered a CFD on bitcoin in 2013, and we launched

our own exchange traded derivatives platform, Spectrum,
in 2019,

. We regularly invest in developing new tools and features for
our client-facing platforms — a continuous process that is

directed by detailed research into clients’ evolving needs.

iG stands out in its industry by giving clients round-the-clock
access to trade, even when the underlying market is closed
or when prices go negative, For example, in April 2020, 1G
continued to offer pricing on crude cil futures despite the
price going negative. We were able to do this due to our long-
standing investment in technclogy and our relentless focus
on client experience.

For more advanced and institutional clients, we provide a
range of professicnal technology, including a Direct Market
Access (DMA) platform, sophisticated technical analysis tools
and web application programming interface (AP} solutions.



We provide our clients with trading platforms based on
their requirements, whether they access them from home,
office or on the move. These include a web-based platform,
smartphone apps for a range of operating systems, and

a progressive web app (PWA). The speed, customisation
facilities, and integrated news and analysis feeds of our
platform are at the cutting edge of trading technology.
Desighed to provide an intuitive, personalised experience
for iraders with different styles and objectives, 1G's trading
platform is at the core of the suite of trading tools and
resources offered to clients.

Conduer ¢ nd standing with regulators

IG always seeks to operate in the client’s best interests. First,
we target our marketing and advertising to an appropriate,
specific audience, aiming to ensure that we open leveraged
trading accounts only for clients for whom the product

is suitable.

Second, we do our best to ensure that all clients are treated
fairly. We provide educational and training materials to clients
to help them understand cur products and services, so that
they can become maore skilful and effective as traders. We
belleve that this approach builds a high level of trustin us
from our clients, and nurtures lasting client relationships.

Third, 1G adheres to the highest regulatory standards. Our
Compliance Officers around the world are responsible

for maintaining an open and constructive dialogue with

iocal regulators, sharing our business plans with them and
ensuring that our actions are consistent with regulatory
expeciations. As a result, we have strong working
relationships with our regulators around the world, which is
fundamental to the sustainability and growth of our business.

Fooplt and culture

IG has an experienced, long-serving team of pecple who
understand its clients, what they need and what drives
them. It's our team’s expertise that enables us to deliver
our outstanding platform and client service. Qur people
also understand the obligations that come with being the
market leader in a highly regutated industry, operating with
integrity and with respect for clients, regulators and other
stakeholders 1G's culture is expressed through its values -
‘champion the client’, lead the way’, and ‘love what we do’.
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Key trends and factors likely
to affect our business

Covid-19

Through the resilience of sur market-leading technology
infrastructure, 1G has demanstrated its ability to perform
strongly throughout the period of unprecedented market
volatility triggered by the Covid-19 pandemic. We've followed
the letter and spirit of government guidance in countries
where the virus has been present, as they work to contain
and defeat it. Our significant long-term investment in
communications and technology infrastructure has enabled
allemployees to work safely from home, and we continue to
provide the best possible service for our clients when they
choose to trade the financial markets. We've maintained
regular communication with our staff members to ensure
their safety, and that of their families, during this challenging
time. The pandemic has shown that companies need to be
even more digitaily adept and focused if they're to succeed.
Efficiently adapting to digital ways of working has been key for
IG. Cur business is well-positioned to continue successfully
navigating the global impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic.

As a business that places a high degree of importance on
technological readiness and client service, we're exposed to
factors that may influence our platform’s availability to clients.
Througheout the Covid-19 pandemic, our employees had to
adjust to significant changes in their working environment,
while also handling exceptional tevels of client trading activity.
The sheer quantum of these trading volumes, combined with
the influx of applications for new accounts, demands that

we accelerate investment in cur technology and resilience.
This will ensure that we continue to defiver the best trading
experience for our clients, now and in the years to come.
However, any further sustained periods of volatility combined
with the challenges of remote working do have the potential
to impact our delivery of the technology that underpins our
client experience. We'll continue to review our processes so
we can minimise risks to service levels.

The level of volatility in financial markets

Our ability to attract new clients, and the willingness of
clients to trade, are driven substantiaily by the numbers of
clients who are seeing opportunities to trade in the financial
markets. Higher levels of volatility tend to generate more
trading opportunities, and these in turn attract new clients
and increase the level of individual client trading activity.
Measures of financial market volatility, such as the VIX index,
reached unprecedented levels during the 2020 financial year.
This surge was triggered primarily by the Covid-19 pandemic,
and has resulted in exceptional revenue performance for I1G in
the final quarter of the financial year. However, these levels of
volatility aren’t expected to continue over the medium term.
Any future reduction in the general level of volatility is likely to
have a detrimental effect on IG's revenue, since this is driven
by overall numbers of active clients and the level of each
client’s activity — both of which depend on market conditions.

The level of volatility in financial markets also affects our
ability to convert client income into net trading revenue.

Pericds of exceptionally high volatility can sometimes cause
the percentage of client income we convert into net trading
revenue to fall, We continue to work on maximising our
hedging efficiency, while remaining within our risk appetite
and maintaining our commitment to offer clients the best

trading and execution experience,

The impact of changes in the regulatory environment

|G operates in a highly regulated environment that continues

to evolve. We've seen regulatory intervention made

permanent in the UK and across the EU in the past financial

year, introducing a range of measures that apply to our retail I
client base. These broadly restrict the marketing and sale

of contracts for difference {CFDs), and include leverage

restrictions, negative balance protections and risk warnings.

. These measures have had a significant impact on 1G’s

! regions. However, through our stated strategy to deliver

revenue over the last two financial years. Over 70% of our
over-the-counter (OTC) leveraged revenue is now generated
from clients injurisdictions where restrictions on the sale and
marketing of CFDs have beenimplemented. It's expected that

1 restrictions will be introduced in other jurisdictions over time,

which may reduce or limit our revenue from clients in those

growlh via expanded distribution channels, geographical
expansion, segmented target markets, and a multi-product
offering, we aim to mitigate the potential impact of individual

~ regulatory interventions.

We continue to drive new initiatives as part of cur strategy,
mitigating the impact of regulatory change by diversifying
our product offering and providing choice for clients. 1G
has a history of innovation and flexibility, and a proven track
record of deploying technology and skills to adapt our
business in response to reguiatory and market changes. In
our experience, when tighter regulation has been applied

- appropriately, client cutcomes have improved, the industry

has become more sustainable and high-guality providers, like
|G, have benefited over the longer term.

Over the last 46 years, |G's strategy has been che of
differentiation within our industry. We've kept to the highest
regulatory standards and focused on fair outcomes for our
clients. We believe in robust, proportionate and consistently
applied regulatory oversight of the CFD sector, so we fully
support the regulatory objective to improve consumer
outcomes across the industry.

The level of marketing spend and the effectiveness
of marketing in attracting new clients

Qur business modelis based on generating a return from
our services through transaction fees charged to clients.
Our revenue for a given period is predominantly driven by
the number of active clients we serve in that period and

_ each client’s level of activity.

QOur marketing approach focuses on three key stages of the
consumer life cycle funnel - awareness and consideration
generation, demand activation, and onboarding and retention



all combine in order to secure the forecasted number of
active clients and levels of client activity.

First, our awareness and consideration marketing activity
takes our brand and product message to our defined broader
core target audience, from whom we expect short-term
returns, as well as our defined broader future target audience,
from whom we expect return in the medium-to-long term.
This creates a continucus stream of interested prospects,
who become the focus of our second funnel stage. Here we
use highly targeted demand-activation marketing activities,
designed to convert these informed prospects into valuable,
active clients, Our data-powered demand-activation marketing
operates on defined investment targets to guarantee an
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market. To support our growth ambitions, we'll continue
investing in local marketing strategies and cenducting
research to correctly identify the needs of local consumers
througheout the 2021 financial yvear.

We continued to develop cur US retail foreign exchange

* dealer business throughout the 2020 financial year. 1G US

attractive payback on this investment, Finally, the third stage of . <
. partner. The relative success of these initiatives will be

our funnel approach, our onboarding and retention-marketing
activity, ensures that all clients receive a customer experience
—in the form of tailored content and service — that enables
and empowers them to engage as informed, decisive, active
traders over a long lifetime with IG.

Across all stages of the consumer life cycle funnel, we
operate an integrated cross-channel marketing approach.
We orchestrale each channel to work in unity, to deliver

a seamless, multi-touchpoint customer experience — and
with that, the best return on investment. Our cross-funnel
and cross-channel approach is enabled and powered by
technology, data and continuous optimisation.

We're continuing 1o focus on the effectivencss of our
targeted marketing, and managing the level of marketing
spend 1o maintain an attractive payback on the investment.
We vary the level of marketing spend in line with the
opportunities we see to spend effectively.

Changes in the level and effectiveness of marketing spend,
or in the rate of client attrition and reactivation, could have
a significant effect on IG's future performance.

The level of investment in, and success of,

new initiatives

We're continuing to identify opportunities to invest in new
initiatives, to further broaden our range of products and
services, and our geographic coverage.

Our BEuropean clients now have access to trade arange

of turbo warrants on exchange, through Spectrum, cur
multilateral trading facility. Spectrum represents an important
diversification of our progduct range, It gives Eurgpean Retail
clients the opportunity to irade securitised derivatives in the
form of turbo warrants. Spectrum has launched successfully,
initially offering turbo24s on stock indices, currencies and
commodities, and plans tc expand its product set to include
single-name equities in the 2021 financial year.

I the 2020 financial year, we invested in localising our
offering for the Japanese market. Qur history of product
innovation and strong focus on client experience mean that
we're well-positioned to deliver long-term success in this

offers forex trading to clients in a market that's currently
underserved. Qur technology experience, excellent customer
service and competitive pricing mean we should be well-
positioned to succeed in this market.

We've also continued to pursue a range of partnership
opportunities during the 2020 financial year, Our technology
expertise and strong brand proposition make I1G an attractive

impacted by the attributes of the partner and the speed at
which the product offering can be taken to market.

We're continuing to work on our strategy and medium-term
financial targets, announced on 22 May 2019, which included
a number of new initiatives. The level of cur investment in
broadering our product range and diversifying into more
geographical markets is key to delivering our growth strategy.
Cur future performance will be affected by the success of
such initiatives,

. The UK's exit from the European Union

During the 2020 financial year, |G Europe, our new client-facing
subsidiary domiciled in Germany, became fully operational.
We've successfully transferred the majority of our EU-resident
client base to contract with 1G Europe. Although the exact
ramifications of the future trading relationship between the UK
and EU remain unclear, 1G now has an operating structure that

" should enable us to offer our regulated financial products in

all EU member slates once the transition period has ended.

Actions of competitors
Within our core OTC product set, we operate in a highly
competitive environment. This includes some unregulated and

' unethical operators at one end, and some highly regulated,
. established companies offering similar productsto IG at the

other. The way cur competitors act in response to regulatory
changes, whether in 1the EU or elsewhere, and the extent of theijr
compliance with both the letter and spirit of the regulations,
may affect IG’s competitive position in the industry. It may

also affect the reputation of the industry as a whole. This risk
extends to other jurisdictions in which we operate, which have
either already implemented regulations to control the trading of
leveraged derivatives, or are looking to do so in the near future.

We are also exposed to new entrant risk across our global
markets and closely monitor any changes in the local
competitive landscape in order identify and respond to the
threat of new entrants.

' We regularly monitor the financial results and actions of our

identified competitors, at an executive and a Board level.
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We're a global financial technology and trading [ Underpinning a strong set of ﬁnancial.a.nd operating results,
business. with a clear purpose to enable our we also progressed a number of activities as partof a

X it A renewed focus around environmental, social and governance
clients to access unique opportunities in the matters. Following several years of carbon emissions
financial markets.

reductions (relative to headcount), in FY20 we commenced

a programme of activities, including carbon offsetting, to
achieve full carbon neutrality. As of July 2020, we're a carbon-
neutral company in line with PAS 2060, The role we play in
the communities we live and work in around the world led us
to make a substantial charitable donation to those directly
affected by the pandemic.

In FY20, we delivered record revenues and profits, with
growth across all regions and products. We also built
momentum and achieved significant progress towards
our medium-term financial targets, and the broader
diversification of our business.

In terms of governance, |G appointed Mike McTighe to the
role of Chairman of the Board from 3 February 2020 and
Charlie Rozes to the role of Chief Financial Officer from

1 lune 2020, alongside other important changes to the pic
Board of Directors announced previously.

Net trading revenue was £649 2 million, 36% higher than
the prior year, This performance was underpinned by good
growth in the first three quarters of the financiai year, prior !
to the heightened market volatility in Q4. In the first three
quarters, net trading revenue of £389.7 million was up 9%

on the prior year period {Q1-Q3: £359.0 million}. I Q4, net
trading revenue accelerated to £259.5 million. This reflected
the unprecedented level of client trading activity from the
sustained period of volatility across global financial markets
triggered by the Covid-19 pandemic and other macro events.

Q4 FY20 trading
While we delivered good progress and resultsin the
first three guarters of the year, the fourth guarter saw
" extraordinary market conditions driven by the Covid-19

pandemic and other macro events. During Q4, record

levels of client onboarding saw 35,300 new OTC leveraged
" clients, 17,900 rew stock trading clients and 3,200 new
on-exchange clients placing a tirst trade in the period. New
clients onboarded in Q4 FY20 generated 14% of the total
OTC leveraged revenue in the quarter. The demographics of
this Q4 client cohort are simifar to that of our existing high-
~ quality client base, however it's too early to assess how their
" longer-term trading patterns and behavicurs will develop.
Attrition has been slightly higher compared to historical
cohorts, but the Group expects to see longer-term value
over time from an expanded client base. We continued 1o
follow a multi-channel marketing approach throughout Q4,
with organic search delivering a near threefold increase in
applications compared 1o the Q1-Q3 quarterly average,
a bhenefit of prior investment in brand and search engine
optimisation. Further improvements to our digital marketing
capability are targeted for FY21, with additional investmentin

£259.6 millon). s included invostments of B35 MIeN N | the G brand feliowing the a new brand launcn in June 2020,
prospect acquisition and cevelopment of 1he ranc, an . and an expansion in digital solutions to drive cost efficiency

the lau.lr.)ch of our new bu.sjnesses p:n the U? and Europe. i and improve scalability.
In addition, there was an increase in certain revenue- |
related costs, and a £5 million charitable donation. Variable
remuneration was £44.2 million, 79% higher than the

prior year, reflecting the exceptional performance against |
internal targets.

Our track record of revenue growth over time has been
driven by sieady increases in both the size and quaility of

our client base. We maintained our strict standards and
policies throughout the vear for new client recruitment and
screening, and in total recruited 96,200 new clients in FY20,
up over 100% on the prior year. We also continue to benefit
from the loyalty and tenure of cur established client base,
with 55% of revenue in the financial year generated from
ciients who have traded with us for more than three years. in
the final quarter of the financial year we onboarded 51, 200 !
new clients across our product offering, with 35,300 new
over-the-counter (OTC) leveraged clients placing a first trade
in the period.

Total operating expenses, excluding variable remuneration,
were £308.6 million, 1% higher than the prior year (FY19:

Our differentiated business model of internalising, or netting,
client flows and hedging the residual risk in each market
remained unchanged during this period, as did the Board-
approved market risk limits. Our revenue dogsn't benefit from
client trading losses, nor is it exposed to client trading profits.
This model has been an essential part of |G since we were
founded almost 50 years ago, and demensirated its value
throughout the unprecedented activity levels in Q4 FY20,
Market and credit risk were closely managed, and clients
were able to continue to trade, for example, when the market
experienced a 30% gap in the cil price in March, as well as

Profit before tax increased to £295.9 million (FY19:

£194 3 million), with an operating profit margin of 45.6%.
Conversion of operating profit into cash was strong, with
own funds generated from operations of £345.0 million i
(FY19: £198.1 million).




the brief move to negative oil price futures in April 2020.
We haven't experienced any loss-making days since 2015.

In respcnse to the Covid-19 pandemic, we successfully
implemented our comprehensive business continuity

plans, enabling all of our 1,921 global employees to quickly
transition to home-based working. Despite the closure of
our offices around the world, we nonetheless conducted

all of our operations successfully through the Q4 pericd

of unprecedented clienl trading volures. This highlighted
the cutstanding efforts of our people and the resilience,
scalability and agility of our communications and technology.
Ih Q4, for example, the number of new client applications
tripled from February to March, while client interactions
doubled to approximately 120,000 for the same period. We
intend to continue, and in FY21 increase, investment in this
infrastructure as part of the continualimprovement of ocur
clients’ experience traging with us.

Regulatory update

As a global company, we operate in many regulatory
jurisdictions. We differentiate ourselves in the industry
through a track record of good conduct, and maintaining
open and transparent relationships with alt our regulators.

The compliance requirements across our sector’s products
and services have continued to evolve and may change over
time, including in areas where we are expanding and growing,
such as Asia, and where we design and launch new products.
We have worked constructively with regulators and have
adapled our products and businesses, and will continue to
anticipate the pace and direction of new regulation, and

our adaptation to those changes is a key long-term success
factor. This adaptability can be evidenced by the return to
growthin FY20 in the ESMA region Relail client base following
a significant regulatory shiftin FY19. In the ESMA region,
revenue increased 26% to £328.5 million year-on-year,
accompanied by growth in the number of active clients and

a small increase in the revenue per client. In addition, during
the period we successfully implemented new regulations in
Singapore - animportant Asian regional market for us.

As previously indicated, further changes are possible in FY21
in some markets where we operate, including Australia. The
Australian Securities and Invesiments Commission has not
yet confirmed its final proposals or timelines to implement
new regulations for leveraged OTC products, although this is
expected within the next financial year,

Delivering on our strategy

Lo o Merheds

We delivered good underlying GTC leveraged revenue
growth of 3% to £319.1 million in Q1-Q3 FY20(Q1-Q3 FY19:
£310.9 million), prior to the sharp increase in Q4. Highlights in
the Core Markets included:
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-. Asignificant recovery in the ESMA region (EU and
UK) OTC leveraged Retail client base. The FY19
comparison included two months of trading prior to
the implementation of the ESMA product intervention
measures. Comparing the Q1-Q3 quarterly average with
the FY19 Q2-Q4 quarterly average shows the two periods
on a more consistent basis, with Q1-Q3 guarterly average
revenue up 26%, driven by an 8% increase in the number
of active clients. During the same period, revenue from
our Professicnal client base in the ESMA region remained
steady, with this group of clients contributing average
auarterly revenue of £39.8 millicn in Q1-Q3 FY20 {Q2-Q4

i FY19: £40.3 million)

In Singapore, where increased margin requirements for

retail forex traders were introduced in October 2019, the

business continued 1o perform well with an 8% growth

in @Q1-Q3 FY20 versus Q1-Q3 FY1S. In Australia, revenue

increased 10%, driven by an 8% growth in the number of

active clients’

e

In Q4, revenue growth in the Core Markets from our OTC
leveraged business accelerated to deliver revenue of £208.1
million, an 83% quarter-on-quarter increase. The number
of active clients was exceptionally high, with strong levels
of reactivation in addition to record levels of acquisition
- leading to a 41% increase in the number of Core Markets
OTC leveraged active clients quarter-on-quarter. This was
_ supported by a 30% quarter-on-guarter increase in the
revenue per client, with clients identifying more opportunities
; totrade the financial markets.

Our stock trading and investment products also performed
strongly, with an improved product offering and increased
marketing spend coinciding with the higher levels of volatility
seen in Q4. New client acquisition was almost double the
prior year, with 26,000 clients placing a first trade (FY19:
13,.500), of which 69% were in Q4, Stock trading and
investments continue to serve as a retention tool for existing
OTC leveraged clients, as well as providing an acquisition

: channel to attract new active traders to |G for whom
leveraged trading products may be appropriate.

|

cSionificent Opporntenities

I As previously set out in the May 2019 strategy launch, we

1 are targeting an increase in revenue of £100 million from

| our portfolio of Significant Opportunities, from £60 millicn
in FY19 to around £160 million in FY22, Revenue from this

i portfolio in FY20 was £108.4 million (FY19; £58.7 miflicn}), an

| increase of 85%, refiecting tangible progress of the initiatives

, and boosted by Q4 FY20 market volatility. We have now

. completed the first year of the three-year implementation

programme designed to diversify the business and better

position it for the long term. Noting that each initiative is

Average quarterly revenues inthis paragrapt are based onthe Q1-Q3 FY20 quarterly

|

i

i

} 1

| average versds the Q2 G4 Y19 guantetly averages
;n.g%s;-;
AT
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at a different stage of development, there has been good
progress made across aill of the Significant Opportunities.

Growth in revenue and the number of active clients has
been strong in both the Japan and the Emerging Markets
businesses, resulting from a number of actions completed
during the year.

In tapan, new leadership introduced a more localised product
offering which has been well received, with the investment

in marketing through an extensive brand campaign,
supported by a high-profile brand ambassadaor, driving
further success. We continue to innovate new products for
this iImportant market. Good progress has been made in
partnership discussions, and we’ll continue to focus on these
opportunities in the year ahead to better reach the 2 million
active forex traders who drive a £1 billion revenue pool in

this market,

During the period, we opened a new client-facing subsidiary,
IG internaticnal. This better enables us to onboard new
clients from many different parts of the world, and simplifies
our arrangements with existing international clients. Revenue
growth was driven by an increase in the number of active
clients who were onboarded via reverse enguiry.

in the US. the OTC forex business added new clients at

a steady rate. The business provides clients with award-
winning service and leading technology. Nadex, our US
retail exchange, has also continued to refine its product
proposition, growing its revenues year on year. DailyF X,
our US-based content provider, expanded its global reach
through greater multi-lingual capability. Given the lead

offering to meet the needs of active lurbo warrant traders,
and to facilitate further growth in this opportunity. Spectrum
is currently integrating an additional broker, which will enable
the exchange to offer its expanding product set to a wider
array of potential clients and will mark further progress.
Discussions are ongeing with additional issuers who have
publicly expressed a firm interest in issuing products on
Spectrum.

Reflecting our growing focus on the Institutional client
segment, I1G Prime was launched in March 2020, FY20
revenue growth from this segment was encouraging, and a
further build-out of |G Prime’s product offering is planned in
FY21 to provide additional opportunities for client acquisition.
We grew the number of active clients by 59% in this client
segment in FY20.

While at an earlier stage, in Greater China we recruited a new
CEC with a strong network in Hong Kong and established a

" local office presence. We're advancing discussions with a
. number of banks and securities brokerage firms to distribute
. our suite of products. These partners, who recognise our

differentiated product and service capabilities, would
provide more immediate market access for us than a
directto-consumer approach. Following completion, these
partnerships would cnable us to begin gaining accessto a
market of more than 500,000 professional investors in Hong

| Kong, and betler position us well to reach the estimated

generation potential of the DailyFX brand, with over 27 milllion .

new readers [of which 5.1 million are in the US), the website
is becoming a more important marketing and acquisition
engine for IG as it looks to expand its content beyond forex.
We will continue to focus on the integraticn and alignment of
our three US businesses to amplify the IG brand and increase
the overall revenue ocpportunity,

The successful launch of Spectrum, our multilateral trading
facility, was a key milestone in the diversification of our
product range. Spectrum’s differentiated offering has been
well received by the market, and volumes have grown steadily
since the marketing launch in 2019. Around 40% of trades

on Spectrum in Q4 FY20 were made out of normal trading
hours, showing the value of Spectrum’s unique 24/5 trading
capability. We are continuously improving our product

'

4 million high-net-worth individuals in Greater China.
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Summary Group Income Statement
Year ended Year ended
31 May 2020 31 Moy 2019 Change
£Em £rm %
Net trading revenue 649.2 476.9 36%
Netinterest on client money 5.0 6.3
Betting duty and FTT (7.4) (7.9}
Other operating income 1.4 1.9
Net operating income 648.2 4a77.2 36%
Operating expenses (308.6) (259.6}
Variable remuneration (44.3) (24.7)
Total operating costs* {352.9) (284.3) 24%
Gain/loss on sale of subsidiaries 0.7 -
Cperating profit 296.0 192.9 53%
Net finance (expense)/income .1 1.4
Profit before taxation 295.9 18943 52%
Taxation {55.5) (36.0)
Profit for the period 240.4 158.3 52%
Basic earnings per share 65.3p 43.1p 52%
1 Opetatng costaincude net cred tiosses on finarcral assets of £ 110 milbon (FY19 £1 & mill onjwhith are prosentea separately onthe Consohidated Inoonie Statemisnt in the Growg

Fitiang jal Statore nts

Our net trading revenue in FY20 increascd by 36% to £649.2 million, compared with £476.9 million in FY12, driven by a period
of sustained high market valatility in Q4, related to the Covid-19 pandemic and other macro events,

Net trading revenue reflects the transaction fees (ie spread, commission and overnight funding charges) paid by clients net of
our external hedging costs and clients’ trading profits and losses, otfset by cur hedging profits and losses.

Operating expenses of £308.6 million increased by 19%. This included investment of £35 million in prospect acquisition and
development of the IG brand, in the launch of our new businesses in the US and Europe, and an increase in certain costs
directly related to the significant increase in revenue and active client numbers, Operating expenses also included a £5 million
charitable donation. Variable remuneration of £44.3 million reflected a higher level of headcount and the cutperformance of
the Group against its internal targets.

We sold six entities, recognising a gain on sale of £0.7 million. These entities owned generic iop-level domains, which we
acquired in FY15,

Operating profitin the period was £296.0 million, 53% higher than FY19, After net finance costs of £0.1 million, profit before
taxation was £295.9 million. The effective tax rate for the year was 18.8% (FY19: 18.5%), with profit after tax of £240.4 million.
Basic ¢arnings per share of 65.3 pence was 52% higher than in FY19.

Revenue performance by product

Net trading reverue (£ m)

Year ended Yrar ended Chanage

31 May 2020 31 May 2019

OTC levgraged 617.2 451.4 37%
Exchange traded derivatives 18.4 16.8 9%
Stock trading and investments 13.6 87 57%
Group 649.2 476.9 36%
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Active clients (000) Reverue por chent (£)

Yeat ended Yesr ended Chanae Year ended Yeur ended Change
Revenue drvers 31 May 2020 31 Mav 2010 . 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 %
OTC leveraged 176.6 129.7 %6% 3,496 3,481 -
Exchange traded derjvatives 19.8 17.5 13% 927 958 (3%)
Stock trading and investments 54.9 37.9 45% 248 229 8%
Group'’ 239.6 178.5 34%

1 Total active clients have been adjusted to remove the chients who are active in more than one product cateaory (multl proouct chientspto give a unigue client count b~ FY20
thete were 11,700 multi-prodact chents contparcawith 6.600in FY19,

OIC levetatud derbvatlives

in FY20, OTC leveraged revenue in the year was £617.2 million, an increase of 37% on FY19. We served 36% more OTC leveraged
active clients in FY20, whilst revenue per client was consistent with prior year. The increase in OTC leveraged revenue was
primarily driven by market conditions in Q4 where high levels of market volatility were observed throughout the peried.

OTC leveraged recenue (£

Year pnded Year ended Chatya
Ascet slass 31 May 2020 37 May 2019 "
Indices 287.2 213.8 34%
Equities 88.6 857 3%
Foreign exchange 113.3 79.6 42%
Commodities 86.2 41.8 106%
Options 24.4 20.3 20%
Cryptocurrencies 17.5 10.2 72%
OTC leveraged 617.2 451.4 37%

Changes in the composition of our OTC leveraged revenue by asset class reflects the differing levels of volatility in each asset
class, which impacts the extent to which clients can identify trading opportunities.

The impact of elevated levels of market volatility was reflected in all asset classes. Revenue generated from clients trading on
commodities showed the largest asset class increase of 106% on FY19, driven by the highly volatile price of oil during Q4.

Lo han@e tristte d fe-rivi tives )

In FY20, we generated £18.4 million of revenue from exchange traded derivatives, traded on the two exchanges that we
operate: Nadex, the US retail focused exchange, and Spectrum, the European multilateral trading facility, which was launched
in Octaber 2019. Active clients in FY20 increased 13%, reflecting the acquisition of new clients trading on Spectrum. This also
resulted in a 3% reduction in the average revenue per client, as driven by new Spectrum clients, who were of a lower average
value than the Nadex clients.

1o b frding tod inve tithe nie

For FY20 stock trading and investments revenue now includes the income derived from foreign exchange conversions, which
was previously reported within the OTC leveraged revenue; the comparative for FY 19 has been restated. On this basis our
stock trading and investments revenue was 57% higher in FY20, driven by a 45% increase in the number of clients served and
an 8% increase in revenue per client.
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Revenue performance by market
Consistent with the presentation of our strategy and financial targets, revenue performance has been segmented into Core
Markels and Significant Opportunities.

Net trading revenus (Emi

Year ended Yeor ehded Change

31 May 2020 31 hay 2019 %

ESMA region — OTC leveraged 328.5 260.4 26%
Other Core Markets — OTC leveraged 198.7 149.1 33%
Stock trading and investments 13.6 87 57%
Total Core Markets 540.9 418.2 29%
Significant Opportunities -~ OTC leveraged 90.0 41.9 115%
Significant Opportunities - ETDs 18.4 16.8 9%
Total Significant Opportunities 108.4 58.7 85%
Group 649.2 476.9 36%

Net trading revenue in the Core Markets was 29% higher in FY20 than the same period in the prior year, with all areas of the
business benefiting significantly from increased client activity as a result of the high levels of market volalility in Q4.

ESMA region revenue increased 26% to £328.5 million, with a 48% increase in Retail client revenue and a 12% increase in
Professional client revenue. The number of active Retall clients and revenue per Retail client increased throughout the year,
and was further boosted by 34,000 new clients onboarded and increased activity of our existing clients. The number of active
Professional clients trading and the revenue per Professional client rernained steady in the Q1-Q3 period, with an increase in
activity and revenue per client in Q4.

Qur Other Core Markets comprise our businesses in Australia, Singapore, Switzerland, Dubai and South Africa. Other Core
Markets revenue increased 33% to £198.7 millian, driven by a 30% increase in the number of active clients. Stock trading and
investments revenue was 57% higher than FY19, to £13.6 million, driven by a 45% increase in the number of clients served and
an 8% increase in revenue per client.

Revenue from the portfolic of Significant Opportunities was £108.4 million in FY20, £49.7 million higher than in FY19.
with & 115% increase in OTC leveraged revenue and a 9% increase in exchange traded derivatives revenue. Similar to the
Core Markets, these revenues benefited from the extraordinary trading conditions experienced across the Group in the
fourth quarter.

Q4 performance
Client activity and revenue in Q4 was exceptional, driven by the sustained levels of high volatility as a result of the Covid-12
global pandemic and other macro events.

In Q4, Group revenue was 86% higher than in Q3 FY20 and 120% higher than Q4 FY19, This sharp increase in revenue was
driven by a significant rise in the number of active clients trading in the period with a higher average revenue per client, as the
volatile markets provided more opportunities for clients to trade. Average OTC leveraged revenue per client was 31% higher in
Q4 than Q3.

Group active clients in Q4 reached 199,300 (Q4 FY19: 128,100}, driven by more existing clients trading and a significant
increase in the number of hew clients onboarded in the period. In @4 there were 51,200 new clients trading, 204% higher
than Q3.

While our revenue was significantly boosted by the exceptional client activity in @4, we don’t expect this leve| of activity to
ke sustained as we anticipate market volatility returning to more normalised levels in the course of FY21. However, we do
anticipate some ongoing benefit from the record number of new active clients acquired in Q4. While preliminary indications
are that these clients are of a similar profile to previous new client cohorts, it's too early to conclude how they will trade
over time.
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Q1-Q3 performance

Prior to Q4, the Group delivered good performance across all businesses and products. Q1-Q3 FY20 net trading revenue was
£389.7 million, 9% higher than Q@1-Q3 FY19 which was £359.0 million. The @1-Q3 FY20 Core Markets net trading revenue was
3% higher and the Significant Cpportunities net trading revenue was 50% higher than Q1-Q3 FY19,

OTC leveraged products continue to gererate the majority of the Group’s net trading revenue and represented 95% of the
Q1-Q3 FY20 revenue.

. OTC leveranwa revenue (Eml o Active chents { 000,

Q1-Q3 ©1-03 Churge Q1-q3 G1-G3 Cha e
Revenue drivers FY20 FY19 FY20 FY19
ESMA region 1970 200.3 (2%) 731 741 (1%)
QOther Core Markets 1221 110.6 10% 34,0 316 7%
Core Markets 3181 310.8 3% 107.1 105.7 1%
Significant Opportunities 52.5 30.5 72% 231 11.2 106%
Group OTC leveraged 371.6 341.4 9% 130.2 116.9 1M1%

ESMA region OTC leveraged revenue and active clients in Q1-Q3 FY20 were slightly lower than @1-Q3 FY192. The FY19
comparison includes two months of trading in Q1 FY19 prior to the implementation of the ESMA product intervention
measures. Comparing the G1-Q3 FY20 quarterly average with the FY19 Q2-Q4 quarterly average shows the two perieds on a
more consistent basis, with an 8% increase in the average quarterly revenue, driven by a 7% increase in the average quarterly
active clients. The recovery in the Retail client base was strong, with 26% higher revenue and an 8% increase in the number
of artive nlients within the Retail client segment. The number of active Retail clients has increased each quarter since the
implementation of the ESMA product intervention measures in August 2018 (Q1 Fr19).

Average guarterly active Professicnal chents and revenue per Professional client remained largely unchanged across the two
comparative periods.

The proportion of the ESMA region revenue generated by Professional clients in the G1-Q3 FY20 period reduced to 61%,
compared with 66% in the Q2-Q4 FY19 period, due to the increase in Retail client revenue.

Cdher 0 owre Morkets
OTC leveraged revenue in Q1-Q3 FY20 was £122.1 million, 10% higher than @1-Q3 FY12. The number of active clients in the
period increased by 7% on Q1-Q3 FY 12, with a 3% increase in the revenue per client

Australia and Singapore were the largest contributors to our Other Core Markets, representing 72% of the revenue in the Q1-
Q3 FY20 period. Australia's Q1-Q3 FY20 net trading revenue increased by 10% on Q1-Q3 FY19. In Singapore, where increased
margin requirements for forex trading came into effect in October 2019, revenue increased by 8%.

The OTC leveraged revenue in Q1-Q3 FY20 from the Significant Opportunities increased by £22.0 million to £52.5 million,
72% higher than Q1-Q3 FY 19, with each of the businesses within the Significant Opportunities portfolio repotrting growth
in revenue in this period. The increased revenue is driven by growth in the client base, with the Q1-Q3 FY20 active clients

increasing 106% oh Q1-Q3 FY19. The averade revenue per client in the Significant Opportunities reduced by 16% due to

changes in the mix of the revenue. For example, clients of 1G US, our OTC forex business, which went live in lanuary 2019,

have a lower revenue per client than the more established business units in the portfolio.
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Operating expenses {(excluding variable remuneration) by cost type

" Yearended  vesrended Cronac

31 May 2020 31 May 2019 g

Fixed remuneration 116.4 106.3 9%
Advertising and marketing 61.8 51.7 20%
Bad debts 1.0 1.8 n/mv
Premises 7.3 13.1 {45%)
Regulatory fees 6.8 3.6 88%
Other structural costs 797 65.8 21%
Depreciation and amoertisation - 256 17.3 48%
Operating expenses 308.6 2596 19%
Headcount at end of period 1,921 1,788 7%

Operating expenses were £308.6 million, £49.0 million higher than FY12. The increase reflects the planned investment to
support growth in the Significant Opportunities portfelio, and an increase in certain costs directly related to the increased
revenue and trading activity in @4, including a higher bad debt provision, and increased credit card charges. The FY20
operating expenses also included a £5 million charitable donation,

Fixed remuneration increased by 9% in FY20 to £116.4 million, driven by the planned growth in headcount during the year.
Included in fixed remuneration was an increase of £1.6 million tor holiday accrual, as the employee holiday balance carried
into the next financial year was significantly higher due to the Covid-19 pandemic.

Advertising and marketing spend increased by 20% in FYZ0 to £61.8 million (FY19: £51.7 million). The mix of external
advertising and marketing spend changed compared with the prior year, with a reduction in centrally managed enline spend
reflecting improved efficiency, investhient in our search engine optimisation capability, and an increase in locally managed
and brand related spend, to enable a more localised marketing approach.

The bad and doubtful debt provisions in the year were £11.0 million (FY19: £1.8 million), the majority of which relates to
provisions for client debts which arose during the highly volatile markets in Q4.

Premises costs were £7.3 million (FY12: £13.1 million). The decrease of £5.8 miliion was due to the majority of building rent now
being recognised as depreciation, following the adoplion of the IFRS16 Leases accounting standard; this also contributed to
the £8.3 million increase in depreciation and amortisation. The remaining increase in depreciation and amortisation reflects
the increase in the amortisation of internally developed assets, following high levels of capitalisation in FY19, and higher lease
costs due to new premises.

We are charged fees by the various regulators in the jurisdictions in which we operate, and in addition are required to make
a contribution to the Financial Services Compensation Scheme in the UK. The charge for this depends on the size of the
compensation tund reguired by the FCA for the scheme. This requirement increased from FY 19, which drove the increase
of £3.2 million in regulatory fees.

Other structural costs were £79.7 million, an increase of 21% on FY19. The increase reflects higher credit card charges, linked
to anincrease in the number of payment transactions in Q4, and the £5 million charitable donation.

Variable remuneration
£m

Year ended ”Y‘e‘ar eua&d Cearoe

31 May 2020 F1 May 2019 g

Share-based compensation ‘ 1.3 6.6 72%
Sales bonuses 8.2 5.4 50%
General bonuses 24.8 127 95%

Variable remuneration 44.3 24.7 79%
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Variable remuneration rose 79% to £44.3 million; this was 15% of operating profit, versus 13% in the prior year. Average
monthly headcount in the Group increased to 1,887 at the end of FY20, from 1,780 at the end of FY19.

Share-based compensation costs relate to the long-term incentive plans for key employees, and reflect the size of the awards
and the extent to which they are expected to vest, which is driven predominantly by earnings per share and relative Total
Shareholder Return performance. The increase of 72% to £11.3 million reflects the higher accounting charge as arasult

of the outperformance in FY20 against internal targets, as well as a higher level of headcount.

Sales bonuses increased by 50%, reflecting higher commission payments to sales employees for the onboarding and
management of their own-sourced high-value clients.

The charge for the general bonus pool was £24.8 million, an increase over the prior year period, reflecting our
outperformance against internal targets as well as a2 higher headcount.

Ko tiicnoe coste

We recognised net finance costs of £0.1 million during FY20, comprising finance income of £5.8 million (FY19: £5.4 million)
and finance costs of £5.9 million (FY19: £4.0 million). The Increase in finance costs is attributable to higher fees and interest
relating Lo debl faciiities and the adoption of IFRS816 Leases from 1 June 2019, which resulted in a £0.6 million interest charge
for the financing element of operating leases.

Tavetue o

The effective tax rate (ETR) for the vear was 18.8% (FY192: 18.5%).

The majority of our taxable profit arises in the UK. The ETR is lower than the 19% statutory rate of UK Corporation Tax due
to the benefit of the UK ‘Patent Box’ incentive as a result of UK and European patents held, and the recognition of previously
unrecognised tax losses for deferred tax purposes relating to the US and Japan.

Our ETR is dependent on a mix of factors including taxable profit by geocgraphy, tax rates levied in those geographies and
the availability and use of taxable losses. Qur future ETR may also be impacted by changes in our business activities, client
compaosition and regulatory status, which could affect our exemption from the UK Bank Corporation Tax surcharge, Qur
current estimate of the ETR for FY21 is 19%.

Dividdone?
The Board recommends a final dividend of 30.24 pence per share, taking the full-year dividend for FY20 to 43.2 pence per
share (FY19: 43.2 pence per share), in line with previous guidance.

The final dividend, if approved by shareholders at our Annual General Meeting (AGM), will be paid on 22 October 2020 to
members on the register &t the close of business on 25 September 2020.

Lristiibeoindere tesetves

As aresult of an internal Group review of historical distributable reserves, three dividends were identified where the
determination of distributable reserves was incorrect. The relevant dividends were interim FY18, final FY17, and interim FY10.
While sufficient distributable reserves existed in the Group at the times of all the payments, the Company itself did not have
sufficient distributable reserves.

At the September AGM, resolutions will he proposed to rectify the historical positions.

The Group's current and historical capital positions are unaffected.
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Own funds flow

Year ended Year enced
Em 21 May 2020 31 May 2017
Operating profit 296.0 192.9
Depreciation and amortisation — other 189 17.3
Lease asset depreciation 6.7 -
Lease liability payments {7.3) -
Share-based compensation 97 7.2
Gain on sale of subsidiaries {0.7) -
Change in working capital 217 (19.3)
Own funds generated from operations 345.0 198.1
As % of operating profit 117% 103%
Taxes paid (57.1) {38.4)
Net own funds generated from operations 287.9 159.7

We use own funds, and net own funds generated from operations, as key measures of cash generation. Cash generation
remained strong in FY20, with own funds generated from cperations of £345.0 miltion (FY19: £198.1 millicn). The cash
cohversion rate, calculated as own funds generated from operations divided by operating profit, increased 1o 117% (FY19:
103%). The high level of conversion of profit into cash reflects the non-cash charges in operating profit and the movement
in working capital due to the higher level of the bonus accrual at the end of FY20, compared with the prior year.

Cash tax payments of £57.7 million consisted of £13.8 million in respect of the UK Corporation Tax liability for FY19, £41.2
million of tax in respect of the UK FY20 liability, and the payment of £4.6 million of overseas taxes, partly offset by the receipt
of £2.5 million of UK tax overpaid in earlier periods.

Tax payments in FY20 were significantly higher than in FY19 due to increased profits during the year and the acceleration of
UK Corporation Tax quarterly instalment payments. We were required to make six instalment payments in FY20, versus four
payments previously required in & 12-month period, due to a change in UK tax legislation. This is expected to normalise back
to four instalment payments in FY21.

Movement in own funds

Year ended Yewt ended
£m 31 May 2020 21 May 2018
Net own funds generated from operations 2879 159.7
Net financing {costs)/receipts (0.8} 05
Capitaf expenditure (16.3) (14.3)
Proceeds from sale of subsidiaries 06
Purchase of own shares {1.5) (2.0)
Pre-dividend increase in own funds 269.9 143.9
Dividends paid {159.2) (171.1)
increase/(decrease) in own funds 110.7 (27.2)
Own funds at start of the year 720.8 7461
Impact of movement in exchange rates 1.0 1.9
Own funds at the end of year 8325 720.8

Capital expenditure in the year of £16.3 millicn primarily related to internally developed sofiware, and the purchase of third-
party software and |IT equipment.

Dividend payments during the year reflect the final dividend for FY19 of £111.4 million and the interim dividend for FY20 of
£47.8 million.
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Summary Group Balance Sheet

31 May 1 May
£m 2020 2019
Goodwill 108.1 108.1
Intangible assets 39.1 43.4
Property, plant and eguipment 17.0 14.4
Operating lease net asset Q.1 -
Fixed assets 164.3 165.9
Liquid asset buffer 83.8 84.4
Amounts at brokers AZ7.4 419.3
Cash in IG bank accounts 486.2 373.3
Own funds in client money ) 66.5 51.1
Liquid assets 1,073.9 928.1
Long-term bank borrowings {100.0) (100.0)
Client deposits at |G Bank S.A. 58.9) (31.6}
Title transfer funds (82.5) (75.7)
Own funds 832.5 720.8
Working capital (61.8) 43.1)
Tax payable (9.9) {10.4)
Deferred tax net asset 10.8 8.6
Net assets 935.9 841.8

The operating lease net asset of £0.1 million at 31 May 2020 refiected the adoption of IFRS 16 Leases with effect from
1 June 2019, The balance comprised a £29.3 miillion right-of-use asset offset by a £29.2 million lease liability.

Our liquid assets have increased by £145.8 million to £1,073.9 million during the year. This was driven by an increase in the
Group's cash, after taking into account dividends of £159.2 million (F¥Y19: £171.1 million) and tax payments of £57.1 million
during the year, and an increase in amounts held at brokers. The increase in amounts at brokers reflected increased margin
requirements at 31 May 2020 relative 1o 31 May 2019. Own funds in client money represents cur cash which is in segregated
client money pools.

Own tunds are our liguid assets, reduced by bortowings and client money held on the Balance Sheet. Client deposits and title
transfer funds increased relative 1o the prior year, reflecting high levels of account tunding by clients.

The change in our working capital requirement reflected the relative size of the bonus pool accrual and other accruals which
relate to variable costs.

Available liquidity

31 May 31 My

£m 2020 2019
Liquid assets 1,073.9 928.1

Broker margin requirement {(326.0) (314.0)
Cash balances in non-UK subsidiaries (177.4) (187.5)
Own funds in client money {(66.5) (51.1)
Available liquidity at end of year 504.0 3755

Of which:

Held as liquid asset buffer 83.8 84 .4

Dividend due 111.7 111.3
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Our total liquid assets at the end of year were £1,073.9 million (31 May 2019 £828.1 million). Liquidity is provided by
shareholders’ funds, supplemented by a £100 million bank term loan, client deposits at IG Bank in Switzerland, and client
funds which have been transferred to us under title transfer arrangements. We have access to additional liquidity through
a £100 million committed revolving credit facility.

We require liquidity to fund cur day-to-day operations, primarily to fund the margin that our hedging brokers require te
support our hedging positions, the regulatory and working capital of our subsidiaries, and to fund adequate buffersin

client money accounts. Despite the unprecedented levels of financial market volatility, no issues were encountered with the
management of liquidity during the period. reflecting our resilient business model and prudent financial and risk management.

The level of broker margin is driven by the notional value of our open hedging positions, which vary with client trading activity,
and the extent to which client trades can be offset against each other. At 31 May 2020, the broker margin reguirement was
£326.0 million {31 May 2019: £314.0 million). The peak broker margin during FY20 was £380.8 million.

For liguidity management and planning purposes, we conservatively treat cash held by subsidiaries cutside the UK as not
immediately available. The amount of cash held in entities outside the UK was £177.4 million at 31 May 2020 (31 May 2019:
£187.5 million). Balances in excess of capital and operating requirements are regularly repatriated to the UK by these entities
to ensure efficient management of liquidity.

Regulatory capital resources

31 May 21 May
Em 2020 cU19
Shareholders’ funds 9359 841.8
Less interim profit/declared dividends (111.7) (111.3)
Less goodwill (108.1) {108.1)
Less intangible assets (32.0) (43.4)
Less deferred tax assets’ - {9.0)
Less value adjustment for prudent valuation (1.8) am
Regulatory capital resources 675.5 568.9
1 FerBY20, mhine witk the EU Captal Requil ements Reaulation Article 4, the ceferred tar asscts meet the thresheld reguiretnents wo allow them o b risk weighted an pot of the

cvedt risk b eaquire piert and are not de ductec i tullfrom regul stery capitaltesources

Pillar 1 risk exposure amounts (REA)

31 May 31 May
Em 2020 2019
Total Piilar 1 REA 2.018.6 1,875.9
Capital ratio 33.5% 30.3%
Required capital ratio
Pillar 1 minimum 8.0% 8.0%
Individual capital guidance {ICG}) 2.4% 9.4%
ICG requirement 17.4% 17.4%
Combined buffer requirement 2.5% 3.1%
Total requirement % 19.9% 20.5%
Total requirement - £m 401.7 385.0
Capital headraom - Em 273.8 183.8

Qur capital ratio at 31 May 2020 was 33.5% {31 May 2019: 30.3%), well above the required minimum capital ratio, including the
combined buffer requirement, of 19.9% (371 May 2019: 20.5%), demonstrating our selid capital base.

Sepresated clent fund:

At 31 May 2020, we held £1,964.1 million (31 May 2019: £1,349.2 million} of client money in segregated bank accounts, and
£1,509.8 million (31 May 2019: £1,096.8 million) of client assets in third-party custodian accounts. These amounts are
classified as segregated client money and assets, and therefore excluded from our balance sheet,
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Effective risk management is essential to the
achievement of IG’s strategy and business
objectives, and to preserve its financial
strength and resilience. The Board is
responsible for ensuring that we maintain

an appropriate risk management culture,
supported by a robust Risk Management
Framework.

Risk Management Framework

|G has an established Risk Management Framework to
identify, measure, manage and monitor the risks faced by
the business, including the achievement of fair outcomes
for clients as a result of our conduct or to the sound, stable,
resilient and transparent operation of financial markets. This
framework provides the Board with assurance that the range
of IG's risks, whether strategic or operational in nature, are
understood and managed in accordance with the appetite
and tolerance levels set by the Board. It provides the basis for
enabling our ongoing assessment, contral, monitoring and
reporting of risk management.

The framework is established arcund the following elements:

= Risk culture

-+ Risk Taxonomy

-3 Risk Appetite Statement (RAS)

-» Risk Management Governance

- Risk assessment, control, monitoring and reporting

Risk culture

The Board recognises that embedding a culture of risk
management and compliance across all areas of the
Company is fundamental to the effective operation of

our Risk Management Framework, and sets the tone for
broader conduct in all business activities and for promaoting
a common set of IG values and expected behaviours,

Cur culture is defined by the shared values, attitudes,
competencies and behaviours present throughout the
business. A poor or inconsistent culture will inevitably lead
to anincrease in certain areas of risk.

We work to achieve the implementation of our desired
risk management culture through principles, policies and

consistent practices.

Three lines of defence

|G operates a three lines of defence’ Risk Governance Model.

First bno of difenen
The first line of defence has primary accountability for risk
management, including the day-to-day responsibility for

ensuring that the business operates within risk appetites.
Management is responsible foridentifying, assessing, and
managing risks facing the business, in compliance with IG's
risk management policies.

Serond ine of delence

The second line of defence, with an objective of independent
risk oversight, is provided by the risk and compliance teams.
These are part of a single control team, led by the Group’s
Chief Risk Officer.

These teams are independent from operational management
in the first line, and are responsible for overseeing and
challenging the business in managing its risks day to

day. This includes maintaining I1G’s risk management and
control policies, providing independent analysis, control of
IG's risks, and keeping abreast of industry and regulatory
developments that might require enhancements to our Risk
Management Framework.

dhird line of defenee

The third line of defence, independent assurance, is provided
by Group Internal Audit. The primary role of Internal Audit

is to help the Board and executive management to protect
the assete, reputation and sustainability of the organisation
by providing independent, objective assurance reviews -
designhed to add value and improve our operations. The

scope of the annual audit plan includes reviews of cur

Risk Management Framework and managing I1G's principal
risks. These will include assessing the design and operating
effectiveness of our internal governance structures and

i processes, setting and adhering to risk appetite, and the risk

and control culture of the organisation.

The Group Internal Audit function reports to the Audit

and Board Risk Committees on a quarterly basis. External
Auditors also support assurance, directly reporting into the
Audit Committee.

Roles and responsibilities

Across IG's businesses each employee should understand
clearly how they may encounter risk while performing their
duties. Risk means the probability of [oss or negative impact
to IG, due to an event or outcome.

Some teams will have exposure to specific risk types, while
others experience more general risks. Examples of specific
exposures are market risk for our trading desk, liquidity risk
for our treasury operations and credit risk for the credit
operations team. A more general exampite would be the
exposure all our employees have to operational risk. Each
emplovee should be aware of the risks they are exposed to

. and know their responsibilities relating to that risk, to keep
within IG's risk appetite.



We make employees aware of their responsibilities through:

-3 Training

|G uses the |Gnite system to ensure that all employees receive
and complele mandatory periodic training. The second line
of defence teams provide training on risk management tools,
as well as targeling specific areas for education when there
are changes to the risk landscape or risk exposure in that
business area

-3 Top-down dissemination

Cur senior management team stresses the importance of
risk awareness through regular town halls, blogs and emails,
reminding staff of their responsibilities and advising ot
changes to business or practices

-+ Subject matter experts and risk associates
Throughout the business, specific individuals are given
training on risk practices. Their role is to help promote
an understanding of the expeclations of the first-line
reqguirements
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Risk Appetite Statement

The purpose of the [G RAS is to detail the acceptable levels of
risk to which we're willing to be exposed, so as to allow for a
profitable business while operating within our risk tolerances.

The RAS is based around a set of statements for eachrisk
within the Taxonomy. Qualitative statements of risk appetite
for each risk are supported by Key Risk Indicators (KRls}
that are used to identify instances which require escalation
and investigation. Thresholds and limits are set which raise
awareness of increased risk and provide early warmng

indicators (Amber level) so management actions can be

undertaken prior to a breach of the assigned risk appetite

. {Red level}). KRIs are embedded in our risk monitoring

and reporting.

© KRIs consist of two distinct categories: ‘Board-Approved
. Limits” and ‘Menitoring KRIs”

-* Board-Approved Limits {BALs})
In the event of a Red breach, action must be taken, without

. discretion, which ensures we come back inside the BAL. It

Qur approach

We take the view that our processes should be developed te
mitigate risk through a strocng control environment, with an
understanding and acceptance of the residual risk. Wherever |
possible, employees should have clear paths of escalation |
and planned response for any events outside of risk appetite. ‘
Risk practices should have the following attributes: i

I

|
> Consistent and embedded 1
Risk management should be fully embedded into all of ‘
our departments and business processes, as an integral |
part of day-to-day management. A consistent approach
should be taken and consistent practices followed
by employees globally

-3 Appropriate level
Risk management activities should be appropriate for '
the level and complexity of our business activities and
associated risks

- Continual assessment

Risk management should be reviewed and enhanced
continually, to ensure that our Risk Management Framework
remains effective and aligned to shareholder and stakeholder
expectations

Risk Taxonomy
IG has developed a Risk Taxanomy to ensure that we consider .
the full range of risks faced by the business, and to create a
censensus for classifying all risk management activities. The
taxonomy categorises the principal risks faced by 1G into
five areas: the risks inherent in the regulatory environment,
the risks inherent in the commercial environment, business ‘
model risk, operationat risk and conduct risk. We look at each ‘
of these risk areas from page 53. :

is the responsibility of the risk owner to manage and explain
what actions have been taken once an Amber threshold (if
present) has been breached, All efforts must be made to
avoid a Red breach. An explanation must be provided to the
Board as to why the matter escalated such that we breached
a BAL

| - Monitoring KRls
! A breach of a defined KRl triggers escalation to manageiment,

which results in consideration being given as to what
appropriate responsive actions are taken, Red levels,
atong with actions taken, are reported to the Board cn

. amonthly basis

Risk Management Governance

- Our Risk Management Governance Structure is summarised

below.

FSenior tnwnnoon fnd cetification peginne

IG Group consists of several legal entities, two of which

- IG Markets Limited (IGM) and IG Index Limited (IG1) - are
regulated by the UK's Financial Conduct Authority. IGM

and 1G] are classified as significant IFPRU firms, and also as
enhanced firms under the Senior Managers and Certification
Regime. These entities employ staff who provide services

i for themselves and all other entities in the Group. The only

exception to this are the Executive Directors of IGI, who are

~employed directly by IG Group Limited.
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We provide details of the assigned Senior Management
Function (SMF) below.

Senior Management Function I3 member assigned

SMF 1: Chief Executive Officer

Chief Executive

SMF 2: Chief Financial Officer

Chief Finance Function = __
SMF 3: Chief Executive Officer,

Chief Financial Officer,
Chief Operating Officer,
Chief Commercial Officer

Executive Director

SMF 4: Chief Risk Officer

Chief Risk Function - ~

SMF &: Global Head of Internal Audit
Head of Internal Audit

SMF 10: Chair of the Beard

Chair of the Risk Commitiee Risk Committee

SMF 11 Chair of the Audit Committee
Chair of the Audit Committee

SMF 12: Chair of the Remuneration
Chair of the Remuneration Commitlee

Committeg

SMF 13: Chair of the Nomination

Chair of the Neminatinon
Committee

Committee

SMF 16: Chief Compliance Officer
Compliance Oversight
SMF 17: Chief Compliance Officer

Money Laundering
Reporting Officer
SMF 18: Chief Legal and Governance
Other Overall Responsibility Officer, Chief People Officer,
Chief Product Officer,
Chief Strategy Officer

" Chief Operating officer,
IT Director

SMF 24: o
Chief Operations Function

In addition to the assigned SMF, prescribed and overall
responsibililies are allocated to the relevant SMF, Iin fulfilling
their prescribed and overall responsibilities, the SMFs are
supported by governance commillees and direct reports,
to whom responsibifities may be delegated.

The Board

The Board has overall accountability for the management of
risk at IG. This includes determining our risk appetite, which
sets out the nature and extent of the principal risks we're
willing to take in achieving our objectives, and defining the
slandards and expectations that drive our risk culture. it
also involves ensuring that we maintain an appropriate and
effective Risk Management Framework, and monitoring
performance and risk indicators to ensure that we remain
within our risk appetite. The Board delegates certain risk
governance responsibilities to Board Committees.

Board Rick Commities

The Board Risk Committee provides the principal forum
for the ongoing review and evaluation of specific elements
of the Risk Management Framewcrk, and for making
recommendations to the Board when appropriate.
Biannually the risk function provides to this Committee an

. assessment of key and emerging risks that may impact 1G.
| The Committee then makes recommendations to the Board

where appropriate. Details of the Committee can be found in
the Board Risk Committee section set out on pages 137-139.

Audit Commiilee

The Audit Committee’s responsibilities include reviewing an
assessment of the controf environment through Internal Audit
reports and monitoring progress on the implementation of
audlit recommendations. The Audit Committee also has specific
responsibilities to assess the accuracy and appropriateness

of financial reporting and narrative disclosures, to review

IG’s tax Risk Management Framework, to receive reports

on legal entity governance and the contral environment

for client money and assets, and to monitor whistleblowing

~arrangements. The Group Internal Audit function and
" External Auditors both report directly to the Audit

Committee. Details of the Committee can be found in the
Audit Committee section set out on pages 129-136.

Foe e soticn Uonranitle s

The Remuneration Committee’s primary responsibility in
relation to risk management is to ensure that remuneration
policies are consistent with effective risk management
across our business, and to consider the implications of
those elerments of the policies on risk and risk management.

© The Committee reviews the desigh and operation of
" performance-related pay schemes to ensure their efficacy

and, with the assistance of the Board Risk Committee,
to ensure that the risks implicit within the schemes are
adeguately monitored and controlled. Details of the

. Commitiee can be found in the Remuneration Committee
. section set out on pages 98-128.

Diccbervre Commiiicog .
The Disclosure Committee is responsible for identifying
Inside Information. and makes decisions about how and
when the Company should disclose this information. Details
of the Committee can be found in the Disclosure Committee
section set out on page 88.

Lrwironmienial, Secislend Govornehoe Domnsittec

The Environmental, Social and Governance Committee
was formed in the 2020 financial year to oversee the
environmental, social and governance considerations

for IG, to adequately assess and manage obligations and
expectations of these areas. Details of the Committee can
be found in the Environmental, Social and Governance

Committee section set out on page 88.



Homibation Conindites

The Nomination Committee oversees the selection and
appointment of Board members and senior management
staff. and the risks inherent in this process. Detalls of the
Committee can be found in the Nominhation Committee
section set out on pages 94-98.
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itk et woniment withdnothe basine s
We have a number of operational and executive committees,
which provide advice and support to management in the

- day-to-day execution and proper performance of their

duties, including those relating to implementation of the

. Board strategy and management of the Risk Management
. Framework. Details of this can be found in the Overview of

Corporate Governance Framework set out on pages 78-79,

Fringipal vk

Principal risks/Taxonomy level 1

Eepvletory e nivirenment rich

The risk that the regulatory environment in
any of the jurisdictions in which we currently
cperate, of may wish to operate, changes ina
way that has an adverse effect on our business
or operationg, through reduction inrevenue,
increases in costs, or increases in capital and
liguidity reguirements.

Taxanomy level 2

- Legislative and
regulatory change
v Tax change

Outlook

We actively monitor and manage the outlook
for regulatory environment risk across all
countries and territories where G operates.
Changes resulting from the 2019 European
Securities and Markets Authority (ESMA) and
Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) product
intervention measures are now well embedded
at 1G. As regulation of all forms continues to
evelve, further changes are anticipated in the
normal course of business. When changes
occur, we will have plans in place to ensure a
smooth transition to meet new requirements.

- Strategic delivery risk

Corstne 10 ris b

The risk thal our performance is affected - Market conditions risk
by client sensitivity to adverse market - Competitor risk
conditions, failure to adopt or implement an . Supplier restriction risk
effective business strategy, failure tc provide 3 Client service risk

the expected leveis of client service, new or
existing competitors cffering more attractive
products or services, risk to third-party supply
of services or client dissatisfaction.

Market volatility increased sharply in Q4 2020
and remained at elevated levels into June
2020, leading to strong business performance.
We've also made significant progress cn our
strategic initiatives, despite the circumstances
related to the Covid-19 pandemic.

> Market risk

Bivs i s b giebrin b -
The risk we face arising from the nature of our 3 Creditrisk
business and our business madel. Liguidity risk

. Capital adequacy risk

Heightened volatility in Q4 resulted in
significant trading volumes as existing and new
clients looked to benefit from opportunities

in the financial markets. Our mature and
embedded systems and controls enabled us to
manage the increased business model risk we
faced during this extraordinary period.

Gporationa! vish
The risk of loss resulting from inadequate or People risk
failed internal processes:; people, systems or Process risk
external events. inciudes the risk that we're - Externalrisk
unable 1o atiract and retain the staff we need

to operate cur business successfully.

Technology risk

tncreased trading volumes, particularly in Q4,
inevitably led to additional stress across all
areas of operational risk. While our systeme,
people and praocesses handled this well, we've
pricritised several projects to strengthen

our technolegical and operationai control
environment for the years ahead.

Ceonductricy Qur clients

The risk that our conduct poses to the : The markets and
achievement of fair outcomes for consumers, financiaf crime

or to the sound, stable, resilient and - Culture and our people

transparent operation of the financial markets.

PN

I1G continues to invest in systems, people

and training to ensure ocur management of
conduct risk meets the very highest standards.
This includes ensuring we further embed our
client-first culture, while continuing to work
closely with all our regulators to protect the
integrity of the financial markets.
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Risk assessment, monitoring, control and reporting
Risk assessment, control and monitoring are the
responsibility of operational management in each area. Risk
and control assessments are undertaken with suppart from
the second and third lines of defence, with key controls
identified and documented.

The Risk Taxenomy is used to identify all risks faced by I1G.
The RAS identifies KRIs, and maximum limits and thresholds,
to manage and monitor each risk. These KRis are the basis
of reporting and are distributed to the Board on a monthly
basis, or escalated immediately depending on significance,
~with more detailed metrics reported to relevant eperational
committees where appropriate. Relevant stakeholders and
risk owners manage their respective risks, taking appropriate
actions to avoid breaches.

Risk reporting takes place across numerous reports, covering
key market, credit, liquidity, capital adeguacy. cperational
and conduct risk KRIs. Frequency of reporting canrange
from live to hourly, monthly, quarterly or annually, depending
onthe requirernents. Dashboards, emails and written reports,
along with automated alerts, are utilised to notify relevant
stakeholders of the risk profile status.

1G has adopted a common Risk Taxonomy that breaks the
principal risks we face into five broad risk categories: the risks
inherent in the regulatory environment, the risks inherent

in the commercial etwironment, business moded risks,
operational risk and conduct risk.

Hevulitery snvireronent i b

Legislative and regulatory change

IG operates in a highly regulated environment that is
continually evolving,

Governments or reguiators may introduce legisiation or new
regulations and requirements in any of the jurisdictions in
which we currently operate. We face the risk that this could
result in an adverse effect on our business or operations,
reducing our revenue, raising costs or increasing our capital
and liquidity requirements. We operate to the highest
regulatory standards and believe that we lead the industry
in the way in which we deal with our clients. We maintain
constructive relationships with our key regulators and actively
seek to converse with them in an effort to keep abreast of
emerging regulatory trends or developments.

Tax change
' Within regulatory environment risk, we also include the risk
of significant adverse changes in the way that the Group as
a whole, or our individual businesses, are taxed. Examples
of the tax risk we face include the risk that a financial
transactions tax is imposed, which could severely impact the
economics of trading, and the risk that the basis under which
we're taxed, in any of the jurisdictions in which we operate, is
adversely affected.

Commeteinl ik

We define commercial risk as the risk that our performance
is affected by client sensitivity to adverse market conditions,
failure to adopt or implement an effective business strategy,
failure to provide the expected levels of client service, new
or existing competitors offering more attractive products
or services, risk to third-party supply of services or client
dissatisfaction.

Strategic delivery risk
. We work to mitigate our strategic delivery risk through the
Board's regular and thorough review and challenge of our
strategy, and the performance of current strategic initiatives.
The Board holds an annual Strategy Day to consider and
agree the strategic priorities for the business. Planning
. processes are extensive, with stakeholders across our
" business being involved, and may include external assistance.
We undertake external consultation and extensive market
research before committing to any strategy, in order to test
and validate a concept. Projects are managed via a phased
investment process, with regular review periods, in order 1o
. assess performance and determine if further investment is
justified. The Board also considers specific strategic actions
and initiatives during its normal schedule of Board meetings.

Market conditions risk
- 1G's trading revenue reflects the transaction fees paid
. by clients less the transaction costs incurred in hedging
market exposures. The extent of client trading activity
and the number of active clients in any period are the key
determinants of revenue in that period. The ability to attract
~ new clients, and the willingness of clients to trade, depends
. on the level of trading opportunity that clients perceive to
" be available 1o them in the markets. Cur revenue is therefore
partly dependent on market tonditions.

We seek te mitigate the impact of adverse market conditions
and client sensitivity towards those conditions through
detailed review of daily revenue analysis, monthly financial
_information, Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) and regular

| reforecasts of our expected financial performance, reflecting
the latest and expected market conditions. We use these
forecasts to determine actions necessary to manage
performance, with consideration given to changes in

market conditions.



We regularly update our investors and market analysts cn
our revenue performance, including quarterly updates

and pre-close statements, and engage with investors and
market analysts to mitigate the risk that the impact of market
conditions is not reflected in performance expectations.

Competitor risk

|G operates in a highly competitive environment, which
includes some unregulated and unethical operators. We work
to mitigate competitor risk by maintaining a clear distinction
in the market in terms of product, service and ethics, and

by closely monitoring the activity and performance of our
competitors, including detailed comparison of the terms of
product offers.

We consider IG to be the leader in our market and, given
our strong ethical values, we never deploy guestionable
practices, regardless of whether they would prove to be
commercially attractive to clients. We do, however, aim to
ensure that our preduct offering remains attractive, taking
into account the other benefits that we offer our clients,
including brand, strength of technology and client service
quality. This allows our business to provide a competitive i
cffering overall and manage competitor risk without
compromising our vatues.

Supeplier restriction risk

IG is dependent on services from third parties, These range
frem the banking industry to key technology firms, and
cover matters such as the pravision of corperate and client
maoney bank accounts, client payment services, hedging and
custodial services, to advertising and marketing channels. \

We perform regular reviews and work to ensure that we
have suitable engagement terms with each provider,

s0 as to identify any issues which may arise and gain an
understanding of any new upcoming requirements,

We aim to avoid concentration risk in our range of business
partners, whether in IT or other services, and we consider this
potential risk as part of ocur partner selection process. We're
exposed 1o the risk that a key supplier could fall, and this is
represented as one of the operational risk scenarios when

we calculate our operational risk capital requirement

Client service risk

The risk of client dissatisfaction arising from the expected
service level not being met resulting in reduced trading and
account ciosures. This risk may stem from business stretch
in times of high volatility and increased client contact.
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The service HG provides its clients is supported by client-
facing teams which interact with clients directly and specific
operational teams that support client account activity.

Frusiness model rist,
We define business model risk as the risks we face that arise

. from the nature of our business and our business maodel,
- including market risk, credit risk, hquidity risk and capital

adequacy risk.

Market risk

We accept some market risk to facilitate instant execution

of client trades. We manage this market risk by internalising
client flow through netting the exposure created through
clients’ trades so as to offset, and external hedging when the
residuat exposures reach defined limits. QOur real-time market
position-monitoring system allows us to constantly manage
our market exposures against our market risk limits. If
exposures exceed predetermined limits, we execute hedges
to bring the exposure back within the limits.

IG has a market risk policy which sets out how our business
manages its market risk exposures. The market risk policy
incorporates a methodology for setting market risk limits,
consistent with our risk appetite, for each financial market
in which our clients can trade, as well as cerlain groups

- of markets or assets which we consider to be correlated.

We determine these limits with reference to the expected
liquidity and votatility of the underlying financial product or

' asset ciass, and represent the maximurm {long or shart) net

exposure 1G wilt hold without hedging.

We set our market risk limits with the objective of achieving
the optimal efficiency between allowing client trades to be
internalised, the cost of external hedging, and the variability
of daily revenue. We work to manage market risk so that our
trading revenue predominantly reflects client transaction
fees net of hedging costs, and is not driven by market risk
gains or losses.

" Residual market risk can crystallise if a market ‘gaps’ or

fluctuates sharply, which occurs when a price changes

- suddenly in a single large movement, sometimes at the
i opening of a trading day, rather than in small incremental

steps. This can mean we're unable to execute or adjust our
hedging in a timely manner, resulting in potential market risk
exposure. This may create a gain or a loss.

We monitor cur market risk exposures through regular
scenario-based stress tests to analyse the impact of potential
stress and market gap events, and take appropriate action to
reduce our risk exposures and those of our clients.

Err %
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Credit risk
|G faces the risk that either a client or a financial counterparty
fails to meet their obligations to us, resulting in a financial loss.

As a result of offering leveraged trading products, we accept
that client credit losses can arise as a cost of cur business
moedel. Client credit risk principally arises when a client’s total
funds deposited with IG are insufficient to cover any trading
losses incurred. In addition, a small number of clients are
granted credit limits to cover running losses on open trades
and margin reguirements.

We manage client credit risk through the application of our
Client Credit Risk Policy.

We set client margin requirements that reflect the market
price risk for each instrument, and use tiered margining so
that larger positions are subject to propaortionately higher
margin reguirements. We offer training and education to
clients covering all aspects of trading and risk management,
which encourages them to collateralise their accounts at

an appropriate level in excess of the minimum requirement.
In addition to cash funding by clients, we may also accept
collateral in the form of shares from professional clients held
in their IG stock trading account.

We further mitigate client credit risk by monitoring client
positions in real time via the close-out monitor (COM), and by
giving clients the ability to set a level at which an individual
deal will be closed (the ‘stop’ level or ‘guaranteed stop’ levell.

The COM automatically identifies accounts that have
insufficient margin and triggers an automated process
to close positions on those accounts. Where client losses
are such that their total equity falls below the specified
liquidaticn level, positions will be liquidated to bring the
account back to within margin requirements, resulting
inreduced credit risk exposure for IG.

In some jutisdictions, |G provides negative balance protection
for retail clients, which is a guaraniee that clients can't lose
more than the total amount of equity held on their account.
This, together with COM and client-initiated ‘stops’, results in
the transfer of an element of the market risk from the client
1o 1G. This market risk arises following the closure of a client
position, as IG may hold a corresponding hedging position
that will, assuming suificient market liquidity, be unwound.

We have significant financial exposure to a number of
financial institutions, owing to our placement of financiat
assets at banks and our hedging of market risk in the
wholesale markets, which requires us to place margin
with our hedging brokers.

]

We manage financial institution credit risk by applying 1G's

‘Financial Institution Counterparty Credit Risk Policy.

Financia) institutional counterparties are subject to a credit
review when we enter inlo a new relationship, and this is
updated semi-annually (or more frequently as required,

for example on changes to the financial institution’s
corporate structure). Proposed maximum exposure limits
for these financial institutions, reflecting their credit rating
and systemic position, are reviewed and approved by the
Executive Risk Committee.

We actively manage our credit exposure to each of our

broking counterparties, settling or recalling balances at each

broker on a daily basis in line with the collateral requirements.

As part of our management of concentration risk, we're |
also committed to maintaining multiple brokers for each ‘

. assel class.

We're responsible, under various regulatlory regimes,

for the stewardship of client money and assets. These
responsibilities include the appointment and periodic review
of institutions where client money is deposited. Our general
policy is that all financial institution counterparties holding
client money accounts must have a minimum long-term
credit rating of BBB-, with liniils sel depending on strength
of credit rating. In a small number of operating jurisdictions
where we maintain accounts to provide Jocal banking
facilities for clients, it can be problematic to find a banking
counterparty salisfying these minimum rating requirements,
In such cases, we may use a locally systemically important
institution. These criteria alsc apply te 1G’s own bank
accounts held with financial institutions.

in addition, the majority of our deposits are made on an
overnight or breakable-term basis, which enables us to react
immediately 1o any deterioration in credit quality. We only
hold deposits of an unbreakable nature or requiring notice
with a subset of counterparties that have been approved by
the Executive Risk Committee.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that IG is unable to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due. We manage this by applying our
Liquidity Risk Management Policy.

. Cur approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that we have

sufficient liquidity to meet our broker margin requirements
and other finangial liabilities when due, under both normal
circumstances and stressed conditions. These liguidity
requirements must be met from our own liquidity resources,
as IG does not use client money to fund our operations.



We hold liguid assets to: {i) enable the funding of broker
margin requirements, {ii} ensure sufficient funds are held in
non-UK entities, {iii} place appropriate prudent margins and
buffers in segregated client money accounts, (iv) maintain

a liquid assets buffer, {v} make dividend payments to
shareholders, (vi) cover profits and losses on client trading
and hedging positions, and (vii) make tax and other payments.

We manage liguidity withfn the UK Defined Liguidity Group
(UK DLG) comprising IGM and IG]. The UK DLG includes
IGM, IG’s primary market risk management vehicle, which
internalises and hedges market risk on behalf of the other
entities in the Group. Key liquidity decisions are discussed
at the Executive Risk Committee and then the Executive
Committee, as necessary.

The UK DLG carries out an Individual Liquidity Adequacy
Assessment (ILAA) each year. This assesses the key drivers of
liquidity tor the UK DLG and whether it has sufficient liquidity
1o continue in operation, including under liquidity stress. The
Contingency Funding Plan {CFP), contained within the ILAA,
identifies mitigation options and steps to improve the liguidity
position in a stress scenario, through the implementation of
management actions,

We use a number of KRIs for managing liquidity risk,
including cash held in UK DLG bank accounts, forecasted

UK DLG available liguidity and UK DLG stressed liguidity afler
management actions.

We're required to fund initial margin payments to brokers on
demand, Broker initial margin requirements are dependent
on client trading positions, the level of internalisation IG can
achieve from client trading, the product mix in our hedging
positions and any natural offset in correlated products within
our hedging positions.

In addition to our liquid assets, we mitigate liquidity risk
through access to committed, unsecured bank facilities.

We reassess annually the appropriate level of committed
facilities we have available, and draw down on the facility at
least once during each year to test the process for accessing
that liguidity.

The Group successfully managed its liguidity needs
throughout the increased levels of client trading activity that
was driven by the heightened and sustained levels of market
volatility triggered by the Covid-1% pandemic. Liquidity is
anticipated to remain sirong.

We produce shori-term liquidity forecasts and stress tests,
s¢ that appropriate management actions, including facility
draw-down, can be taken ahead of a period of expected
liquidity demands.
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IG is exposed to interest rate risk through our debt and our
holdings of cash and investments. The interest costs incurred
on debt and interest income received through cash and

- investments are not material in respect of our overall costs
- and income. We consider the liguidity risk related to these

instruments in the Group Liquidity Risk Management Policy.

Capital adequacy risk

1G operates authorised and regulated businesses warldwide,
supervised by the FCA in the UK and by various regulators
across other jurisdictions. As a result of this supervision,

we are required to hold sufficient regulatory capital at both
Group and individual entity levels to cover our risk exposures,
valued according to applicable rules, and any additional
regulatory financial obligations imposed.

‘ We're supervised on a consclidated basis by the FCA. In

addition to our two UK FCA-regulated entities, our operations

" in Australia, Japan, Singapore, South Africa, Bermuda, the
i United States of America, Cyprus, Germany, Switzerland and

United Arab Emirates (Dubai International Financial Centre)
are directly authorised by the respective local regulators.
Individual capital requirements in each regulated entity are
taken into account, among other factors, when managing the
global distribution and level of our capital resources, as part
of the Group Capilat Managemen! Framework.

IG manages capital adeguacy risk through cur Regulatory
Capital Policy, and we work 1o ensure that at all times we
hold sufficient capital to operate our business successfully
and to satisfy all regulatory requirements. We manage oul
capilal resources with the obiectives of facilitating business
growth, maintaining our dividend policy, and complying with

. the regulatory capital resources requirements set by our
" regulators around the world.

We undertake an annual Internal Capital Adequacy
Assessment Process {ICAAP) through which we assess

our capital requirements, by applying a series of stress-
testing scenarios to our baseline financial projections. This
assessment is reviewed and challenged by the ICAAP and
ILAA Committee as well as the Board Risk Commitiee, which
recommends the result to the Board for review and approval.

We operate a monitoring framework over our capital
resources and minimum capital requirerments daily,
calculating the credit and market risk reguirements arising
on the exposures at the end of each business day. We also
monitor internal warning indicators as a component of our
Board Risk Dashboard, and any breaches are escalated to the

¢ Board as they occur, with a recommendation for appropriate
- remedial action.

Entity-level capital requirements monitoring and
management is carried out locally according to each
jurisdiction’s requirements.
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Opipetionsirish

Operational risk is defined as the risk of loss resulting from
inadequate or failed internal processes, people activities,
technology or other operations, or external events.

Operationalrisk is managed by applying our operational
Risk Management Framework. We continuously develop
this framework 1o ensure visibility of risks and controls. We
focus on clear accountability for controls and escalation
and reporting mechanisms, through which risk events are
identified and managed, and appropriate action is taken to
improve controls.

We recognise that operational risk arises in the execution
of all activities we undertake, and identify and manage
operational risk in four categories: technology, people,
process and external events.

People risk

People risk is considered as the risk of a loss intentionally or
unintentionally caused by an employee, such as employee
error or misdeeds, or involving employees, such as in the
area of employment disputes. It includes risks relating

to employment law, health and safety, and HR practices.
People risk includes the risk that |G is unable to attract

i and retain the staff it requires to operate its business

successfully. In addition, we monitor for any strain on
resources, ensuring sufficient statfing levels are in place for
key business teams, so that processes are run ef{ectively
with controls maintained.

Process risk
Process risk relates to the design, execution and
maintenance of key processes - such as client onboarding,

, trade execution or financial reporting - including process

* governance, clarity of roles, process design and execution

Technology risk

Technhology risk is the risk of loss caused by breakdown or
other disruption to technology performance and service
availability, or by information security incidents. It also
includes new technology and technology that fails to meet
business requirements.

It also covers record-keeping, regulatory compliance failures
and reporting failures.

External risk
External risk is the risk of loss due to third-party relationships
and outsourcing, damage to physical and non-physicatl

" property or assets from natural or non-natural external

We manage our technology risk through our Technology
Risk Framework, which is overseen by the Technology Risk
Committee. KPls, incidents and cutages are raised to this
forum, comprising of IT and risk specialists. To manage
cyber risk and external threats to our systems and data, we
have the information Security Forum, through which senior
management is made aware of ongoing and potential threats,
with policies and processes continuously being refreshed ‘
to ensure their validity within the evolving landscape. We
have a 24/7 Security Operations Centre to review and
triage information security incidents, and employ mitigation
services far threats such as denial-of-service {DOS) attacks.

causes, and external fraud.

" We continue to develop our Operational Risk Framewaork
, to ensure visibility of risks and controls. We focus o clear
¢ accountability for centrols and escatation and reporting

mechanisms, through which risk events are identified and
managed and appropriate action is taken to improve controls.

Our Risk and Control Seif-Assessment (RCSA) methodology
focuses on areas of the business identified as a priority. We
use an operational risk event self-reporting process which

provides increased visibility over events and control actions
‘

‘" {0 be taken. These are monitored through a consolidaled

We undertake reguiar performance and stress-testing to
ensure cur platforms have sufficient headroom and resilience 1
to perform in times of heightened volatifity and increased ‘
demand. We also test our disaster recovery capabitity
regularly to ensure that standby services are effective and
minimise the impact to our services.

- Control Action List.

The Group Business Continuity Policy, and the framework to
that document, provide a clear statement of our commitment

i to ensure that critical IG business activities can be maintained

during a disruption.



Condurtrich

IG recognises and manages the risk that our conduct may
pose to the achievement of fair outcomes for clients, and
to the sound, stable, resilient, and transparent operation of
the financial markets. We have a conduct risk framework,
and have implemented a conduct risk strategy that aims

to analyse the conduct risks that may arise, and sets out
how those risks are managed and mitigated. It also sets out
specific controls used to manage conduct risk. We work to
promote a positive, company-wide culture of good conduct
as a competitive advantage and a means to differentiate
our business clearly from those companies conducting
themselves poorly or unethicaily, We also aim to ensure that
all employees are aware of the importance of managing
conduct risk through programme conduct risk training

and awareness.,

Qur ciients

We manage and monitor the risk of clients failing to
understand the functionality of our products and suffering
poor outcomes. We recognise that some of our products are
not appropriate for certain clients, and operate a process to
identify potential new clients for whom the product may not
be suitable. We support clients with education and training,
and offer account types that limit a customer’s risk. Client
cutcomes are monitored and reported to the Board.

Across the Group, 1G empicys a vulnerable client policy,
which places responsibility on first-line chient-facing staff

to monitor for signs of vulnerability in clients (eg the type of
language used by clients in their communications to us). If a
client is deemed vulnerable their account will be closed, The
number of ¢clients who have closed accounts due to deemed
vulnerability is tracked and menitored by the compliance
team as part of a product governance management
information suite. Compliance monitoring helps to identify
tack of policy adherence, as well as any sudden increases

in closures which may point to an issue with the way our
products are being designed, marketed and sold.

In addition, the client team menitors the funding of client
accounts in tandem with information held on clients
regarding their financial position. This is done with the
intention of identifying scenarios where affordability of
losses may be called into question.

{
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Markets and financial crime

We recognise the risk of causing poor market outcomes
if proper controls are not in place, for example, o detect
instances of market abuse which must then be reported
on. Clients may also attempt to use 1G to commit fraud or
launder money, and we've designed our systems, controls
and monitoring programmes with the aim of preventing
and detecting such issues.

Culture and our people

We recognise the risk that the actions of our staff or 1G's
culture can result in poor outcomes for clients, or for the
financial markets. We work to ensure that our staff are
appropriately trained, managed and incentivised to ensure
that their behaviour and activities don't inadvertently result

i in poor cutcomes for clients or the markets. We also review

remuneration policies and incentive schemes to ensure that
they are appropriate and conducive 1o good conduct by staff.
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Introduction
We understand that sustainable

long-term returns stem from good

stakeholder management and
conduct - whether that be in the
way we treat our clients and our
employees, or the way we interact
with the markets, our regulaters
and wider society.

We airn to act with integrity and

ttansparency, maintaining a reputation
for professionalism and ethical practice

along with a constant determination
to do things better. This means we

are committed to understanding

and balancing our impact relating to
environmental, social and governance
(ESG) issues in line with the UN's
Sustainable Development Goals,

and underpinned by our own well-
established purpose and values.

It's through our shared values that our
attitudes and behaviours are shaped:

-, Champion the client: Understand
them. Be part of their whole
experience. Think big, think long-

term. Make every moment count and
stick with them all the way. Do what

matters most
Lead the way: Be brave. Back
yourself. Innovate and adapt to
win, Chalienge assumptions, ideas,
decisions. Ask why. Stand up and
speak your mind. Achieve. Do the
right thing

* Love what we do: Make it personal.
Care, be passionate, have fun.

Respect our diversity and learn from

each other. Share your enthusiasm.
Take pride in each other's
achievements. Work as a team

Cur values provide the foundation for

our future growth and success, and give

us an ongoing focus in our day-to-day
work. We recognise the importance
of defining and communicating these
values to all our people, especially in
times of change and uncertainty.

The following sections set out how
we've been able 1o demonstrate
aour commitment t¢ our values,
behaviours and geals to create
good client outcomes and fairer
societies in the cities we operate in.

2

A

Brighter

|
!
i
|

Future

- In January 2020 we launched
. Brighter Future. Thisis a

pioneering ESG initiative that

. brings together the strands
. of our ESG work around the

of our long-term commitment

globe, and is an expression

. to sustainability and social

responsibility.

Brighter Future provides a framework
that focuses our ESG activities to
maximise the positive cutcomes

that we can achieve. To identify key

- themes, we polled cur people. The
overwhelming response was that

we should focus on: (i) improving

our environmental credentials, and
(iiy empowering members of our
communities through egual access
to education and soctal mobility This
process enabled all of our people to
feel ownership of the initiative. Cur

approach is well aligned with the UN's

Sustainability Development Goals.

In this section we outline some of the
early achievements of the Brighter
Future initiative. We've started to
build long-term strategic partnerships

+ and integrated the Brighter Future
. ethos into our operations and

ways of working. There are already
examples of |G colleagues donating
time, money and expertise to

- excellent causes and projects.

IG

BRIGHTER
FUTURE

1

Environment

The first theme of the Brighter
Future initiative asserts a
commitment te managing our
environmental impact.

We've been conscientiously managing
elements of our environmental impact for a
number of years and monitoring our Scope
1 and 2 emissions. However, toillustrate
our renewed commitment, we entered a
programme of activities, including carbon
offsetting, to achieve full carbon neutrality.
As of July 2020, the Groupis a carbon
neutral company in line with PAS 2060.

Animportant step in this process was to
expand our data collection and analysis

in order to review our Scope 3 emissions,
This enabled us to identify where we could
make improvements and has provided

a framework for monitering our impact
going forward.

We've taken steps to reduce our waste and
energy cohsumption. In addition to space
consolidation, uninterruptable power supply
(UPS) upgrades and new IT equipment

for our teams, we've recently completed
the LED upgrade of lighting in our central
London data centre. We've also increased
our engagement with provigers that have
strong renewable credentials and improved
our recycling. For example, all coffee
grounds from our UK office are delivered by
Paper Round to Bio Bean, an crganisation
that recycles them into biomass fuel pellets.

Inthe 2020 financial year we offset

all carbon emissions by supporting a

range of projects promating sustainable
economic livelihoods and clean technology
development. This formal offsetting has
heen complemented by our continued
commitment to Fruitful Office. Our
partnership has also facilitated the planting
of 5,896 trees in Malawi.

By rebalancing our carbon footprint
through investments in sustainability
projects and taking steps to recuce our
emissions, we have contributed to UN
Sustainable Development Goals 7 and
13 respectively.

MEASURING IMPACT - ESG KP1 17
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Empowerment

The second theme of the Brighter
Future initiative asserts our
commitment to promoting social
mobility and addressing educational
inequality. Here are some examples of
how we've engaged with this theme.

In October 2019 we entered a strategic
partnership with Teach First, a UK-based
charity whose mission is to build a fair
education for all. Teach First supports
schools serving the UK's economically
challenged communities, by helping them
source high-calibre teachers and providing
vital leadership training programmes. So
far, our partnership has enabled Teach
First to recruit and train eight teachers that
have been placed in the schools that need
them the most. In the UK we also welcomed
a group of students from two Teach First
partner schools for an office visit, This gave
the students the type of invaluable insight
into the world of work that their wealthier
peers may have taken for granted.

In October, schools frem different areas
were invited to our Krakow office as part

of the "big sister’ project - helping young
woemen to think about their professional
interest and inspire them by showing a
variety of jobs they could doin their future
career. Through these initiatives we have
contributed to UN Sustainable Development
Goals 4 and 10.

IG teams in Krakow and London have
continued to engage with the charity
Helping Hands. Volunteers worked with
charity delegates to learn more about
the challenges faced by amputees, and
to build prosthetic hands that have been
provided to those in need in a number of
third world countries.

This year IG colleagues in Singapore have
collaborated with the Singapore Association
of the Visually Handicapped and the KK
Women's and Children’s Hospital, This

has included running fundraisers and
participating in charity events.

At 1G we're very proud at what we've
achieved with our Brighter Future initlative,
and are excited about further embedding
itinto our decision-making and company
culture in the next financial year and beyond.

MEASURING IMPACT - ESG KPI 2

NUMBER OF YOUNG
LIVES POSITIVELY
IMPACTED
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Environment

At |G we recognise the impact climate
change has on the environment

and society. We're committed to
measuring and managing the carbon
emissions associated with our business
operations. We strive to lead by
example, and are actively working
with all members to raise awareness
on climate change risks, carbon
emissions and energy efficiency.

Carbon neutrality

In the 2020 financial year, |G became

a carbon-neutrai company in line

with PAS 2060, committing to zerc
emissions by offsetting our entire
carbon foolprint. By measuring and
offsetting otir carbon footprint, we aim
1o do our part in tackling global climate
change, while supporting sustainable
development in local communities.

CARBON EMISSIONS BY SCOPE

= ¥ Scope 112.8%
BScope 2113.0%
b Scope 3|84.2%

CARBON EMISSIONS BY SOURCE

We offset all carbon emissions by
supporting a range of projects that
promote sustainable economic

' livelihoods and clean technology

development. All of our offsets are

. verified by either the Gold Standard

or UN CDM. We recognise that

' offsetting is one way to reduce our

environmental impsct. However, we're
also committed to implementing
measures that mean we deliver an
ongoing and long-term reductionin
our overall footprint, We've addressed

these in our carbon management plan.

C L cerbor factyaint
i Qur carbon footprint for the 2020

financial year has been prepared
by an external consultant, Energise,

- andincludes our Scope 1, 2 and
© 3 emissions, In relation to our

Scope 1 and 2 emissions, our total

g .. ¥k Qperation of facilities | 2.2%

‘e

M Combustion ] 0,5%

¥ Purchased energy | 13.0%

HMBusiness travel | 6,8%
Employee commuting | 4.1%

R Fuel and energy-related activities | 3.4%
Purchased goods and services | 69.8%
Waste generated in operations { 0.3%

carbon footprint for the year was
3.324.121C0O,e. This equates to
1.73 tonnes per employee.

The increase in our scope 1 emissions
associated with operating our
facilities related to a recharge of the
refrigerant in a UK data centre. The
decrease in our scope 1 emissions
associated with combustion relates
to a reduction in our use of diesel for
backup generators and a year on year
reduction in our use of natural gas.

- Overall, the majority of our emissions

relate to Scope 3, and we're developing
new initiatives to produce long-

term emissions reductions. We're

also actively managing our energy

- efficiency and we engage our people

in sustainable initiatives as part of
our Brighter Future initiative.
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Year ended 31 May 2020

Year ended 31 May 2019

GHG protocolscope Sub-category tCOe GO, e
Scope 1 Operation of facilities 469.91 107.00
Scope 1 Combustion 110.23 331.00
Scope 1 580.84 438.00
Scope 2 Purchased energy 2,743.28 2,711.00
Scope 2 2,743.28 2,711.00
Scope 1 and 2 emissions 3,324.12 3.149.00
Employees 1,921 1,788
Performance indicator Scope 1 and 2 emissions 1.730 1.761
Relevant change ~-1.75%

Global energy use
UK energy use
Overseas energy use

8,439,477 kWh
6,772,615 kWh
1,666,862 kWh

Scope 3 Business travel 1,427.38 Not calculated
Employee commuting 862.40 Not calculated
Fuel and energy-related activities 709.40 Not calculated
Purchased goods and services 14,718.20 Not calculated
Waste generated in operaticns 56.72 Not calculated
Scope 3 17,774.08 Nol calculated
Grand total 21,098.20 Not calculated
Employees 1,921 Not calculated
Performance indicator All three scopes 10.983
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Social

Nurturing a team of talented and
dedicated people is central to our
strategy, enabling us to deliver the
exceptional products and services that
keep us at the forefront of our industry.
To support the Company strategy
announced in May 2019, we approved
arevised people strategy in November
2019, Building on the foundations

of the |G people experience, we

now focus on three key themes:

-2 One IG: Harnessing the power of a
diverse, inclusive and collaborative
organisation

In great shape: A scalable, fit and
healthy organisation

- Always learning: An organisation
and employee experience focused
on learning and growth expectations
and opportunilies

The following sections outline our
achievements in each area and
signal our focus in the year ahead.

One IG

i

Cur employee surveys continue

to reveal strong performance on
cultural indicators such as the
treatment of colleagues, commitment
to ethical decision-making and
conduct, and leaders’ behaviour.

We held workshops in May 2019 to
align our people with the strategy
and to reinforce our values, asking
them to set individual and team
goals with this strategy in mind.

x QOver 80% of employees attended
and feedback was positive. This
framewark created the foundation
for engoing engagement throughout
the year
- QUr annual engagement survey

showed that over the last 12 months
belief in 1G's future increased by
seven points, with support for the
statement “the executive team

has communicated a vision that
motivates our people’ increasing by
12 points

- 70% of our people agree that IG
is making changes necessary to
compete effectively

Keeping employees informed,
updated and excited about our
business and strategy is a key
ambition of our leadership team.

We communicate regularly and
extensively, and ensure that new
employees attend workshops on our
values to understand their meaning
and importance to our business.

© Supporting the Chief Executive Officer

in engaging the wider organisation is
the Global Leadership Team {GLT). This
group is made up of senior managers

" and the Executive Committee, and
. nas a key responsibility for embedding

organisational culture, engagement

. and communication throughout the

business. The GLT meets regularly, and
this year we held two contferences to
improve collaboration, share strategic
plans and develop ourieaders.

IG hub - our employee communication
portal - is used by our people to find

" out what's going on in the business.

This year we published an array of
news articles, features and videos —
from leadership blogs and strategic
updates tc mental health advice

and career guidance. Much of this
content was user-generated, and all

of it allowed for two-way dialogue,
enabling employees to share their
thoughts or to find further information.

" Throughout the coronavirus lockdown

the IG huk has been an essential tool

" in providing employees with regular

updates on our Covid-19 plans, and
day-to-day activities. We also created
a dedicated working from home
microsite so our people could stay
connected, talk about their experiences
and arrange fun activities. In the early
weeks of the pandemic, werana
series of giobal video calls with the
Chief Executive Officer, June Felix,

and members of the executive team.
These sessions were attended by most
of our people, with record numbers
dialling in to the UK and UAE meetings.
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Adihcrve snd teh woarplace

We believe that a well-managed

and diverse workforce brings

creative energy to our business.

We are committed to developing

a team of individuals with the best
skills to help us realise our goals,
regardless of their age, ethnicity, faith,
gender identity, sexual orientation,
phystcal capacity or background.

In July 2018 we adopted a diversity
and inclusion strategy, supported
by a two-year plan of action.

A positive
outcome for
everyone and
our business

Inciusive culture
is a journey
Everycone's
responsibility

Cur people
shape our journey

| Inclusive culture is what you can expect at IG ]

n P
IG diversity and

inclusion strategic
framework

Foogr ooy aoeninst cur plang

i =3 Significant improvement in

understanding our people profile

through the collection of survey data
-: Data was used to track progress
against our diversity goals, ong
of which is to improve female
representation by 5% in two years
Improved female representation by
around 2% after one year

=3 Trained a number of hiring managers
‘ to adopt good recruitment practices,

including the avoidance of bias and
the importance of diversity

- Introduced a minimum standard of
parental leave across all locations,

Our workforce
In terms of gender, our

- workforce is made up
. as follows at 31 May 2020:

' BOARD

with primary carers now receiving 16 .

weeks of guaranteed leave
Continued to use our early careers
programmes to strive for better
representation

» Partnered with the following

[

organisations to attract more women

to careers in finance and technology:
Code First Girls, Women in Finance,
Women in Risk, and Women
Who Code

-> 40% of our graduate pregramme
intake is female

~ Appointed female leadersto a
number of key roles, including the
Group’s Chief Legal and Governance
Officer, the CEO of Greater China
and the CEC of Germany

We now have four employee networks
that are funded and sponsored by the
executive team:

-: G Open supports our LGBTQH
people and allies. This year IG Open
backed the BF] Flare Film Festival,
Red Run in Londcn, Stonewall and
LGBT Film Festival in Krakow, and
joined Global for Small Businesses
in Melbourne, We continue to
support Pride celebrations across
our locations. Importantly, our
Bangalore office was one of the
first to join Pride Circle after the
decriminalisation of homosexuality in
India. Further initiatives in Bangalore
include gender neutral toilets and
office engagement activities. IG

Open also championed the extension

of employee insurance cover 1o

6160%

15188% 0

TEAM MEMBERS

1.285169%

TOTAL

¢ 1,305169%

B BMALE

BRI G

nrs



include partners of our LGBTQ+
community

IG Inspire, our wemen's network,

had another active year across all
our offices. The network sponsored
internal presentations and panel
discussions, and hosted the London
Power Women network. Other
activities included the second year of
the women's mentoring scheme, and
the launch of Power Hour sessions to
learn more about our business

=) |G Black Network, our new network
launched this year, is driving

forward our efforts to create a
culture that's attractive 1o potential
employees of all backgrounds, to
educate colleagues on cultural

bias, to provide a platform for
cultural celebration and an open
atmosphere for learning, inclusivity
and growth, This vitally important
network will help us to improve our
understanding and to boost diversity
at G

IG Parent and Carers Together

{IG PACT} is a new network
concentrating on our parental

leave policies and flexible werking
arrangements. Through this

network a staggered return-to-

work programme for parents

was established, and access

to breastfeeding facilities was
improved, During the coronavirus
lockdown it supported cur working
parents with virtual events and
online help

s

We published cur UK gender pay
gap figures in March this year, and
they appear on the Group website.
While a pay gap exists because

we have more men than women in
senior roles, we aspire to eliminate
this difference over time.
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In great shape

We strive to bring people with the right
skills, experience and behaviours into
the organisation. Simply put, ‘in great
shape’ means:

-2 Scalable: People-solutions providing
the business with cost-effective and
flexible options to support growth

-3 Fit: Strong and sustainable
leadership with the skills and
expertise to deliver

-t Healthy: Resilient and engaged
employees operating in an
organisation that promotes
accountability, growth and
performance

Soatebhle

We regularly review our business

to ensure that the organisation’s
structures and ways of working are
scalable and suitable to support our
business plans. For example, this

year we partnered with a leading
consultancy to redesign our marketing
function, and undertook strategic
reviews of a number of other areas.

Fil end bealtin

To build a strong succession
pipeline, we initiate a process every
year to assess potential across our
organisation. This involves using

an externally recognised model| of
potential and moderation meetings
with senior managers to examine
talent deep within the crganisation.
We nurture identified individuals
through personalised development
plans, 360-degree feedback and a
variety of experiences to accelerate
their development and progression.

We continue to assign our high-
potential people to critical roles,
since development is most effective
when delivered through the work
peopie do. Over the last 12 months
we created significant role changes
for over 55% of our successors.

- We're fully committed to the health and
" wellbeing of our pecple. Our employees
' receive appropriate protection benefits
i and discounted gym access. In the

. benefits portal, allowing them to
persanalise benefits to their lifestyle
" requirements. We also provide a global

- We're proud to have been certified as

. Corporate Research Foundation for
© over ten years, and remain committed

- Our global, values-based awards

- regular opportunities for feedback,

- recognition and evaluation. Moderation
, meetings are held to aliow for

- fair and consistent performance

" evaluation, and to identify the top

. performers across the organisation.

UK, our people can access our flexible

employee assistance programme (EAP),
offering 24/7 telephone counselling
services and other wellbeing resources.

Eropdoyee «ngiee mictst

one of Britain's Top Employers by the

to making I1G a great place te work.

To understand our employees’
perceptions of the business, we carry
out two engagement surveys each year.

- Over 80% of employees participate
N our surveys

© Engagement results have improved
significantly since 2016

-¥ Although engagement results have
declined slightly over the last 12
months, improvements were seen
in how cur peogple view our strategy
and future - particularly important
for usin light of challenging market
conditions

programme allows our people Lo
nominate their peers in recognition
of their achievements. Over

the last 12 months, more than

100 employees frem across the
business received awards.

Rewarding high porfermanc ¢

We continue tc use our performance
check-in process to provide :
I

We offer competitive remuneration
packages that are industry-

i benchmarked and fairly structured

; across diverse groups. The majority of
" our employees are included in a bonus
. scheme, distributed at the end of each
© financial year. We've put measures in

place to ensure that our people receive
bonuses which reflect their individual
performance relative to that of their
peers. The remainder of our employees
are part of sales-related bonus plans.

We also reward our high-potential
employees through a long-term
incentive plan, and we offer cur staff
inthe UK, Australia and the US the
chance to share in cur success through
our tax-advantaged share-purchase

- schemes. An average of 28% of eligible

employees took partlin our share
plans in the 2020 financial year.

Always learning

We recognise that retaining cur
people - and developing their skills
-is vital to cur continued success.

© We are constantly improving access

to quality learning opportunities,

- and encouraging our people to

progress within the business.

Cur employees can access on-the-
job coaching, webinars and internal
training events, with secondments
and Boatd exposure programmes
also available. We recently upgraded
our e-learning platform to Linkedin
Learning and are already seeing high
participation rates. We encourage
attendance at relevant external events
and, where appropriate, sponsor
our people to undertake industry-
recognised training courses and to

I achieve professional qualifications.

We acknowledge the important role

. our managers play in the success of

our business, and have management

© development programmes in London,

Krakow and Bangalore. We support our



managers with access to the Gartner
Manager Success portal, and internally
with online workshops. We continue to
offer managers and aspiring managers
the opportunity to obtain a qualification
in coaching from the Institute of
Leadership and Management {(ILM).

in the UK, we use the Apprentice Levy
to support a variety of apprenticeships.
We support early careers, management
and leadership, and advanced-

level qualitications. So far, we've
supported over 35 staff to gain ILM
qualifications, while four others are
currently studying towards an MBA.

Governance

We've taken steps to further embed
the principles of being a responsible
business into our decision-making

and business practices. As a clear
statement of this commitment, we've
established an £SG Board Committee
to oversee and report to the Board

on ESG matters. The ESG Committee
will work closely with our Executive
Committee and our newly appointed
ESG Manager 1o see that we have

an ambitious ESG strategy thatis
underpinned by the necessary values,
behaviours and policies, These link into
cur newly established Brighter Future
initiative and Brighter Future Fund

{see pages 60 and 61, and our well-
established people sirategy (see pages
6510 69). Furthermore, we consider
the long-term consequences of our
decisions on key stakeholders so that
we are better able to manage risks and
generate value. For more on this, refer
to our Section 172{1) on pages 24 to 25.

Frume noriahts

We conduct our busingss inan

ethical manner, following policies that
embody key human rights principles.
To ensure the rights of our empiloyees
are respected, we have an Equality,
Diversity and inclusion Policy and
corresponding complaints procedures,
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Any employee with concerns about how
|G respects the rights of employees
or clients can also raise these to
senior management through the
Whistleblowing Policy. We expect our
suppliers to uphold human rights in
their own organisations, and we take
active steps to prevent suppliers,
agents, consultants and contractors
throughout our supply chain from
engaging in modern slavery. Thisis
achieved through a comprehensive
vendor management framework

and ensuring that contract owners
are trained on these principles,

More information can be found in

our Slavery and Human Trafficking
Statement on iggroup.com.

Fonti-britery s dorreption

We're fully committed to preventing,
detecting and deterring fraud, bribery
and all other corrupt business practices.

We conduct all of our business activities
with honesty, integrity and 1o the
highest ethical standards. As a UK-
incorporated company, we abide by

the UK Bribery Act 2010, and we've
established a Stock Trading Code of
Conduct, a Disclosure Committee

and a relevant policy, to ensure we
continue to meet the requirements

of the Market Abuse Reguiations.

We've designed and implemented
global policies to comply with anti-
bribery and anti-corruption laws, and
this includes employees wishing to
give or receive gifts or hospitality.

IG does not make or endorse
faciiitation or introducer payments.

Every year ali employees receive
anti-bribery and corruption, and
market abuse training through an
e-learning module, which includes a
knowledge assessment. This training
is mandatory for all {G staff.

At 1G we make charitable donations
that are legal and ethical under local
laws and practices, but we dant make
contributions to political parties.

: Taxation

: We aim to make a positive contribution

" to the societies in which we operate,

" and one of the most sustainable ways
to achieve this is to be a responsible
taxpayer. We align our approach to
tax with our core values, by leading
the way and doing the right thing.

Tax contribution

. Taxation is one of the most significant
costs for the business. In the 2020

* financial year, we paid £83 .4 million

© (2019: £67.9 million) to tax authorities
globally in corporate income taxes,

- employment taxes, irrecoverable
VAT and betting duty. During the
coronavirus pandemic we did not

accept any government support and we

continued to make payments on time.

Tex Slrstegy
We align our payment of tax with our
commercial objectives, making sure

. that we're compliant with the tax laws
in jurisdictions where we cperate. We
create most of our value in the UK,
where a significant number of our staff
are based. We benefit from the UK
Corporation Tax rate, which is low in

comparison with many other countrics.

. Our Chief Financial Officer is
responsible for the management of
tax risk. We rely on our in-house tax

- team and the support of external tax

. advisers to ensure that we operatein
line with local tax laws and meet our
statutory compliance obligations.

We have a Tax Strategy, which sets
out our approach to paying taxes,
and a Tax Risk Management Policy,
which governs the tax decisions that

© are made by employees on behalf of

- the Group. These are approved by the

- Audit Committee on an annual basis.

Qur tax team warks with the
wider business to ensure that the
implementation of the Group strategy
is supported by timely and accurate
tax advice. While considering tax
advice, we take into account the needs
. of stakeholders to ensure that the
" outcome is aligned to the commercial

, transaction and remains within the

~ spirit of the law and IG’s values.

i
We have a transparent relationship

© with tax authorities, and will approach

- them when the application of tax
laws requires clarification. The tax
team meets with HMRC on a regular
basis, to discuss the status of ongoing

. tax matters and to update HMRC

. oh changes to the business.

CE e tive tey b ate

. The effective tax rate (ETR} for the
- 2020 financial yearis 18.8% (2012:
- 18.5%). This is lower than the main UK

Corporation Tax rate as a resuit of the
benefit that IG receives from the UK
patent box regime, and the recognition
of previous years’ losses for tax
purposes. Further details can be found
in note 8 of the Financial Statements.
Vsl e
G paid £571 million in corporate
income taxes during the 2020
financial year (2019: £38.4 million).
This is significantly higher than in the
2019 financial year due to higher
profits in the 2020 financial year

and changes in the UK Corporation
Tax guarterly instalment payment
regime. These required us to make
six instalment payments, versus

four payments previously.

pety

The effective cash tax rate is 19.3%
{2019: 19.8%). The effective cash tax
rate can differ from the ETR because
tax payments made during a particular
financial year may relate to other

| financial years, or may he based

on estimated current year profits,

- depending on local tax laws. Also, the
" ETR includes the effects of deferred

tax movements, which are not included
when calculating tax payments.

Chutu e eftective ton rate

" Qur estimate of the ETR for the year
to 31 May 2021 is 19%. The Group's
ETR remains dependent on the
locations where we make cur profits,
the tax rates applied to those profits

© and the availability of tax reliefs.
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Section 414CA of the Companies Act 2006 (the Act) requires the Company to include within its Strategic Report a non-
financial information statement setting out such information as is required by section 414CB of the Act. The table below and
the information it refers to are intended to help stakeholders understand IG's position on key non-financial matters.

Reporting requirement Policies governihg our appreach Risk management and other
Environmental matters IG Health and Safety Policy Statement ESG Report, pages 62t0 63
15G 14001

Greenhouse Gas Protocol
Recycling Policy

Employees Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Palicy
Recruitment Policy
Absence Management Policy
Annual Leave Policy
Parental Leave Policy
Group Whistleblowing Policy
Anti-Discrimination and Harassment Policy
Transitioning at Work Policy

ESG Report, pages 65 tc 70

Human rights Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Policy
Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement

Social matters Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Policy

ESG Report, page 70

ESG Report, page 66

Anti-bribery and corruption IG Group Anti-Bribery Poticy
|G Group Gifts and Hospitality Policy
|G Group Stock Trading Code
Group Market Abuse Policy
PEPs and Sanctions Policy
Client Risk Categorisation Policy
Group Global Anti-Money Laundering (AML)
and Counter Terrorist Financing (CTF) Policy

ESG Report, page 70

Description of principal risks and impact on business activity

Business Model and Risk Profile,
pages 30 to 35

Key trends and factors likely to affect
our business, pages 36 and 37

Risk Management, pages b0 lo 59

Description of business model

Business Model and Risk Profile,
pages 30 to 35

Non-financial key performance indicators

KPls, pages 22 and 23
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Going Concern
and Viability Statement

Going concern

The Group meets its day-to-day working capital requirements :

through its available liguid assets and committed banking
facilities. The Group’'s liguid assets exclude all monies held in
segregated client money accounts.,

In assessing whether it is appropriate to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the Financial Statements, the
Directors have considered the resilience of the Group, taking
account of its liquidity position and cash generation, the
adequacy of capital resources, the availability of external
credit facilities and the associated financial covenants, and
stress-testing of liquidity and capital adequacy taking into
account the principal risks faced by the business Further
details of these principal risks and how they are mitigated and
managed is documented in the Risk Management section in
the 2020 Group Annual Report on page 50.

The Directors’ assessment has considered future
performance, solvency and liquidity over a period of at

least 12 months from the date of approval of the Financial
Statements. The Board, following the review by the Audit
Committee, has a reasonable expectation that the Group has
adequate resources for that period, and confirm that they
consider it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the Financial Statements.

Viability Statement

The UK Corporate Governance Cade requires the Directors
to make a statement regarding the viability of the Group,
including explaining how they have assessed the prospects
of the Group, the period of time over which they have
made the assessment and why they consider that period

to be appropriate.

The Group has a forecasting and pianning cycle consisting
of a strategic plan, an annual budget for the current year and
financial projections for a further three years. The output
from this business planning process is used in the Group's
capital and liquidity planning, and the most recent forecasts
are for the four-year period ending May 2024. The Group's
revenue, which is driven by client transaction fees, has
benefited from the sustained increase in financial market
volatility since the last week of February 2020 as aresult

of the Covid-12 pandemic. Projections of the Group’s
revenue have conservatively considered financial market
volatility returning to normallevels in the first year of the
tfour-year period.

The four-year forecasting period is the length of time
over which the Board strategically assesses the business;

- the period of time the Board would typically lock to pay
| back investments; and is the period over which the Group

reviews its regulatory capital and liquidity resources and
requirements. The Group has assumed that there will be no
significant changes to the Group’s regulatory capital and
liguidity requirements during this period.

The first year of the planning period has a greater degree

of certainty and is, therefore, used to set detailed financial
targets across the Group. It is alsc used by the Remuneration
Committee to set targets for the annual incentive scheme.
Caution about the degree of certainty needs to be exercised,
as in the short term, the performance of the Group’s business
is impacted by influences such as market conditions that it

" cannot control.

The further three-year period provides less certainty of
cutcome, but provides a robust planning tool against which

. strategic decisions can be made. These forecasts are also

considered when setting targets for the executive and senior
management share plans.

The Group undertakes stress-testing on Llhese forecasts

~and through the ILAA, ICAAP and Recovery Plan, providing

the Board with a robust assessment of the possible
consequences of principal risks facing the Group, including
those that would threaten its business mode!, future
performance, solvency and liquidity.

¢ The types of scenarios used include the impact of a major

political shock; the collapse of a major financial services firm;
major currency appreciation; and cyber-attacks. The stress
tests evaluate the impact of the scenarios on the relevant
principal risks captured by the Group's Risk Management
Framework. Additionally, the Group has undertaken reverse

i stress-tesling to understand the circumstances under

which the Group's business model is no longer viable, With
appropriate management actions, the results of these
stresses showed that the Group was resilient to ali severe,
but plausible, scenarios and would be able to withstand the
impact of these. As the Covid-19 pandemic continues to
evolve, stress scenarios will be refined taking into account a
stress of a similar severity, with these being incorporated into
the ILAA, ICAAF and Recovery Plan.

The Group has undertaken extensive madelling and analysis
for potential changes in the regulatory landscape, for

i example Australia, in order to prepare the financial forecasts,

and there are a range of potential cutcomes.



The Group is planning investrments in new countries and in
new products that may be less successful than assumed

by the financial forecasts. The Directors are satisfied that
these and other uncertainties have been assessed, and that
the financial forecasts reflect an appropriate balance of the
potential outcomes.

in response to the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group
successfully implemented its comprehensive business
continuity plan. The Group's significant long-term investment
in communications and technology infrastructure has
enabled all employees to work safely from home, and |G
continues to provide the hest possible service for its clients
when they choose to trade the financial markets. The
Groupis in regular communication with its staff members

to ensure their safety, and that of their families, during this

challenging time. Due to the Group's successful management |

of the heightened levels of client trading as a result of the
sustained increase in financial market volatility triggered
by the pandemic, the Group’s relationship with key
stakeholders, such as regulators and hedging brokers,
has not been impacted.

Overall the Directors consider the Group is well placed

to manage its business risks successfully, having taken

into account the current economic outlook, the possible
consequences of principal risks facing the business in
severe but plausible scenarios, and the effectiveness of any
mitigating actions on the Group's profitability and liquidity.

The Group's business model provides the Directors with
comfort that the business is being run in a sustainable way,
acting in the interest of its clients and acting responsibly in
managing relationships with other stakeholders. The Board
regularly assesses the principal risks facing the Group. These
risks include regulatory, legislative, or tax changes which
may detrimentally impact our business in the jurisdictions
we operate or seek to cperate in. In particular, a change that
impacts the Group's ability to sell or trade OTC leveraged
products may have a fundamental effect on the viability

of the Group and its businesses. Further details of these
princioal risks and how they are mitigated and managed is
documented in the Risk Management section on page 53.
The Board receives reports on these and new emerging
risks through the Risk Management Framework. On the
basis of these and other matters considered and reviewed
by the Board during the year, the Directors have reasonable
expectations that the Group will be able to continue in
operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over

the four-year period ending 31 May 2024.
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The Strategic Report up to and including page 73 was

" approved for issue by the Board on 23 July 2020 and signed

onits behalf by:

CHARLES A. ROZES
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
23 July 2020
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Chairman’s Introduction
to Corporate Governance

As your new Chairman, I'm excited about the opportunity
ahead to build a more coherent and effective Board.

The last 12 months has been a period of significant change
for IG. We've learned some valuable lessons, have deepened
our understanding of the role of governance, and are
rebuilding trust with our key stakeholders that will only make
us stronger as a Board and a Company. We've done a lot of
work in the last year to strengthen the membership of the
Board. In additicn to my appointment as your Independent
Non-Executive Chairman, we added two talented new
Non-Executive Directors to complement the existing Board.
We further strengthened the Board in July through the
appointment of Rakesh Bhasin as a Non-Executive Director.
Rakesh joined the Board on 6 July 2020.

My role now is to help bring it all together to ensure that the
Board functions as a collaborative and high-performing team,
and that we continue to effectively oversee KG's strategy in
achieving our growth targets and delivering a more giobal,

" diversified and sustainable business.

I became Chairman of the Beard in February. Andrew Didham

]
was appointed last September following the AGM, and Heten
I e Stevenson was appointed in March 2020 - both as Non-

Executive Directors. Andrew has relevant financial services

u skills and is an experienced Non-Executive Director Helen
C I e brings extensive marketing and digital experience from a
i range of industries, together with strong customer focus.

Stephen Hill retired in April 2020 after a nine-year tenure.

Mike MCTighe Chairman gives his Qur most recently appointed Non-Executive Director, Rakesh,
. . ’ ’ has significant experience in global markets, with particular
introduction to corporate governance ' reterence to the Asia-Pacific region.

in respect of the financial year.
We'ré icoking to broaden the skills, experience and diversity
of the Board through the recruitment of an additional Non-

Executive Director, and are progressing well with this search.
6 6 { anticipate that alongside these three appointments, we'll
Good—quality corporate governance ) fulrther refme our Ccmmlt_tees membershlp, anld our focus
. o . . ' will then switch to enhancing the Board's effectiveness so
underplns our ab“'ty to deliver sustainable that we operate well as a team. We recently conducted a

future growth and create long-term value
for shareholders.

Baoard effectivencss review to assist us with this, and you'll
hear more of this later. Furthermore, as part of our drive to
broaden the experience of the Board, our Executive Directors
., willbe encouraged to take on one externat Non-Executive

i Directorship.

MIKE McTIGHE
CHAIRMAN

At the end of the financial year, Paul Mainwaring retired as
Chief Financial Qfficer (CFQO}, stepping down as a Director
on 1 June 2020, The Board would like to express its deep
appreciation for his significant contribution to IG. I'm
delighted to say that Charlie Rozes took over as an Executive
" Director and CFO with effect from the same date after an
extensive, independently-facilitated search.




The Board currently consists of eight Non-Executive Directors
and four Executive Directors. While the Executive Directors
run the operational aspects of the business on a day-to-

day basis, the Non-Executive Directors provide appropriate
guidance, chatlenge and support.
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Finaily, as part of our review of governance, we've embarked

- on arestructuring of the boards of the UK regulated
' companies within the Group: IG Index Limited and I1G Markets

Limited, to add Non-Executive Directors to those boards

. during the next financial year. This witl ensure appropriate,

" enhanced oversight of the regulated entity boards, as well as

We've now achieved our target of increasing female
representation on the Board to one third by 2020, | recognise
the importance of diversity, in all of its forms, including social,
ethnic and cultural. This will continue to be an area of focus
for the Board. ‘

Good-quality corporate governance underpins our ability to
deliver sustainable future growth and create long-term value
for shareholders. When | assumed my role as Chairnan, |
starled by meeting with stakeholders such as shareholders,
staff and regulators. We're on a journey when it comes to cur
corporate governance, and it's my intention to work closely
with management to continue to strengthen our governance
arrangements.

We've made some changes {o the composition of Board
Committees recently, sa that the most appropriate members
sit on these Committees — taking their requisite skills,
experience, knowledge, diversity and personal strengths into
account. We'll now look to review the Terms of Reference

of those Committees so that they're empowered in so far as
it's practicable and sensible to support the Beard. This will
enable the Board to spend the majority of its time on the
growth and developmernt of 1G.

We've recently set up an Environmental, Social and
Governance {(ESG) Committee chaired by Non-Executive
Director Sally-Ann Hibberd. This is an area of growing
importance for all businesses, and 'm grateful to Sally-Ann
for taking this on. I'm particularly excited about the work the
ESG Committee will do to continually engage our employees,
attract new talent and formally recognise our obligations to
the communities in which we are based. This starts wilth the ;
£5 million commitment to the 1G Brighter Future Fund that will
improve the educational opportunities available to the least
privileged young pecple in the communities we operate in,
many of whom have been disproportionately impacted by

the Covid-19 pandemic.

As I mentioned earlier, 2 review of the effectiveness of the
Board and Committees was undertaken. The evaiuation
process was externally facilitated by independent
consullancy firm Boardroom Review Limited, as part of the
overali annual Board and Committee effectiveness review.
The evaluaticn process consisted of briefing meetings with
the Board, a review of IG’s Board and Committee information,
one-to-one confidential interviews with all Board members
and other selected participants. The facilitator also observed
Board and Committee meetings in May. Discussicns on the
review took place at the July Board and Committee meetings,
and next steps were agreed.

clarity of accountability and decision-making. We also plan to
review the board structures of our other regulated entities,
wherever they may be located, for compliance with best-in-

. class practice.

The success of the Board is dependent on a shared purpose,
vision and values, and the relationship between the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer is central to this. June has
throughout her time at IG continued to be an advacate for

. our values, We share common views on culture, values, ethics

and inclusion, which help drive our approach to strategic
development.

" MIKE McTIGHE

CHAIRMAN
23 July 2020
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Corporate Governance Statement

Statement of compliance

The UK Corporate Governance Code (the Code), published in
July 2018, sets out the standards of good practice in relation
to how a company should be directed and governed. IG hasg
a Premium Listing on the London Stock Exchange and, as
such, the Company reports in accordance with the Code. The
Code is published by the Financial Reporting Council (FRC),
with additional information to be found on its website at
frc.org.uk. The Board considers that the Company has been
compliant with the provisions of the Code for the year ended
31 May 2020.

Overview of Corporate Governance Framework

We recognise that our overall structure is subject to the
direction of our shareholders. They agree the Articles of
Association, approve transactions mandated through the
Listing Rules, consider the appointment and reappointment
of Auditors and Directors, approve the final dividend, and
provide for the Directors to delegate any of their powers

or discretions. -

The Board of Directors is responsible for appointing
Directors to the Board. for agreeing the Group's strategy
and monitoring its execution against agreed targets. The
Board has overall responsibility for promoting the long-
term sustainable success of the Company for the benefit
of its shareholders as a whole. This means having regard

to those matters sct out in Section 172 of the Companies
Act 2006, providing leadership and direction, including in
relation to culture, ethics and values, and ensuring effective
engagement with, and encouraging participation from,
shareholders and other stakeholders. The Board has adopted
a schedule of mattersreserved to it for decision.

Certain governance responsibilities have been delegated

by the Board to Committees of the Board to ensure
independent oversight over financial reporting, internal
controls, risk management, remuneration and reward, Beoard-
level recruitment and environmental, social and governance
(ESG) matters, and generally to assist the Board with carrying
out its responsibilities, Further information on the role of the
Board and of the Audit, Remuneration, Risk, Nomination and
ESG Committees are set out in the foliowing pages.

Additionally, the Board has a Standing Committee which
deals with Board-reserved matters required to be considered
at short notice, and where there are administrative matters
requiring approval and evidencing that do not warrant a full
Board. The Board also has a Disciosure Committee to identify
Inside Information and to decide on how, and when, the
Company should disclose that information in accordance
with the Disclosure Policy.

| The ESG Committee was formed in 2020, and its Terms

of Reference were approved by the Board in July 2020.
Our ESG team is responsible for creating, developing
and implementing our ESG strategy. and reporting on
performance, its work is governed and overseen by the
ESG Committee which provides formal updates directly
to the Board.

The Chief Executive Otficer {CEO) has delegated authority for:

RS

The development and execution of strategy

Leadership and development of 1G’s executive

management team below Board level

-3 Day-to-day decision-making relating lo, and management
of, the affairs of 1G

-» Delivering financial performance in line with our agreed
budget

-3 Organisational design of our operations

The Chief Financial Officer (CFQ) has delegated authority,

- including in relation to financial management of the Group,

the stewardship of Group assets, the safeguarding of ciient
money and assets, financialreporting and investor relations
The Chief Commercial Officer (CCQ) has delegated authority
for global client management, marketing and global sales

. and conversion. The Chief Operating Officer (COO) has

delegated authority in respect of trading and operations,
and business change.

Below Board level, we currently have a number of executive
management Commitiees in place.

The CEQ s supported by the Group Executive Committee

- our most senicr executive management Committee -
comprising the CEQ, CFO, CCO, COO and other senior
executives. It supports the CEQ in the proper performance of
her duties, including to optimise the execution of cur strategy
agreed by the Board. it also provides advice and support to
the executive management in the day-to-day running of

_ our operations.

The CFO, in the proper perfermance of his duties, is
supported by the Client Money and Assets Committee in

. providing oversight arrangements and operations inrespect
- of the holding and safeguarding of client money and assets

across the whole of the business. The CFO also leads the
Cost Committee that oversees the management of costs
across all business functions against agreed four-year-plan

- costtargets.
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The Greup Executive Committee is also supported by ;
the Core Business Committee, chaired by the CCO. It's !
responsible for the delivery and moenitoring of performance i
against the Group's four-year plan and budget for the core
business units. Furthermore, it’s supported by the Growth
Accelerator Projects Committee, whose purpose is to deliver |
upon and monitor performance against the significant ;
opportunities agreed as part of the strategy approved by :
the Board.

The Executive Risk Committee (ERC}, provides advice to
operational management in the day-to-day operation of

risk governance, applying the principles of sound corporate '
governance to the identification, assessment, management, 1
monitoring and repcrting of risks within the risk appetite 1
agreed by the Board. i
The ERC in turnis supported by the Technology Risk |
Cemmittee, Information Security Committee, Vendor Risk
Management Committee, Best Execution Committee, the
ICAAP and ILAA Comimittee, Conduct and Operational Risk
Committee and Transaction Reporting Committee. This
allows for the detailed review of matters forming part of the
responsibilities of relevant management, and from where
significant matters are escalated - often through the ERC
to the Board Risk Committee.

strategic direction, delivery performance, and guality levels
for all technology services across IG, and is chaired by the
Chief Information Officer. it ensures that the technology
investment decisicns taken by us are fit for future purpose,
and the technology estate quality is maintained in an efficient
and sustainable manner. It's also responsible for delivering
and monitoring performance against the technology
improvement initiatives needed to ensure our technology
remains available, secure, performant and scalable.

I
(
The Technology Steering Committee provides assurance of i
\
\
|

The Legal Entity and Policy Governance Committee is chaired
by the Chief Legal and Governance Officer. lts function is to
cxercise oversight over the governance of cur subsidiaries,
and in particular, their adherence to the Group Legal Entity
Governance Policy and the Group Policy Governance
Framework.

The IG People Forum was established to further enhance
Board engagement with the wider workfcrce. The principal
duty of the People Forum is to shape and coordinate key
people initiatives, and to provide a forum to allow employees’ |
views and opinions to be heard on issues that willimpact |
the employee experience prior to submitting any relevant |
proposals to the Group Board. i
i
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The Board

as at the date of this Report

The Board is responsible for determining the Group’s strategy
and for promoting our long-term success, through creating
and delivering long-term value for shareholders.

Mike McTighe

Charrmss

Age: 66
Time on Board: 5 menths
{Appointed 3 February 2020)

Committee membership:
Nomination Committae (Chair)
(since 3 February 2020)

Disclosure Committee
(since 18 March 2020}

Jum.;."l.?elix

Gl e ag st e e

6
Time on Beard: 5 years

Age:

{Appointed Non-Executive Director
on 4 September 2015; and Chief
Executive Officer on 30 October 2018}

Committee membership:
Disclosure Committee

Charlie Rozes

Crnet Daonens T Oafio

Age;
Time on Board: 2 months
{Appointed 1 June 2020)

Committee membership:
Disclosure Committee

Bridget Messer

[T R A 2T RPN P

ge: 41
Time on Board: 2 years
(Appointed 1 June 2018}

Mike has a wealth of leadership, board
and regulatory experience fram

both public and private comparies
Mike is the Chairman of Openreach
Limited, Together Financial Services
Limited and Arran Isle Limited.

For over 20 years he has held various
non-executive director rolesina
range of regulated and unregulated
industries whilst also spendmng erght
years on the board of Ofcom and one
year on the board of Postcomm.

Mike has held many chairmanships
over the years, including

chairing several UK and US

public company boards.

Mike spent most of his executive
career at Cable and Wireless,
Philips, Motoreta and GE

June was appointed as Chief Executive
Gfficer on 30 Getober 2018, having
previously served as a Non-Executive
Director of the Company since

4 September 2015 June has had a
successful career, growing and leading
globalfinancial services and tech
companies, and living and working in
Hong Kong, Lendon and New York

June brings to the role over 25 years’
experience in both the finance and
digital technology sectors, June also
sits on the Board of Advisors of the
London Technology Club. June has no
other current external appointments.

Until the saie of Verifone Inc, June
was President of Verifone Europe
and Russia with responsioility for
over 2,000 employees with the
operation of the business throughout
those territaries. Priar to her role

at Verifone, June held various
executive management positions

at a number of large multi-national
businesses. These included Citibank
where she was Managing Director
of Global Healthcare, Git Enterprise
Payments, IBM Corporation where
she was Globas! General Manager

for the Giobal Banking and Financial
Markets industry sector, and Chase
Manhattan Bank where she was APAC
Region Head of GPTS. June has also
worked as a strategy consultant at
Booz, Allen & Hamilton, in strategy
roles at Chase Manhattan Bank, and
as Chief Executive Officer of Certeo,
arisk management technology

firm for global broker dealers.

June graduated from the University
of Pittsburgh with 2 summa cum
laude (first class honours) degree in
Chemical Engineering and Pre-Med.

Charlie was appointed as Chief
Financial Officer on 1 June 2620,

Charlie has a proven track record
of, and accountanilty for, financial
control and reperting, accounting,
tax, M&A, investor relations, risk
and compliance, and audit. He's a
highly experienced finance leader
having held a numbe of executive
directar rales in the financial
services sector prior 1o joining IG,
and having driven a number of
substantial change programmes
bothin the UK and internationally.

Charlie began his professional career
with PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP,
and becaime a Parther in 2007 in

the US management consulting
practice. Follawing that he held
senior executive roles at IBM and
Bank of America. In 2007, he joined
Barclays ple where he was the Chief
Financial Officer of Barclays UK Retail
and Business Bank, and became the
Global Head of Investor Relations in
September 2011 until August 2015

He was the Group Finance Director
at jardine Lioyd Thompson plc from
September 2015 until April 2019
when it was acquired by Marsh

& Mclennan Companies Inc.

Charlie has an undergraduate
degree from Tufts University
and an MBA frem the Southern
Methodist University,

Bridget's extensive knowledge
of corporate, commercial ang IG
product matters slong with her
excelient understanding of 1G's
various regulatory environments,
helps the Board set its strateqy
for client acquisition, client
management, and growth in

I1G's offices around the world.

Bridget jo'ned |G as Legal Cotnsel
in May 2005, then held a number
of roles within the legal function
leading to her appointment as
General Counsel and Head of
Compliance in April 2010, She was
also appointed Group Company
Secretary in March 2011,

In September 2015, Bridget was
appointed to her current role as
Chief Commaerciat Officer, reporting
directly to the Chief Executive
Officer. Bridgetlis a member ot

IG's Executive Committee.

Prior to joining 1G, Bridget

held solicitor positions within
Deutsche Bank inLondon and
at Corrs Chambers Westgarth
Lawyers in Austraiia. Briciget is
currently appointed as Chair of
the Trustee Board of the African
Commercial Law Foundation.

Bridget has no other current
external appointments.

Bridget graduated from Queensland
University of Technology with

a Bachelor of Laws, first class
honcurs, and a Bachelor of
Busingss {Dean's List)in 2001,

and was admitted to the roll of
solicitors for Queensland in 2003,
and England and Wales in 2006,




Jon Noble

ke T O ntine CH e

Age: 43
Time on Board: 2 years
{Appointed 1 June 2018)

Jon was appointed Chief Operating
Otficer on 14 June 2018 with
responsibility for Trading and
Cperations, and 1z amember of IG's
Executive Committee, Jon alsc leads
the business change office and
chairs anumber of the Company’s
management Committees,
including the workforce-related
People Forum and the Committee
established to deliver upon, and
manitor perfarmance against, the
significant cpporiunties aareed a5
part of the Board strategic review.

Jon first joined 1G in 2000 as a trainee
dealer. rising to Dealing Director in
2007, In 2010, Jon became Dealing

& Qperations Director and in 2012
was appointed Chief Information
Officer. In 2015, Jon was appointed
as Head of 1G's Delivery Pillar. He

was appointed to the Board as Chief
Information Officer on 1 June 2018

As Chief Information Ctficer,

Jon had responsibility for setting

and delivering our 1T strategy,
delivery of all programmes of work
and for keeping the production
envirohment stable and sgcure, He
was responsible for IGs IT systems,
including its clientinterface systems.

lon graduated from Durham
University with a degree in Economics
and obtained an Executive MBA from
London Business School in 2007,

lon has ne current external
appointments.

Age: 62

Malcol‘m Le May

Sernondnels s

e

Time on Board: 5 years
{Appointed 10 September 2015)

Committee membership:
Remuneraticn Committee (Chair}

Malcolm has broad experience and

knowledge of the financial services
and investment sectors, along with

extensive experience on the boards
of publicly listed companies.

Malcolm was appointed as Chief
Executive Officer of Provident
Financial ple inFebruary 2018,
having previously been its Seniar
Independent Rirector until
November 2017 and, following

the death of its Chairman, intenm
Executive Chairman. He is a Partner
at Opus Corporate Finance LLP
and Juno Capital Partners LLP.

Malcolm served as a Non-Executive
Director and Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee of

Hastings Group Haoldings ple priar

to his resignation in April 2018, He
also served as Senior iIndependent
Director of Pendragon plc, and was a
Non-Executive Director and Chairman
of the Investment Committes at RSA
Insurance Group plc. Prior to this, he
held various executive roles at Morgan
Grenfell plc, Drexel Burnham Lambert,
Barclays de Zoete Wedd Holdings,
UBS AG, ING Barings Limited.

Morley Fund Managers Inow Aviva
Investors) and JER Partners Limited,
where he was European President.

Jim Newman

FE O S O O R R S %

Time on Board: 7 years
(Appointed 1 October 2013)

Committee membership:
Audit Committee (Chair)

Board Risk Committee
Remuneration Committee

Jim has in-depth knowledge and
experience of the financial services
sector, as well as considerable
expetience both as a Chiel Financial
Officer and in the implementation
of transformation programmes.

A qualfied chartered accountant, hm

" was Finance Director for Resoluticn

pic, having joined the Company

as Group Financial Controlier, He
spent ten years at Aviva, where he
was Group Integration Director for
the CGQU/Naorwich Unicn merger

and Finance Director of Norwich
Union Life, Aviva's UK hife insurance
business. He was tormerly the
Corporate Development Director
tor Friends Life Group, where his
responsiblities included overseeing
the final separation and integration
of the UK lifc business acquired by
Resolution plc, as well as the delivery
of the overallgroup change portfolic

and strategic corporate development.

Jirn has no other current
appoeintments.
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Sally-Ann Hibberd

e d v et recor

Time on Board: 2 years
{Appointed 20 September 2018}

Committee membership:
ESG Cammittee {(Chair)

Audit Committee

Board Risk Committee
(since 18 March 2020}

Nomination Committee

Sally-Ann has a b1 oad background
in financial services and

technology. She previously served
as Chief Operating Officer of the
Internaticnal Division, and latterly as
~ Group Operations and Technology

" Director, of Willis Group, held a
number of senior executive roles

at Lloyds TSB and was a Non-
Executive Director of Shawbrook
Group plc until January 2019,

Sally-Annis a Non-Executive
Director of Equiniti Group ple,
Chair of its Risk Committee and a
member of the Audit, Nomination
and Remuneration Committees.

Sally-Ann also serves as a Non-

Executive Director of The Co-

operative Bank plc where shets a

member of its Audit, Remuneration
I and Risk Commiltees,

In addition, Sally-Ann is a non-

| executive member of the governing
body of Loughborough University
and a member of the advisory
panel of Gobeyond Partners.
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The Board

as at the date of this Report

(SRS

n Moulds

Picry- SRRL}

Age: 55
Time on Board: 2 years
{Appointed 20 September 2018}

Committee membership:
Board Risk Committee {Chair}

Nomination Cornmittee

Jonathan is the Chairman of Litigation
Capital Management Limited, an AIM~
listed litigation finance company. He
has extensive experience in financial
markets and has worked in the US,
Asia and UK during his career. He
served as the Group Chief Operating
Officer of Barclays plc until 2016

Prior to Barclays. Jonathan had a
2Q-year career with Bank of America
and was Chief Executive Officer of
Merrill Lynch Internationa!l following
the merger of the two institutions in
2008, with responsibility for Bank of
America’s European businesses. He
was amember of Bank of America’s
Global Operating Committee.

Jonathan has served widely on key
industry associations including

as Charrman of the International
Swaps and Derivatives Association
(ISDA) from 2004 until 2008, and
as a Director of the Association for
Financial Markets in Europe {(AFME).
He remains a member of AFME's
Advisory Board. lonathan was a

member of the Capital Markets Senior

Practitioners of the UK Financial
Services Authority and the Giobal
Firnancial Markets Association

Andrew Didham

Ao

Age: 64
Time on Board: 10 months
{(Appointed 12 September 2015}

Committee membership:
Audit Committee

(since 18 September 2019}

Andrew is currently a Director of
N.M. Rothschild & Sons Limited
and is also Chalrman of the N.M.
Rothschild Pension Trust. Since
2015 he has been a Non-[xecutive
Director and, since 2017, Senior
Independent Director of Charles
Stanley Group plc where he also
serves as Non-Executive Chairman
of its principal operating company
Charles Stanley & Co. Limited. In
2017 Andrew was appointed 1o the
Board of Shawbrook Group plc where
heis a Non-Executive Director and
Chalrman of its Audit Committee.

From 2017 to 2019 Andrew served as
Non-Executive Director and Chairman
of the Audit and Risk Committees of
Jardine Lloyd Thomps=on Group plc.

Andrew was a partner of KPMG from
1990 to 1897 and is a Fellow of the
institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. Upon leaving
KPMG, Andrew served as Group
Finance Director of the worldwide
Rothschild graup for 16 years

from 1997 to 2012 From 2012 he
has setved as an Executive Vice
Chairman in the Rothschild group.

Former Directors who served during the year

Andy Green

Andy stepped down from the Board and the role

of Chairman on 19 September 2019

Stephen Hill

Stephen retired from the Board on 27 Apnij 2020,

Paul Mainwaring

Paul stepped down from the Board on 1 lune 2020

elen Stevenson

r tee ooty

Time on Beard: 4 months
(Appointed 18 March 2020}

Committee membership:
Remuneration Committee
(since 18 March 2020}

ESG Committee

Helen brings extensive marketing
and digital experience frem a

range of industries, together with
strong custemer focus Helen s an
experienced Non-Executive Director
with particular experience regarding
remuneration matters. Helenis
currently the Senior Independent
Director of Reach plc and Kin ana
Carta plc, and a Non-Executive
Director of Skinton Building Society

Helen served as Chief Marketing
Officer UK at Yell Group ple from
2006 10 2012 and, prior to th's,
served as Lloyds TSB Group
Marketing Director. Helen started
her career with Mars Inc where
she spent 19 vears, cuiminating

in her role as European Marketing
Director, leading category strategy
development across Europe.

Helen is a mermber of the Henley
Business School Strategy
Board. and serves as & Governor
of Wellington College

esh Bhast

bagcuing ireger

Rak

Age: 58
Time on Board: 1 month
{Appainted 6 luly 2020}

Committee membership:
ESG Committee

Rakesh brings extensive technology
and global markets experience,
specifically In Asia-Pacific. He is

a Non-Executive Director for a
portfolio of companies in multiple
sectors and 1s also Chairman of
CMC Networks, a Garlyle Group
nvestment company kased in
Aftica, focused on providing
telecommunications services
across Africa and the Midd:ie East

In his executive career, Rakesh
was the Chief Executive Officer
and s member of the Board of Colt
Technology Services, a Fidelity-
owned company ptoviding networ k,
voice, and data centre services
giohally. Rakesh was eppointed
into the role of Chief Executive
Officer in December 2006 and
completed his tenure at the end of
2015, concluding his secondment
from Fidelity. Concurrently, he
was Non-Executive Chairman of
KVH, an Asian-based technology
company with headguarters in
Tokyc and operations in Hong
Kang, Seoul and Singapore,

and Non-Executive Chairman of
Market Prizm, a financial-services~
focused techneciogy company

Rakesh has also previously held
senior positions within AT&T,
including Head of AT&T Asia-
Pacific's managed network services
business and President, AT&T

Japan Limited. He was also farmerly
Senior Managing Director of Japan
Telecom Company Limited,

Rakesh has & BScin Electrical
Eng:neering from George
Washington University.



Board Governance

Leadership

The role of the boza: o

The Board provides leadership by setting the Group's
strategic direction and overseeing management’s execution
of the strategy. It is responsible for establishing our purpose
and values, and for ensuring these and the stralegy are
aligned to cur culture. [t provides robust challenge, within

a framework of prudent and effective risk management

and internal controls. The Board is provided with timely

and comprehensive information to enable it to discharge

its responsibilities, to encourage strategic debate and to
facilitate robust, informed and timely decision-making.

The Board is collectively responsible for promaoting the long-
term sustainable success of the Group for the benefit of

its members as a whole, through the creation of long-term
sustainable shareholder value and contribution to wider
society. In exercising this responsibility, the Board takes into
account the needs of, and ensures effective engagement
with, all relevant stakeholders - including shareholders,
clients, regulators, the workferce, suppliers and the wider
community in which it operates - and the effect of our
activities on the environment.

The Stakeholder Engagement section of the Strategic Report
on pages 24 to 29 sets out the stakeholder engagement
mechanisms that are currently in place. This includes who
the key stakeholders are, why they are important to us, how
engagement is being conducted, the principal issues that
matter toc each stakeholder group, cur governance activities
and the actions and outcomes from these engagements
when the Board makes principal decisions. The Board
considers ‘principal decisions’ to be those decisions which
entall significant long-term implications and consequences
for the Company and/or its stakeholders and distinguishes
these from the normal, ordinary course decision-making
processes that the Board engages in.

The Board has agreed to identify points for discussion

at future Board meetings, which should include specific
documented consideration of Section 172 stakeholder
interests when they are discussed. This requirement is
incorporated into the procedure for preparing Beard
meetings, and there is a template identifying the relevant
stakeholder considerations for inclusion in the Board papers
that accompany such discussions.

As a collective body, the Board is tesponsible for ensuring
that it has the appropriate skills, knowledge, diversity and
experience to perform its role effectively.

The Board has a comprehensive schedule of matters
reserved to it for decision-making. These include agreeing
the Group's strategy, approving major transactions, annual
budgets and changes to our capital and governance
structure. The matters reserved to the Board are
supplemented by an annual Board calendar that provides
for, among other things, regular reviews of operational and

INTRODUCTION

STRATEGIC REPORT

Fi GOVERRNANCE REF ORI
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHAREHQLDER AND COMPANY
INFORMATION

financial performance; reviews of succession planning for
the Board and senior management, setting the Group's risk
appetite and approving any changes to our Risk Management
and Internal Cantrol Framework.

Specific matters for approval and recommendation

to the Board have been formally delegated to certain
Board Committees. The matters reserved to the Board
and Committee Terms of Reference are available on the
Company's website, iggroup.com.

Petad cotnpnition

As at 31 May 2020, the Board comprised a Non-Executive
Chairman who was independent on appointment, four
Executive Directors and six Independent Non-Executive
Directors, supported by the Company Secretary and senicr
management. Details of changes to the composition of

the Board can be found in the Chairman’s Introduction

to Corporate Governarice on page 76, in the Nomination
Committee Report on pages 94 to 98 and in the Directors’
Report on pages 140 to 142.

The Board operates a ctear written division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer (CEO),
which was last updated in 2019.

Chairman

The Chairman, Mike McTighe, was appointed to the Board
on 3 February 2020, He is responsible for leading the Board
and creating the right conditions to ensure its effectiveness
in all aspects of its role. This includes promoting the long-
term sustainability of the Group and generating value for
shareholders.

The Chairman is also responsible for ensuring that the Board
takes an active and constructive part In supporting and
challenging management in the development of our strategy.

© This also includes Beard succession planning, and promoting

the highest standards of integrity, probity and corporate
governance throughout the business.

. The Chairman sets the Board’s agenda, in consultation with

the CEO and Company Secretary, taking full account of the
need to allow time for robust and constructive discussion
and challenge on all relevant matters. He's responsible for
promoting effective communication between the Board

and its Directors, in and culside of Board meetings, and for
seeking engagement with major shareholders to understand
their views on governance and performance against the
strategy agreed by the Board.

The Chairman has a close working relationship with the CEO
and the Company Secretary, who work together to monitor
the effective implementation of the strategies and actions
agreed by the Board.
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At the last AGM, Andy Green did not seek re-election and
instead stepped down from the Board with effect from

that date {19 September 2019). In the period before

Mike McTighe assumed the role of Chairman, Jonathan
Moulds acted as Interim Chairman (from 19 September 2019
to 2 February 2020).

Chief Executive Officer

The CEO, June Felix, has specific responsibility for developing
and executing the Group's strategy. In undertaking such
responsibilities, the CEG takes advice from, and is provided
with support by, her senior management team and all

Board colleagues.

Additional specific authority includes day-to-day decision-
making relating to the management of the affairs of IG, for
delivering financial performance in line with the agreed
budget, and for organisational design of cur operations.
The CEO is also responsible for recruitment, leadership
and development of aur executive management team and
for proposing to the Board our approach to visicen, values,
culture, diversity and inclusion.

Chief Financial Officer

The Chief Financial Officer {CFQO) is responsible for the
financial management of the Group and its financial
reporting. for monitoring our operating and financial
results and for management of our internal financial control
systems. The CFO also has responsibility for oversight of
capital and liquidity management, and the management
and safeguarding of client money and assets. He supports
the CEQ in implementing our strategy and in relation to the
financial, risk management and ocperational performance of
the Group.

During 2019/20C the CFO was Paul Mainwaring. We
announced on 21 January 2020 Paul Mainwaring's intention
to retire. On 4 May 2020 we further announced that Charlie
Rozes had been appointed to assume the role of CFO with
effect from 1 June 2020.

Cther Executive Directors

The Chief Commercial Officer (CCO), Bridget Messer, nas
delegated authority for global client management, marketing
and giobal sales and conversion. The Chief Operating Officer
{COO), Jon Noble, has delegated authority in respect of
trading and operations and business change.

Senior Independent Director

Malcolm Le May is the Senior Independent Non-Executive
Director (SID) and, in this capacity, acts as a sounding

board for the Chairman. He serves as an intermediary for
the other Directors when necessary. He is also available to
shareholders if they have concerns which communication
via the narmal channels of Chairman, CEQ or other Executive
Directors have failed to resolve, or when shareholders prefer
to speak directly to him. He's responsible for evaluating

the performance of the Chairman on behalf of the

other Directors.

Non-Executive Directors

The Non-Executive Directors are independent of
management and are considered by the Board 1o be

free from any business or other relationships that could
compramise their independence. Their role is to effectively
advise and constructively challenge management, along with

| monitoring management’s success in delivering the agreed

strategy within the risk appetite and Control Framework
agreed by the Board. They are also responsible, throtigh
the Remuneration Committee, for determining appropriate
levels of rermuneration and reward for the Executive
Directors. In addition, the Chairman of the Audit Committee
has responsibility for Internal Audit, including ensuring the
independence of the function.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary, Joanna Nayler, supports and works
closely with the Chairman, the CEO, the CFO and the Board
Committee Chairs in setting agendas for meetings of the
Board and its Commitiees. She supports the accurate,

" timely and clear information flow to and from the Board and

the Board Committees, and between Directors and senior
management. In addition, she supports the Chairman in
designing and delivering Directors” induction programmes,

i and the Board and Committee performance evaluations.

The Company Secletary also advises the Board on
corporate governance matters and Board procedures, and
is respansible for administering 1G's Share Dealing Code of
Conduct and the AGM.

e tbie Doard ot et

The Board meets regularly, at least six times a year, and this

i year held six scheduled meetings. In addition, the Board has

a Standing Committee whose responsibility is to consider
Board-reserved matters al shorl notice, or where there
are administrative matters requiring evidencing that do not
warrant a full Board.



Senior execlutives below Board level are invited to attend
meetings as reqguired to present and discuss matters relating
to their business areas and functions.

The full Board also meets when necessary to discuss
important ad hoc emerging issues that require consideration
between scheduled Board meetings. There were six such
meetings held during the year, convened principally to
consider matters relating to Board appointments and
succession, and our preparedness and responses 1o the
Australian Securities and investments Commission {ASIC)
product intervention measures. The Chairman and the
Executive Directors also met, as the Board, to consider
Non-Executive Directors’ fees.

Each Director commits an appropriate amount of time to
their duties during the financial year. The Non-Executive
Directors met the time commitment reasonably expected
of them pursuant to their letters of appointment.

Where Directors are unable to attend meetings, they are
encouraged to give the Chairman their views in advance on
the matters to be discussed.

The Chairman and Non-Executive Directors meet in the
absence of the Executive Directors at least twice a year.
There were two such meetings during the year that tock
place immediately following Board meetings to discuss
matters relating to Board discussions,

During the vear, Non-Executive Directors, led by the SID, met
without the presence of the Chairman, including to evaluate
the Chairman’s performance.

Lrtendante of Bosrd pace ting:

The number of full scheduled Board meetings attended

by each Director during the year is set out opposite. Where
Board members weren't able to attend unscheduled
meetings, they fed back any comments on the subject
matter at hand to the Chairman.
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SCHEDULED .

MEETINGS  SCHEDULED
BOARD ELIGIBLE TO MEETINGS
MEMBER ATTEND ATTENDED
Chairman
Mike McTighe’ 2 2
Andy Green? 2 2
Independent Non-
Executive Directors
Andrew Didham? 5 5
Sally-Ann Hibberd 6 6
Stephen Hill* 5 5
Malcolm Le May 6 6
Jonathan Moulds 6 &
Jim Newman 6 6
Helen Stevenson® 6 6
Executive Directors
lune Felix 6 6
Paul Mainwaring 6 6
Bridget Messer 6 6
Jon Noble 6 6

Appointed on 3 February 2020

Steppeo down at cenclusien ol AGN on 19 Septembier 2019
Appointed ut conclusion of AGM on 19 Septentker 20189

Relired on 27 Apri| 2020
Anpointed on 18 Mareh 2020,
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Board activities during the year

The Board meeting agendas during the year included
consideration across the key areas of strategy, governance,
risk and financial performance, pursuant to the schedule
of matters reserved to the Board and the agreed annual
forward calendar.

Strsteoy

< The Board held a strategy session focusing on the
strategic development of the business at which the
Board, supported by advisers, analysed the then-current
strategic business initiatives; reviewed the four-year plan;
considered changes in technology infrastructure; and
examined fintech sector themes and trends that could
be used to heip inform strategic development. The Board
also reviewed the competitive environment, identified
and developed strategic options and cpportunities
through internal teams, and agreed strategic
development priorities

Businers opetaiic bl boohliohts ahd curpent tradipe

- Regularly received business performance updates on
business progress and the issues and challenges faced by
management through the CEC Report, Financial Review
and quarterly reports from the CCO and the COO, as well
as from the Chief Risk Officer on Risk and Compliance
matters and from the Chief People Officer

3 Received reports on matters of interest such as ocation
strategy, people management and governance, technology
risk, regulatory change and competitor analysis

-+ Considered our respense to the imposition of ASIC
product intervention measures

- Considered the impact of Covid-19 which resulted in
market volatility and anincrease in clients and trading

o ter ), torec est Lo budined

- Received updates on performance against the prior year,
pudget and market analyst consensus

-+ Discussed the risks and opportunities for the 2020
financial year budget, and approved the 2021 budget
and four-year plan

eture, pecphe (oevtnrs rish end rogelnting

. Evaluated the effectiveness of our risk management
and internal control systems, reviewed and approved
the Group’s Risk Appetite Statement and key regulatory
documents, including the Individual Capital Adequacy
Assessment Process (ICAAP), the Individual Liquidity
Adeguacy Assessment {|LAA) documents and the
Group's Recovery Plan {RP)

-3 Considered and approved proposals on improverments
to workforce representation at the Board, and updates
to the diversity and inclusion strategy
-3 Considered our emerging strategy relating to talent
and successicn
-3 Discussed the results of the employee engagement survey

- - Received the health and safety annual report, and an

annual information security update

-+ Received regular updates on corporate governance
developments, including the 2018 UK Corporate
Governance Code, and the introduction of the Senior
Managers and Certification Regime

> Analysed the impact of emerging political and legal risk,
including that relating to Brexit and Covid-19

. = Considered the impact of Covid-19 on staff and how

best to assist them whilst working remotetly during
the pandemic

- LaunchediG Brighter Future Fund, a £5 million fund to
improve the educational opportunities available to the
least privileged young people

Fimaneiot por it

- - Reviewed the Group's financial performance and approved

all financial results anncuncements and the Annual Report
with the respective Financial Statements

-+ Reviewed and approved a four-year forecast

~ Reviewed IG's capital plan and assessment

i = Received trading updates cutside of the usual cycle due to

market volatility as a result of Covid-19

B EEESTIFE vTes:

. Reviewed the dividend policy

Lribuoer
- Considered feedback following shareholder engagement
-» Received regular reports from Board Committee Chairs
- Agreed the extension of our banking facilities
-i Agreed IG's corporate insurance programme
> Undertook an external evaluation of its effectiveness
and the effectiveness of each Board Committee and
individuat Directors



Board Committees

Certain governance responsibilities have been delegated
by the Board to Board Committees to ensure that there's
independent oversight of internal control and risk
management, and te assist the Board with carrying out

its responsibilities. Other than in respect of the Disclosure
Committee, whose members consist of the Chawrman, CEG,
CFO and Company Secretary, these Board Committees
comprise Independent Non-Executive Directors and, in some
cases, the Chairman. Each Committee has agreed Terms of
Reference, approved by the Board, which are available on
IG's corporate website, iggroup.com.

A brief description of the roles of each Committee is set out
on the following page.

The Chair of each Board Committee reports to the Board
on the matters discussed at Committee meetings. Reports
from the Chair ¢f each of the principal Board Committees,”
including information on the Committee's composition and
activities in the year, can be found in the sections relating to
each Committee within this Annual Report.
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Audlt Committee

-3 Responsible for the integrity of the Group’s Financial

Statements, including its annual and interim reports
- Reviews and recommends to the Board the
effectiveness of our Internat Audit function and risk
management system, annual Internal Audit plan,
appointment, reappointment and removal of the
External Auditors

-3 Responsible for monitoring the effectiveness of the
control envircnment relating to the management and
safeguarding of client money and assets

-» Reviews the management and control framework for
the governance, operation and maintenance of our
legal entities

Board Risk Committee

-3 Responsible for providing oversight and advice
to the Board in relation to current and future risk
exposures, and promoting a risk-awareness culture
within the Group

- Recoemmends to the Board the design and
implementation of risk management policy and
measurement strategies across IG, our risk profile,
risk appetite and Key Risk Indicators for the current
and future strategy

: Reviews and recommends to the Board the

adoption of key risk-related documents, including
the ILAA, ICAAP and RP

- Commissions thematic risk reviews relating to key risks
-3 Receives a twice-annual report on the risks associated
with our corporate culture and periodic reports on risks
relating to product governance

Receives reports from Internal Audit on advisory work
conducted by the function on the state of the Risk
Management Framework, and current and potential
risk exposures of the Group

it

Nommatlon Committee

Responsible for reviewing the composition of the
Board and Board Committees to ensure that they
are appropriately balanced in terms of diversity,
knowledge, skills and experience

- Reviews and recommends appointments to the
Board and to other senior management positions

-> Conducts succession-planning reviews at Board
level for recommendation to the Board

ESG Committee

> Ensures that we have an ESG strategy and that it
remains fit for purpose

- Assists on such other matters related to ESG as may
be referred to it by the Board

Dlsclosure Committee

. Identification of Inside Information

> Decides on how and when we should disclose
Inside Information in accordance with the
Disclosure Policy and having regard, in particular, to
information previcusly disclosed by the Company

Standing Committee

-> Meets as and when there may be a need to consider
Board reserved matters at short notice, where there
are administrative matters requiring evidencing that
do not warrant the need for a full Beard or where full
attendance is hot possible at short notice

Remuneration Committee

> Responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the Group's senior executive
Remuneration Policy

- Oversees the Group’s Remuneration Schemes

- Reviews and recommends to the Board our
Remuneration Policy, which is consistent with
effective risk management, the framework for the
remuneration of the Company's Chairman and
Executive Directors and share-based awards under
our Employee Incentive Scheme

s

-} Monitors developments in remuneration and reward
practice to ensure that our policies take account of
reasonable stakeholder expectation

:g.ﬁ?
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The Board's size ~ and the skills and experience of its
members — have a significant impact on its effectiveness. It
aims to maintain a balance in terms of experience and skills
of individual Board members, These factors are regularly
reviewed to ensure that the Board has the right mix of skills
and experience for constructive discussion and, ultimately,
effective Board decisions.

The breadih of skills and experience currently on the Board
includes experience in key ar¢as such as listed environments,
international financial services, finance and accountancy.
strategy, infformation technology, people, financial services
regulation, marketing, risk management, investor relaticns,
technology and digital, and law. Certain Non-Executive
Directors currently undertake executive roles outside of I1G.

There is an appropriate combination of Executive Directors
and Non-Executive Directors, such that no individual

or small group of individuals can dominate the Board's
decision-making.

CBRireoror inogpe ndene
© The Company is fully compliant with the 2018 UK Corpoerate
- Governance Code, which requires that at least half of the

Board, exciuding the Chairman, should comprise Non-
Executive Directors who are determined by lhe Beard
to be independent.

The independence of the Non-Executive Directors is
considered by the Board, and reviewed on an annual

basis as part of the Board effectiveness review. The Board
considers faclors such as length of tenure and relationships
or circumstances that are likely to atfect or appcar to affect
the Directors’ judgment in determining whether they remain
independent.

Following this year's review, the Board concluded that all the
Non-Executive Directors continue to remain independent in
character and judgment and are free from any business or
other relationships that could materially affect the exercise
of their judgment.

Cordbceir of interect
Directors have a statutory duty to avoid situations in which
they may nave interests that contlict with those of the

¢ Company. unless that conflictis first authorised by the Board.

Directors are required to disclose both the nature and extent
of any potential or actual conflicts with the interests of

i the Company.

In accordance with the Companies Act 2006, the Company’s
Articles of Association allow the Beard to autharise potential
conflicts that may arise, and to impose such conditions or
limitations as it sees fit. During the year, potential conflicts
were considered and assessed by the Board and approved

where appropriate.
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Loccession planning snd appoiniments to the Bored
The Board uses succession planning to ensure that

executives with the necessary skills, knowledge and expertise |

are in place to develop and deliver cur strategy, and that it
has the right balance of individuals to be able to discharge its
responsibilities. The Board reguiarily reviews its composition
to keep it constantly refreshed. Any searches for Board
candidates, and appointments made, are based on merit
against objective criteria, including the use of a Beard skills
matrix which was last updated in March 2020.

The Nomination Committee has specific responsibility for
considering the appointment of Non-Executive and Executive
Directors and recommending new appointments to the
Board. It regularly reviews the structure, size and composition
required of the Board and makes recomimendations to the
Board as appropriate. Mare information on the work of the
Nomination Committee can be found in the Nomination
Committee Report on pages 84 to 98. The Board as a

whole is also involved in overseging the development of
management resources across the Group.

toire tenure {os at the gule of tho reorid
NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE (INCLUDING
TENURE DIRECTORS THE CHAIRMAN}
010 3 years 3 6
3to 6 years 1 1
Over 6 years 0 1

b tinn

Fellowing appeintment, each Director receives a
cemprehensive and formal induction, linked to their individual
experience, to familiarise them with their duties and our
business operations, risk and governance arrangements. The
induction programme, which is coordinated with the help of
the Campany Secretary, may include briefings onindustry
and regulatory matters relating to us, strategy and business
model, our history, risk management and risk appetite, as
well as meetings with senior management in key areas of the
business. These are supplemented by induction materials
such as recent Board papers and minutes, organisation
structure charts, governance matters and relevant IG
policies. Newly appointed Directors may also meet the

!
i

Oraeing professional development
In arder to facilitate greater awareness and understanding
of our business and operating environment, all Directors

‘ are given regular updates on changes and developments in

i

the business.

Training opportunities are provided through internal
meelings, workshops, presentations and briefings by internal
advisers and business heads, as well as external advisers.
The Company Secretary updates the Board on any refevant
tegisiative and regulatory corporate governance-related
changes on a regular basis.

The Directors meet with executives to receive further insights
into the operations of the business in the jurisdictions where
the Group aperates. In addition, we have continued our
series of Breakfast with the Board sessions attended by

- Non-Executive Directors, 1o enable staff across the business

to meet and ask questions on defined topics. However, these
sessions have had to be put on hold over the last few months

' due to the Covid-19 pandemic. We'll resume these as 500t as

it's safe to do so. Non-Executive Directors are also invited to
attend IG People Forum meetings.

. During the year, the Directors attended briefing sessions

on defence and risk strategy, capital and liquidity, Pillar 2,

. conflicts of interest management and new opportunities.

+ The Chairman ensures that the Directors continually update
- and refresh their skills and knowledge, and independent
. professional advice is provided, when reguired, at IG's expense.

Inteninaetion provided e thic boarg

The Chairman, with support from the CEO and Company
Secretary, is responsible for ensuring that the Board receives
accurate, timely and clear information to enable it to make
appropriate challenges, to encourage debate and to ensure
its decisions are fully informed,

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary, who is responsible to the Board for
ensuring that Board procedures are foliowed and compiliance

- with applicable laws and regulations is observed.

© The Company Secretary supports the Chairman in setting

Company's External Auditor, brokers and advisers, and attend
. Directors receive briefings from the CEO and other executive

a presentation led by its external solicitors on the roles and
responsibilities of a UK-listed company Director.

! the Board agenda, and Board papers are distributed to

all Directors in advance of Board meetings via a secure
electronic system. The Company Secretary is also
responsible for advising the Board, through the Chairman,
on corparate governance matters.

officers in the periods between meetings.



Election and re e footior of UDireclor

The UK Corporate Governance Code requires that all
Directors of FTSE 350 companies should be subject to annual
election by shareholders. Each Director and the Board as

a whole underwent a performance evaluation during the
course of the year. Following this, al| Directors will stand

for re-election or election at the AGM.

b edd ey b Lo

Each year, an evaluation of the effectiveness of the Board is
conducted. The evaluation includes an assessment of the
effectiveness of Board Committees. Individual Directors
are also assessed with feedback provided to and from

the Chairman.

Last year the Board agreed areas of development, in respect

of which there has been significant progress.

= Continuing 1o focus on Board dynamics following Board
changes during the year, evaluating and responding to
the need to ensure the right balance of skills needed on
the Board

-* Focusing on the needs of, and interaction with, key
stakeholders including shareholders, regulators, clients
and employees

-+ Maonitoring the performance of management in the
stewardship of IG's assets in suppert of the delivery of the
new strategy

- Continuing to develop the senior management pipcline
and capabilities whilst retaining key talent

2 Increased focus at Board on culture and conduct-related
themes

In 2020 an external evaluation was carried cut by Boairdroom
Review Limited.

The review involved the Chatrman and the Company
Secretary setting the context for the evaluation, one-to-cne
confidential interviews with alt Board members and the
Company Secretary, and observation at the May Board and
Committee meetings. The initial output of the 2020 external
evaluation was considered at the July Board meeting and next
steps agreed.

We will report on the action plan, actions taken and progress
made in next year's Annual Report.

Tinee ¢ Craemedttinend

Following the Board evaluation process detailed above, the
Board is satisfied that each of the Directors continues to be
able to allocate sufficient time to the Company to discharge
their responsibilities effectively, notwithstanding changes to
the external commitments of certain Directors.
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The Strategic Report on pages 18 to 73 describes the vision,
strategy and the business model, whereby we generate and
preserve value over the long term and deliver the objectives
of 1G.

A Statement of the Directors’ Responsibilities in respect

of the Financial Statements is sel out on page 143, and a
statement regarding the use of the geing concern basis in
preparing these Financial Statements is provided in the
Going Concern and Viability Statement on pages 72and 7 3.

st nonvens 4 ant invernal oot

We are exposed to a number of business risks in providing
products and services to our clients. The Board is responsible
for establishing the overall appetite for these risks, whichiis
detailed and approved in the Risk Appetite Statement. The
Board has responsibility for ensuring the maintenance of

our risk management and internal control systems, and for
annually reviewing them.

' The framework under which risk is managed in the business
. is supported by a systemn of internal controls, designed to

embed within the business the effective management of our

- key business risks. The risk management and internal control
" systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the

risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reascnable and not absolute assurance against

- material misstatement or loss.

Through reports from the Board Risk Committee and the Audit
Committee, and consideration of the ICAAP, ILAA and RP. the

| Board regularly reviews and monitors our risk management

and internal control systems and the effectiveness with which
we manage the principal risks we face.

The Directors confirm that the Board has carried out a robust

. assessment of the principal risks facing the Group, including

L

those that would threaten our business model, future
performance, solvency and liquidity. We outline the risks to
which we're exposed and the framework under which risk is

- managed, including a description of the system of internal
" contrels, in the Business Model and Risk Profile section on
i pages 30 to 35, in the Risk Management section on pages 50

to 59, and in the Going Concern and Viability Statement on
pages 72 and 73.

An annual formal review of the effectiveness of our system
of risk management and internal controls has been carried
out for the Board, to support the statements includedin the
Annual Report and Financial Statements. The review focused
on the overall Risk Governance Framework and the setting
of our risk appetite. It considered the key risk assessment
and monitoring activities across the Group, as well as the

© processes and controls in place to manage our principal
" risks and for escalating exceptions highlighted by the risk
! management processes.
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There are risk management and internal control systemns
in place for identifying, evaluating and managing the
principal risks facing us in accordance with the Guidance
on Risk Management, Internal Control and Related
Financial and Business Reporting published by the
Financial Repeorting Council.

Throughout the year and up to the date of this report,
the Group has operated a system of internal controls that
provides reasonabile assurance of effective operations
covering all controls, including financial and operational
controls and compliance with laws and regulations.

Imternal controls over finenclelreporting

Our financial reporting process has been designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of the
financial reporting and preparation of financial staterments,
including consolidated financial statements, for external
purposes in accordance with IFRS. The assessment of the
overall effectiveness of the governance, and risk and control
framewaork included reviews of systems and controls relating
to the financial reporting process.

Internal controls over financial reporting include procedures
and policies that:

-+ Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
disposals of our assets and liabilities

. Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of
financial statements, and that receipts and expenditures
are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and respective Directors

. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unautherised acquisition, use or
disposal of Group assets that could have a material effect
on our financial statements

Remuneration
. The responsibility for determining remuneration
| arrangements for the Chairman and Executive Directors has
 been delegated to the Remuneration Committee, Information
on the Remuneration Committee and the Directors’
Remuneration Report and Policy can be found on pages
99 to 128,

- Engagement with shareholders and

other stakeholders

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining good
and constructive communication with our stakeholders

© including shareholders, and has in place a comprehensive
" programme to facilitate this each year.

Qur Annual Report is an impartant medium for
communicating with shareholders, setting out detailed

© reviews of the business and its future developments in the
* Chairman’s Statement, the CEOQ's Statement and Q&A. and
the Strategic Report.

To ensure that members of the Board develop an
© understanding of the views of major shareholders, there's
" regular dialogue with institutional investors and shareholders,
presentaticns by management and Investor Roadshows
around the time of our year-end and hall-year resulls
anncuncements. OQur Investor Relations team coocrdinates
these. These presentations are available on our website,
iggroup.com, which alsc provides a wide range of othet
information to shareholders and prospeciive shareholders.
We also respond to ad hoc requests from shareholders on
aregular basis.

The Chairman, the SID {including in his capacity as Chairman

of the Remuneration Committee) and the Executive Directors

hold meetings with the Company’s largest institutional

shareholders and market anzalysts to discuss governance

" developments (including in respect of external and internal

. Remuneration Policy), business strategy. Board succession
and financial performance.

| Following all investor presentations and meetings, feedback
is passed to the Board on any opinions or concerns

i expressed by shareholders. The Directors receive regular

; updates on shareholder views and roadshow feedback,

. as well as analysts’ reports on market perception ot our

1' performance and strategy, and are made aware of the

financial expectations of the Group from the cutside market.

This year, we conducied a Strategy and Business Update

attended by shareholders and analysts setting out the key

strategic choices we made in pursuit of our vision, the four

i growth levers that are being deployed to drive growth, and

' the market-specific action we're now taking to impiement

‘ those levers to deliver sustainable growth.



The Chairman and the SID are available to meet
shareholders on request, and ensure that the Board is
aware of shareholder concerns not resolved through other
communication mechanisms. The Chairman and the SID
provide feedback to the Board on any views or concerns
expressed to them by shareholders.

In additicn to its shareholders, the Board recognises that

the success of the business depends on its abllity to engage
effectively and work constructively with a variety of other key
stakeholder groups, in order that their views may be taken
into consideration in Board discussions and decisions.

The Board has identified a number of stakeholder groups
other than shareholders. Details of the approach of the
business to dealing with the various groups are set out
through the reports and accounts below:

Principai stakeholders Where principally reported Pages
Clients Strategic Report, 18to 73
Stakeholder Engagement,
Business Model
Regulators Strategic Report, Key trends 18 to 37
and factors likely to affect
our business
Workforce ESG Report 60 to 71
Community ESG Report 60 to 71
Environment ESG Report 60 to 71
Auditors Audit Committee Report 729 to 136
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AGM

The AGM provides the Board with the cpportunity to
communicate with private and institutional investors, and we
welcome and encourage their participation at the meeting.
The Chairman aims to ensure that all the Directors, inctuding
the Chairs of the Board Committees, are avallable at the AGM
to answer questions.! The 2019 AGM was a successful event
attended by all the Directors. All the proposed resolutions
were passed on a poll, wilh the percentage of votes in favour

- of each resolution ranging from 84.14% to 100%, and the

percentage of votes cast was always above 79%.

i The 2020 AGM will be held on 17 September 2020. The

| Notice of the AGM sets out the resolutions to be proposed

at the meeting. A copy of the Notice is available on the
iggroup.com website. We send our Annual Report and Notice
to shareholders, or make them available on our website, at
least 20 working days before the date of the meeting. The
Notice sets out a clear explanation of each resolution to be
proposed at the meeting. Shareholders have the opportunity
to ask questions and, if they are unable to attend, can submit
written queries in advance of the meeting. After the meeting,
we will make available to shareholders full details of the votes,

. including proxy votes, received on each resolution, and will
. publish these on our website on the same day.

1 Durtoths ongoma Covd 19 pandenng, we anbicipnte that tne 2020 AGM may reed 1o

b held as @ closed mecting Further irformation sboot our A arrarcements will be
et outinthe Notwee of AGN




IG GROUP HOLDINGS PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Nomination Committee Report

Mike
McTighe

Mike McTighe, Chairman of the Nomination
Committee, gives his review of the
Committee’s activities during the

financial year.

66

The Board believes that diversity is a wider
issue than gender and includes variations
in experience, skills, personal attributes,
culture, ethnicity and background.

MIKE McTIGHE
CHAIRMAN OF THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee has an impoertant role in leading
the process for appointments, ensuring plans are in place
for orderly succession te the Board and senior management
positions, and overseeing the development of a diverse
pipeline for succession.

The Committee is responsible for ensuring the Board has the
combination of skills, experience and knowledge needed to
lead the Group at, and immediately below, Board level, and in
supporting the development and delivery of our strategy.

It is responsible for identifying, and recommending, to the
Board suitable candidates for appointment to the Board,
and ensures the Board's compasition meets the Campany’s
needs, using external search consultancies to help source
suitable candidates based on objective criteria.

On 15 April 2019, Andy Green announced his intention to
step down from the role of Chairman of the Board at the
conclusion of the AGM on 19 September 20179, At its meeting
on 14 May 2019, the Committee agreed that Malcolm La May

. should lead the search for the new Chairman of the Board in

" his capacity as Senior Independent Director (SID), and that

. Russell Reynolds be appointed 1o assist the Cammitiee in the
. search process.

C Atits meeting on 11 September 2019, the Committee agreed
- torecommend the appointment of Malcolm Le May as

. Interim Chairman of the Commitiee following the conclusion
- of the AGM on 19 September 2019. At that meeting, the

. Committee also agreed to recommend the appointment of

" Jonathan Moulds as Interim Chairman of the Board, also with

effect from the conclusion of the AGM on 19 September
2019. These recommendations were agreed by the Board,

i and Malcolm Le May was appointed as Interim Chairman of
 the Committee on 19 September 2018, Jonathan Moulids
i was appointed as Interim Chairman of the Board that

same day. Initially in his capacity as SID, and then as Interim
Chairman of the Committee, Malcolm Le May ied the search

| to select the new Chairman of the Board, and uitimately

the Nomination Committee’s recommendation to make an
appointment. After completion of a comprehensive search
and selection process, supported by Russell Reynolds, [ was
appointed as Chairman of the Board and also as Chairman
of the Committee on 3 February 2020. Russell Reynolds is
independent of, and has no connection with, the Company
or its individual Directors, excepl inits role as a prefessional
recruitment consultant for the Company.

During the year, as well as succession planning for the role
of Chairman, the Committee concluded the independent
searches for and recommended the appointment of two

- Non-Executive Directors (NEDs): Andrew Didham and Helen

Stevenson. These searches were facilitated by Heidrick &
Struggles. Heidrick & Struggles is independent of, and has
no cther connection with, the Company or its individual
Directors, other than in its role as a professional recruitment
consultant for the Company. Following the relevant selection



processes, Andrew Didham was appointed to the Board

on 12 September 2019, and Helen Stevenson on 18 March
2020. Stephen Hill stepped down from the Committee on
18 March and retired from the Board on 27 April 2020, after
completing a nine-year tenure.

On 21 January 2020, Paul Mainwaring, the Company’s Chief
Financial Officer (CFQ), indicated his intention to retire
from the Company. He had completed 20 years as a UK plc
Finance Director, and informed the Board that he felt it was
appropriate to announce his intenticn to step down frem
executive roles as he approached this milestone,

The Committee cversaw an extensive independent search
for his successor, with the selection process facilitated

by Russell Reynolds. This resulted in the subsequently
approved recommendation to the Board that Charlie Rozes
be appointed as CFO with effect from 1 June 2020. Paul
Mainwaring stepped down from the Board and his role

as CFO on 1 June 2020, but stayed on for a cne-month
handover pericd. He retired on 26 June 2020 - finishing
along and distinguished service with the Company.

In January 2020, the Committee appeinted external search
and selection firm Audeliss to support itin expanding
diversily succession-planning at Board and senior
management level beyond the male/female agenda.

This culminated in the appointment of Rakesh Bhasin on

6 July 2020 as a Non-Executive Director of the Board and
member of the Environmental, Social and Governance
(ESG) Committee.

Audeliss is currently assisting the Committee in the
recruitment of an additional NED to bring fresh perspective
to Board discussions and to further enhance the diversity
and skill set of the current Board. Further information on the
Committee's key activities during the year is set out below.

Committee membership and attendance

The Committee consists of Independent NEDs, and meets
as necessary to discuss appointments to the Board.

The Chairman of the Board is also the Chairman of Lthe
Committee, and the Company Secretary acts as the
Secretary of the Committee. On invitation, the CEO also
attends, but is not involved in decisions relating to her
own succession, The Chief People Officer also attends

on invitation.

During the year, the Committee met eight times, sometimes
at short notice, principally to consider: the recruitment of

a new Group Chairman; CFO succession-planning; Board
composition and the refreshing of the Board; diversity;
succession planning at Board and senior management level;
Executive Director development and the composition of the
Committee and other Board Committees.
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COMMITTEE ELIGIBLE
MEMBER TO ATTEND ATTENDED
Andy Green’ 2 2
Mike McTighe? 3 3
Sally-Ann Hibberd 8 8
Malcolm Le May? 6 6
Jonathan Moulds 8 8
Jim Newman? 6 5
Stephen Hill® 6 6

Andy Grosh stepped down as a member of the Conanittee 01 19 Septernuer 2009
Mike McTighe apgpointed as a memper of the Committee on 3 February 2020

Maleo ir Le May stepped down as a member of the Committes on 18 Marcrn 2020,
Jim Newmar stepped down as a membot of the Commitiec or 18 Mareh 2020
Stephen Hill stepped down as & member of the Committes on 18 March 2020 shead
of tus retirement fromthe Board on 27 April 20270,

Do R —

wm

Loode oF Lthe Neridne Hon Commiites
The principal roles and responsibilities of the Commitiee
include:

= Reviewing the structure, size and cemposition of the
Board and Board Committees to ensure that they are
appropriately balanced in terms of skills, knowledge,
diversity and experience, and making appropriate
recommendations to the Board relating to succession
planning at Board level

"> Ensur ing that there is a formal, rigorous and transparent

procedure for the appeintment of new Directors to
the Board

Identifying and nominating. for approval by the Board,
suitable candidates to fill Board vacancies as and when
they arise

. = Keeping under review the leadership needs of the Group,

with a view to ensuring the continued ability of the Group
to compete effectively inits marketplace

-; Keeping up to date about strategic issues and commercial
changes affecting the Group and the market in which
it operates

. -» Performance evaluation of the Board and its Comrnittees

The Terms of Reference of the Committee, which were
last reviewed in January 2020, are available on the Group’s
website, iggroup.com.
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Main activitie s doring the financlal veor

The Committee follows an annual rolling forward calendar
which reflects the duties and responsibilities set out in its
Terms of Reference.

During the year, the Committee undertook a number of
significant activities. These included the recruitment of

the new Chairman of the Board, CFO succession-planning,
additional NED recruitment to bring fresh perspective to
Board discussions and complement the skill set of the current
Board, and a number of other activities.

Chairman succession

Following the May 2019 meeting, the outgoing Chairman,
Andy Green, who was also Chairman of the Committee,
remained a member and Chairman of the Committee until
he stepped down at the AGM in September 2019, However,
he did not take part in any of the Committee’s discussions
concerning the appointment of his successor, and did not
attend any Committee meetings after July 2019,

The Coemmittee, led by Malcolm Le May as SID and then

as Interim Chairman of the Committeg, assisted by

Russell Reynolds, conducted an extensive process for

the recruitment of a new Chairman of the Board. The key
elements of the process followed in the search for the new
Chairman were as follows:

:

< In April 2019, a reguirements matrix was developed

internally and completed by Board members

After a competitive pitch process, Russell Reynolds

was appointed to lead the search for the next Chair

in May 2019

-3 Briefing calls were held with all Becard members to gain

their input into the candidate specification, which was

then formally agreed

Russell Reynolds’ research identified 42 potential

candidates who met the requirements of the candidate

specification, and who were then formally approached

- The longlist of candidates consisted of 17 individuals
12 men and five women

-5 The shortlist of candidates consisted of five individuals.
There was also a sixth candidate who was from an
internal source

» Shortlist candidates were interviewed first by the SID,
Malcolm Le May

-+ Following these interviews, two candidates were remaoved

frem the list, and the remaining three external candidates

were interviewed by members of the Committee and

the CEQ

B

.

. !f'

.

At the time of putting forward his name for consideration, the
internal candidate recused himself from having any further
involvement in the selection precess run by the Commitiee.
-The internal candidate withdrew from the process in August
2019. In September 2019, the Commitiee identified a
preferred candidate. References and final due diligence
meetings were then held with other executives before the

&

submission for regulatory approval was made. The selection
process culminated in my appointment as both Chairman of

¢ the Board and of the Committee on 3 February 2020,

Early in the search process, the Committee agreed that

©in light of the timetable for the appointment of the new
© Chairman and the fact that Andy Green was stepping down

at the AGM in September, there was a need to appoint an
Interim Chairman of the Board. The Committee reviewed the
candidates for the role of Interim Chairman of the Board, and
it was determined that Jonathan Moulds should be appointed.
Jonathan Moulds had previously recused himself from all
Committee deliberations about the role of Interim Chairman.
Jonathan Moulds was appointed as Interim Chairman of the
Board on 19 September 2019 foltowing the conclusion of the

. Company’'s AGM.

CFO succession
On 21 January 2020, Paul Mainwaring indicated his intention
to retire from the Board and, following his decision,

* the Committee undertook an extensive search for his
" replacement. The process was facilitated by Russell Reynolds.

A role profile was agreed by the Committee, and Russelt
Reynolds carried out 2 market-mapping exercise. A longlist
of candidates was identified and subsequently reduced to a
shortlist of two candidates. In February 2020, the Committee
identified a preferred candidate for the role of CFO. The
recruitment process culminated in Lhe announcermenl

in May of the appointment of Charlie Rozes as CFO and

as an Executive Director of the Company with effect from

; 1lJune 2020,

Non-Executive Director recruitment

During the first part of the year, the Committee worked
with Heidrick & Struggles to complete the process, which
had started the previous year, for the recruitment of two
new NEDs.

An updated Board skills matrix and role profile had previously
been agreed by the Committee, with input from Heidrick &
Struggles. A longlist of potentiat candidates with the skills and
experience detailed in the role specification was praduced
by Heidrick & Struggles. The lenglisted candidates were

 reviewed by Heidrick & Struggles and a shortlist of candidates
. was then agreed by the Commitiee. The shortlisted
" candidates were interviewed on a one-to-one basis by the

Chairman of the Committee and the Interim Chairman of the

. Committee, as appropriate, and by the Committee members

and then by other members of the Board including the
Executive Directors. The selection process culminated with
Andrew Didham being appointed to the Board in September
2019, and Helen Stevenson in March 2020.

. In line with the Group's strategy of expanding into new
 geographical territories, and the increasingly international

nature of its business operations, the Committee retained
Audeliss to assist. In Janhuary 2020 we asked them to help us
select two new NEDs with international and territory-specific



expertise, and at the same time to enhance our cultural

and ethnic diversity. The selection process has proceeded
well, and we welcomed Rakesh Bhasin as an additional NED
on 6 July. We anticipate that a further new NED will join the
Board in the next financial year. With these appointments, the
focus of the Committee will switch from Board recruitment
to Board team building. Thisis appropriate given the number
of changes to the composition of the Board which have taken
place over the Jast 18 months.

Other activities

A further focus of the Committee during the year has been
on putting in place structured development plans for the
Executive Directors. In this regard, the Committee is keen to
ensure that the Executive Directors on the Board have a good
understanding of the perspectives and pressures faced by
the NEDs. Accordingly, at its May meeting, the Committee
agreed that a policy should be developed on the holding of
cutside directorships by the Executive Directors. The policy
was approved by the Board at its July meeting. This policy

will encourage the Executive Directors to hold one external
non-executive directorship to enable the Executive Directors
1o broaden their perspective and understanding of the role
of NEDs.

A further activity undertaken during the year has been
consideration of the restructuring of the Boards of the
Group's UK-regulated companies. Qur intention is that our
UK-regulated subsidiaries will be restructured to include

NED membership. The restructuring of the Boards of the
UK-regulated companies was discussed in detail at the
Committee’s meeting in May 2020, and we anticipate that the
new Board structures will be implemented during the next
financial year.

During the year, the Committee aiso conducted a review of
its membership and that of the other Board Committees.
The Committee decided to streamline the compositicn

of the Committee and the other Board Committees, after
being satisfied in each case that the relevant Committee
would have the requisite skills, experience and knowledge,
and diversity of gender, social and ethnic backgrounds,
cognitive and personal strengths. As at 31 May 2020, the
members of the Committee are Mike McTighe (Chairman of
the Committee), Jonathan Moulds and Saily-Ann Hibberd. The
membership of the other Board Committees at the year-end
is detailed in the relevant Committee sections.

Lomrd ent Committos evahs Hien

During the year, an evaluation of the performance of the
Commitiee and its members was undertaken in line with the
Committee’s Terms of Reference. The evaluation process
was externally facilitated by independent consultancy firm
Boardroom Review Limited, as part of the overall annua!
Board and Committee effectiveness review.,
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 Boardroom Review Limited is independent of the Company
. and has no connection with it or with any of the individual
. Ditectors.

The Board and Committee review process consisted of the
following key efements:

~> February/March — briefing meetings with the Board and
review of 1G's Board and Committee information

- April/May - one-tc-one confidential interviews were
undertaken with all Board members and chosen
participants

- May - Board and Committee observalion exercise
{included private sessions and strategy discussions)

- July = discussion document, including strengths,
challenges, areas of focus and recommendations,
distributed for review. This set out an independent view of
the current effectiveness of the Board and its Committees,
and preparation for the future, highlighting the strengths
and challenges over three years and providing specific
practical recommendations and opportunities for
improvement

> July - individual feedback to all Board members and
discussion of themes, priorities, recommendations and
personal development

-> July — collective Board discussion at the July Board and
Committee meetings and agreement of next steps

-, Next stage - agreement of the long-term development
roadmap

© Further information on the ocutcome of the evaluation of
" the Board and its Committees and of individual Directors is

giver on page 91, together with a review of the progress on
actions arising from the internally run performance review
undertaken during 2012.

Ladversrty sicicinetd
As a business, we're committed to maintaining a diverse
workforce at all levels across the Company, and more

j information on how we do this, including a description of
' the policies relating to diversity and how they have been
{ implemented, can be found in the ESG Report on pages

66 and 67,

At the year-end, and following the appointment of

Helen Stevenson in March 2020, the Board had a 36%
female representation. IG has therefore met its target of
increasing female representation to one-third by 2620, as

~ recommended by the Hampton-Alexander Review: FTSE

Women Leaders.

- The Directors recognise the importance of diversity, in all

¢ of its forms, for the Board, and understand the significant
" benefits that come with having a truly diverse Beard. The
. Board believes that diversity is a wider issue than gender, and

includes variations in experience, skills, personal attributes,
culture, ethnicity, and background.
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The Beard will continue to appoint on merit, based on the skills and experience required for membership of the Beard, while
giving consideration to all forms of diversity when the Committee reviews the Board's composition. For appointments to the
Board, IG uses executive search firms who have sighed up to the voluntary code of conduct setting cut the key principles

of best practice in the recruitment process. These principles include a recommendation that search firms should consider
gender diversity, and 1G insists on having both male and female candidates when drawing up longlists and shortlists of
candidates.

Senitr iirnsue mrent ue ndes belanoe
The table below analyses the gender balance of the Executive Directors and their direct reports as of 31 May 2020,

31 May 2020 31 May 2019

Numbers % Numbers A ¢ Change

Board Female ' 4 36% 3 30% 6%
Male 7 64% 7 70%

Senior Management Team Female 4 40% 3 38% 3%
Male 6 60% 5 63%

Senicr Leadership Team Female 1 42% 8 33% 2%
Male 15 58% 16 67%

Total Female 595 31% 541 31% 1%
Male 1,305 69% 1,221 69%

MIKE McTIGHE
CHAIRMAN OF THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE
23 July 2020
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Directors’ Remuneration Report and Policy

[N)

o

Malcolm
Le May

606

During the year the Committee has
undertaken a comprehensive review of our
Directors’ Remuneration Policy as a result of
which it has modified the operation of the
sustained performance plan (SPP) and made
other changes to the Policy to better reflect
shareholder expectations and to comply
with the UK Corporate Governance Code.

MALCOLM LE MAY :
CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Helen Steversonjoined the Board on 18 March 2070 and became amember of the
Comrrittee fram that date,

Sally-dnn ribbord and Janathan Moulds stepped down fron tne Conun tie e on

18 March 2020,

Mike Mclighe joined the Boare on 3 Februgry 2020 and became a monibor

of the Commutter from that date He stepped down from the Comnmutlec

on 18 March 2020 following reorgarisation of oll Boatd committees, but continues to
gttend Comnutice meetings by mvitatiun

Andy Green stepped down from the Boaro and the Commiites on

19 September 2019

Stephen Hilkstepped down from the Comnittec on “& March and retire d frone the
Boarc on 27 Alr 1 2020

: Chairman'’s overview

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the

© Directors’ Remuneration Report for the year to 31 May

2020. This report includes our Directors’ Remuneration

~ Policy which we will be submitting to shareholders for
. approval at the 2020 AGM, details of remuneration

arrangements in respect of the year to 37 May 2020 and

. a summary of how we intend to apply the Policy during

the year to 31 May 2021,

CONTENTS PAGE
Chairman’s overview 99
2020 Directors’ Remuneration Policy 104
2019/20 Annual Report on
Remuneration 114

: Membership and attendance of the Remuneration

Committee

© The Remuneration Committee is composed of

. Independent Non-Executive Directors. Following a review
of the structure of the Board, the number of members

" of the Remuneration Committee has been reduced to

+ ensure that Board time is used effectively. The current

" members of the Remuneration Committee are Malcolm

. Le May {Chairman), Jim Newman and Helen Stevenson.

© Sally-Ann Hibberd and Jonathan Moulds stepped down

from the Committee on 18 March 2020. The members of
the Committee during the year are set out below, together
with their attendance at meetings.

COMMITTEE ELIGIBLE
MEMBER TO ATTEND ATTENDED
Malcelm Le May - 8 8
Chairman
Jim Newman 8 8
Helen Stevenson’ 1 1
Fermer members
Sally-Ann Hibberd? 7 7
Mike McTighe? 2 2
Jonathan Moulds? 7 7
Andy Green* 2 2
Stephen Hill® 7 7
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The Chief Executive Officer {CEQ), Chief Financial Officer
{CFO) and the Company Chairman attend the Committee
meetings by invitation. The Company Chairman and Executive
Directors do not attend or take part when mattersrelating

to their own remuneration are discussed. The Chief People
Officer and representatives from other areas of the business
attend the Committee meetings by invitation as appropriate
to the matter under consideration. The Company Secretary

is secretary to the Committee.

Following each Committee meeting, a formal report is made
to the Board in which the Chair of the Committee describes
the proceedings of the Committee meeting and makes
recommendations to the Board as appropriate.

Performance in 2019/20

The Group has achieved exceptional performance in
exceptional circurmstances this year, delivering record
financiat performance for the financial year to 31 May 2020.
Since the last week of February 2020, following the Covid-19
outbreak, financial market volatility increased significantly
and has remained elevated. During this period the Group saw
high levels of client trading activity from both our existing
clients and an expanded client base. We have converted

this heightened activity into a significant increase in revenue
and profit for the year as a result of our efficient operations
as well as our effective management of market and credit
risk. During such a prelenged period of volatility, the high
volumes of clients choosing to trade markets with IG reflect
our business resilience, the strength of our systems and

our commitment to delivering the best possible trading
experience.

During the year the Company has also made strong progress
inimplementing our strategy set out in May 2019, Further
details are provided in the Strategic Update on page 20.

Directors’ Remuneration Policy review

At1G Group, Executive Directors participate in one incentive
plan only - the SPP. Under the current approach, SPP
participanis may receive pian contributions’ in the form of
share options to their ‘plan account” each year depending
on petformance. These contributions are based on earnings
per share (EPS) performance and the delivery against
non-financial strategic and operationat objectives for the
preceding financial year, and Total Shareholder Return (TSR)
performance over the preceding three financial years. One-
third of the shares in the plan account are released each
year, with the balance being deferred and released in future
years. The design of the SPP reflects its operation as a single
combined annual and leng-term incentive scheme.

Qver the last 18 months, the Commitiee has undertaken

a thorough review of our Palicy Lo ensure that the
remuneration structure, including relevant performance
measures, continues to be consistent with and encourages
the delivery of the strategy we announced in May 2019.

This strategy focuses on four growth levers - expanded
distribution channels, geographic expansion, segmented
target markets and a multi-product offering, that is being

. deployed to deliver sustainable growth and attractive

shareholder returns. As part of this review the Committee
carefully considered whether the SPP continued to be
appropriate to support the execution of our strategy as

it evolves or whether an alternative structure such as

a traditional bonus plus LTIP structure would be more
appropriate.

. The review also considered our approach to remuneration in
" light of the changes contained within the 2018 UK Corporate

Governance Code and emerging corporate governance

best practice. The Committee consulted extensively with
sharehaclders and proxy advisers in the development of this
Policy and their views helped us to shape our final proposals.
The shareholder s that we consuited with were supportive of -

" the proposed approach goeing forward.

The Commitiee believes that the SPP has supported

. the business well over the past seven years since its

implermentation and that the average payout delivered cver
this period of 58% of maximum (including the payout due
inrespect of 2019/20} is a fair reflection of cur long-term
performance and the value delivered for shareholders. The
Committee continues to believe that the SPP is a suitable
framework tor the Group. The SPPis a simple, dynamic
structure which creates alignment with shareholders,
incentivises executives to deliver progress against strategic
milestones, sustainable profit, as well as long-term market
outperformance.

The Committee has however proposed some changes to the
operation of the SPP to extend the vesting timeframe and

. to make the performance measures more relevant for the

Group to support our strategy and to improve alignment

~ with shareholders over a longer period.

Crsorges to il 86T
The following outlines the changes that the Committee plans

. to make to the SPP:

-1 Payout profile - From the 2021 financial year onwards,
plan contributions will be delivered on fixed dates over a
period of up to five years frorm the start of the relevant
plan year. Awards will normally be delivered as follows:

- 30% of the amount earned will be delivered in cash
shortly following the end of the plan year. For example,
for the 2021 financial year this amount would be paid in
July 2021

—- 20% of the amount earned will be awarded in share
options which will be released to participants following
the end of the fourth financial year following the start of
the plan year. For exampie, for the 2021 financial year
these share options would vest in July 2024

- BO% of the amount earned will be awarded in share
options which will be released to participants following



the end of the fifth financial year following the start of
the plan year. For example, for the 2021 financial year
these share options would vest in July 2025

Currently the full SPP award is delivered in share
options. However, the Committee considered that it was
appropriate to deliver the initial portion of the award

in cash to reflect market practice and to provide some
medium-term cash flow for the executives.

= Underpin ~ The Remuneration Committee retains
discretion to scale back the vesting of share options at the
end of years four and five if the underlying performance of
the participant or the Group does not justify the payout of
the award

-+ Performance measures - SPP awards will continue to

be based on EPS performance and the delivery against
non-financial strategic and operational objectives for

one financial year, and relative TSR performance over the
three prior financial years. The performance measures will.
however, be reweighted slightly by reducing the weighting
on TSR and increasing EPS. The Committee considers it

is important that TSR is still included as a performance
measure within the SPP to ensure alignment of outcomes
with shareholders and as a measure of our multi-year
performance and value creation. However, the Group
does not have many listed competitors, which makes
defining a peer group challenging. In order to improve
line-of-sight for executives the Committee is proposing

to reduce the weighting on relative TSR from 35% to 25%
with the weighting on EPS increascd from 45% to 55%.
The TSR peer group will also be changed from the FTSE
350 excluding investment trusts to the FTSE 250 excluding
investment trusts, so that Group perfoermance is being
compared to ather similar-sized businesses to make the
performance comparison more relevant

N

- Award opportunities - There will be no changes to
SPP cpportunities. The CECQ’s maximum opportunity
will continue to be 500% of salary with other Executive
Directors having a maximum SPP opportunity of 400%
of salary

The unvested share optians in the Executive Directors’
current SPP accounts, including share options due to be
awarded in respect of the 2020 financial year, will continue
to pay out in accordance with the SPP’s current operation
outlined in the 2017 Policy until the plan terminates following
the 2023 financial year,

The Committee considers that the changes outlined

further simplify the SPP, more closely align it to the strategy,
extend its timeframe and create longer-term alignment

with shareholders. The Committee also considers that the
proposed operation of the SPP complies with the spirit of the
UK Corporate Governance Code. The following illustrates the
operation of the current SPP and the modified SPP:
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In addition to the changes outlined above, the Committee
is also planning the following changes to the Dircctors’
Remuneration Policy to align with the UK Corporate

. Governance Code provisions:

- Pension and benefits allowance - The pension and
benefits allowance rate for Directors” appointed to
the Board during 2018 was reduced to 12% of base
salary, which is in line with the rate available to the wider
workforce in the UK. Any future new hires to the Board,
including the new CFO who joined us on 1 June 2020, are
appointed on this rate

- Shareholding guideline - The shareholding guideline for
the CFO, COO and CCO will be increased from 150% of
hase salary to 200% of base salary 1o reflect best practice
and evolving market practice in this area. The CEO’s
shareholding guideline will continue to be 200% of base
salary. Shares owned by the Executive Directors, as well as
unvested SPP share options (on a net of tax basis), count
towards this guideline

. < Post-employment shareholding guidetines - In light of

evolving market practice, the Committee has introduced
a post-employment shareholding guideline. Executive
Directors will be expected to maintain a minimum
shareholding of 200% of salary (or actual shareholding

if lower) for two years fellowing stepping down as an
Executive Director. This guideline applies to shares that
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are released from the SPP on or after the adoption of the
new Policy at the 2020 AGM. Any shares purchased by the
Executive Directors will not be subject to the guideline.
The Committee believes that this approach encourages
Executive Directors to continue to retain an appropriate
level of shareholding in the Company following their
departure from the business to ensure that their interests
remain aligned with shareholders

-* Malus and clawback - The circumstances in which

malus and clawback may apply under the SPP have

been extended to include serious reputational damage,
corporate failure and/or where the individual is not
considered to be fit and proper to align with evelving best
practice

Incentive outcomes for 2019/20

The SPP for 2019/20 operated in line with the 2017 Pgalicy.
The SPP award for the 2020 financial year is based on three
metrics: diluted earnings per share (DEPS) {(45%), relative TSR
(35%) and non-financial measures (20%). DEPS performance
for the 2020 financial year was 64.9 pence, which exceeded
the maximum target set, and our TSR over the pericd 1 June
2017 to 31 May 2020 was in the upper guartiie compared to
the FTSE 350 (excluding investment trusts). As a result, these
elements paid out in full,

During the year non-financial performance was very strong,
reflected in an improved client experience and client attrition
profile (with high client satisfaction scores and platform
ratings). strong progress made across our significant
opportunities portfolio as well as good progress on
operational effectiveness. Some aspects of our operational
performance, including cur systems uptime, were impacted
in the iatter part of the year by the significant increase in
trading velumes. Overall, after careful consideration the
Committee judged that 86% of the totai portion of the award
based on non-financial strategic operational objectives
should payout to refiect this strong overall performance,

Cverall, the Committee determined that 97.2% of the SPP
award for FY19/20 should be awarded. This award will be
granted following the annocuncement of results for the year
and will vest in accordance with the 2017 Policy.

In determining the level of payout, the Committee carefully
considered whether pay cutcomes were appropriate, a fair
reflection of the underlying performance of the business and
aligned with the experience of shareholders, employees and
other stakeholders, particularly in light of the current climate
and given that a significant contributor to our performance
has been increased transaction fees resulting from the
efevated ievels of market volatility foliowing the Covid-12
outbreak.

As part of this determination of the performance outcome
the Committee look into account the following:

~; TSR performance over the past three years is +62% which
is in the upper decile compared to comparators. While
our TSR has been positively impacted by performance in
the last part of the year, when measured to the start of
March 2020 (prior to the significant increase in trading
volumes), TSR was also positioned in the upper quartile.
This performance represents a significant value increase
for shareholders

3 Our revenue and EPS performance are the highest in our

history, representing increases of ¢.36% and ¢.52% on

prior year

Nearly all of our employees participate in the Group annual

bonus plan and therefore they will also benefit from the

improvement in performance

1 We continue to pay a dividend for FY19/20 of 43.2 pence
per share

-3 We have made strong progress on the delivery of our
strategy. strengthening the business and positioning it for
future growth

e

Overall, the Committee concluded that the level of the SPP
award for FY19/20 was a fair reflection of the shareholder
value delivered through the increase in share price as well

. as the enhanced financial performance, and that it was
appropriate in the context of the experience of our other
stakeholders.

Board changes
[evuiingg Directorns

. Earlier this year, we announced that Paul Mainwaring, CFO,
had indicated to the Board that he intended to retire, after
nearly 20 years as a UK pic Finance Directer and four as
the CFO of the Group. Charlie Rozes was subseqguently
appointed as the Group's new CFO and he joined the

- Board on 1 june 2020.

Paul Mainwaring gave notice of his retirement and stepped

- down from the Board on 1 June 2020. He remained with
the business until 26 June 2020 providing a comprehensive
handover to Charlie. Paul will receive a payment of £444,440
in lieu of his salary and pension and benefits allowance for the
remaining approximately 11 months of his notice period. This

. amount will be paid ininstalments. Paul was treated as a good

- leaver under the SPP. He remained eligible to receive an SPP
award in respect of the 2019 financial year as he was in role
for the full year in line with the performance outlined above.

' He will aiso receive a pro rata SPP award in respect of the
2020 financial year for his period in empioyment to 26 June
2020, based on performance against targets. Unvested SPP
shares will be released on the normal dates in line with the
pravisions of the SPP. Further detaits of the approach to Paul's

| remuneration are set out on pages 123 and 124.



Charlie Rozes brings a wealth of experience to the Group and
the Committee took into consideration his skills, experience,
and criticality in driving future Group performance when

determining a suitable remuneration package. The Company

that a candidate of Charlie’s experience was crucial to
supporting the Group in the implementation of IG's strategy.
Charlie's salary has been set at £490,000 per annum, his
pension and benefits allowance is 12% of base salary in line
with the provision available for other employees in the UK.
He will be eligible for an annual SPP award of up t0 400% of
base salary per annum. in setting his salary the Committee
considered Charlie’s extensive previous experience as a
Finance Director of a UK plc, including his international
experience, which is critical to support the implementation of
IG's strategy, the level of his previous salary as CFO of Jardine
Lloyd Thompson (which was above the salary paid to Paul
Mainwaring) as well as market practice at other companies
of a similar size and complexity including other companies in
the financial services seclor with whom the Group competes
for talent. Taking inte account all of these reference points,
the Committee considered that this salary positioning was
appropriate. The Committee noted that the incumbent’s
salary has only increased by 2.74% since 2016. On leaving his
previous role, Charlie forfeited awards under share-based
incentives. The Company has bought these awards cut on a
like-for-like basis. Further details are provided on page 124.

von-bxaevutive Dirvaior:

Gn 19 September 2018, Andy Green stepped down as
Chairman of the Company. He was paid his fees to this
date. Mike McTighe joined the Company as Chairman on

3 February 2020. His annual fee has been set at £300,000
per annum.

Stephen Hill stepped down as a Non-Executive Director on
27 April 2020 as he had completed nine years on the Board.
On 19 September 2019 we welcomed Andrew Didham as a
new Non-Executive Director, and on 18 March 2020 Helen
Stevenson joined as a new Non-Executive Director.

Wider workforce remuneration

During the course of the financial year, in addition to the
Remuneration Policy changes set out above, the Committee
has further developed its approach to considering and taking
into account wider workforce remuneration when setting
Executive Director pay. The CEQ pay ratio has been disclosed
in this year's report for the first time (further details are
provided on page 125) and we have also reported our latest
gender pay gap as part of the Gender Pay Gap Report, which
can be found on our website, iggroup.com.
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. Conclusion

I look forward to receiving your support for the new Directors’

' Remuneration Policy and the Directors’ Remuneration Report
© at the AGM on 17 September 2020.
carried out an extensive search for a new CFO and concluded |

=

-

. MALCOLM LE MAY

CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

- 23 July 2020
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2020 Directors’ Remuneration Policy

The Directors’ Remuneration Policy describes the framework, principles and structures that guide the Remuneration
Committee’s decision-making process in relation to Directors’ remuneration arrangements. During the year the Committee
has undertaken an extensive review of the Directors’ Remuneraticn Policy to ensure that it continues to support the execution
of our strategy and the generation of sustained shareholder value. A number of changes have been made to the Policy and 1o
the operation of the Company’s incentive plan, the sustained performance plan (SPP), to reflect shareholder expectations and
to comply with the UK Corporate Governance Code.

Objectives of the Remuneration Policy

The Remuneration Policy is set to ensure that remuneration is sufficiently competitive to attract and retain senior executives
of a high calibre and to provide a suitable incentive to drive performance, while remaining appropriate in the context of our
approach to pay throughout the crganisation. Key objectives of the Policy are that remuneration of Group employees should:

- Align with the best interests of the Company's shareholders and other stakehelders

- Recognise and reward performance of employees that supports the execution of strategy and helps drive sustainable
shareholder value growth

- Be consistent with regulatory and corporate governance requirements

- Be designed to achieve effective risk management through the choice of performance measures, shareholding
requirerments, and malus and clawback provisions

- Be straightforward, easy for shareholders and employees to understand and be simple for the Group to monitor

> Not be used to reward behaviour that inappropriately increases the Group’s exposure 1o risk

The Cormmittee considers that a successful Remuneration Policy needs to be sufficiently flexible to take account of future
changes in the Group’s business environment and in remuneration practice. There should be transparency and alignment to
the delivery of strategic objectives at both a Company and an individual ievel.

There should also be scope to reward for exceptional effort and achievement that delivers value both for the Company and
the shareholders. Likewise, failure to achieve, individually or at Company level, will not be rewarded.

The Cormmittee is alse mindful of ensuring that there is an approptiate balance between the level of risk and reward for the
individual, the Company and for shareholders. The maximum award that can e granted to individuals is set out in the Policy.

When setting levels of variable remuneration, the degree of stretch in performance conditions and the balance of equity
and cash within a package, consideration is given to providing the appropriate balance of each so as not to encourage
unnecessary risk-taking. As well as financial risk, the Commitiee also ensures that there is an appropriate focus onregulatory
and govetnance matters.

The total remuneration package is structured so that a significant proportion is linked to performance conditions, and itis

the Company’s policy to ensure that a suitable proportion of the potential remuneration package is provided via share-based
instruments. This ensures that Executive Directors have a strong ongoing alignment with shareholders through the Company’s
share price performance.
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Remuneration Policy table
The table below summarises each element of the Remuneration Policy for the Executive Directors, explaining how each
element operates and how each part links to the corporate strategy.

beyelements cf pernuherstio:,

Purpose and link to strategy Operation Cpportunity Performance metrics

Base salary

To recruit and retain Base salaries are normally reviewed by the Whilst there is no maximum salary, None
key employees of an Commitlee annually, with salary increases increases will normally be in line with
appropriate calibre to ettective from 1 June. the typical increases awarded to

deliver the strategic other employees in the Group.

objectives of the Base salaries are set taking into account:

However, increases may be above

Company. © Scale, scope and responsibility of the this level in certain circumstances

. role . . } such as’

-+ Experience of the individual and his or
her performance -i Where an Executive Director has

% Pay and workforce paolicies elsewhere in beet appointed to the Board al a
the Grougp lower than typical market salary

-2 Business performance and prevailing to allow for growth in the role,
market conditions larger increases may be awarded

-+ Salary levels at other companies of a 1o move salary positioning
similar size, compiexity, geographic closer to typical market level
spread and business focus as the Executive Direclor gains

experience
» Where an Executive Dircctor
has been promoted or has had a
change in responsibilities
- Where there has been a
sighificant change in market

practice

Pensions and benefits
Compelitive, cost- Executive Dirteclors are eligible to The maximum pension and benefits  Nonge
ctfective flexible pension  participate in the Company’s flexible allowance for Executive Directors
and benefits allowance pension and benefits plan, from which will be in line with the allowance
to help recruit and retam Executive Directors can receive a range of available to the wider workforce in
Executive Directors, benefits, Company pehsion contribution or  the UK This rate is currently 12% of

cash allowance, salary.

Executive Directors may participate ina Where the Committee has

share incentive plan (SIP) or savings related  determined that it is appropriate
shate option scheme {SAYF) or any other all-  to provide additional benefits
employec plans on the same basis as other  {including in connection with the
employees up to HMRC approved limits. relacation of an Executive Director),
benefits may be provided above this
level. The Committee will set the
level of benefit at an appropriate

The Committee may introduce other
benefits If it 1s considered appropriate to

da sc. level taking into account individual
Where appropriate, the Company may circumstances and the policy in
provide support te Executive Directorsin place for other employees.

the preparation of their tax returns. Executive Ditectors may participate

Executive Directors shall be reimbursed for N a SIP. SAYE or cther all-employee
allreasonable expenses and the Company  Plan up to the same maximum as
. may settle any tax incurred. other employees.

Wherte an Executive Director is required

to relocate to perform their role, the
appropriate one-off or ongoing benefits
may be provided (eg housing, schooling etc).
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Purpose and link to strategy

Operation

Qpportunity

Performance metrics

Sustained performance plan

The sustained
performance plan {SPP)
provides a single incentive
plan for Executive
Directors rather than
having separate annual
and long-term plans.

It provides a simple and
competitive incentive
mechanism that
encourages and rewards
both anhual and sustained
long-term performance,
linked to the Company’s
strategic objectives.

A significant portion of
the 8PP award is in shares,
encouraging Executive
Directors to build up

a substantial stake in

the Company, thereby
aligning the interests

of managernent with
shareholders.

Awards are made after the announcement
of results relating to each 'plan year".

For the FY21 onwards, plan contributions
payout as follows

-3 30% of the award is delivered in cash
shortly following the end of the plan year

~+ 20% of the amount earned will be
awarded in shares which will be released
to participants following the end of the
fourth financial year that follows the start
of the plan year

-3 50% of the amaount earned will be
awarded in shares which will be released
1o participants following the end of the
fitth financial year that follows the start
of the plan year

The Remuneration Committee retains
discretion to scale back the vesting of
awards at the end of years four and five
if the underlying performance of the
participant and/or the Group does not
justify the payout of the award

The Committee may determine that a
different payout schedule should apply for
future pian years

Shares may be awarded either in the

form of par value options, nil cost eptions
or conchtional awards. Shares held ina
participant’s plan account, including the
plat contribution awards i respect of the
FYZ0 will continue to pay out in accordance
with the previous vesting profile outlined in
the 2017 Policy.

For awards granted in relation 1o plan years
prioer to FY21, one-third ot the balance of
plan account will be released each year
following the end of the financial year, The
SPP reaches the end of its ten-year life
following the end of FY23. In accordance
with the plan rules 50% of the remaining
balance of the participants’ plan account
will be released following the end of

2023, with a further 25% of the remaining
balance of the participants’ plan account
being released following the end of 2024
and 2025 respectively. Awards granted in
relation to plan years from FY21 onwards will
continue to vest according to their normal
payout schedule following the termination
of the SPP.

Recavery provisions apply, see page 108 for
further details.

The maximum plan contribution

in respect of a plan year is 500%

of salary for the Chief Executive
Officer and 400% of salary for other
Executive Directors.

Awards are determined
based on performance

for the prior financial year
(financial and strategic
measures)and for up to
three financial years ending
with the plan year Total
Shareholder Return {TSR)
measures,

Performance measures
may comprise, for example,
earnings per share (EPS)
targets, TSR and strategic
non-financial measures,
The Committee may vary
performance measures
from year to year in
accordance with strategic
pricrities and the regulatory
environment,

TSR performance will
normally be measured
against the performance
of a suitable comparator
aroup.

No more than 25% cf the
award will normally be
payable for threshold levels
of performance.

The Commitiee may, in

its discretion, adjust SPP
awards, If (t considers

that the cutcome does

not reflect the underlying
tinancial or non-

financial performance

of the participant and/

or the Group over the
relevant period or that
such vesting levelis not
appropriate in the context
of cirtcumstances that were
unexpected or unforeseen
when the targets were

set. When making this
Jjudgment the Committee
may take into account such
factors as the Committee
considers relevant.




Purpose and link ta strategy

Operation

Qpportunity

INTRODUCTION
STRATEGIC REPCRT

3 COVERNANCE REPORT
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHAREHOLDER AND COMPANY
INFORMATION

Perfarmance metrics

Share ownership policy

This aligns the interests
of management and
shareholders both in- and
post-employment and
promotes a long-term
approach 1o performance
and risk management

Executive Directors are expected to build a
helding of shares to the value of a minimum
of 200% of base salary.

It is normally expected that the shareholding
guideline would be met within five years
from the date of appointment {unless
exceptional circumstances apply).

The Committee will review progress
annually, with an expectation that Executive
Directors will make progress towards
achieving the shareholding policy each year.

Following ceasing to be an Executive
Director, Executive Directors will normally
be expected to maintain a minimum
shareholding of 200% of salary {or actual
shareholding if lower) for two years. This
guideline applies to shares that are released
from the SPP on or after the adoption of
the new Policy at the 2020 AGM. Any shares
purchased by the Executive Directors

will not be subject to the guideline. The
Committee retains discretion to waive

this guideline if it is not considered to be
appropriate in the specific circumstances
This guideline shall apply if an individual
ceases to be an Executive Director following
the date of the adoption of this policy at the
2020 AGM

Notes to the Policy table

Sonpinery  fdue il prone s ang chanses fo potioy
The Policy has been updated to reflect feedback from shareholders, the new UK Corporate Governance Code, as well as recent
developments in best practice. In determining the new Remuneration Policy, the Committee followed a robust process which
included discussions on the content of the Policy at Remuneration Committee meetings during the year. The Committee
considered the Input from managerent and our independent advisers, as well as considering best practice and guidance
from major shareholders. A summary of the changes to the new Policy compared to the 2017 Policy is set out below:

-2 Vesting profile for the SPP - Under the 2017 policy one third of the participants’ plan account paid out each year. Under
the new policy the approach to vesting has been simplified and extended. The award in respect of each plen year will vest
on a fixed schedule over a five-year period

> Pension and benefits allowance — The maximum pension and benefits ailowance for Executive Directors has been reduced
to 12% of base salary, which is in line with the allowance available to the wider workforce in the UK

: Shareholding guidelines - The in-employment shareholding guideline for Executive Directors (other than the CEQ)
has been increased from 150% of salary to 200% of salary to refiect best practice and shareholder expectations. The
shareholding guideline for the CEQ continues to be 200% of salary. A post-employment shareholding guideline has been

introduced

Other changes have been made to the wording of the Policy to increase flexibility, to aid operation, to increase transparency
and to reflect typical market practice.
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Performance measures

For the 2021 financial year it is intended that SPP awards will be based on a combination of EPS, TSR and non-financial
strategic and operational performance measures

Metrics

Rationale and link to the strategic KPls

How performance measures are set

Total Shareholder Return (TSR) relative
to an appropriate comparator group

TSR measures the total return to the Group's
shareholders, both through share price
growth and dividends paid, and as such itis
aligned to shareholder interests.

TSR is influenced by how well the Group
performs on a range of other metrics,
including financial indicators such as revenue,
profit, cash generation and dividends,

and non-financial indicators such as client
satisfaction and operational performance.

Earnings per shate (EPS}

EPSis a key indicator of the profits generated
for shareholders, and a reflection of both
revenue growth and cost contiol

The Committee determines appropriate
performance targets cach year, taking
account of the annual and longer -term
business plans

Non-financial strategic and operational performance schemes

Non-financial strategic and
operational measures

Specific strategic and operational non-
financial measures may include targets
related Lo client experience, strategic delivery,
operational effectiveness and culture, people
and conduct.

Each of these targets has a direct impact on

a number of the Group’s KPls. For example,
system reliability is a key measure of the
resilience of our trading platforms, which is an
essential element of revenue generation and
client satistaction

The basket of measures chosen is considered
to provide a broader assessment of executive
delivery than financial metrics alone.

Targets are set at the start of the financial
yvear based on our strategic and operational
objectives tor the year

Following the end of the year, the Committee
assesses performance relative to prior

yeats, internal targets and sector averages.
Assessment is undertaken ‘in the round’,
taking account of activities and achievements
duting the year

Financial, strategic and operational non-financial measures are considered to be commercially sensitive and are therefore
not disclosed at the time of award. The intention is that targets wili be disclosed retrospectively in the Annual Remuneration
Report, provided that they are no longer commercially sensitive.

Recovery provisions

The Committee may decide within four years of a plan contribution being awarded that the underlying award will be subject to
malus and/or clawback. This may happen in the following circumstances:

-3 There has been a material misstatement in the Company's financial results
< The assessment of any condition was based on an error or oninaccurate or misleading information or assumptions
- Participant’s employment is terminated for serious misconduct

= Substantial failure of risk management

~: Serious reputational damage (for plan contributions from FY21 onwards}
- Corporate failure {for plan contributions from FY21 onwards)

Share plan operations

-3 Where the individual is not considered to be fit and proper {for plan contributions from FY21 onwards)

The Committee will cperate the SPP in accordance with the Rules of the plan {a copy of SPP rules is available on request from
the Company Secretary). Awards under the SPPs may:

-3 Have any performance conditions applicable to thern amended or substituted by the Committee in circumstances where
the Comimittee determines an amended or substituted performance condition would be more appropriate and not

materially less difficult to satisfy
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i Incorporate the right to receive an amount equal to the value of dividends which would have been paid cn the shares
under an award that vest up to the time of vesting. This amount may be calculated assuming that the dividends have been
reinvested in the Company’s shares on a cumutative basis

Be settied in cash at the Committee's discretion. For Executive Directors, this provision will only be used in excepticnal
circumstances such as where for regulatory reasons it is not possible to settle awards in shares

Be adjusted in the event of any variation of the Company’s share capital or any demerger, delisting, special dividend or
other event thal may affect the Company’s share price

N

Remuneration Policy across the Company

We have designed the Remuneration Policy for the Executive Directors and senior management taking into account the Policy
for employees across the Company as a whole. The Committee is kept updated through the year on general employment
conditions, basic salary-increase budgets, the level of bonus pools and payouts and participation in share pians.

The Committee is therefore aware of how total remuneration at the Executive Director level compares to the total
remuneration of the general population of employees. Common approaches to Remuneration Policy which apply across
the Company inclugde:

-+ Consistency in ‘pay for performance’, with annual bonus schemes being offered to the vast majority of employees

Ofifering pension, medical, life assurance and other flexible benefits for all employees, where practical given gecgraphical

location

-+ Ensuring that salary increases for each category of emplovee are considered, taking into account the overalf rate of
increase across the Company. benchmarking, and both Company and individual performance

> Encouraging broad-based share ownership through the use of all-employee share plans, where practical

e

Approved payments

The Committee reserves the right to make any remuneration payments and/or payments for loss of office (including
exercising any discretions available to it in connection with such payments), notwithstanding that they are not in line with

the Policy set out above, where the terms of the payment were agreed: {i) before the Policy set cut above came into effect,
provided that the terms of the payment were consistent with any applicable shareholder-approved Directors’ Remuneration
Policy in force at the time they were agreed or where otherwise approved by sharehoelders; or {ii} at a time when the reloevant
individual was not a Director of the Company (or other person to whom the Policy set out above applies} and, in the opinicn of
the Committee, the payment was not in consideration for the individual becoming a Director of the Company or such other
person. For these purpoeses ‘payments’ includes the Committee satisfying awards of variable remuneration and, in relation to
an award over shares, the terms of the payment are ‘agreed’ no later than the time the award is granted. This Policy applies
equally to any individual who is required to be treated as a Directlor under the applicable regulations.

lllustrating the application of Remuneration Policy

As a result of the Company’'s Remuneration Policy, a significant proportion of the remuneration received by Executive
Directors depends on Company performance. The charts below show how total pay for Executive Directors varies under four
different performance scenarios: minimum, target, maximum and maximum plus 50% share price growth,

Minimum: This comprises the fixed elements of pay, being base salary and pension and benefits allowance. Base salary and
pension and benefits allowance are effective as at 1 june 2020.

Target: This comprises fixed pay and the target value of SPP (250% of salary for the CEO and 200% of salary other Executive
Directors respectively).

Maximum: This comprises fixed pay and the maximum value of SPP (500% of salary for the CEO and 400% of salary other
Executive Directors respectively).

Maximum + 50% share price growth: This comprises fixed pay and the maximum value of SPP (500% of salary for the CEC
and 400% of salary olher Execulive Directors respectively) with 50% share price growth applied to the portion of the SPP
(70% of total) which is delivered in shares.

No account has been taken of share price growth (other than share stated), or of dividend shares awarded.
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Executive Directors' service contracts

Cxecutive Directors are employed under a service contract with IG Group Limited {a wholly-owned intermediate holding
company) for the benefit of the Company and the Group. The period of notice for existing Executive Directors does not
exceed 12 months and, accordingly, Executive Directors’ empioyment contracts can be terminated on 12 months’ notice
by either party. Our intention is that the period of notice for any hew Executive Director would not exceed 12 months.

In the event that the Company terminates an Executive Director’s service contract other than in accordance with the terms

of his or her contract, the Commiltee will act in the best interests of the Company and ensure there is no reward for failure.
All service contracts are continuous, and contractual termination payments relate to the unexpired notice period.
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Cn a Director's departure, the Company may at its sole discretion pay base salary and the value of pension and benefits
allowance that would have been receivable in lieu of any unexpired period of notice. In the event of termination for gross
misconduct, the Company may give neither notice nor a payment in lieu of notice. Where the Company, acting reasonably,
believes it may have a right to terminate employment duc to gross misconduct, it may suspend the Executive Director from
employment on full salary for up to 30 days to investigate the circumstances prevailing.

The Company may place an Execulive Director on gardening ieave for a period up 1o the duration of the notice period. During
this time, the Executive Director will be entitled to receive base salary and their pension and benefits allowance, At the end

of the gardening leave period, the Company may, at its discretion, pay the Executive Director base salary alone, in lieu of the
balance of any period of notice given by the Company or the Executive Director.

When considering payments in the event of termination, the Remuneration Committee takes into account individual
circumstances. Relevant factors include the reasons for termination, contractual obligations and the relevant incentive plan
rules. Wheh determining any loss of office payment for a departing Director, the Committee will always seek to minimise the
cost to the Company while complying with the contractual terms and seeking to reflect the circumstances in place at the time.

The Committee reserves the right to make additional payments where such payments are imade in good faith in discharge of
an existing legal obligation {(or by way of damages for breach of such an obligation), or by way of settlement or compromise
of any claim arising in conhection with the termination of an Executive Director's office or employment (including payment of
reasonable fees for a departing Director to obtain independent legal advice in relation to their termination arrangements and
nominal consideration for any agreement to any contractual terms protecting the Company’s rights following termination)

Copies of the Executive Directors’ service contracts are available for inspection at the Company’s Registered Office.

Sustained performance plan awards
If a participant ceases to hold emptoyment or be a Director within the Group, or gives notice of leaving, cther than as a 'good
leaver’ they forfeit any entitlement to receive further awards, All urvested awards will lapse.

‘Good leavers” would normally continue to be eligible to receive an award for the year in which they ceased employment. Such
award would be pro-rated based on time in employment for the plan year and would remain subject to performance. ‘Good
leavers’ arc participants who cease to hold employment or be a Dircctor by reason of their retirement, injury or disability,
transfer of their employment cutside the Group, or for any other reason at the Committee’s discretion.

Any unvested awards which relate to the 2021 financial year onwards would continue to vest on the notmal dates, unless
the Commitiee determines that they will vest on an earlier or earlier dates. The Committee retains the discretion to pro-rate
unvested awards if this is considered appropriate.

For plan contributions which relate to periods up to and including the 2020 financial year, the participant’s plan account will
vest one-third following the end of the plan year of cessation of employment and thereafter the remaining balance in equal
parts on the first and second anniversary of such first payment, unless the Committee determines that they will vest on one
or more earlier dates.

Where awards are granted in the form of options, any vested awards already held at the time of cessation of employment will
remain exercisable for a period of 12 months. Awards that vest following cessation will be capabie of being exercised for a
period of 12 months following vesting. The exception is when dismissal has been for misconduct, in which case such awards
lapse in full,
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Change of control

The Executive Directors’ contracts do not provide for any enhanced payments in the event of a change of control of the
Company nor for liguidated damages. Executive Directors may continue to receive an award for the financial year in which
the change of control occurs, Any award would normally be pro-rated based on the portion of the year prior to the change of
control. Any unvested awards will normally vest in the event of a change of control. Where awards are granted in the form of
options, participants will narmally have one month following the change of control to exercise their options.

Recruitment Remuneration Policy
When determining the remuneration package for a newly appointed Executive Director, the Committee would seek to apply
the following principles:

N

The package should be market competitive to facilitate the recruitment of individuais of sufficient calibre to lead the

business. At the same time, the Committee would intend to pay no more than it believes is necessary to secure the

required talent

New Executive Directors will normally receive a base salary, pension and benefits in line with the Policy described on pages

105 to 107 and will also be eligible to join the incentive plans up to the limits set out in the Policy

in addition, the Committee has discretion to include any other remuneration component or award which it feels is

appropriate taking into account the specific circumstances of the recruitment, subject to the limit on variable remuneration

set out below. The key terms and rationale for any such component would be disclosed as appropriate in the Directors’

Remuneration Report for the relevant year

-5 Where an individual forfeits outstanding variable pay opportunities or contractual rights at a previcus employer as a result
of appointment, the Committee may offer compensatory payments or awards, in such form as the Commitice considers
appropriate, taking into account all relevant factors including the form of awards, expected value and vesting timeframe of
forfeited opporiunities. When determining any such ‘buyout’, the guiding principle would be that awards would generaliy
be on a like-Ter-like' basis unless this is considered by the Committee not to be practical or appropriate

<. The maximum level of variable remuneration which may be awarded {excluding any ‘ouyout’ awards referred to above) in

respect of recruitment is 500% of salary, which is in line with the current maximum [imit under the SPP

Where an Executive Director is reguired to relocate to take up their role, the Committee may provide assistance with

relocation (either via one-off or ongoing payments or benefits}

-2 |n the event that an internal candidate is promoted to the Board, legacy terms and conditions would normatly be honoured,
including any accrued pension entitlements and any outstanding incentive awards

-» To facilitate any buyout awards outlined above, in the event of recruitment the Committee may grant awards to a new

Executive Director relying on the exemption in the Listing Rules which aflows for the grant of awards to facilitate, in unusual

circumstances, the recruitment of an Executive Director, without seeking prior shareholder approval or under any other

appropriate Company incentive plan

N

3




Chairman and Non-Executive Diractors
The table below summarises each eferment of the Remuneration Policy applicable to the Chairman and the Non-Executive

Directors.

Purpose and link to strategy
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QOpportunity

To attract and retain Non-Executive
Directors of appropriate calibre
and experience.

The Remuneration Committee determines
the fee for the Chairman (without the
Chairman present).

The Board is responsible for setting Non-
Executive Directors’ fees. The Non-Executive
Ditectors are not invelved in any discussions
or decisions by the Board about their own
remuneraticon,

Fees are set taking irto account the time
commitment reguired to fulfil the role and
typical practice at other similar companies.

Fecs are within the limits set by the Articles
of Association and take account of the
commitment and responsibilities of the
relevant role.

The Chairman receives a single fee to cover all of his or
her Board duties.

Non-Executive Directors receive a fee for carrying out
their duties They may receive additional fees if they
chair the Board Committees, and for holding the post
of Senior Independent Director. Additional fees may
be paid for additional time commitments if considered
appropriate.

Committee membership fees may be paid.

Reasonable costs inrelation to trave!l and
accommodation for business purposes are
reimbursed to the Chairman and Non-Executive
Directors. The Company may meet any lax liabilities
that may arise on such expenses

The Chairman and Non-Executive Directors do
not receive a pension and benefits allowance or
participate in incentive schemes

Non-sighificant benefits may be introduced if
considered apptopriate.

Detalls of current fee levels are set gut in the Annual
Report on Remuneration

Non-Executive Directors do not have service contractls; they are engaged by letters of appointment. Each Non-Executive

Director is appointed for an initial term of three years subject to re-election, but the appointment can be terminated on three
months’ notice.

Consideration of shareholder views

As part of its review of Remuneration Policy undertaken during the year the Committee consulted in detail with our top
20 shareholders and proxy agencies to explain the changes proposed and their rationale. The Committee was pleased
with the level of support received for the changes. The Committee will continue to engage with shareholders in relation
to remuneration arrangements.

Consideration of employment conditions eisewhere in the Company

In setting the remuneration of the Executive Directors, the Committee takes into account the overall approach to reward for
employees in the Company. The Group operates in a number of different environments, and has many employees who carry
out diverse roles across a number of countries. All employees, including Directors, are paid by reference to the market rate,
and base salary levels are reviewed reqularly. When considering salary increases for Directors, the Company will be sensitive
to pay and employment conditions across the wider workforce, However, no remuneration comparison measurements have
been utilised to date. The Committee does not formally consult with employees on the executive of the Remuneration Policy.
The Committee is periodically updated on pay and conditions applying to employees across the Company.
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Annual Report on Remuneration

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006, Schedule 8 of the Large and Medium-sized
Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 (as amended in 2013} and the FCA's Listing Rules.
This report will be subject to an advisory shareholder vote at the AGM on 17 September 2020,

This part of the report includes a summary of how we intend to implement the Remuneration Policy in the financial year
ended 31 May 2021 as well as how we implemented the Policy in the financial year ended 31 May 2020.

The parts of the report that are subject to audit have been marked.
Implementation of Remuneration Policy in the financial year ending 31 May 2021

The following sections provides details of how the Directors’ Remuneration Policy will be implemented for the financial year
ended 31 May 2021.

Component Details of approach for 2020/21

Base salary Base salaries for Chief Executive Officer (CEQ), Chief Operating Officer (COO) and Chief Commercial Cfficer
{CCO) will be increased by 1.7% from 1 June 2020 in line with the average increase received across the wider
workforce.

Base salaries are as follows:

. CEQ-£610,000 (1.7% increase)
-3 CCO-£376,500 (1.7% increase)
Y COO-£376,500{1.7% increase)

The salary for the |ncommg CFO was setat £490,000.

Pemmn and PPn(‘.mn and benefits aHowances for Execu‘uve Directors are set at 12% of base salary whlch isinline Wlth
benefits allowances available to the wider workforce in the UK.
allowance

Executive Directors will be eligible to participate in any all employee share incentive plans on the same basis
as other employees

Modified For 2020/21 the maximum plan contribution will con’(mue to be 500% of salary for the CEO and 400% of
sustained salary for other Executive Directors.

performance

plan (SPP) For 2020/21 the level of plan contribution will be based:

- 55% on earnings per share (EPS) performance
> 25% onrelative Total Shareholder Return {TSR) compared to the FTSE 250 {excluding investment trusts)
© 20% on non-financial strategic and operational measures

Performance for EPS and non-financial strategic and operational measures will be assessed over the
financial year to 31 May 2021,

Relative TSR performance will be assessed over the three-year peried from 1 June 2018 to 31 May 2021.
EPS targets and non-financial measures are considered to be commercially sensitive and therefore have not
been disclosed at this time. The Committee’s intention is that these targets will be disclosed in next year's
Annual Remuneration Report.

Further details on performance measures are provided below.

Any SPP award earned in respect of 2020/21 will be paid as follows:

= 30% incashin July 2021

20% in shares awarded in July 2021 released in July 2024
- 50% in shares awarded in July 2021 released ir July 2025

i it
qu»«‘*.

»
I

e
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Component Details of approach for 2020/21

Shareholding Executive Directors are expected to build shareholdings of at least 200% of base salary.

guidelines
Executive Directors will be expected to maintain a minimum shareholding to 200% of salary (ot actual
shareholding if lower) for two years following stepping down as an Executive Director. This applies to
Executive Directors that step down from the Board following the impiementation of this Policy at the 2020
AGM. This guideline applies to shares that are released from the SPP on or after the adoption of the Policy.
Any shares purchased by the executives will not be subject to the guideline.

Further details on performance measures
The performance measures that are used in the SPP are a subset of the Company’s Key Performance Indicators (KPIs).

Metric Rationale and link to the strategic KPl Further details

Total Sharehclder Return TSR measures the total return to the Group's TSR will be assessed over the period 7 June

{TSR) relative to the FTSE 260 shareholders, beth through share price 2018 to 31 May 2021,

{excluding investment trusts)  growth and dividends paid, and as such itis

{25% weighting) alighed to sharehoider interests. 25% of this portion will be awarded for median

performance with 100% of lhis portion being

TSR is influenced by how well the Group awarded for upper quartile performance
performs on a range of other metrics, (straight-line assessment in between).

including financial indicators such as
revenue, profit, cash generation and
dividends, and non-financial indicators
such as client satisfaclion and operational
performance.

TSR is assessed against the FTSE 25C
excluding investment trusts as thisis a
broad market index of which the Group
is a constituent.

Earnings per share (EPS) EPSis a key indicator of the profits generated EPStargets will be assessed based on
{55% weighting) for shareholders, and a reflection of both performance for the year ending 31 May 2021.
revenue growlh and cost control.
The Committee has set EPS taking into
account relevant factors including Beard-
approved budget, market consensus
expectations and historical targets.

Paycuts start to accrue for reaching threshold
levels of performance with 100% of this
porticn being awarded for the achievement
of maximum performance.

Her firaneh betratogio s rd ope rational naotrie ¢ (90% we i htingd

The non-financial strategic and operational metrics are specifically designed to measure factors important to the Group
in continuwing to operate on a profitable and sustainable basis for the long term. These metrics focus on our core priorities
aligned with our new strategy and are grouped into four categories: client experience; strategic delivery; operational
effectiveness; and culture, conduct and people.

When assessing the non-financial metrics the Committee deliberately separates the assessment from any review of financial
performance, viewing them both as importiant, but recognising they are assessed and rewarded separately to ensure
management are incentivised to deliver in-year non-financial strategic and operational milestones that are important to
delivering profit and sharehoelder value in the future.
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Metric Raticnale and link to the strategic KP1 Further details

Client experience Providing clients with a campetling, Performance against these measures will
rewarding and engaging experience is be assessed over the financial year ending
central to IG's ability to attract and retain 31 May 2021.
clients.

Following the end of the year, the Committee
|G has a sophisticated, high-quality and loyal  assesses performance relative to prior years,

client base and in order to maintain and internat targets and sector averages.
grow this, the Group focuses on all aspects

of customer experience. Performance is This metric is assessed across three
tracked and measured via reference lo a areas: customer satisfaction; rating of and
variety of metrics which provide insight into satisfaction with trading platforms; and
either specific elements of the custormer client conversion.

experience, or the overall experience.

Strategic delivery The delivery of the Group's strategic The metrics selected for the 2021 financial
initiatives is key 1o I1G's future financial year are based on the Board-approved
performance and growth. strategy, which has been communicated

publicly, and covers core markets, £EU
Strategic delivery targets are set for both (hew products), US, Japan, Other Asia and
the core markets and the significant institutional.
opportunities portfolic, with clear owners
for each target. The targets reflect key As an example, in Asia, onboarding a
deliverables or milestones for the financial meaningful partner is a key element of our
year, which will position |G for growth in strategy and hence has been selected as a
future years. strategic delivery target.

Performance against these targets will be
assessed by the Remuneration Committee,
based on items delivered over the financial
yvear ending 31 May 2021.

Operational effectiveness The Committee considered it important that  Performance against these measures will
management are incentivised and rewarded  be assessed over the financial year ending
for attaining stretching operational KPls, to 31 May 2021.
ensure the Group's ability to deliver future

sustained shareholder value. Following the end of the year, the Committee
assesses performance relative to prior

These metrics include items such as system years, internal targets and sector averages.

reliability, resilience to cyber-attack and Assessment takes account of activities and

attainment of demanding client service achievements during the year.

standards,

For example, for system reliability, 12-month
This category also incorporates the delivery rolling platform uptime is assessed against
of operational improverments and internal pre-agreed internal service levels and
systems and processes which will improve performance over preceding years.
IG's effectiveness, efficiency and controls.

Culture, conduct and people  1G believes having a strong, compliant culture  Performance against these measures will

which embodies |IG's values and excellent be assessed over the financial year ending

conduct is an impoertant differentiator and 31 May 2021,

helps to contribute to business success and

risk management, The Committee assesses performance based
on the cutcome of the annual engagement

Having appropriate talent available and survey, which is administered by a third party,

engaged is a prerequisite for successful and IG’s performance against its strict internal

delivery of |G’s strategy. conduct standards.
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Executive Directors’ service contracts
Executive Directors are employed under a service contract with IG Group Limited {a wholly owned inlermediate holding
company) for the benefit of the Company and the Group,

The dates on which service contracts are entered into and notice periods are as follows:

H
i

3 June Felix - 30 October 2018 {12 months’ notice from either party)
-3 Charlie Rozes - 1 June 2020 {12 months’ notice from either party)

3 Jon Noble - 22 May 2018 (six months’ notice from either party)

> Bridget Messer - 22 May 2018 {six months’ notice from either party}

Chair and Non-Executive Directors

The Board reviewed Non-Executive Director fees and agreed that no changes would be made to the base fee or Committee
fees for the 2027 financial year. The additional fee for the Senior Independent Director will be increased to £15,000 per
annum following the 2020 AGM on 17 September 2020,

Fees from 1 fune 2020 are therefore as follows:

-» Non-Executive Direclor base fee - £65,000

= Committee Chairs (other than the Nomination Committee) - £25,000"

-3 Senior Independent Director - £10,000 (lo be increased to £15,000 following the AGM on 17 September 2020)
- Committee membership fees {excluding the Nomination Committee and the Group Beard Chairman) - £3,000°

The tees for the Chairman were set at £300,000 per annum upon his appointment.

Non-Executive Directors do not have service contracts; they are engaged by letters of appointment. Each Non-Executive
Director is appointed for an initial terim of three years subject to re-election, but the appointment can be terminated on three
months' notice. Non-Executive Directors may receive reimbursement for business expenses incurred in the course of their

duties, including tax therein if applicable.

Implementation of Rernuneration Policy in the financial year ending 31 May 2020

Totel e de Doure eiretetitm e e - Erdotioe Bioeter: Guddod)
Benehits Contnbution to 5PF acconnd”
fees Bavn atllowance/ Yinted Deferred

salary b hietits® Dension element cleteort Total Tutal
Name of Dire ctor e ar £000 £000 $O00 £000 £O00 £000 L0006
JFelix? 2020 600 124 - 972 1,244 2,916 3,640
2019 377 76 - 109 218 327 780
P Mainwaring® 2020 411 70 - 533 1,065 1,598 2,079
2019 411 70 - 102 204 306 787
J Noble 2020 370 35 @ 480C 959 1,439 1.853
2019 370 35 10 92 184 276 691
B Messer 2020 370 35 ] 480 959 1,439 1.853
2019 370 35 10 92 184 276 691

1 Nodecision fiat yet been taken by tne Board regurding the payment of fees 1o the Chair and memkers of the ESG Committes

Z JFelswas aNon-Excoutive Dheector of the Company antithor appointrent as CEQ on 30 October 2018, Duning FY19 she received £23.000 0 relation to her rels os Non-Executive
Diresctor whichis included in fees/base salary above

3 PMamwarnagretited from the Board on 1 June 2020

4 Benefits caminclode eritical illness c over, dental cover, h2alth assessiments, income protection cover, ife assurande and private-medical cover Ibwas agreed by the Remuneration

Committee that reloc ation costs including =ny applicable tax costsl of up to £ 84K would be met for I Felx within the firet year of her appointiment as CEC Cestsfor FY19 were £33k

(nete i the 2018/19 Dircctors Remuneration Report £asts were incotrectly stated an £70k), costs for the 2020 financ al vear were £52k. SFehx JNoble ano B Messerreceve a

fle xible benefits and pensions allowance of 127 of base salary ¢ 85 any benefits taken I Mainwaring rece ved o flovible benefits and pensions allowancs of 177% of base salaryless any

benefits tuken Executives hase the option to recelys part, or ail. of ther pension and Genefits enttlerment i couh,

Figuies provided sro the cash vatues of the SPR cortributions i respect of porformance for the poneds ending 3% May 2020 i piatiyear 7 The vestec ¢leirent is the proportian

of the plan year contributiaon for the televant period thal vesls snor iy fallewing the end of the financial year {fone-thind of the lotal) The deferred elornent s the proporticn that

remaing defertedin tne plar account (twoa-thirds of the totall which is released in future years Detals of SPP awards helg in the plan accaunt are provided in the Other Share Awaros

Cutstandiratable an page 122 Naportion of the anard disclosedis attributable to share price growth and the Comnuttec d.d not exercise discietion in refation to share price

o
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Tetel single tigin e of omonerstion - Reb-Frecutive Directose (& udite o)

Fees” Benetits™ Tolal
Name of Director Year £000 £000 =alule)
M McTighe' 2020 100 - 100
) 2012 - - -
J Newman 2020 96 - 96
2019 96 - 96
M Le May 2020 102 - 102
2019 103 - 103
$-A Hibberd? 2020 71 2 73
2019 45 - 45
J Moulds?® 2020 67 - 167
2019 51 - 51
A Didham* 2020 47 - 47
2019 - - -
H Stevenson® 2020 14 - 14
2019 - - -

Former Directors
A Green® 2020 90 - 90
2019 300 - 300
S G Hil 2020 63 8 71
2019 71 22 93

MW cTighe jomed the Boardor 2 Februaty 2020 Rermune ration s shown frer this 2
S AbibEero sno I Moulds ored the Bootc on 20 Septeirber 2018 Reriuneration
IMaulgs se reect as Intenm Chan tor the porod from 20 Septembicr 20019 to ZFehiiary 2020 andrecens
A Didaam jcined the Board o 19 September 2019 Remunerst onis < awn froms 1oy date

H Stewwnson joned the Board on "8 Maten 2020 Retnunctatian s shown frorn thes date

A Gresn stepomed down trom the Boaro or 13 Sepreriner 2019 Rerarerabior & shoar 1o thes date

S GHIllstepped down fron the Board on 27 Aprl 2020 Rerunerations shown to ths dote
Gtherthanmeespect of the Char oask Neon Fueeut ve Director fes<were £65 000 por anrvem weth an additicne 25 000 paid for otoanng a Board Committee iacher tharn the
Nerination Committes! shd f 10 00C for the Serior Independent Direstor and £2 00040 menborship ot a committed i€ xcludina the Naminatior Committee) Payment of {ee for
e mbership ard the LSG Chas hove not vel been geaidad by the Board

Y CortainNen Fxscutive Ditectors expensesrelating to the perfarmancc ot aQnecter s guties such as trouc1to ord ‘rom Company mectings and reiatod acconm modalion, nave becn
classitied s taxable benetits Ir suck casey, the Company vell ensure tat the Director s kept whole By Sselthng the expense ana gy relatec tax The fodres shown include the cost ot
the tuxable bencfit plus the rolated persorgl tas charge

madd tonal e of £75 600 o this poned

e I N

Sustained performance plan {SPP)

Detesromation ol SPC contribition for the firescie by oy endmn 3% Mey 2070

Performance targets for ptan year 7 {financial year endirg 31 May 2020) comprised diluted earnings per share {DEPS) targets,
Total Shareholder Return {TSR) and non-financial measures. TSR performance was measured over the three-year period from
1 June 2017 tc 31 May 2020, and DEPS and non-financial measures over the financial year ending 31 May 2020.

Thresnald (265 payont for Maxirmur Foreertsae of maxinin

Forformance measure Weiohting TER and 07 for DEFS) 100 . payout) Actualperformance award to Direclors

DEPS 45% 354p 45.8p 64 .9p (100% awarded) 100%

TSR 35% Median ranking Upper quartile Upper quartile - 19 of 265 100%
ranking companies (100% awarded)

Non-finaticial 20% 0% 100% 86.1% awarded 86.1%

Total 100% 97.2%

The maximum award for the CEQ role is 500% of basic salary with all other Executive Directors being eligible for a maximum
award of 400% of basic salary.
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Performance measures — how these are set and review of performance for the year ended 31 May 2020
Liluted eernings pot chere {4065 vieiohting)

At the start of the financial year, the Committee estabiished a DEPS range in order to measure the performance and
determine the payouts under the SPP. In doing this, the Committee took into account a number of relevant factors, including
Board-approved budget, market consensus expectations and historical targets.

DEPS perfermance for the 2020 financial year was 64.9 pence representing ¢.52% increase in respect of the previous year
and around 19 pence (¢ 41%) ahead of the maximum target set, and therefore the full portion of this element will be awarded.
DEPS performance represented the highest perfermance delivered since the SPP was introduced.

Jotet $herelolidor bt (387 weisbting)

TSR performance is assessed against the FTSE 350 (excluding investment trusts). 25% of this element is awarded for
median performance with the full portion being awarded for upper quartile performance or above with straight-line vesting
in between.

For the award to be granted in respect of the year to 31 May 2020, TSR was measured over the three-year pericd from

1 June 2017 to 31 May 2020. Actual TSR performance for the Group for the three-year period was ©62.1% {2019 -19.6%,).
TSR was pesitioned in the upper decile compared to the comparator group and therefore the full amount of this element
will be awarded.

Ron-finincial v s aie s (20% warehling)

The Committee approved a series of non-financial measures comprising client experience, strategic delivery, operational
etfectiveness, and culture, conduct and people during the year ended 31 May 2020. These measures are alsc used for
determining a portion of the staff general bonus pool.

An average of the performance under the specific objectives resulted in an overall assessment of 86.1% {2019: 93.2%} of the
potential payout under this element.

Performance highlights include client satisfaction achieving the highest year on record, improved client retention, and a
significant increase in the engagement the organisation has towards the new organisation strategy. Additionally, we met a
number of significant strategic milestones during the year including the launch of Spectrum, IG's 24/5 multilateral trading
facility, the launch of IG Prime, IG's institutional brand, and localising the trading experience for 1G's Japanese client base.

In light of this excellent progress, which the Board believes helps to position the Group strongly to execute upon its strategy
and deliver future sustained value creation for shareholders, the Committee agreed that the outcome was appropriate.

The table below provides details of the individual measures considered and their performance assessment for the year
ended 31 May 2020.

Component Detafl FY20 cutcome

The Remuneration Committee uses a number of indicators to measure performance 90%
against the client experience metric. In the 2019 financial year, IG scored 85% for client
satisfaction based on improved measure of client satisfaction.

Client experience

In determining a score the Remuneration Committee reviewed client satisfaction data
for iG and other firms in the sector, as well as performance againsl internal targets. This
year, IG's external ratings have also been taken into consideration for this metric, namely
app store ratings and independent review scores. This is to ensure that |G maintains a
consistent standard across a variety of external and internal measures.

The Remuneration Committee has also taken client behaviour into consideration when
assessing this metric, specificaily by locking at the client attrition rate during the 2020
financiat year. 2020 financial year clients have shown their ioyalty to be strenger to I1G
during the year compared to both the 2018 and 2019 financial years.
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Component

Strategic delivery

Operational
effectiveness

Detail FY20 gutcome

As part of the Board's strategic planning, there is a clear plan relating to strategic 88%
delivery projects provided to the Remuneration Committee at the start of the year.
This details the underlying projects set for delivery in the short-to-medium term.

The Remuneration Committee uses this plan to judge the performance, and
management's execution and delivery of the key strategic initiatives. This planisin line
with the strategic priorities outlined at the beginning of the 2020 financial year, and is
split belween Core Markets and the portfolio of Significant Opportunities.

The Core Markets performed particularly strongly in its measure of the number of new
OTC clients acguired during the 2020 financial year.

There were a number of key projects with material development across the Significant
Opportunities portfolio. These include: launching Spectrum, I1G's 24/5 multilateral
trading facility and |G Prime, iG's dedicated institutional brand, making key user
experience changes to localise the trading experience for IG's Japanese client base,
hiring a CEO for Greater China and a Global Head of Institutional Sales, and increasing
the number of unigue visitors to DailyF X by over 70% year on year.

I1G achieved 29.935% rolling cumulative 12-maonth uptime with outages totalling 247 76.5%
minutes. This compares to the 2019 financiail year's 99.99% uptime and outages

totalling 38 minutes, and the 2018 financial year's 99,98% uptime and outages totalling

86 minutes.

This metric also encompasses how IG responds te client queries received, compared to
challenging internal targets. 1G sets these challenging targets to ensure that G responds
promptly to client queries. When appraising performance against these internal targets,
the Remuneration Committee also considered the impact that the reductionin IT
uptime and increased trading volumes seen in Q4 had on performance against

these targets.

Ancther element of this metric includes how I1G has progressed against its aim of
increasing the efficiency of its corporate actions and account opening functions. Good
progress has been made against this goal during the 2020 financial year, reflecting
process automaticn and the number of accounts ocpened without human interaction.

The Remuneration Commitiee made the decision at the beginning of the year that IT
systems and stability should represent 50% of the overall score given to the operational
effectiveness metric, reflecting its crucial impartance 1o the Group. This ultimately
impacted the overali score achieved for the operational effectiveness metric.

Culture, conduct
and people

This measure is designed to ensure that |G has an engaged workforce with a strong 90%
compliant cutture that embodies IG's values. This is to serve as a differentiator and
contribute to business success and risk management.

This measure is assessed against five key metrics: employee engagement, organisation
culture index, and three Board-approved conduct Key Risk Indicators (KRis).

Both employee engagement and culture index are assessed by an anonymous survey
administered by an external third party. Employee engagement was slightly down year
on year, falling 2% to 68%. There were however some strong increases in engagement
around the organisation strategy and the communicated vision of the future. 1G’s
culture index score was 78% in the 2020 financial year, improving year on vear. This
improvement was driven by IG demonstrating ethical business decisions and conduct.

Throughout the three Board-approved conduct KRls, |G demonstrated a positive Group-
wide culture and conduct.

B
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In addition to considering the performarnce against the measures outlined above, the Committee may at its discretion decide
to reduce the level of SPP awards granted if it considers that the Company's or individual’s performance for the relevant
measurement period does not warrant the level of award or to take account of such other factors as it considers appropriate.

Cverall, the Committee determined that 97.2% of the SPP award for the 2020 financial year should be awarded. This award
will be granted following the annocuncerment of results for the year and will vest in accordance with the 2017 Policy.

In determining the level of payout, the Committee carefully considered whether pay outcomes were appropriate, a fair
reflection of the underlying perfermance of the business and aligned with the experience of shareholders, employees and
cther stakeholders, particularly in light of the current climate and given that a significant contributor to our performance has
been increased transaction fees resulting from the elevated levels of market volatility following the Covid-18 cutbreak.

As part of this consideration the Committee took into account the following:

—= The Group has achieved exceptional performance in exceptional circumstances this year. Our people have performed
strengly, rapidly making changes Lo the ways of working to ensure that the Group was able to convertincreased client
trading volume to enhanced shareholder value

- Ourrevenue and EPS performance are the highest in our history, representing a ¢.36% and ¢.52% increase on prior year

=< TSR petformance over the past three years is +62.1% which is in the upper decile compared to comparaters. While our TSR

has been positively impacted by performance in the last part of the year, when measured to the start of March 2020 (prior
to the significant increase in trading volumes), TSR was also positioned in the upper quartile. This performance represents

a significant value increase for shareholders

Nearly all of our empioyees participate in the Group annual bonus plan and therefore they will also benefit from the

increase in performance

- We continue 10 pay a dividend for the 2020 financial year of 43.2 pence per share

= We have made good progress on the delivery of our strategy, strengthening the business and positioning it for iuture growth

e

Overall, the Committee concluded that the level of the SPP award for the 2020 financial year was a fair reflection of the
sharehoclder value delivered through the increase in share price, as well as the enhanced financial performance, and that it
was appropriate in the context of the experience of our other stakeholders.

Overall summary

Based on the perfoermance for the financial year ending 31 May 2020, we will grant awards under the SPP at 97% of the
maximum potential payout te the Executive Directors after the announcement of the results. The actual number of shares that
will be contributed to the Director’s plan account will be based on the ten-day average share price immediately prior to grant.

Since its introduction seven years ago, the average payout under the SPP is 58% of the maxinwum. The Committee considers
that the culcomes under the SPP are a fair reflection of performance delivered, and that they are aligned with value achieved
for shareholders over this period.

7 oyoar
Financial yonr 2014 2015 2076 2017 208 2019 2020 Average

SPP contribution (% maximum) 54% 41% 90% 27% 80% 18.64% 97.2% 58%
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Awards granted during the year ended 31 May 2020 (audited)
The SPP awards granted during the financial year ended 31 May 2020 in respect of performance to 31 May 2019 (plan year 6)
are as follows:

Contliibution

Nurnbes af Numbior of

cplions in the Number of opticnsintne

Number cf plan account opltions vested planaccount at

Vajue- of opt.ons aptions after plan year © nnd exercised Numbet of the end of

" of salary awarded awarded contriputions during the year optons lansed the year

] Feldix bo% £327,224 57,341 57,341 19,113 - 38,228
P Mainwaring 75% £306,442 53,699 190,629 63,5643 - 127,086
I Noble 75% £275,872 48,342 212,634 70,877 - 141,757
B Messer 75% £275,872 48,342 199,989 66,663 - 133,326

1 The rumber of oplions contnbuted Lo the plan atcount was based on the len-business-cay average share price immediately pest the annauncentert date of the Group's results for
the year endied 31 May 2020 of 570.66 pence per share Awards were granted in the form of nominal cost options ar d are stbject to cantinued employment The release of shares s
supject to the satisfac tion of the underlying financal performane to o tested inthe fimul year of the plan,

2 Inaddiion to the awards made intespect of plan vear 6. this also ncludes the brougn® lerward number of petions in the plan accourt from plar years 1-8 tvhers relesant] with s
respective acorued dvidend share s

Full details of performance targets applied to the 2019 SPP awards and the assessment of performance against targets are
set on out pages 103 to 106 of the 2019 Directors’ Remuneration Report.

Details of the outstanding SPP share awards, using an estimate of the options to be granted in respect of plan year 7
{ie performance to 31 May 2020) are set out below:

Optots ansrded  Plancontnibus o Eutimated
ax div dend mrespect of cunuiaties
equivalents rer od ended roaniber ¢

Plan scegunt 3% WMoy 2020 Flat, azcciint opticns romraning

Lo ahr foe aard T eshir ated foliow ro Fatirmcete o it the plae

(narber ot after th numker of cohtibution for number of accopuntattho

Ever shares) woal-etid ORTIGHS)- th ey [ TITTIIEN Y] e ofth oyt

] Felix Plan year 7 38,288 2,606 381,254 422148 140,716 218,432
P Mainwaring Plan year 7 127,086 8,665 208,927 344,678 114,892 229,786
J Noble Plan year 7 141,757 9,666 188,085 339,508 113,169 226,339
B Messer Plan year 7 133,326 9,090 188,085 330,501 110,167 220,334

1 Executive Director s will be Qrarted vards 17 respe 1 0F plah yeat ¢ follow.ng the arrouncement of results for the year endea 21 May 2020 on 23 July 2020 The shate Brice uheo
tocalculate the number of awards to ke granted woll Br the fen-gay a0 030 sbare pr o afterth s date Asthe actual averane share pricc s not knowr at the timee of sigring of the
Anntal Renort, tne above rumkber of awnrds Fas becn estimated using » share prze of 765 pence, bong the share price or 31 4ay 2020 Share swatds have &l exer cise price of
OO0 penLe

2 Inaccardance witn the schiemorules 33 30 of the cumulative awirds nwoe plan aceount (alter the contrbutions mrespt et of plar v ar Zreellnastie Avqust 2020 vtk thovest rg
of the ramaning optiors deferred The Augutt 2020 vesting wiliinclude «daitonal divideno shaeres accrusd as follows i resoect of plan year 1- € awards held in the plan sccount -
PRz (2 €06 P Maitiwating (8,650 ) NGt 12,666 ard B Meract {3 UB0] bored wit tetivestrmernt gt the d vidend paverohit aate

Other share awards outstanding (audited}

Numiber MNoamber
Shiatc e at Nuptbser as at Numiber gaarded Namiber lapsea cxwioisee duning catstanging at
Aveard date avard date 51 May 2013 durning the yoar during the yoar e yea: 3% May 20

J Noble
S'P: matching shares 1 Aug 17 626.5Gp 574 o] 8] o] 574
SJP: matching shares 6 Aug 198 565.29p 0 318 0] 0 318
Total 574 318 ¢] o 892
Nunber MNurnber
Share price ay Number asal  Number awarded humber lansed exerssed duning outst-nding at
Award date sward date 31 May 2019 duting the yoat during the year the yean 31 Muy 20

J Felix
SIP: matching shares 6 Aug 19 565.29p 0 318 0 0 318

Total 318 0 ¢ 318
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. Nurmnes N.mber
Shate price at Number as ot Number awardea Nurmber lapred exercised dunrg adtstand ng at
Awero date award date 31 Maw 2002 due ng the year during the yvear the year 31 May 20
P Mainwaring
StP: matching shares 1 Aug 17 626.50p 574 0 0 0 572
SIP: matching shares 7 Aug 18 894.43p 402 0 0 0 402
SiP: matching shares G Aug 19 565.29p 0 319 0 0 319
Total 976 319 0 ] 1,293
Table of Directors’ share interests (audited)
2, ot salary beta
unoer shareniolding
| cgatly ownod® [ SFF awards Total . pohcy
Awards heldin, Vestea but
1 May 2018 21 May 2020 plan acount Unesd reised 31 Mav 2020 ~walary
Executive Directors
] Felix 43,700 96,774 318 38,228 - 135,320 150%
P Mainwaring 86,900 120,993 1,293 127,086 - 249,372 353%
I Nobkle 64,187 82,663 892 141,757 - 225,312 328%
B Messer 36,5006 b3172 - 133,326 - 186,498 256%
Non-Executive Directors
M MeTighe! - - - - - - -
M Le May - - - - - - -
1 A Newman - - - - - - -
S-A Hibberd - - - - - - -
I Moulds - - - - ~ - -
A Didham? - - - - - - -
H Stevenson® - - - - - - -
Former Directors
A Green? 6,881 15,055 - - - 15,055 38%
S G Hill® 15,966 15,966 - - - 15,966 188%

MM uhe jomed the boarc o 3T e bruary 2020,
Alhoshanicned the Board on *9 Sentember 2019

H Stevensor: joinsd the Board an 18 March 2020

A Green stepped down foom the Baoard on 19 September 2018
5 SGHIlstepped down from the Board on 27 Apnl 2020,

RIS g

& Thes figare mcludes partncrship sharos that are purchascd as port of the Grour s sharconcentive plan (SlF whick are ned subject to vast g conditions

7 Thes figure shows the number of matchng skares held at 31 Moy 2020 as part of the Group s SIF, whick willvest after threee yeacs from the resmeclive award date s dong as
ermployees reman e gloved by tne Group

2 Thsfiowe croludes awards under the SPP sche me for purfornance yeat end ng 81 May 2020, wench w The grerted following the avr cancerment of toe Groun's results on

22 Juty 2020, The awards held in the plan account include those in respect of plan years 1-6 as at 30 May 2020
S Calculateo oy shares owned an 31 May 2020 pius the unvested shares held withir the SPP on a net of tex Busis o1 the closing mid markst share price of 765 petice an 31 May 2020

Under the share ownership policy, the Executive Directors are expected to hold shares to the value of a minimum of 200%
of base salary. Shares owned by the Executive Directors as well as unvested SPP share options (on a net of tax basis) count
towards this guideline. It is expected that this guideline is achieved within five years of the date of appointment. June Felix
was appointed in October 2018 and has already built a significant sharehelding purchased from her own funds.

There have been no changes to any of the Directors’ share interests in the periocd since 31 May 2020.

The awards to be made under the Company's SPP in respect of the performance pericd ending on 31 May 2020 are not
included in this table {see page 122 for details).

Letwving arngoments ior Peol Meinwering

Earlier this year, Paul Mainwaring, CFO, indicated to the Board that he intended to retire, after nearly 20 years as a UK plc
Finance Director and four as the CFO of IG Group. Paul Maihwaring gave notice of his retirement and stepped down from
the Board on 1 june 2020, the date on which his sucecessor joined the business. He remained with the business untll 26 june
2020 providing a comprehensive handover to the new CFO. Paul will receive a payment of £444,440 in lieu of his salary and
pension and benefits allowance for the remaining approximately 11 months of his notice period. This amount will be paid
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in instaiments. Paul was treated as a good leaver under the SPP. He remained eligible to receive an SPP award in respect of
the 2020 financial year as he was in role for the full year in line with the performance. The details of his award for the 2020
financial year are provided on page 122. He will also receive a pro rata SPP award in respect of the 2027 financial year for his
period in employment to 26 fune 2020. This will be based on performarice targets set for the 2021 financial year.

The outstanding shares in Paul's SPP on the date of his cessation of employment account in respect of the period up to

and including the 2020 financial year will be released to him in accordance with the pian rules and are subject to malus and
clawback provisions, with one-third being released in July 2021, one-third in July 2022 and one-third in July 2023, Any shares
awarded to Paul under the SPPin respect of the 2021 financial year will be released in line with the revised vesting schedule
set cut on page 114.

joining srrangenients for CUhertic Rooee

Charlie Rozes joined the Company as CFO on 1 june 2020. Charlie Rozes salary has been set at £480,000 per annum, his
pension and benefits allowance is 12% of base salary in line with the provision available for other employees in the UK. He will
be eligible for an annua! SPP award of up to 400% of base salary.

Charlie Rozes brings a wealth of experience to the Group and the Committee took into consideration his skills, experience,
and criticality in driving future Group performance when determining a suitable remuneration package. The Company carried
out an extensive search for a new CFO and concluded that a candidate of Charlie’s experience was crucial to supporting

the Group in the implementation of 1G's strategy. In setting his salary level, the Committee considered Charlie’s extensive
previous experience as a Finance Director of a UK ple, including his international experience, which is critical to support

the implementation of 1G's strategy, the level of his previous salary as CFO of Jardine Lloyd Thompson {(which was above

the salary paid to Paul Mainwaring} as well as market practice at other companies of a similar size and complexity, including
other companies in the financial services sector with whom the Group competes for talent. Taking into account all of these
reference points the Committee considered that this salary positioning was appropriate. The Commitiee noted that the
incumbent’s salary had only increased by 2.74% since 2016.

On leaving his previous role, Charlie forfeited the following share awards which the Company has bought out on 4 like-fur-like

basis as summarised below:

- Restricted share award - A restricted share award with a value of ¢.£243,000. The award was due to vest 50% on 1 May
2021 and 50% on 1 May 2022 and was not subject to performance conditions. The Committee intends to grant an award
of equal vaiue which vests on the same dates as the forfeited award. The vesting of this award will be subject te continued
employment, and malus and clawback provisions. The vesting of the buyout award will not be subject to the achievement
of performance conditions as the otiginal award forfeited was not subject to performance conditions

- Performance share award — A performance share award with a maximum value of ¢.£243,000. The award was due to vest
on 1 May 2022 subject to the achievement of performance conditions. The Committee intends to grant an award of egual
value which vests on 30 June 2022. The proportion of the award that vests will be subject to performance to ensure it
operates on alike-for-iike basis with the awards forfeited. The portion of the award that vests will be based on the average
award outcome for SPP awards for the financial years ending 31 May 2021 and 31 May 2022, The Committee ceonsidered
that it was appropriate to link the vesting of awards to IG's performance, to ensure Charlie is afigned with our performance
and the shareholder experience from the outset. The vesting of this award will alsc be subject to continued employment,
and malus and clawback provisions

-2 Market value option award - On leaving his previous employer, Charlle forfeited market value options which were due to
vest and become exercisable one-third on each of the following dates 1 May 2021, 1 May 2022 and 1 May 2023. The gains
on these options based on the three-month average share price to the date of the announcement of his appointment was
£44,600. The Committee intends to grant a restricted share award with a value equal to the value of the gain on the options
which vest on the same dates as the forfeited award. The vesting of this award will be subject to continued employment,
and malus and clawback provisions. The vesting of the buyout award will not be subject to the achievement of performance
conditions, as the origina! award forfeited was not subject to performance conditions

Faymente to past Phectors {fogited)
No payments were made to past Directors in the year.

Executive Directors’ outside appointments
Nene of the current Executive Directors hold any outside appointments.
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Change in remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer (CEQ)

Performance bascad

Base anlary Taxable benetits remuneraticn
chance Yo change W change “Acharnge » changpe . tharge
(FYZG/FY 1D (FYia/FYia) {FY20/FY12) IFY1F Y 18 (FYZ2O0FY1R) A SVE R &t}
CECQ 0% -4.2% 0% 20.2% 420.0% -61.8%
Group employees 1.6% 32% 5.5% 8.8% 49.5% -33.2%

I Felir was appointed as CEO on 30 October 2018 1zk-ne over Trem P G hemenington, whe stepped cown s CEQ on 26 September 2018 For FY19/FY18 thar combined base salary
fartre yoarnmused intho caleulotions Remunerat-orn s mcluded mtne fimang il v ar rowkuch performance 1s measured against,

Relative importance of spend on pay
The following table sets out the profit, dividends and overall spend on pay over the past five financiai years:

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

£m £y £m i £

Profit after tax 2404 158.3 2264 169.2 164.3
Dividends 159.5 1591 168.9 118.5 114.9
Employce remuneration costs 160.7 131.0 131.6 119.1 113.5
Average number of employees 1,887 1.780 1,597 1,522 1,412

CEOQO to all employees pay ratio
For the year ended 31 May 2020, the CEQ's lotal remuneration as a ratio against the full-time equivalent remuneration of UK
employees is detailed in the table below:

Base Total CFO
saliry terune ration v Ao
Year ended 31 May 2020 £600,000 £3,640,000
25th percentile £42,0C0 £565,790 651
50th percentile £63,000 £78,310 46 1
75th percentile £75,000 £106,750 341

The Company has calculated the ratio in line with the reporting regulations using method A’ (determine total full-time
equivalent remuneration for all UK employees for the relevant financial year; rank the data and identify ermployees whose
remuneration places them at the 25th, 50th and 75th percentile). We have used method A as we believe it provides the most
consistent and comparable outcome. Data used to determine the pay ratios was taken as at 31 May 2020 and any part-time
employees’ salary and bonus have been pro-rated to convert them into a full-time equivalent. Please note that the median
employees’ data was not used a5 they were not considered 1o be a representative of a typical employee, instead an employee
next to the median was used for the fiftieth percentile data.

The CEO pay ratio has been rounded to the nearest whole number.

The Board have confirmed that the ratio is consistent with the Company’s wider policies on employee pay, reward and
progression.

Statement of shareholder voting
The Direclors’ Remuneration Policy was approved at the 2017 AGM. The Direclors’ Remuneration Report for the financial
year ended 31 May 2019 was approved at the 2019 AGM. The following votes were received:

2017 Renwr eratior Polivy

Totalnumiber of votes “ of votes cast
For' 289,325,839 96.5%
Against 10,631,334 3.5%
Total 299,957,173 100%
Withheld 7,223,131 -

1 Far incluges votes atthe Chairman s disgretion
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2019 Annual keport on Remuneratior

Tetal rurmber of votes v of votes cust
For 252,044,345 86.34%
Against 30,872,908 13.66%
Total 291,917,253 100%
Withheld 12,194,069 -
1 CFor includc s vetes at the Charman s diseretion

Total Shareholder Return chart

This graph shows the value, by 31 May 2020, of £100 invested in the Group cn 31 May 2010 compared with the value of £100
invested in the FTSE 250 Index and the FTSE 350 Financial Services Index. As the Group is a member of both of these indices,
the Committee believes it is appropriate to compare the Group's performance against them.
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G Group FTSE 250Index  — FTSE 350 Financial Services Index Source FactSet

CEO earnings history
The earnings history of the CEQ is shown in the table below:

Finanenl year 2017 2012 2013 204 2018 20164 2017 2015 z0° 9" 2020

Single figure remuneration 1,141 2,201 1,103 1,970 1.519 2,745 1,452 2,974 1,166 3,640
(ECQ0) .

Annual bonus cutcome 7% 99% 47% - - - - - - -
{% maximum)

LTIP vesting outcome 40% 61% - - - - - - - -
{% maximum)

VSP vesting outcome - ~ 6% 3% 0% - - - - -
(% maximum}

SPP contribution - - - 54% 41% 90% 271% 80% 18.64% 97.2%
(% maximum)?

T The $PP replaced the aimual Lonus and V62 schemes frons the fmanciel o€ ar ending 31 May 204

2 Includes the base falaries paid ta both T & Hewkins and P G Helheriraton for theirr respective tenures as CEQ during the year, and the SPP awards applyng to P G Hetherinaton'n
the yeal,

3 JFelxwas appointed as CFO on 30 Gotober 2018, taking over from B G Hathorinaton who stoppea down us CFO on 26 Septermnbet 2018 The single figure shown « the aggreqgate
Amount earned during the year F Marwaring performed the role of acting GFO for the period between 26 September 2018 ano 30 Octoper 2018 but received no additional
remureration for th s period
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Remuneration Committee’s role
The Commitiee’s principal roles are summarised below:

© Make recommendations to the Board on the Group’s senior executive Remuneration Policy

-3 Determine an overall remuneration package for the Executive Directors in order to attract and retain high-quality
Directors capable of achieving the Group's objectives

-3 Set and agree with the Board a competitive and transparent remuneration framework which is aligned to the Group's
strategy and is in the interest of both the Company and its shareholders

-3 Determine the contractuat terms, remuneration and other benefits for the Executive Directors

- Determine and review the Group’s Remuneration Policy, ensuring it is consistent with effective risk management across
the Group, and consider the implications of this Remuneration Policy for risk and risk management

-+ Determine and agree the policy for the remuneration of the Company Chairman and the Executive Directors

-. Review pay, benefits and employment conditions and the remuneration trends across the Group

-3 Approve the structure of share-based awards under the Group’s employee incentive schemes, to determine each
year whether awards will be made and, if awards are made, to monitor their operation, the size of such awards and the
performance targets to be used

-+ Ensure that contractual terms on termination, and any payments made, are fair to the individual and the Group, that failure
is not rewarded and that the duty to mitigate loss is fuily recognised

- Receive and review reports annually directly from the risk management function on the implications of the Group
Remuneration Policy for risk and risk management

~ Monitor regulaiory developments, including those affecting UK-listed companies and financial services firms, te ensure
the Company's Remuneration Policy is consistent with these

: Establish the selection criteria, appoint and set the Terms of Reference for any remuneration consultants who advise

the Committee

The full Terms of Reference for the Committee can be found on the Group's website, iggroup.com. To ensure the Committee
discharges its responsibilities appropriately, an annual forward calendar, linked to the Committee’s Terms of Reference, is
approved by the Committee,

Activity during the financial year
During the year, the Committee’s key activities included:

> Reviewing the Directors’ Remuneration Policy and the operation of the SPP

# Reviewing the Directors’ Remuneration Report published in the 2019 Annual Report and Accounts

-» Recommending the Board the leaving arrangements for the cutgoing CFO and the remuneration arrangements for
the new CFO

<> Reviewing the fee for the Company Chairman and Executive Directors’ remuneration for the 2021 financial year

- Reviewing performance against targets for the 2020 SPP award, the vesting of LTIP awards and for the determination
of the bonus pool

-2 Reviewing the remuneration and bonus awards, including for senior management

> Reviewing the proposed targets for the 2021 financial year SPP

= Reviewing the performance of the Group's sales incentive plans to gain assurance that their design helps promote
good conduct

-» Reviewing remuneration-related risks, remuneration code staff and gender pay gap reporting

-» Reviewing developments in market practice and corporate governance relating to remuneration

Advice to the Committee

During the financial year ended 31 May 2020, the Committee consulted the Chief Executive Officer about remuneration
matters relating to individuals other than nerself. The Chief People Officer and the Employment Tax and Reward Manager
provide suppoert to the Committee. The Company Secretary is secretary to the Committee and also proviced advice and

support as required.
External advisers attend Committee meetings at the invitation of the Committee Chairman.

The Remuneration Committee appointed Deloitte LLP (Deloitte) as advisers to the Committee in April 2012, following a
competitive tender process.

Deleitte’s fees for advice provided to the Remuneration Committee during the financial year ending 31 May 2020 were
£174,950 lexciuding VAT). Fees are charged on a time and material basis.
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Deloitte are founding members of the Remuneration
Consulting Group and are signatories to its Code of Conduct,
which requires its advice to be objective and impariial. During
the year, Deloitte also provided unrelated advisory services

in respect of regulatory, risk management and tax advice,
Internal Audit services and agreed upon procedures-based
assurance services.

It is the view of the Committee that the engagement team at
Deloitte that provided remuneration advice to the Committee
during the vear do not have connections with the Group

or its Directors that may impair their independence. The
Commitiee reviewed the potential for conflicts of interest
and judged that there were appropriate safeguards against
such contlicts. The Commitiee considers that the advice
received from the advisers is independent, straightforward,
refevant and appropriate, and that it has an appropriate level
of access to them and has confidence in their advice.

Committee evaluation

During the year, an evaluation of the performance of the
Committee and its members was undertaken in line with the
Committee’'s Terms of Reference, The evaluation process
was externally facilitated by independent consultancy firm
Boardroom Review Limited as part of the overall annual
Board and Committee effectiveness review. Boardroom
Review Limited is independent of the Company, and has no
connection with it or with any of the individual Directors.

Further information of the evaluation of the Beard and its
Committees and of individual Directors is given on page 91,
together with a review of the progress on actions arising
from the internally run performance review undertaken
during 2019,

This report was approved by the Board of Directors on
23 July 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

-

MALCOLM LE MAY
CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
23 July 2020
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Jim Newman, Chairman of the

Audit Committee, gives his review of
the Committee’s activities during the
financial year.
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The Committee has continued to
oversee the delivery of improvements in
the systems and controls infrastructure,
in line with our strategic developments.
We have also focused on the implications
of Covid-19 for our reporting and
ongoing viability.

HM NEWMAN
CHAIRMAN OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
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Chairman’s overview

! In lhis report | set out the rele of the Commitlee and how

it has discharged its responsibilities during the year. The
Committee has continued to work closely with other Board

" Committees in respect of relevant issues affecting more than
i one Committee, These included cperational risk and control

developments, strategic developments and the assessment
of Covid-12 implications.

Ir this financial year, we carried cut an audit tender

process in line with the External Auditor Policy, given that
PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC} were in their tenth year of
engagement. Following the conclusion of a formal tender
process led by the Committee, we reappointed PwC as our
auditors for the year ending 31 May 2021, PwC will hold office
until the next AGM of the Company in September 2020, when
their appointment will be subject to shareholder approval.

' The Committee further considered the implications of

Covid-19 on our reporting and going concern, and details

. are provided below.

" 'm pleased to report that this year the Committee continued
- to see significant improvements in the guality of materials

provided and presented. It has overseen and supported the

 development of significant improvements in the systems and

controls infrastructure. This includes the financial control
systems infrastructure, processes and systems relating to the
management of client money and assets, and improvements
to access management control systems, where
implementation of additional controls is still in progress.

The development of controls over corporate actions has
also been a focus in the later part of the year. In addition, the
Committee instigated and oversaw a comprehensive review
by management, assisted by Deloitte, of all dividend income
received and paid by 1G Group Heldings plc, to confirmits
distributable reserve position. As a result of that self-initiated
review, some matters relating to dividend payments have
come to the Board’s attention. These are sel outin the
Operating and Financial Review on page 46.

We saw a change in the composition of the Committee.

"~ lwelcomed Andrew Didham - who has relevant financial

i experience - to the Committee on 12 September 2019,

. Long-standing member, Malcolm Le May, stepped down from
" the Committee on 18 March 2020. | thank Malcolm for his

valuable contribution to the Committee.

The contribution of Paul Mainwaring, who retired as

i Chief Financial Officer (CFO), was significant and greatly
: appreciated by the Committee. He led the development

of major improvements in the financial management and
reporting capabilities of the Group, and was instrumental in

i ensuring that the management of client money and assets

control was properly reported to the Committee. I'd like to
thank Paul for his input to the Committee, and also welcome
the appointment of his successor, Charlie Rozes, who I'm
already enjoying working with.
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The Commitiee has seen material improvement in our
Corperate Governance Framework in relation to legal
entity and policy governance of all subsidiaries within G.
The Committee receives reports from the Management
Committee that has oversight of all subsidiary companies
within IG, ensuring compliance with the Group Legal Entity
and Governance Policy (GLEG). The newly implemented
GLEG provides a framework for the governance, operation
and maintenance of our regulated and non-regulated
entities with regard to their statutory and reguiatory
duties and obligations, and those of their Directors. it
provides a structure to help facilitate decisions being
appropriately made and evidenced at entity level, and to act
as a mechanism to help monitor, control and cversee the
governance of legal entities at Group level.

| can also report that latterly the Committee has seen
improvements in the level and quality of materials provided
in respect of training on accounting, audit and reporting
developments. The Committee also received reports

on general developments in Internal Audit practice and
commissioned an external internal Audit quality assessment
review, the results of which were encouraging.

The Board has agreed amended Terms of Reference

{ToR) to reflect changes introduced in the 2018 UK
Carporate Governance Code, including widening the

scope of responsibilities concerning financial reporling,
whistleblowihg and management of External Auditors. The
last amendment to the ToR was made in January 2020, 1o
include specifically the Committee's oversight of legal entity
governance of all IG companies.

Membership and attendance

All Audit Committee members are Independent Non-
Executive Directors who draw on considerable and broad
business and financial services experience. Andrew Didham

was appointed a member of the Committee on 19 September ‘

2019 following his appointment to the Board.

The Corporate Governance Code requires the inclusion in the
Committee of at least one member determined by the Board
as having recent and relevant financial experience, Andrew
Didham and |, as Committee Chairman. are both considered
to fulfil this requirement.

The CFO, Global Head of Internal Audit, Company
Secretary (or her delegate) and representatives from
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC), the External Auditor,
attend the Committee meetings by standing invitation.
Members of senicr management from various areas of the
business attend the Committee meetings by invitation
when necessary.

I The Committee has four scheduled meetings a year and

will additionally meet if and when reguired. The table below

I detalis meetings scheduled and atiended during the year.

COMMITTEE ELIGIBLE
MEMBER TO ATTEND ATTENDED
Jim Newman 5 5
Andrew Didham? 3 3
Sally-Ann Hibberd 5 5
Malcelm Le May? 4 a4
1 Andrew Ddham atte nded all Comm ttee meetings hela following B appointiment an
T4 Sepienosr 2019
7 Malcol Le Moy res'ansd fromithe Conaittes on 18 Merch 2020 further to atevien
ot compostion of all Be ard Comnmpttens

Role of the Audit Committee
The principal roles and responsibilities of the Committee are

~setoutinits ToR, and include, but are not iimited to:

-, Reviewing the financial statements and announcements
relating to the financial performance and governance of
the Group, including ongoing viability
Reviewing the control environment through several
means including via internal Audit reports, the progress
on implementation of audit recommendations and
through consideration of a summary of the Internal Audit-
generated Control Action List

3 Monitoring and reviewing the etffectiveness of the Group's
Internal Audit function in the overall context of the Group’s
internal controls and risk management

-, Recommending the appointment of the External
Auditors and reviewing lheir el fectiveness, fees, ToR
and independence

. Monitoring the availability of distributable profits for the
purpose of considering dividend payments

Reviewing and approving the Group's arrangements and

Policy for its workforce to raise concerns, in confidence,

about possible wrongdaing in financial reporting or

other matters

N2

The Committee’s full ToR are revised on an annual basis and
can be found oniggroup.com,



How the Committee operates

To ensure the Committee discharges ils responsibilities
appropriately, an annual forward calendar, linked 1o the
Committee’s ToR and covering key events in the financial
reporting cycle, is approved by the Committee.

The Company Sectetary, with input from the Committee

as appropriate, drafts the agenda before each meeting,
ensuring that each of the items under the Committee’s ToR
and responsibilities are covered at least once in the financial
year, and more frequently if required.

Following each Committee meeting, a formal report is made
to the Board in which |, as Chairman of the Committee,
describe the proceedings of the Committee meeting and
make recommendations to the Board as appropriate.

Members of the Committee also meet separately with the
Global Head of Internaj Audit and the External Auditors

to focus on their respective areas of responsibility, and to
discuss any potential requirements for suppert from the
Committee to address any issues arising.

Main activities during the financial year
Finoncislreporiing

In relation to financial reporting, the primary role of the
Committee is to work with management and the External

Auditors in reviewing the appropriateness of the half-year and !

annual financial statements. The Committee discharged its
responsibilities in this area through focusing on the following,
among other matters:

-» Assessing the quality and acceptakility of accounting

policies and practices

Ensuring disclosures are clear and compliant with

financial reporting standards, and relevant financial and

governance reporting requirements

- Considering material areas in which significant judgments
and estimates have been applied or there has been
discussion with the External Audiiors

-+ Reviewing announcements and financial statements prior
to issuance, including preliminary and half-year results
announcements and recommending these te the Board
for approval

-» Reviewing the processes to support the assessment
and determination of the principal risks that may have
animpact on the Group’s solvency and liquidity before
recommending and approving the Going Cencern and
Viability Statement to the Board

sl
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Evaluating on behalf of the Board whether the Annual
Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced
and understandable, and provide the information
necessary for sharehelders to assess the Group's
performance, business mode| and strategy

Receiving a paper summarising all stalements and
assurances reguired of Directors in the Annual Report and
Financial Statements tcgether with evidence 1o support
the Directors’ views and required statements

-3 Overseeing the Group's approach to tax management
and control

Reviewing the inherent risks in the financial reporting
process and systems

b

To aid this review process, the Committee has considered
reports from the CFO and his team, Internal and External
Auditors,

The Committee considered and discussed with management
and the External Auditors the primary areas of judgment and
disclosure in relation to the financial statements for the year
ended 31 May 2020, details of which are set out overleaf.
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Role of the Committee

Discharge of responsibilities

Canclusion/action taken

Going concern and long-term viability

The Directors are required to make a statement
inthe Annual Report as to the going concern
and longer-term viability of the Group.

The Committee evaluated various reports

from management that set out the view of the
Group's going concern and longer-term viability.
These reports detailed the impact of outcomes
of stress tests after applying multiple scenarics
to determine how the Group is able to cope
with deterioration in liquidity profile or

capital position.

Taking intc account the assessment by
management of stress-testing results
and risk appetite, the Committee agreed
to recommend the Going Concern

and Viability Statement to the Board

for approval.

Carrying value of goodwill and other intangible assets

In accordance with accounting standards,
the Groupis required to review any goodwill
balances for impairment and to consider the
underlying assumptions used In determining
the carrying value of these assets.

I addition, the Group is required to assess
whether there is any indication the other
intangible assets may be impaired.

The Committee reviewed a paper from

management setting out the key assumptions
used in the impairment review of the goodwill
balance and an associated sensitivity analysis.

The Commiltee reviewed the impanment review
of the DailyF X intangible asset

Based on the assessment performed,
the Committee concluded that there
should be no change to the recorded
carrying value of the goodwill and other
intangible assets.

Impact of new accounting standards and interpretations

The Group reviewed the impact of new
accounting standards and interpretations on
the Financial Statements to assess their impact
on reporting.

The Committee reviewed the assessment
prepared by management detailing the
expected impact of the following new
accourting standards on the 2020
reporting periods.

IFRS 16 - Leases

IFRIC 23 - Uncertainiy over income tax
treatments

Based on management’s report, the
Committee concluded the impact of
the new accounting standards and
interpretations had been appropriately
evaluated and disclosed.

Tax provisions

Calculating the Group’s Cot poration Tax charge
involves a degree of estimation and judgment,
as the tax treatment of certain items cannot

be finally determined until resolution has been
reached with the relevant tax authority, The
Group hold tax provisions in respect of the
potential tax liability that may arise on these
unresolved items,

The Group has generated tax losses in
certain jurisdictions where we operate, We've
recoghiscd deferred tax assets in respect of
thesc losses 1o the extent that future profits
have been forecast.

The Committee reviewed a report from
management that detailed the assumptions
made in calculating the Groug's Corporation Tax
charge and provisions. Our External Auditors
also provided commentary on this matter to the
Committee. The Committee has also reviewed
the Group’s Tax Risk Management Policy and
Tax Strategy.

Impact of Cq;\;i_d—1 g

The Committee concluded that

the Corporation Tax charge and
provisions recorded by the Group were
appropriate and complete.

The Group considered the impact of Covid-19
on its ability to recover financial assets held.

The Commiltee reviewed areport from
management that detalled the assumptions
made in determining the expected credit

loss in accordance with IFRS 9, taking into
consideration the additional impact of Covid-19.

The Committee has also reviewed changes
to the disclosures made inrelationto
financialinstruments.

The Committee concluded that the
cxpected credit loss provisions and
disclosures recorded by the Group were
appropriate and complete
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Other matters addressed by the Commiltee focused cn the effectiveness of the Group’s control environment and
performance of our IT systems, and the Internal Audit function, including the objectivity and independence cf Internal

Audit personnel.

Role ef the Committee

Discharge of responsibilities

Canclusion/action taken

Risk management and internal control

The Committee is required to assist the Board
inthe annual review of the effectiveness of
the Group’'s Risk Management Framework and
internal control systems.

The Committee received a report from the
Board Risk Committee including an assessment
of those risks that might threaten the Group’s
business model, future performance, solvency
or liquidity.

It considered and challenged management
on the overall effectiveness of the Risk
Management Framework and internal
control systems.

The Committee received regular reports on a
project to further improve controls over Identity
Access Management and the development of
corporate actions contrels and reporting.

The Committee reviewed the relevant
disclosures within the Accountability section of
the Corporate Governance Report within the
Annual Report.

Internal Audit

The Committee agreed to recormmend
to the Board the Annual Report
statements relating to the effectiveness
of the Risk Management Framework and
internal control systems

The Committee is reguired to oversee the
performance, resourcing and effectiveness of
the Internal Audit function.

The Committee monitored and reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group's Internal Audit
function in the overall context of our internal
controls and risk management systems.

it reviewed and assessed the risk-brased Internal
Audit plan.

it reviewed and monitored management’s
responsiveness to the findings and

recommendations of the Internal Audit function,

it monitored the consolidated Control Action
List, noting themes arising, reviewing the
effectiveness of the function.,

The Committee received all internal Audit
reports and, in addition, received summary
reports on the results of the work of the Internal
Audit function on a pericdic basis,

The Committee reviewed additional Internal
Audit Reports, not forming part of the

annual plan, requested by management or
Directors in preparedness for new or changing
product offerings.

It reviewed the perfarmance of the Internal
Audit function against the plan and an
assessment of the effectiveness of the Internal
Audit function

The priorities for the Internal Audit function and
approach to remote working in light of Covid-19
impacts were considered.

The Committee reviewed the resourcing
and etfectiveness of the Internal Audit
funclion and approved the risk-based
audit plan.

The Committee supports the work of
the Internal Audit function in the areas
of advisory and consulting work, where
it predorinantly reports to the Board
Risk Committee.

The Internal Audit function remains
cffective and has implemented the
appropriate policies to ensure this.
The function has sufficient rescurces
to deliver the proposed plan.

The function continues to be efficient,
with the processes being robust and
strohg gavernance being evidenced.

The priorities of the function in light of
the Covid-19 impact assessment were
evaluated and agreed.
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Role of the Committee

Discharge of responsibilities

Cenclusion/action taken

Whistleblowing

" The Committee considers the adeguacy of the
Group's arrangements by which employees
may in confidence raise concerns about
improprieties in matters of financial reporting
or other matters.

Client money and assets
The Caommittee has a responsibility for
overseeing the Group’s systems and controfs

relating to the holding and management of
client money ang assets.

The Committee reviewed the Group's
Whistleblowing Policy te ensure that it remained
fit for our needs.

The Committee menitored the effectiveness of
the control environment relating to client money
and assets, and received an annualreport from
the CFO on the operation of the Client Money
and Assets Committee.

The Committee also considered the report
from the External Auditors on the client money
control environment and operations.

The Committec further received regular repotts
on the control enviranment of corporate
actions, which focused on improvements to the
control environmeril,

The Committee reviewed the
Whistlebiowing Policy and decided it
remained fit for purpose.

The Committee concluded that
whistleblowing processes were
operating effectively during the

period under review, It did, however,
recommend that in due course
management report on all areas of
workforce-related dissatisfaction,
whilst noting the encouraging Employee
Engagement resuits,

The Committee reviewead improvements
made to the controf environment, which
had been stress-tested and the steps
being taken to further enhance controls
at both Group and entity leve!,

The Committee considered ihat these
were appropriate to the circumstances
of the Group.

Corporate governance

The Committee is responsible for the review

of the role of the Control Functions Oversight
Committee {(and from April 2020, the Legal
Entity and Policy Governance Committee) which
itself provides oversight over the risk-based
system for the gavernance, cperation and
mantenance of the Group's legal entities,

The Committee received updates from the
Control Functions Oversight Committee and

an update from the Legal Entity and Policy
Governance Committee to gain comfort

that decisions are made and evidenced at

the appropriate legal entity level, and that
appropriate mechanisms are in place for
monitoring, centrol and oversight of legal entity
decision-making at Group level.

The Committee noted the continued
development of appropriate procedures
and policies, including the Group Legal
Entity Governance Policy and the Policy
Governance Framework.

A restructuning of the boards of the UK
regulated companies within the Group. 1G Index
Limited and IG Markets Limited, to add Non-
Executive Directors to those boards is under
way and expected to be completed during the
next financial year This will ensure appropriate,
enhanced oversight of the regulated entity
beards, as well as clarity of accountability and
detision-making.

The Committee was satisfied as to
the pragress made inimproving the
overall framework,

Legal Entity Governance has been
developed to provide more detailed
oversight of the work of our regulated
entities around the globe. Management
Committees’ ToR were standardised

in advance of the introduction of the
Senior Managers and Certification
Regime last December.

External Auditors

The Committee is responsible for making recommendations on the appointment, reappointment and removal of External
Auditors, and for assessing and agreeing the fees payable to them (both audit and non-audit fees). The Committee is also
responsible for reviewing the audit plans and reports from the External Auditors. The main activities undertaken in relation
to the External Audit are summarised below:
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Conclusion/action taken

The Committee considers and makes
recommendations to the Board (to be put
to shareholders for approval at the AGM) in
relation to the appointment of the Group's
External Auditors The Committee oversees
the selection process for new auditors

An audit tender process was carred out, where

three audit firms had shown interest in the
bid. Due to the breadth of IG's business scope,
strategy and international outreach, smaller
firms declined to tender. A panel was set up
consisting of members of the Committee and

management. Management meetings with each
of the tendering teams were held with the Chair

of the Committee.

The audit tender panel received written
submissions from each of the tendeting
firms, and each firm presented to the audit
tender panel.

Based on a therough assessment process
and in-depth discussion and debate, the
audit tender panelrecommended the
teappointment of PwC as Auditors for the
2021 financial year onwards. commencing
1 June 2020. This recommendation was
hased on the strength and experience

of the lead partner and overall audit
team, PwC's CASS expertise, the quality
of their audit work, the challenge that
they provided, their familiarity with the
Greup and their commitment to continue
to work with the Group to improve the
service they provide,

The Committee recommended to the
Board the reappointment of PwC as
External Auditors for the 2021 financial
year ohwards.

Oversight of external audit

The Committee is required to oversee the
work and performance of PwC as External
Auditers, including the maintenance of audit
quality during the period.

The Commitiee met with the key members of the

PwC audit team to discuss the 2020 audit plan
and agree areas of focus

It assessed regular reports from PwC on the
progress of the 2020 audit and any material
issues identified

It debated the draft audit opinion ahead of the

2020 year-end. The Committee was also briefed

by PwC on critical accounting estimates, where
significant judgment is needed.

The Committee approved the audit plan
and the main arecas of focus, including
revenue recoghition, the potential risk
of management override of controls and
uncertain tax positions.

Maore on the Committee’s role

in assessing the performance,
eftectiveness and independence of the
Extlernal Auditors and the quality of the
external audit can be found on page 144

Audit and audit-related fees

Audit-related fees include those related to the
statutory audit of the Group and its subsidiaries,
as well as audits required due to the regulated
nature of our business. Also included are fecs
associated with the ISAE 3000 controls opinion
relating to the Group's processes and controls
over client money segregation,

During the year, the Commitiee reviewed and

approved a recommendation from management

cnthe Company's audit and audit-related fees.

The Committee considers the 2020 audit
and audit-related fees to be appropriate
given the change in complexity of the
Group structure. A breakdown of audit
and non-audit related fees is in note 4 to
the Financial Staterments on page 162,

Non-audit services and fees

To prevent the objectivity and independence
of the External Auditors from becorming
compromised, the Committee has a formal
policy governing the engagement of the
External Auditors to provide non-audit
services The policy is reviewed on an annual
basis. The Committee reviewed the Group's
pelicy governing non-audit work against
detatls of regulations on the statutory audit of
public interest entities.

We have updaied our internal process on
engagement of External Auditors and review
of non-audit services to ensure that its policy
is in line with the requlations.

The Committee reviewed and approved all

arrangements for non-audit fees. Fees in relation

to permitted services below £0.05 million are
deemed pre-approved by the Committee and
are subject to the approval of the CFO. Fecs
above £0.05 milhlon must be approved by the
Committee, through the Committee Chairman.

The Committee also requested and received
an explanation from PwC of its own in-house
independence process.

The Committee ensured there were no

exceptions to fee limits and approval processes,

per the policy, during the year,

During the year, non-audit fees of £0.1
million were paid 1o PwC, as discussed in
note 4 to the Financial Statements. These
principally related to software services
which ceased during the year.

The Group continues tc engage Ernst &
Young {EY} for global tax compliance.
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Effectiveness of the External Auditors

In assessing the effectiveness and independence of the
External Auditors, the Committee considered relevant
professional and regulatory requirements and the
relationship with the External Auditors as a whole. The
Committee monitored the External Auditors’ compliance
with relevant regulatory, ethical and prefessional guidance
on the rotation of partners, and assessed their qualifications,
expertise and resources, as well as the effectiveness of the
audit process, including a report from the External Auditors
oh their own internai quality procedures and independence.

As part of the assessment, a guestionnaire was completed
by the key stakeholders in the Group. The gquestionnaire
addressed matters including the External Auditors’ integrity,
cobjectivity, skills and technical knowledge, the quality of
planning and execution of the audit, the level of challenge
applied, the External Audifors’ understanding of ihe Group's
business, insights and added value and general support

and communication to the Committee and management.
The results were analysed, and a report was presented to
the Committee. Following the review of the effectiveness

of the External Auditors, the external audit process and an
assessment of the External Auditors’ independence and

The Statutory Audit Services for Large Companies
Market Investigation (Mandatory Use of Competitive
Tender Processes and Audit Committee

 Responsibilities) Order 2014

Following a tender process, PwC has been the Group's
External Auditors since October 2010 and has been
reappointed at each subsequent AGM. The Group is

in compliance with the requirements of The Statutory

- Audit Services for Large Companies Market investigation

(Mandatory Use of Competitive Tender Processes and Audit
Committee Responsibilities) Order 2014, which relates to the
frequency and governance of tenders for the appointment

- of the External Auditors, and the setting of a policy on the
" provision of non-audit services. The Exlernal Auditors are

required to rotate the audit partner responsible for the Group

" audit every five years, and a hew audit partner wiil take over

from the next financial year.

As a result of the audit tender process carried out in 2019,

" the Company will be proposing the reappointment of PwC

objectivity, the Committee recommended the reappointment

of PWC to the Board for recommendation to and approval by
shareholders at the Company’s 2020 AGM.

There are no contractual obligations restricting choice of
External Auditors.

Audit Committee effectiveness

During the year, an evaluation of the performance of the
Committee and its members was undertaken in line with
the Committee’s ToR. The evaluation process was externally
facilitated by independent consultancy firm Boardroom
Review Limited as part of the overall annual Board and
Committee effectiveness review. Boardroom Review Limited
is independent of the Company, and has no connection with
it or with any of the individual Directors.

Further information of the evaluation of the Board and

its Committees and of individual Directors is given on page
21, together with a review of the progress on actions arising
from the internally run performance review undertaken
during 2019,

at the 2020 AGM.

B e ) O S

JIM NEWMAN
CHAIRMAN OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

. 23 July 2020
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I'm pleased to report that the Committee has continued

to embed its role in ensuring a holistic approach to risk
management across the Group, including through clear
linking of risk reporting to the key risks facing the business.

This year's review comes with the added consideration of
the complexity we have faced during the last three months
of the financial year, during which nearly all of our workforce
across the Group has been working from heme, and we've
witnessed unprecedented market volatility - bothi as aresult
of the Covid-19 pandemic.

| believe the way that the Risk Management Framework and
business have adapted to a changing risk profile in light of the
pandemic has been excellent. We've faced significant turmaot
and heightened risk across the business. This has ranged
from levels of market and credit risks never seen before

due to extreme levels of market volatility, to operational and
technology risks associated with distance working, We've
experienced increased load on our systems caused by the
heightened market volatility and increased client numbers.
We've also faced process and conduct risks due to the
unprecedented demand for our products and services, which
drove up the volume of new applications and trading. Despite
this, through our resilience and control infrastructure, we
havenl seen any significant manifestation of risk, or events
out of keeping with the volumes of business we've witnessed.

Chairman'’s overview

The Committee has continued 1o focus on providing
oversight and advice to the Board in relation tc the Group's
current and potential future risk exposures, including risks to
the achievement of our strategy. The Committee’s agenda
reflects the importance of reviewing the key actual and

emerging risks faced by the business.

S I'm pleased to report that the Committee has continued

- to embed its role in ensuring a holistic approach to risk

. management across the Group, including through clear

i linking of risk reporting to the key risks facing the business.

i This has been enabled by the ongoing development of the

Risk Taxenomy and Key Risk Indicators, including alignment
of the two elements, throughout the year,

The Risk function, headed by the Group Chief Risk Officer
{CRO), has supported this development while continuing

to focus on risk-related material such as the Risk Appetite
Statement and Risk Management Framework. The
operational risk management systems have continued to
be developed and embedded inte the business. with strong
stakeholder engagement that encourages a culture of

i event reporting. The Operatiocnal Risk team has adapted its

approach to better assist first-line functions in root-cause
analysis relating to events, which has enabied us to improve

" the design and implementation of contreols. Operational

risk reports are regularly provided to related management
Committees, such as the Executive Risk Committee and the
Client Money and Assets Committee,

mﬁ“'«




IG GROUP HOLDINGS PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2020
[3 GOVFRNANCE REFORT

Board Risk Committee Report

Cuh LT

This year's annual Non-Executive Director Risk Workshop
once again provided active oversight of and input to our
regulatory capital calculations, as set out in the Group's
Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP). [t
also covered the stress-testing of our risks, and our capital
and liquidity held against those, as well as our reverse stress-
test. Recovery Plans (RP) were considered at subsequent
Committee meetings.

Ihternat Audit reporting to the Committee has focused on the

review and advisory work conducted by the function on the
state of the Risk Management Framework - particularly the

-3 Reviewing and recommending the statements to be

: included in the Annual Report concerning controls and

| risk rmanagement, for approval by the Board

i -2 Considering whether any changes in the Group'’s
risk profile warrant a change in proposed insurance

| arrangements

" =% Continuing to work cicsely with other Board Committees
where risk-related input is required

i = Considering reports from Internal Audit on the function’s
advisory work and assessment of the state of the Risk

‘ Management Framework and the Group's current and

! potential risk exposures

development of the operational risk framework, as well as the :

Group's current and potential risk exposures.

Role of the Board Risk Committee

The Committee refreshed its Terms of Reference (ToR} during
the year to reflect that its responsibilities had been extended
to include advising the Boards of 1G Markets Limited and

IG Index Limited with respect to those entities’ current and
future risk appetite and assisting with oversight of strategy
implementation by senior management.

The Committee provides oversight and advice to the Board
in relation to current and potential future risk exposures and
future risk strategy of the Group. This includes determination
of risk appetite and tolerance, considering the current and
prospective macroeconomic and financial environment. Key
responsibilities of the Cormmittee, in addition to those noted
above, include:

-3 Reviewing the Group's major risk exposures, identifying
risk trends, concentrations and exposures and material
regulatory changes, and overseeing the mitigation of
those, consistent with our risk appetite

-* Considering, and recommending for approvat by the

Board. the Risk Appetite Statement and Key Risk Indicators

- Reviewing the scope and nature of the work undertaken
by the risk management and control functions, particularly
in relation to business, regulatory, compliance, anti-
money-laundering, conduct and culture risks

-2 Reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's
technology infrastructure and supporting documentation
in the Risk Management Framework

++ Conducting an annual review of the Group's remuneration
framework in support of the Committee’s responsibility to
consider the alignment of the Remuneration Policy to risk
perfarmance

-3 Ensuring rigorous stress-testing and scenaric-testing of

the Group’s business and receiving reports that explain the

impact of identified risks and threats

Monitoring, reviewing and challenging key regulatory

documents - the Individual Liquidity Adequacy

Assessment {ILAA), ICAAP and the Recovery Plan (RP}

t

The ToR for the Committee are on the Company’s website,
| iggroup.com.

Board Risk Committee membership and attendance
. The Board Risk Committee is composed of Independent

Non-Executive Directors. The following tabie shows the

Committee members during the year and their attendance
i at Committee meetings.

COMMITTEE ELIGIBLE
MEMEBER TO ATTEND ATTENDED
Jonathan Moulds 5 5
Stephen Hitl! 4 4
Jim Newman? 5 4
Sally-Ann Hibberd® 1 1
o1 StephenHllresioned as o Comnittes memper effective trom 18 Maren 2020 anuad
efbisretirement fromihe Board on 27 Apnl 2020,
z imNewman did rot attend one scheculed mzetne dus to y persanal commitment
His apolodies were recelved by the Con mutted Crnarmab i advance chthe noeetirg
+ 30 Gally AnnbHibperd was appoints d a8 3 Comntiee member gn 18 March 2020

The Committee is scheduled to meet four times & year

" and additicnally when required. The Committee met five
times during the financial year. The Committee makes

. recommendations to the Board and, where relevant, to

" other Board Committees {for example, to the Remuneration
Committee on remuneration-related risks) and the business

- of the Committee is reported to the following Board meeting.

Other than the Company Secretary, who attends (or appoints

a delegate to attend), all Committee meetings, Executive

Directors, the Chief Risk Officer (CRO) and the Global Head

of Internal Audit attend Committee meetings by invitation.

: Representatives from other areas of the business attend

. the Committee meetings by invitation as appropriate to the
matter under consideration,
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During the year, the membership of the Committee changed.  Further information of the evaluation of the Board andits
Sally-Ann Hibberd became a member of the Committee and ' Committees and of individual Directors is given on page 91,

Stephen Hill resigned as a member of the Committee on ! together with a review of the progress on actions arising
18 March 2020, ahead of his retirement from the Board on ' from the internally run performance review undertaken

27 April 2020. ¢t during 2019,

To ensure the Committee discharges its responsibilities
appropriately, an annual forward calendar, linked to the
Committee's ToR, is approved by the Comimittee. The
Company Secretary assists the Chairman of the Committee
in drafting the agenda for each Committee meeting.

© JONATHAN MOULDS
Activity during the financial year " CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD RISK COMMITTEE
During the year, the Committee’s key activities included: . 23 July 2020

~ Reviewing developments to the Risk Appetite Statement,
Risk Taxonomy and Risk Management Framework, and
alignment of business and risk management strategy with
the risk appetite
= Considering current and emerging risks facing the business,
including the risk associated with regulatory change,
Brexit, the global Covid-19 pandemic and market volatility
Requesting and/or reviewing a number of specific reports,
including in relation to financial crime risk, anti-money-
laundering controls, and product governance
-. Reviewing and challenging of operational risk development
Reviewing IT and cyber security in the context of the
annual technology risk review
- Review of regulatory waivers applying to legal entities
across the Group
-3 Formal annual compliance assessment of material breaches
> Reviewing enhancements to IG's approach to transaction
reporting
-» Reviewing a culture risk dashboard and report covering
client cutcomes, technology. regulatory outcomes, people |
outcomes and conduct more broadly
> Reviewing the capital and liquidity position of the Group
including through the ICAAP, ILAA and the RP
: Reviewing its own performance and considering steps
to enhance Cormmittee effectiveness and making
appropriate recommendations to the Board

e

Committee evaluation and future priorities

Puring the year, an evaluation of the performance of the
Committee and its members was undertaken in line with
the Committee’s ToR. The evaluation process was externally
facilitated by independent consultancy firm Boardroom
Review Limited, as part of the overall annual Board and
Committee effectiveness review.

Boardroom Review Limited is independent of the Company
and has no connection with it or with any of the individual
Directors.
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present their report, together with the Group
Financial Statements, for the year endad 31 May 2020. The
Directors’ Report comprises pages 14010 142 of this report,
together with the sections of the Annual Report incerporated
by reference as set out below:

CONTENTS

Corporate Governance Report 74-93
Directors’ Responsibilities Statement 143
Financial instruments 178
Greenhouse gas emissions 62
Workforce engagement, communication

and equal opportunities 65-69
Employees, Customers, Suppliers and

Others Reporting Requirements Under

the Companies (Miscellaneous

Reporting) Regulations 2018 24-29
Policy concerning the employment of

disabled persons 66
Going concern and viability statement 72
Directors’ Remuneration Policy, service

contracts and details of Directors’

interest in shares 99-128
Likely future developments 9-71
Risk management and internal control §50-59
Anti-bribery and corruption 70

Section 4144 of the Companies Act 2006 (the Act) reguires
the Directors to present a Strategic Reportin the Annual
Report and Financial Statements. The information can be
found on pages 20 to 73.

The Company has chosen, in accordance with Section

414C (11} of the Act and as noted in this Directors' Report,

to include certain matters in its Strategic Report that would
otherwise be disclosed in this Directors’ Report, including
the Non-Financial Information Statement required by Section
414C of the Act, which can be found in the ESG Report
section on page 71.

In line with the requirements under Capital Requirements
Capital Directive |V, requiring credit institutions and
investment firms to publish annually certain tax and financial

data for each country where they operale, the Group's UK

: regulated subsidiaries will make available their country-by-
_ country reporting on iggroup.com.

" Disclosures required pursuant to Listing Rule 9.8.4R
! in compliance with the UK Financial Conduct Authority’s
. Listing Rules, the information in Listing Rule 9.8 4R to

]
PAGE l !

be included in the Annual Report and Accounts, where
applicable, can be found on the following pages:

l DETAIL PAGE

Waiver of dividends 140

Modern slavery

In compliance with Section 4 (I} of the Modern Slavery
Act 2015, the Group has published its slavery and human
trafficking statement online.

Branch offices

The Group has the following overseas branches within the
meaning of the Companies Act 2006: branch offices in
Australia, China (Representative Office), France, Germany,
Hong Kong, Ireland, ltaly, New Zealand, Norway, Poland,
South Africa, Spain and Sweden

Corporate Governance Statement
In compiiance with the UK Financial Conduct Authority’s

. Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules (DTR) 7.2.1, the

disclosures required by the DTR are set out in this Directors’
Report and in the Corporate Governance Report.

Profit and dividends
The Group's slatulory profit for the year after taxation
amounted to £240.4 million (2019: £158.3 miillion}, all of which

;s attributable to the equity members of the Company.

The Directors recommend a final ordinary dividend of
30.24 pence per share, amounting to £111.7 million, making
a total of 43.2 pence per share and £159.5 million for the
year (2019: 43.2 pence and £152.1 million}. Dividends are
recognised in the Financial Statements for the year in
which they are paid or, in the case of a final dividend, when

. approved by the shareholders. The amount recognised in the
Financlal Statements, as described in note 10, includes this

financial year's interim dividend and the final dividend from
the previous year, both of which were paid.

~ The final ordinary dividend, if approved, will be paid on

22 Qctober 2020 to those shareholders on the register

i as at 25 September 2020.



Certain nominee companies representing our Employee
Benefit Trusts hold shares in the Company, in cennection
with the operation of the Company’s share plans. Evergreen
dividend waivers remain in place on shares held by them that
have not been allocated to employees.

Articles of Association

The Company’s Articles of Association (the Articles) are
available on iggroup.com, or by writing to the Company
Secretary at the Group's registered office. The Articles can
also be obitained from the UK Registrar of Companies. The
Articles were last amended by the shareholders by means
of a special reselution on 21 September 2016.

Board of Directors and their interests
The Directors who held office during the financial year are
set out below:

Chaltimun

Andy Green - stepped down from the Board and as Chairman
on 19 September 2019

Mike McTighe - appointed to the Board and as Chairman on

3 February 2020

i pendept Noem Py etive Dhrglors

Andrew Didham - appointed cn 19 September 2020
Stephen Hill - retired on 27 Aprit 2020

Malcolm Le May

Jonathan Moulds

Jim Newman

Helen Stevenson - appointed on 18 March 2020

Iacvutive Direcio:
June Felix

Paul Mainwaring’
Bridget Messer

Jon Noble

1 PaulManwaringret red o 1 Juns 2020

Our Chief Financial Officer (CFQO), Paut Mainwaring,
announced on 21 January 2020 his intention to retire as CFO
and a Director of the Company. He stepped down from the
Board on 1 June 2G20. Charlie Rozes has been appointed

as CFO and as a Director of the Company with effect from

1 June 2020.

Appointment and retirement of Directors

The appointment and retirement of Directors is governed by
the Articles, the UK Corporate Governance Code (the Code),
the Act and related legislation. The Board has the power to
appeint any person as a Director to fill a casual vacancy or as
an additional Director, provided the total number of Directors
does not exceed the maximum prescribed in the Articles. Any
such Director holds office only until the next AGM, and is then
eligible to offer himself or herself for election.
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The Articles also require that all those Cirectors who have
been in office at the time of the twe previous AGMs, and who
did not retire at either of them, must retire as Directors by
rotation. Such Directors are eligibie to stand for re-election.
However, in line with the Code’s recocmmendation that all
Directors of FTSE 350 companies should be subject to annual
etection, all Directors will stand for election or re-election at
the 2020 AGM.

Directors’ conflicts of interest

I accordance with the Act, all Directors must disclose both

the nature and extent of any potential or actual conflicts with
the interests of the Company. We explain the procedure for
this on page 89.

. Insurance and indemnities

The Group has Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance
in place, providing appropriate cover for any legal action
brought against its Directors. Qualifying third-party

" indemnity provisions {as defined by Section 234 of the Act)

were in force during the year ended 31 May 2020. These
provisions remain in force for the bencefit of the Directors, in

| relation to certain losses and liabilities which they may incur
_{or have incurred) to third parties in the course of acting as
" Directors of the Company.

Research and development
In the ordinary course of business, we regularly develop

. hew products and services.

Political donations

The Company made no political donations to political
organisations or independent election candidates, and
incurred no political expenditure in the year (2019: £nil).

Share capital

The Company has three classes of shares: ordinary shares,
deferred redeemable shares and preference shares. As at

31 May 2020, our issued shares comprised 369,439,455
ordinary shares of 0.005 pence each {representing 99.97% of
the total issued share capital}, 65,000 deferred redeemable
shares of 0.001 pence each (representing 0¢.02% of the total

| issued share capital) and 40,000 preference shares of £1.00
. each {representing 0.01% of the total issued share capital).

Details of movement in cur share capital and rights attached
to the issued shares are given in note 22 to the Financial
Statements. Information about the rights attached to cur
shares can also be found in the Articles. Details of the Group's

~ reguired regulatory capital are disclosed in the Operating and
. Financial Review on page 49.

' Variation of rights

Subject to the provisions of applicable statutes, the rights
attached to any class of shares may be varied, either with the
consent in writing of the holders of at least three-quarters in
nominal value of the issued shares of that class, or with the
sanction of a special resolution passed at a separate meeting

" of the holders of the shares of that class.
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Restrictions on transfer of securities

There are no specific restrictions on the transfer of securities

in the Company, octher than as contained in the Articles

and certain laws or regulations, such as those related to
insider trading, which may be imposed from time to time.
The Directors and certain employees are required to obtain
approval prior to dealing in the Company's securities.

We aren't aware of any agreements between holders of
securities that may result in restrictions on the transfer

of securities or on voting rights.

Exercise of rights of shares in employee share schemes

The trustees of the IG Group Employee Benefit Trusts do not

seek to exercise voting rights on shares held in the employee

trusts, other than on the direction of the underlying
beneficiaries. No voting rights are exercised in relation to
shares unallocated to individual beneficiaries. The trustees
have a dividend waiver in place in respect of unaliocated
shares held in the trust.

Powers of the Directors to issue or purchase

the Company’s shares

The Articles permit the Directors to issue or repurchase the
Company’s own shares, subject to obtaining shareholders’
prior approval. The shareholders gave this approval at the
2019 AGM. The authority to issue or buy back shares will
expire at the 2020 AGM and it will be proposed at the
meeting that the Directors be granted new authorities

1o issue or buy back shares. The Directors currently have
authority to purchase up to 36,943,945 of the Company's
ordinary shares. However, no ordinary shares were
repurchased during the vear.

During the year, the Company instructed the trustees of
the Employee Benefit Trusts to purchase shares in order

to satisfy awards under our share-incentive plan schemes.
The Company also issued shares in respect of the sustained

performance plan. Details of the shares held by cur Employee

Benefit Trusts, and the amounts paid during the year, are
disclosed in note 24 to the Financial Siatements.

. Major interest in shares

Information provided to the Company by major shareholders
pursuant to the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA} and
Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules (DTR) is
published via a Regulatory Information Service, and is

" available on our website. The information in the table below

. has been received in accordance with information made

available to the Company and in accordance with DTRES, from
holders of notifiable interests in the Company’s issued share
capital as at 31 May 2020 and as at 30 June 2020. The lowest
threshold is 3% of the Company’s voting rights, and holders
are not required to notify us of any change until this, or the
next applicable threshold, is reached or crossed.

Change of control

Following any future change of control of the Company,
participating lenders in the Group's bank facility agreement
have the option to cancel their commitment. Upon such
cancellation, any outstanding loans, inciuding accrued
interest and other amounts due to lenders will become
immediately due and payable. Further details may be found
in hote 17 to the Financial Statements.

© There are no agreements between the Company and its

Directors or employees providing for compensation on
any loss of office or employment that occurs because of
a takeover bid. However, options and awards granted to
cmployees under our share schemes and plans may vesl
on a takeover, under the schemes’ provisions.

Annual General Meeting

" The Company’'s AGM will be held on 17 September 2020.
. Details of the resolutions to be proposed at the AGM will

bhe provided in a separate circular sent to all shareholders.

" Independent Auditors

Resolutions to reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as
the Company’s Auditors, and to authorise the Directors 1o
determine their remuneration, will be put to sharehoclders
at the AGM on 17 September 2020,

" Subsequent events

Please refer to note 29 to the Financial Statements.

31 May 7020 20 Jure 2020
Major Interest in shares o No of shares Fercontage No. of shares Percentaqe
Artemis Investment Management LLP 25,336,713 6.86 25,093,371 6.79
BlackRock (Index) 24,802,307 6.71 21,107,638 571
MFS Investment Management 24,234,888 6.56 24,730,546 6.69
The Vanguard Group, Inc. 15,670,651 4.21 15,238,861 412
Marathon Asset Management 13,781,010 373 13,089,666 3.54
Rovyal London Asset Management 13,246,846 359 13,418,200 363
Troy Assel Management Limited 12,660,582 3.43 12,735,082 3.45
M&G 11,218,648 3.04 11,415,810 3.09
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

in respect of the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual
Report and the Financial Staterments in accordance with
applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Financial
Statements for each financial year. Under that law,

the Directors have prepared the Greup and Company
Financial Statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by

the European Union,

Under company law, the Directors must not approve the

Financial Statements unless they are satisfied that they give a

true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the

Company, and of the profit or loss of the Group and Company

for that period. In preparing the Financial Statements, the

Directors are required to:

-+ Select suitable accounting policies and apply them

consistently

State whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the

European Union have been followed, subject tc any

material departures disclosed and explained in the

Financial Statements

- Make judgments and accounting estimates that are
reaschable and prudent

- Prepare the Financial Statements on the going-concern
basis, unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group
and the Coempany will continue in business

wis

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Group and Company’s transactions, and disclose with
reascnable accuracy at any time the financial positicn of the
Group and Company, and enable them to ensure that the
Financial Statements and the Directors’ Remuneration Report
comply with the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the
Group Financial Statements, Article 4 of the International
Accounting Standards Regulation.

The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Group and Company, and hence for taking
reaschable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and olher irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance
and integrity of the Company’s website. Legislation

in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legislation in cther jurisdictions.

Directors’ confirmations

The Directors consider that the Annual Report and Accounts,
taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable, and
provides the information necessary for shareholders to
assess the Group and Company’s position and performance,
business model and strategy.

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are listed

_in the Directors’ Report confirms that, to the best of theil

knowledge:

-> The Group and Company Financial Statements, which
have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted
by the European Union, give a true and fair view of the
assets, liabilities, tinancial position and profit of the Group
and profit of the Company

- The Directors” Reportincludes a fair review of the
development and perfermance of the business and the
position of the Group and Company, together with a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties that
it faces

" In the case of each Director in office at the date the Directors’

Repottis approved.

-3 So far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the Group and Cempany’s Auditors
are unaware

© = They have taken all the steps that they cught to have taken

as a Director in order to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Group
and Company's Auditors are aware of that information

- On behalf of the Board

i

JUNE FELIX

. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

23 July 2020
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Independent Auditors’ Report

to the members of IG Group Holdings plc

Report on the audit of the financial statements

[OTTH Y

In our opinion, IG Group Holdings plc’s group financial statements and company financial statements {the “financial statements”}:

-2 give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the company’s affairs as at 31 May 2020 and of the group’s profit
and the group’s and the company’s cash flows for the year then ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
Europesan Union and, as regards the company’s financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 20086, and

-2 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the greup financial
statements, Article 4 of the |1AS Regulation.

.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report, which comprise: the Consolidated and Company
Statements of Financial Position as at 31 May 2020, the Consolidated and Company Statements of Changes in Equity, the
Consolidated and Company Cash Flow Statements, the Consolidated Income Statement and the Consolidated Statement of
Coemprehensive Income for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which inciude a description of the
significant accounting policies.

Gur opinien is consistent with our reporting to the Audit Committee.

beesis for aopinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) ("1SAs (UK)"} and applicable law. Qur
responsibilities under 1SAs (UK are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sutficient and appropriate to provide a basis tfor
our opinion.

Fratde pos e g

We remained independent of the group in accordance with Lhe elhical requirements that are relevant to onr andit of the
financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC’s Ethical Standard, as applicable to listed public interest entities, and we
have fultilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare that non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not
provided to the group or the company.

Cther than those disclosed in note 4 to the financial statements, we have provided no non-audit services to the group or the
company in the period from 1 June 2019 to 31 May 2020.
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Our audit approach

Crvevieys

Materiality = QOverall group materiality: £14.8 miilion {2019: £9.7 million}, based on 5% of profit before tax.

-2 Qverall company materiality: £6.8 million (2019: £6.4 million}, based on 1% of total assets.

Audit scope < group: We determined the appropriate work to perform based on the consclidated balances of the
group. As aresult, the majority of cur audit work was performed by the group audit team in London
supported by a PwC member firm in Poland, reflecting the centralised nature of the groups’
business activities.

. This approach gave us sufficient coverage over the group's total assets and consolidated profit
before tax

¥ company: The parent company balance sheet consists primarily of investment in subsidiaries,
receivables, and payables. The audit work was perfermed by the group audit team in London

Key audit matters -3 Revenue recognition (group)

-+ Management override of control, including privileged access rmnanagement (group and company}
-» Impact of Covid-192 (group and company)

The s opee of g curddiy

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the financial
statements, In particular, we looked at where the directors made subjective judgements, for example in respect of significant
accounting estimates that involved making assumptions and considering future events that are inherently uncertain.

Cops bty e ihe cugit e aoto vt e e s cloties induding fiiog

Based on our understanding of the group and industry, we identified that the principai risks of non-compliance with laws

and regulations related to the Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct Authority, the Financial Conduct Authority’s Handbook,
European Securities and Markets Authority ("ESMA") and corperation tax legislation, and we considered the extent to which
non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements, We also considered those laws and regulations that
have a direct impact on the preparation of the financial statements such as the Companies Act 2006,

We evaluated management’s incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements (including
the risk of override of controls), and determined that the principal risks were related to privileged access management and the
recording of journals, and potential bias in the determination of material estimates. Audit procedures performed by the group
engagement team included:

-3 Enquiries of management, internal audit, and those charged with governance in relation to known or suspected instances
of non-compliance with laws and regulation and fraud;

> Evaluation and testing of the operating effectiveness of management’s controls designed to prevent and detect

irregularsties;

Identifying and, where relevant, testing journal entries posted by senior management or with unusual account

combinations;

3 Validation of IT changes made in key financial reporting systems by review of logs and approvals;

-3 Review of correspondence with regulators, and internal audit reports in so far as they are related to the financial
statements; and

-3 Incorporated unpredictability into the nature, timing and/or extent of our testing.

N

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and the further removed non-compliance with laws
and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we would become
aware of it. Also, the risk of not delecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery ot intentionat misrepresentations,
or through coltusion.
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Fey siddit roallers

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’ professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit of the
financial staterments of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether
or not due to fraud) identified by the auditors, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy. the
allocation of resaurces in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters, and any comments we
make on the results of our procedures thereon, were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a
whote, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. This is not a complete

list of all risks identified by cur audit.

Key audit matter

Revenue recognition - Group
The group's trading revenue is predominantly generated
from over the counter {(OTC) leveraged derivatives placed by
clients, offset by net gains or losses from the hedging trades
that the group places with external market counterparties to
manage its risk.

The group’s revenue on these activities arises principally from
spreads, overnight funding charges and commissions.

The risk is that there are large volumes of trades entered into
by the group, and while revenue calculations are automated,
depending on the specific product they can be relatively
complex in nature, requiring varying logic and inputs.

How our pudit uddressed the key audit matter

We focused firstly on understanding the control environment
in which revenue is recorded. We understood and evaluated
the design of key controls in place and tested their operating
effectiveness,

These controls included:

Client enbearding;

Trade capture and recording;

-» Validation of system calculated revenue numbers by the
group’s revenue control team;

» Cash and settlement reconciliations;

* Market counterparty and other third party reconciliations;
and

-~ Recording and access to modification of complaints

records.

o

s

We noted ne significant exceptions in the design or operating
effectiveness of the above controls and we determined we
could rely on these controls for the purposes of our audit.

in addition, we performed the substantive procedures
described below:

- We tested the valuation of selected client positicns to third
party pricing sources;

-, We agreed selected cash account balances to external
third party evidence at year-end through a combination
of independent confirmations and examination of bank
statements;

- We agreed selected amounts and balances held with
market counterparties to independent confirmations and
other external third party evidence; and

-: Using data enabled audit techniques, we recalculated the
revenue recorded in relation to an extensive sample of
trades, and agreed these 1o the underlying accounting
records.

in order to address the risk that improper or inaccurate
adjustments or transactions had been entered into the
trading systems, we alsc considered the nature of client
complaints and related matters, making further enguiries
of management where relevant.

No material issues arose from this work.
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Management override of control, including privileged access

management ~ Group and Company

International Standards on Auditing (UK) {ISAs UK) require
that we consider management override of control as a
significant audit risk as managementis in a unique position
to perpetrate fraud because of their ability to manipulate
accounting tecords and prepare fraudulent financial
statements by overriding controls that otherwise appear
to be operating effectively.

Specifically in relation to information technology, the

risk relates to privileged access provided for the group’s
technology function to certain IT systems relevant to the
group’s revenue and financial reporting processes. While
mitigating controls operate, the privileged access couid
result in unauthorised changes being made to system
functicnality or data, either in error or intentionally.

To address the risk of management override of controls,
including privileged access management, we performed the
following procedures:

RS

Enguired of those charged with governance,
management, and internal audit, in relation to known or
suspected instances of non-cornpliance with taws and
regulation and fraud;

Reviewed correspondence with regulators, and internal
audit reports in so far as they are related to the financial
statements;

- Tested the validity of a sample of journals using fraud risk

based criteria for journal selection;

Assessed the judgemental areas underlying key
accounting estimates {for example Impairment of
Intangible Assets including Goodwill), and evaluated
whether there was any evidence of management bias;
Evaluated the nature of customer titigation and cemplaints,

Although the Directors are responsible for safeguarding the for evidence of activity that may have a bearing on the
assets of the business, we planned our audit so that we had a financial statements;
reasonable expectation of detecting material misstatements -3 Validated that the most recent changes to the systems

to the financial statements.

had been recorded in the IT change management system
for approval;

. For each key automated control, tested whether any

inappropriate changes had been made during the period;
Using data enabled audit techniques, recalculated the
revenue recordedin relation to an extensive sample of
trades, and agreed these to the underlying accounting
records;

> Agreed selected cash account balances to external third

party evidence at year-end through a combination of
independent confirmations and examination of zank
statements;

© Agreed selected amounts and balances held wilh market

counterparties to independent confirmations and other
external third party evidence; and

Incorporated unpredictability into the nature, timing and/
or extent of our testing.

No issues arose from this work.
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Key audit matier

How our aught addressed the key audit matter

impact of Covid-19 - Group and Company

The economic disruption arising from the Covid-19 pandemic
has created significant volatility in market prices, and high
volumes of client trading activity. The pandemic has also
resulted in changes 1o working practices being required,
which may impact the effectiveness of the financial reporting
control environment.

The trading circumstances have also resulted in updates to
plans and forecasts being introduced,and required active
management of volatile llguidity requirements arising from
hedging activities.

As a result of the above, we have determined consideration
of the impact of Covid-19 to be a key audit matter.

In assessing the Directors’ consideration of the impact of
Covid-19 on the financial statements, we have undertaken
the following audit procedures:

- Considered the impact that Covid-12 may have had on
controls in a disrupted and remote working environment.
This included performing testing of key controls over the
impacted period to obtain audit evidence to determing
whether the controls continued to be designed and
operating effectively; and

- In assessing the Directors’ going concern assessment:

- Evaluated and challenged management's assessment
of the impact of Covid-19 on the group's financial
plans, liquidity and capital position, and operating
arrangements;

- Evaluated the siress testing performed by management
and considered whether these were adequate;

- Substantiated the nature and existence of the group’s
financial resources and liquidity financing facilities.

We also evaluated the adequacy of the disclosures made
in the financial statements with respect to the impact of
Covid-19.

As a result of these procedures, we concluded that the
impact of Covid-19 has been appropriately evaluated and
reflected in the preparation of the financial statements.

Proove We Twtbiotce!d The oIt so o
}

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we perfarmed encugh work to be able to give an opinicon on the financial
statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the group and the company, the accounting processes and

controls, and the industry in which they operate.

The group consists of a UK holding company with a number of subsidiary entities and branches containing the cperating
businesses of both the UK and overseas territories. The accounting records and related controls for both the UK and overseas
businesses are primarily maintained and operated by the group’s finance teams in London and Krakow. The technology
controls that are relevant to our financial statement audits are operated by the group in London, Krakow and Bangalore.

As a result, the majority of our audit work was performed by the group audit team in London, supported by a PwC membet
firm in Poland, reflecting the centralised nature of the group’s business activities.

bt reotity

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for materiality.
These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of cur audit and the nature, timing and
extent of our audit procedures on the individual financial statement line items and disclosures and in evalualing the effect

of misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole.
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Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Group fimarcial statements Computy financisl statenicnts

Overall materiality £14.8 million (2012: £9.7 million). £6.8 million (2012: £6.4 million).

How we determined it 5% of profit before tax. 1% of total assets.

Rationale for benchmark applied Consistent with last year, we applied A benchmark of total assets has been
this benchmark, a generally accepted used as the company's primary purpose
auditing practice, as it is the most is to act as a holding company with
relevant metric against which the investrments in the group’s subsidiaries,

performance of the group is measured. not to generate operating profits and
therefore a profit based measure is
not relevant. The benchmark used is
consistent with last year.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit above
£0.7 million (Group audit) (2019: £0.5 million) and £0.3 million {Company audit) (2019: £0.2 million} as well as misstatements
below those amounts that, in our view, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.

103 Leng it
In accordance with |SAs (UK) we report as follows:

Rer‘ortl g obligat.on Cutec e

We are requwed to repart if we have anythmg material to add \Ne have nothing matenal to add or to d| aw attentlon to.
or draw attention to in respect of the directors’ statement

in the financial statements about whether the directors However, because not all future events or conditions can be
considered it appiopriate to adopt the going concern basis nredicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the group’s
of accounting in preparing the financial statements and the and company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

directors’ identification of any material uncertainties to the
group’s and the company’s ability to continue as a going
concerh over a period of at least twelve months from the
date of approval of the f|nanC|aI statements.

We are required lo report if the directors’ Slalement relatlng We have nothmg to repot t.
to Going Concern in accordance with Listing Rule 9.8 .6R(3)

is materially incensistent with our knowledge obtained in

the audit.

Fooe citior e ot i Grraeion

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annuat Report other than the financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Qur opinicn on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material
misstaternent, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If. based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is & material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the
UK Companies Act 2006 have been inciuded.
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Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006
(CAQB), ISAs {UK) and the Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) require us also to report certain opinions and
matters as described below {required by [SAs (UK} unless otherwise stated).

Stretegic Kepertond Directory Kepurt

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report and
Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 May 2020 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal requirements {CAQE)

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and company and their environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we did not identify any material misstalements in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Repert. (CAQS)

The diteciors” asscraimiond of the prospecis of the arowy and of tho principad tighs thet woulc thre ctenoth sclveney oo
Hauidiiy of the arcup
We have nothing material to add or draw attention to regarding:

-3 The directors’ confirmation on page 91 of the Annual Report that they have carried out a robust assessment of the principal
risks facing the group, including those that would threaten its business model, future performance, solvency or liquidity.

-} The disclosures in the Annual Report that describe those risks and exptain how they are being managed or mitigated.

- The directors’ explanation on page 72 of the Annual Report as to how they have assessed the prospects of the group, over
what period they have done so and why they consider that period to be appropriate, and their statement as to whether they
have a reasonable expectation that the group will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the
period of their assessment, including any related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary qualifications or assumptions.

We have nothing to report having performed a review of the directors’ statement that they have carried out a robust
assessment of the principal risks facing the group and statement in relation to the longer-term viability of the group. Cur
review was substantially less in scope than an audit and only consisted of making inquiries and considering the directors’
process supporting their statements; checking that the statements are in alignment with the relevanl provisions of the UK
Corporate Governance Code (the "Code”); and considering whether the statements are consistent with the knowledge and
understanding of the group and company and their environment cbtained in the course of the audit. (Listing Rules)

Other Coae §rovistens

We have nothing to report in respect of our responsibility to report when:

< The statement given by the directors, on page 143, that they consider the Annual Report taken as a whale to be fair,
balanced and understandable, and provides the information necessary for the members to assess the group's and
company's position and performance, business model and strategy is materially inconsistent with our knowledge of the
group and company obtained in the course of performing our audit.

~ The section of the Annual Repoert on pages 122-136 describing the werk of the Audit Committee does not appropriately
address matters communicated by us to the Audit Committee.

-: The directors’ statement relating to the company’s compliance with the Code does not properly disclose a departure from
a relevant provision of the Code specified, under the Listing Rules, for review by the auditors.

Ghcoivrs Reputie 1etio:
In our opinion, the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with
the Companies Act 2006. (CAD&)
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Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of the Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of the Financial Statements set out on
page 143, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable
framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal
control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group's and the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Fuditor yevpensibilities tor the audit ot the financicbetatenients

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud ar error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK} will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the agaregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic declsions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements,

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www.fre.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report )
This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept ot
assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whormn this report is shown or into whose hands it may
come save where expressly agreed by cur prior consent in writing.

CAb by iz et teporting
Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to repert to you if, in our opinion:

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

-. adequate accounting records have nct been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

» certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

the company financial statements and the part of the Directors” Remuneration Repaort to be audited are notin agreement

with the accounting records and returns.

e

We have no exceptions Lo report arising from this responsibility.

Fppontnesd

Folldwing the recommendation of the audit commitiee, we were appointed by the directors on 8 December 2010 to audit
the financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2011 and subseguent financial periods. The period of total uninterrupted
engagement is 10 years, covering the years ended 31 May 2011 to 31 May 2020.

DARREN MEEK (SENIOR STATUTORY AUDITOR}

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

London

23 July 2020
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Consolidated Income Statement
for the year ended 31 May 2020

Year ended Year ended

31 May 2020 31 May 2019

Note £m £m

Trading revenue 657.7 488.0
Introducing partner commissions (8.5) (1.m
Net trading revenue 2 649.2 476.9
Betting duty and financiatl transaction taxes (7.4) (7.9
Interest income on segregated client funds 6.0 6.9
interest expense on segregated client funds {1.0) 0.6)
Other operating income 1.4 19
Net operating income 648.2 477.2
Operating costs 3 (341.9) (282.5)
Net credit losses on financial assets 27 {11.0) (1.8)
Gain on sale of subsidiaries 0.7 -
Cperating profit 296.0 192.9
Finance income 5 5.8 54
Finance costs 7 {5.9) (4.0}
Profit before taxation 2959 1943
Taxation 8 (55.5) {36.0)
Profit for the year and attributable to owners of the parent 240.4 1583

Earnings per share:

Basic 9 65.3p 43 1p
Diluted 9 64.9p 42 8p
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Year ended 31 May 2028

Year cnded 31 May 2019

£m £m Erri tm
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the parent 240.4 1583
Other comprehensive income:
ftems that may be subsequently reclassified 1o the income
statement:
Changes in the fair value of financial assets held at fair value 0.7 06
through other comprehensive income, net of tax
Foreign currency translation gain 2.4 6.2 o
Other comprehensive income for the year 31 6.8
243.5 165.1

Total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the parent
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31 May 2019
31 May 2020 Restlatad’
Note £m £m
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment " 46.4 14.4
Intangible assets 12 147.2 1515
Financial investments 13 83.8 1829
Deferred income tax assets 8 11.5 9.0
2889 364.8
Current assets
Trade receivables 15 347.0 3011
Other assets 16 221 331
Prepayments 111 9.7
Other receivables 3.9 53
Cash and cash equivalents 486.2 373.3
Financial investments 13 140.5 353
1,010.38 7578
TOTAL ASSETS 1,299.7 1,122.6
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 17 99.7 286
Lease liabilities 18 22.5 -
Deferred income tax liabilities 8 0.7 04
122.9 100.0
Current liabilities
Trade pavables 19 143.1 110.4
Other payables 20 811 60.0
Lease liabilities 18 6.8 -
Income tax payable 9.9 10.4
240.9 180.8
TOTAL LIABILITIES 363.8 280.8
Equity
Share capital and share premium 22 125.8 125.8
Other reserves 23 168.4 161.2
Retained earnings 641.7 5548
TOTAL EQUITY 935.9 841.8
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,299.7 1.122.6
1 Rcfer to note 23 for turthe rinfermation

The Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 154 to 198 were approved by the Board of Directors on 23 July 2020 and
signed on its behalf by:

CHARLES ROZES
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Registered Company number: 04677092
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 May 2020
Share premiam Ctner reserves
Share capital Restated’ Festated  Retarmedearnngs Total
Nate £m £ £rn £m £m
At 1 June 2018 - 1258 1526 5637 8421
Profit for the year and attributabie to - - - 158.3 158.3
owners of the parent
Other comprehensive income for - - 6.8 - 6.8
the year
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 6.8 158.3 165.1
Transfer of transactions with non- - - 21 (2.1) -
controlling interests reserve
Equity-settled employee share-based 24 - - 7.2 - 72
payments
Tax recognised directly in equity on 8 - - - 0.5 Q.5
share-based payments
Employee Benefit Trust purchase of 23 - - (2.0) - {2.0)
own shares
Equity dividends paid 10 - - - (171.1) {171.1)
Transfer of share-based payment - - (5.5 5.5 -
reserve
At 31 May 2019 - 125.8 161.2 554.8 841.8
IFRIC 23 transitional adjustment - - - 0.5 0.5
IFRS 16 transitional adjustment - - - 0.5 0.5
At 1 June 2019 - 125.8 161.2 555.8 842.8
Profit for the year and attributable to - - - 240.4 240.4
owners of the parent
- Other comprehensive income for - - 31 - 31
the year
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 31 240.4 2435
Equity-settled employee share-based 24 - - 9.7 - 9.7
payments
Tax recognised directly in equity on 8 - - - 0.6 0.6
share-based payments
Employee Benefit Trust purchase of own 23 - - (1.5) - (1.5)
shares
Equity dividends paid 10 - - - {159.2) (159.2)
Transfer of share-based payment - - {4.1) 4.1 =
reserve
At 31 May 2020 - 125.8 168.4 641.7 935.9

1 Refertonote 23 tor furthe! informatan
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 May 2020

MNote

Operating activities
Cash generated from operations 28
Income taxes paid

Net cash flow generated from operating activities

Investing activities

Interest received

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Payments to acquire and develop intangible assets
Proceeds on disposal of subsidiaries

Net cash flow from financial investments

Net cash flow used in investing activities

Financing activities

Interest and fees paid

Interest unwinding of lease liahilities

Repayment of principal element of lease liabilities
Equity dividends paid to owners of the parent
Employee Benefit Trust purchase of own shares
Drawdown of term Joan net of fees

Net cash flow used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Impact of movement in foreign exchange rates

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the yvear

(60.2}

Year ended Year ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019
£m Erin
349.6 256.8
{57.1) (38.4}
2925 218.4
4.5 4.2
{9.9) (5.6)
(6.4) (8.7)
0.6 -
3.3 (50.1)
(7.9)

(5.3) (3.3)
(0.6) -
(6.7) -
(169.2) (171.1)
(1.5) (2.0}

- 995
{173.3} (76.9)
11.3 813
373.3 289.7
1.6 2.3
486.2 373.3




INTRODUCTION

STRATEGIC REPORT

GOVERNANCE REPORT

Y PINANCH L S TETI R ENT S

SHAREHOLDER AND COMPANY
INFORMATION

Notes to the Financial Statements

1. General informatien, basis of preparation and critical accounting estimates and judgments

Genarel inforioetion

The Financial Statements of IG Group Heldings plc and its subsidiaries (together the Group} for the year ended 31 May 2020
were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 July 2020 and the staterment of financia! position was signed on
the Board's behalf by Chartes Rozes. |G Group Holdings plc is a public limited coampany, which is listed on the London Stock
Exchange and incorporated and domiciled in England and Wates. The address of the registered office is Cannon Bridge
House, 25 Dowgate Hill, London, EC4R 2YA.

The Group's Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with EU-adopted International Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRS), interpretations issued by the IFRS Interpretations Committee {IFRS IC) and with the Companies Act 2006
applicable to companies reporting under IFRS. The Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets (including derivative instruments) at fair value through other
comprehensive income and fair value through profit and loss.

The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas
invelving a higher degree of judgrment of complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
Consoclidated Financial Statements are disclosed below.

Brelo of pog eretios,
The accounting policies which have been applied in preparing the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 May 2020 are
disclosed in note 30.

Crities: poeountino entifnet o a0 jugeing ks
The preparation of Financial Statements requires the Group to make estimates and judgments that affect the amounts
reported for assets and liakilities as at the year-end, and the amounts reported for revenue and expenses during the year.

The nature of estimates moans that actual outcomes could differ from those estimates. In the Directors’ opinion, the
accounting estimates or judgments that have the most significant impact on the presentation or measurement of items
recorded in the Financial Statements are the following:

{a) Carrying value of intangible assets (estimate) - the Group undertook an analysis as at 31 May 2020 in relation to the
DailyFX inlangible asset o determine whether there were any indicators of impairment. The Group considered the number
of first trades generated by the asset and the average net trading income generated by each active client to determine
whether there were any indicators that would require a fullimpairment assessment to be undertaken. The Group conciuded
that there were no indicators of impairment. Whilst the global economic outlook is uncertain due to the Covid-19

pandemic, taking into account the perfermance of the asset and wider Group, this was not determined to be an indicator

of impairment. The Group also considered the estimated life of DailyF X and concluded that the total usefullife of ten years
remained appropriate.

The Group undertakes an impairment assessment of goodwill annually. The goodwill balance as at 31 May 2020 primarily
relates to the purchase of the UK business by [G Group Holdings plc. For impairment testing purposes, this goodwill is
assessed as part of the UK cash-generating unit. Information on the key assumpticns used in the Group's impairment
assessment of goodwill is disclosed in note 14.

(b} Tax charge (estimate) - the calculation of the Group's total tax charge involves a degree of estimation. In calculating the
tax charge, the Group makes assumptions about the availability of reliefs, such as the UK Patent Box, the availability of future
profits to support the recognition of deferred tax assets and assessments of the outcome of tax enauiries. The tax treatment
of some transactions and the application of tax legislation cannot be finally determined until formal resolution has been
reached with the relevant tax authority. The Group recognises a tax charge for open tax matters based on an assessment of
the taxes that may be due. For further information please see note 8.
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1. General information, basis of preparation, and critical accounting estimates and judgments c 1.7

lc} DailyF X asset acquisition (judgment) - determining whether the purchase of DailyFX during the year ended 31 May 2017
was a business combination or an asset purchase was a matter of critical accounting judgment which remains relevant for the
year ended 31 May 2020 given the carrying value of £21.0 million at 31 May 2020 {31 May 2019: £23.8 millian). The purchase
included the website, together with its historical content and lead list. In order to enable lead capturing and to re-establish the
DailyF X Plus facility, which captures details on new subscribers, the infrastructure necessary for operating and integrating the
website needed to be rebuilt. A number of the DailyF X staff were offered and subseguently accepted roles with 1G. Therefore,
whilst inputs had been acquired, the processes that IG would ultimately benefit from had to be recreated and rebuilt or
separately acquired. Accordingly, the Group accounted for the transaction as an asset purchase as not all the reguirements
for a business combination were met.

(d) Accounting for cryptocurrencies {judgment) - the Group has recognised £22.1 million of cryptocurrency assets and rights
to cryptocurrency assets on its Statement of Financial Position as at 31 May 2020 (31 May 2019: £33.1 million). These assets
are used for hedging purposes and held for sale in the ordinary course of business and a judgment has been made to apply
the measurement principles of 1AS 2 Inventories in accounting for these assets. The assets are presented as 'Other assets’
on the Staternent of Financial Position. The accounting treatment of cryptocurrency assets is considered to be a critical
accounting policy judgment.

2. Net trading revenue
Net trading revenue represents trading revenue after deducting introducing partner commissions.

ot bodinarevenie by cperatine seonent

The Executive Directors are the Group's Chief Operating Decision-Maker (CODM). Management has determined the operating
segments based on the infermation reviewed by the Executive Directors for the purposes of allocating resources and
assessing performance.

The CODM consider business performance based on geographical location. This geographicai split reflects the location of the
office that manages the underlying client relationship. Net trading tevenue represents an aliocation of the total net trading
revenue that the Group generates from client trading activity.

The CODM continue 1o consider business performance from a product perspective, split inte QTC leveraged derivatives, ‘
exchange traded derivatives and stock trading and investments. The revenue from exchange traded derivatives derives from
the United States and EU. The revenue from stock trading and investments derives from the UK, EU and Australia.

During the year ended 31 May 2020, the basis of allocation for net trading revenue by product has changed. Net trading
revenue allocated to the stack trading and investments product now includes the currency conversion fees charged to stock
trading and investments clients. These fees were previously included in OTC leveraged revenue.

The Group manages market risk and a humber of other activities on a Group-wide portfolio basis and accordingly a large :
proportion of costs are incurred centrally. These central costs are not affocated to individual segments for decision-making

purposes for the CODM, and, accordingly, these costs have not been allocated to segments. Additionally, the Group’s assets

and liabilities are not allocated to individual segments and not reported as such for decision-making purposes to the CODM.
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2. Net trading revenue - .

The segmental analysis shown below therefore does not include a measure of profitability, nor a segmented balance sheet,
as this would not reflect the information which is received by the CODM on a regular basis. The segmental breakdown of net
trading revenue is as follows:

Year anded Year ended
31 May 2020 371 May 2073
£m £
Net trading revenue by geography:
UK 257.7 2011
EU 89.0 68.0
EMEA non-EU 55.2 43.5
Australia 91.9 701
Singapore 57.0 40.5
Japan 46.6 19.2
Emerging markets 28.3 17.5
us ‘ 23.5 7.0
Total net trading revenue 649.2 476.9
Net trading revenue by product:
QTC leveraged derivatives 617.2 4514
Exchange traded derivatives 18.4 16.8
Stock trading and investments 13.6 87
Total net trading revenue 649,2 476.9
The Group does not derive more than 10% of revenue from any single client.
3. Operating costs
Year ended Yearcnded
31 May 2020 A May 20019
MNote £m £
Employee-related expenses:
Fixed remuneraticn 116.4 106.3
Variable remuneration 44.3 247
160.7 131.0
Advertising and marketing 61.8 51.7
Premises-related costs 7.3 13.1
IT, market data and communications 26.6 237
Legal and professional costs 14.2 13.8
Regulatory fees 6.8 3.6
Depreciation and amortisation 11,12 256 17.3
Other costs 38.9 28.3
341.9 2825

Included in premises-related costs is £0.7 million relating to short-term cperating leases which do not meet the criteria to
be capitalised as right-of-use assets. Prior to the introduction of IFRS 16 Leases, all expenses relating to operating leases of
£6.6 million were included in premises costs for the year ended 31 May 2019.




IG GROUP HOLDINGS PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2020
D FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements «cvinin

4, Auditors’ remuneration

Year ended Yeal enacd
31 May 2020 31 Moy 2019
£Em Em
Audit fees
Parent 06 05
Subsidiaries 0.7 0.6
Total audit fees 1.3 1.1
Audit-related fees
Services supplied pursuant to legislation 0.6 0.6
Other audit-related assurance services 0.1 0.1
Total audit-related fees 0.7 0.7
Non-audit fees
Other services 0.1 0.2
Total non-audit fees 0.1 0.2

Audit-related fees include services that are specifically required of the Group’s Auditors through legislative or contractual
requirements, controls assurance engagements required of the Auditors by the regulatory authorities in whose jurisdiction
the Group operates and other audit-related assurance services.

Other services primarily relate to the licensing of software used for the production of client stock trading statements.
This licensing service ceased during the year ended 31 May 2020.

5. Staff costs
The staff costs for the year, including Directors, were as follows:

Year ended Vear enoed

31 May 2020 71 e, 201D

Em o

Wages and salaries, performance-related banus and equity-settled share-based 137.8 2.2
payment awards

Social security costs 15.8 12.2

Other pension costs 71 6.6

160.7 131.0

The Group does not operate any defined benefit pension schemes. Other pension costs includes employee-nominated
payments to defined contribution schemes and company contributions.

The Directors’ remuneration for the years ended 31 May 2020 and 31 May 2019 is set out in the Directors’ Remuneration
Report on page 117.

The average monthly number of employees, including Directors, split into the key activity areas was as follows:

Year ended Year ondea

11 May 2020 %1 Ma, 2079

Number Number

Prospect acquisition 308 270
Sales and client management 260 221
Technology 709 678
Operations 336 353
Business administration 274 258

1,887 1,780
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6. Finance income
Year ended Year ended
31 May 2020 3" Moy 20718
£m £m
Bank interest receivable 2.5 3.1
Interest receivable on cash held at brokers 1.7 1.2
Interest accretion on financial investments 1.6 1.1
5.8 54
7. Finance costs
Year ended Year ended
%1 May 2020 31 Mav 2019
£m £m
Bank interest payable 0.5 0.3
Revolving credit facility interest and fees 0.9 0.5
Term loan interest and fees 28 2.7
Interest payable to brokers 1.1 0.5
Interest pavable on lease liabilities 0.6 -
5.9 4.0
8. Taxation
Terx onprofit oncreinery cotivitics
Tax charged in the income statement:
Year endad Year ended
31 May 2020 51 May 2039
£m £
Current income tax:
UK Corporation Tax 52.7 32.6
Non-UK Corparation Tax 4.9 4.1
Adjustment in respect of prior years (0.2) (1.1
Total current income tax 57.4 356
Deferred income tax:
Qrigination and reversal of temporary differences {(1.4) {0.3)
Adjustmentin respect of prior years {0.2) 0.7
Impact of change in tax rates on deferred tax balances (0.3) -
Total deferred income tax {1.9) 0.4
Tax expense in the income statement 55.5 36.0
Tax not charged to income statement:
Tax recognised in other comprehensive income 0.2 0.1

Tax recognised directly in equity (0.6) {0.5)
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8. Taxation - :viwi

Reconciliction of the tetaltar charc o

The standard rate of Corporation Tax in the UK for the year ended 31 May 202015 19.0% (31 May 2019: 19.0%]). Taxation
outside the UK is calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. The tax expense in the income statement for
the year can be reconciled as set out below:

Year ended Year enced
31 May 2020 ST May 2018
£m Em
Profit before taxation 2959 184.3
Profit multiplied by the UK standard rate of Corporation Tax 56.2 36.9
of 19.0% (year ended 31 May 2019: 19.0%)
Higher taxes on overseas earnings 04 0.9
Adjustment in respect of prior years (0.4} (0.4)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1.1 1.5
Patent Box deduction (1.7} 1.n
Impact of change in tax rates on deferred tax balances (0.3} -
Recognition and utilisation of losses previously not recognised {1.3) (3.3)
Current year losses not recognised as deferred tax assets 1.5 15
Total tax expense reported in the income statement 585 360
The effective tax rate for the year is 18.8% [year ended 31 May 2019: 18.6%;).
[reforree iriccrnd 1oy nreoie
31 May 2020 T M, 2079
£Em £rm
Tax losses available for offset against future profits 43 4.6
Temporary differences arising on share-based payments 27 0.8
Temporary differences arising on fixed assets 1.8 17
Other temporary differences 2.7 1.9
116 9.0
refe rread inc oo tea ot €
31 May 2020 31 Mav 2079
Em £
Temporary differences arising on fixed assets (0.4) 0.4
Other temporary differences {0.3)}
(0.7} (0.4)
Proferte 0 o ome woy peCay ot yrss THIC e it
31 May 2020 31 My 2019
£m £n
Deferred tax assets to be recovered within 12 months 4.8 2.3
Deferred tax assets to be recovered after 12 months 6.7 6.7
11.5 9.0
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled within 12 months {0.1) -
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled after 12 manths (0.6} {C.4)

(0.7) (0.4)
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8. Taxation .~ «+ .-

The UK Government reversed the planned reduction in the rate of UK Corporation Tax from 19% te 17% in March 2020. The
impact of this change on deferred tax has been reflected, and deferred tax assets and liabilities have been assessed at the tax
rates that are expected to apply when the related asset is realised or liability settled.

The Group has an unrecognised deferred tax asset of £4.2 million (31 May 2019: £2.4 million) in respect of pricr years’ losses
of the US businesses, and current year losses in respect of the German and Hong Kong businesses, the recoverability of which
is dependent en sufficient taxable profits in those entities. The recognised deferred tax asset reflects the extent to which it

is considered probable that future taxable profits can be offset against the tax iosses carried forward. The Group also has an
unrecognised deterred tax asset of £12.7 million {31 May 2019: £11.6 million) in respect of UK capital losses, the recoverability
of which is dependent on sufficient capital gains arising in the future.

Share-based payment awards have been charged to the income statement but are not allowable as a tax deduction until
the awards vest. The excess of the expected lax relief in future years over the amount charged to the income statement is

recognised as a credit directly to equity.

The mcovement in the deferred income tax assets is as follows:

Year endecd Year cnded

31 May 2020 41 May 2019

€m i

At the beginning of the year 9.0 9.1
- Income statement (charge}/credit 2.0 (0.1}
- Tax credited to other comprehensive income - 0.1
- Tax {charged)/credited directly to equity 0.6 (0.2}
- Impact of movement in foreign exchange rates {0.1) 01
At the end of the year 11.5 9.0

The movement in the deferred income tax liability is as follows:

Year ended Yoarended

31 May 2020 31 May 2079

£m +m

At the beginning of the yvear {0.4) -
- Income statement (charge) (0.1) (0.3)
- Tax {charged) to other cormprenensive income - (0.2) o 7(_07.1)
At the end of the year (0;7} {0.4)

Fertoreffectig tho tar eherar B fito v yeo e

Factors that may affect the Group's future tax charge include the gecgraphic location of the Group's earnings, the tax rates in
those locations, changes in tax legislation, the recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses and the resolution of open tax
issues. The Group's future tax charge may also be impacted by changes in the Group's business activities, client composition
and regulatory status, which could impact the Group’s exemption from the UK Bank Corporation Tax surcharge.

The calculation of the Group's total tax charge involves estimations and judgments with respect to several items, including
the recognition of deferred tax assets, which are dependent on the Group's estimation of future profitable income, transfer
pricing, and certain items whose tax treatment cannot be finally determined until resolution has been reached with the
relevant tax authority. The Group is subject to a number of disparate tax jurisdictions worldwide as a resull of its global
operations, and these tax regimes themselves are subject to change. The Group determines its tax liability by taking into
account its tax risks and it makes provision for those matters where it is probable that a tax liability will arise.

There are two historic UK tax schemes that are subject to formal resolution with HMRC. The Group has previously paid all tax
and interest arising on these transactions and expects them to be resolved with no further impact on the Group’s tax charge.
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9. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares inissue during the year, excluding shares held as own shares in the Group's
Employee Benefit Trusts. Diluted earnings per share is calculated using the same profit figure as that used in basic earnings
per share and by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares assuming the vesting of all outstanding share
scheme awards and that vesting is satisfied by the issue of new ordinary shares.

Year ended Year ended

31 May 2020 31 May 2019

£m Ern

Earnings attributable to owners of the parent 240.4 158.3
Weighted average number of shares:

Basic 368,081,407 367.570,489

Dilutive effect of share-based payments 2,540,279 2,796,298

Diluted 370,621,686 370,367,487

Year ended Year ended

31 May 2020 31 May 2019

Basic earnings per share 65.3p 431p

Diluted earnings per share 64.9p 42.8p

10. Dividends paid and proposed

Year ended Year ende g

31 May 2020 21 Ma, 2019

£m £rr

Final dividend for FY19 at 30.24p per share (FY18: 33.51p) 111.4 123.3

interim dividend for FY20 at 12.96p per share (FY19: 12.96p) 47.8 478

159.2 1711

The finat dividend for the year ended 31 May 2020 of 30.24 pence per share amounting to £111.7 million was proposed by the
Board on 23 July 2020 and has not been included as a liability at 31 May 2020, This dividend will be paid on 22 October 2020,
following approval at the Company’s AGM, to those members on the register at the close of business an 25 September 2020,
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11. Property, plant and equipment
Ottice
couipment,
| ¢ aschold fintures and Computer ang Rian-of uee
imprevements fittings other eguipment avnets Tatal
£ £m £ £m £

Cost:
At 1 June 2018 23.1 6.3 30.9 - 60.3
Additicns 0.8 0.5 4.2 - 5.5
Disposals/write-of fs {(2.1) (0.4) (1.0) - (3.5)
Impact of mevement in fareign exchange rates (C.2) (O} (0.2) - (0.5)
At 31 May 2019 216 6.3 33.9 - 61.8
IFRS 16 transitional adjustment - - - 24.0 24.0
At 1 June 2019 21.6 6.3 33.9 240 85.8
Additions 1.3 0.7 7.9 121 22.0
Impact of movement in foreign exchange rates 0.1 {0.1) - 0.1 0.1
At 31 May 2020 23.0 6.9 41.8 36.2 107.9
Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 June 2018 17.0 37 241 - 44 8
Provided during the year 1.0 0.8 4.9 - 6.7
Amounts derecognised upon disposal (2.1) (0.4) (1.0} - {3.5)
Impact of movement in foreign exchange rates {0.2) (0.1 {0.3} - (0.8)
At 31 May 2019 15.7 4.0 277 - 47.4
Provided during the year 1.6 0.9 4.9 6.9 14.3
Impact of movement in foreign exchange rates (0.1} (0.1} - - (0.2)
At 31 May 2020 17.2 4.8 326 6.9 61.5
Net book value — 31 May 2020 58 21 9.2 293 46.4
Net book value - 31 May 2019 5.9 2.% 6.2 - 14,4
Net book value - 31 May 2018 6.1 2.6 6.8 - 15.5

As of 1 June 2019, the Group has adopted IFRS 16 Leases and recognised right-of-use assets arising from the Greup's lease
arrangements. All right-of-use assets relate to premises leases. Refer to note 30 for further information on the transitional

impact of IFRS 16 Leases.
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12. Intangible assets

Internally
veveloped Seftware and
Goodwill Dot N names =eltware licences Total
£m £m £ £rm £m
Cost:
At 1 June 2018 108.0 38.9 30.9 229 200G6.7
Additions - - 5.9 3.2 9.1
Disposals - - - {0.1) (0.1}
Impact of movement in foreign exchange rates 0.1 1.6 (e} - 1.6
At 31 May 2019 1081 40.5 36.7 26.0 211.3
Additions - - 4.3 21 6.4
Disposals - {3.5) - - (3.5)
Impact of movement in foreign exchange rates - 0.7 {0.1) - 0.6
At 31 May 2020 108.1 37.7 40.9 281 2148
Accumulated amortisation:
At 1 June 2018 - 11.4 17.3 206 49.3
Provided during the year - 3.4 50 21 10.5
Amounts derecognised upon disposal - - - {0.1) (0.1
Impact of movement in foreign exchange rates - 0.3 0.2) - 0.1
At 31 May 2019 - 151 221 226 568
Provided during the year - 3.6 5.8 1.9 11.3
Amounts derecognised upen disposal - (3.5) - - {3.5)
Impact of movement in foreign exchange rates - 0.2 {0.2) - -
At 31 May 2020 - 15.4 27.7 245 676
Net book value - 31 May 2020 108.1 22.3 13.2 36 147.2
Net book value - 31 May 2019 1081 254 14.6 34 1516
Net book value - 31 May 2018 108.0 27.5 13.86 2.3 151.4
13. Financial investments
Financial investments are UK Government securities:
31 May 2020 41 May 2019
£m £
Held as:
Liquid asset buffer 83.8 844
Collateral at brokers 140.5 140.8
2243 226.2
Of which:
Non-current portion 83.8 189.9
Current portion 140.5 35.3
2243 2252

The effective interest rates of securities held at the year-end range from ©.29% to 1.04% (31 May 2019: 0.08% to 1.04%]).
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14. Goodwill
Goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing purposes to cash-generating units (CGUs) as follows:

31 May 2020 3 heay 5019
£m £m
UK . 100.9 100.2
us 61 - 6.0
Australia 0.1 01
South Africa 1.0 1.1
108.1 1081

Goodwill arcse as follows:

= UK - from the reorganisation of the UK business on 5 September 2003

< Australia - from the acquisition of the non-controlling interest in 1G Australia Pty Limited in the year ended 31 May 2006
-7 US - from the acquisition of Nadex (formerly HedgeStreet Exchange) on 6 December 2007

= South Africa - from the acquisition of Ideal CFDs on 1 September 2010

Ieapaiiraent lecting

The Group’s goodwill balance has been subject to a fullimpairment assessment and there has not been any impatrment
recognised for the year ended 31 May 2020 or 31 May 2019. For the purposes of the Group’s impairment testing of goodwill,
the carrying amount of each CGU is compared to the estimated recoverable amount of the relevant CGU and any deficits are
considered impairments requiring recognition in the year. The carrying amount of a CGU includes only those assets that can
be attributed directly, or allocated on a reascnable and consistent basis.

The estimated recoverable amount for each CGU is based upon the value-in-use (VIU) of each CGU. For all CGUs, the estimate
of the recoverable amount was higher than the carrying value,

hey et uinf tions weed s the ¢ dlooiRdicn o ihe jec oy erable acent of the TG

The key assumpticns for the VIU calculations are those regarding expected future cash flows, regional long-term growth rates
and discount rates. Future cash flow projections are based on the most recent financial budgets considered by the Board
which are used to project cash flows for each CGU over the next four yvears. After this period a terminal growth rate of 2.0%
{31 May 2019: 2.5%) has been applied to the fourth year of the cash flow te derive a terminal value for the CGUs, The resultant
cash flows haye been discounted at a pre-tax discount rate of 10.0% {31 May 2019; 10.0%) for UK, 15% for South Africa

{31 May 2019: 10.0%), 12.0% {31 May 2019: 12.0%) for Australia and 12.0% {31 May 2019: 18.0%) for the US.

versitivity to chenoer e taption

These calculations have been subject to a sensitivity analysis reflecting reasonable changes in key assumptions. All VIU
calculations are not sensitive to a 500 basis points discount rate increase and to business performance of 30% below forecast.
In addition, the recoverable amount of all CGUs remained higher than the carrying value with terminal growth rates reduced to
zero. At this level the recoverable amount for all CGUs exceeded the carrying values by a significant amount.
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15. Trade receivables

31 May 2020 31 May 2019
Em £m
Amounts due from brokers . 274.8 245 4
Own funds in client money 66.5 539
Amounts due from clients 57 1.8
347.0 3011

Amounts due from brekers represent balances with brekers where the combination of cash held on account and the valuation
of financial derivative open positions results in an amount due to the Group. In addition to amounts due from brokers, the
Group posts UK Government securities as collateral with brokers to partly meet margin requirements of which £51.8 million
{31 May 2019: £81.6 million} are held in custody accounts and £88.7 million (31 May 2019: £59.2 miillion) is considered as full
title transferred held in non-custody accounts. These are classified as financial investments.

Own funds in client money represents the Group’s own cash held in segregated client funds, in accordance with the UK's
Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) 'CASS' rules and similar rutes of other regulators in whose jurisdiction the Group operates
and includes £16.5 million (31 May 2019: £13.5 million) to be transferred to the Group on the following business day.
Amounts due from clients arise when a client’s total funds deposited with the Group ate insufficient to cover any trading
losses incurred or when a client utilises a trading credit limit, and is stated net of an allowance for impairment.

16. Other assets

Other assets are cryptocurrencies and rights to cryptocurrencies, which are owned and controlled by the Group for
the purpose of hedging the Group's exposure 1o clients’ cryptocurrency trading positions. The Group holds rights to
cryptocurrencies on exchange and in vaults as follows:

31 May 2020 TV My OTY
£Em im
Exchange 6.0 14.2
Vaults 16.1 18.9
221 331

Other assets are measured at fair value. Other assets are level 2 assets in accordance with the fair value hierarchy {note 26).

17. Borrowings

In May 2020 the Group extended its credit facility with four UK banks. The credit facility is for £200 million, of which

£10C million is a fully drawn term loan which is repayable on maturity of the facility in June 2022, The term loan is stated net
of £0.3 million of unameortised arrangement fees. The Group also has access to a £100 million revolving credit facility with a
maturity date of June 2021 having been extended by one year in May 2020. The revolving credit facility was not drawn as at
31 May 2020.

18. Leases

Following the adoption of IFRS 16 Leases from 1 June 2019, the Group now recognises a lease liability on the balance sheet to
represent its obligation to make Jease payments. The table below shows the maturity analysis of the recognised Jease liabiiity
at 31 May 2020, and the rental commitments under non-cancellable operating leases that related to leases that have not been
recoghised as right-of-use assets prior to the adoption IFRS 16 at 31 May 2019,

31 May 2020 21 Ma, 2070
£m £m
Future minimum payments due:
Within one year 6.8 7.0
After one year but not more than five years 20.9 19.0
Atter more than five years 1.6 26
293 28.6

In addition to the £29.3 million lease liability, the Group has £0.2 million lease commitments under non-cancellable operating
leases which are not capitalised as right-of-use assets.
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18.Leases ' .
The movements in balances associated with IFRS 16 Leases can be reconciled as follows:
Right- of-uce arnel
£m
Right-of-use asset at 1 June 2019 24.0
New |lease agreements - present value of lease liabitities 11.5
New lease agreements - estitnated restoration costs 0.7
Depreciation in the year (6.9)
Right-of-use asset at 31 May 2020 29.3
Lease linbility
£Em
Lease liability at 1 June 2019 24.5
New lease agreements - present vajue of lease liabilities 11.5
Lease payments made in the year {(7.3)
Unwinding of discount 0.6
Lease liability at 31 May 2020 29.3
19. Trade payables
31 May 2020 Z1 May 2073
£m Lm
Client funds 141.4 107.4
Amounts due to clients 1.7 3.C
1431 110.4

Client funds comprise titie transfer funds and client deposits with the Group’s Swiss banking subsidiary. These amounts are
included within cash and cash equivalents. Client funds aiso includes financial liabilities relating to issued turbo warrants.
Amounts due to clients represcnt balances that will be transferred from the Group's own cash into segregated client funds
on the foliowing business day in accordance with the UK's FCA 'CASS’ rules and similar rules of other regulators in whose
jurisdiction the Group operates.

20. Other payables
31 May 2020 3 NMay 2010
£m £m
Accruals 74.2 53.9
Payroll taxes, social security and other taxes 6.9 6.1
811 60.0

21. Contingent liabilities and provisions

In the ordinary course of business, the Group is subject to legal and regulatory risks in a number of jurisdictions. There are
no contingent liabilities that are expected to have a material adverse financial impact on the Group’s Consolidated Financial
Statements. The Group had no material provisions at 31 May 2020 (31 May 201%: £nil).
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22. Share capital and share premium

Share premium

account
Shure capiial Restated!
Number of shates £m i
Allotted and fully paid:
{i} Ordinary shares {0.005p)
At 31 May 2018 367,889,455 ~ 1258
Issued during the year 955,000 ~ -
At 31 May 2019 368,844 455 - 125.8
lssued during the year 595,000 - -
At 31 May 2020 369,439,455 - 125.8
{ii} Deferred redeemable shares (0.001p)
At 31 May 2019 65,000 - -
At 31 May 2020 65,000 - -
{iii) Redeemabie preference shares {(£1.00)
At 31 May 2019 40,000 - -
At 31 May 2020 40,000 - -
1 Refer torote 23 for further intosmation

During the year ended 31 May 2020, 595,000 (31 May 2019: 855,000] ordinary shares with an aggregate nominal value
of £29.75 (31 May 2019 £47.75) were issued 1o the Employee Benefit Trust in order to satisfy the exercise of sustained
performance plan and long-term incentive plan awards, for consideration of £29.75 (31 May 2019: £47.75).

Except as the ordinary shareholders have agreed or may otherwise agree, on a winding up of the Company, the balance of
assets available for distribution, after the payment of all of the Company’s cteditors and subject to any special tights attaching
to other classes of shares, are distributed among the shareholders according to the amounts paid up on shares by them,

Podforregredoe ol vhinres

These shares carry no entitlement to dividends and no voting rights.

hetieonsbie proference shares

The preference shares are entitled to a fixed non-cumulative dividend of 8.0% pald in preference to any other dividend.
Redemption is only permissible in accordance with capital distribution rules or an the winding up of the Company where
the holders are entitled 1o £7 per share plus, if the Company has sufficient distributable reserves, any accrued or unpaid
dividends. The preference shares have no voting rights, except that they are entitled to vote should the Company fail to pay
any amount due oh redemption of the shares. The effective interest rate on these sharesis 8.0% (31 May 2019: 8.0%).
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Foreian Own shares
Share-basc g currency hield in controling beraer fotul other
Gayments translation Employew Interests  Availabile-for [l Ruserve ressrves
FOVEIVG teserve  Bonefit Trusty 1CSCrve sale reserve Sarive fepstate a Restated!
£ £m im Frr £ £ £ £m
At 1 June 2018 15.7 65.5 (7.4} (2.1 (N} - 81.0 152.6
Transfer of transactions with - - - 2.1 - - - 2.1
non-controiling interests reserve
Equity-settled employee share- 7.2 - - - - - - 72
based payments
Foreign currency translation on - 6.2 -~ - - - - 6.2
overseas subsidiaries
Exercise of UK share incentive 0.9 - 0.9 - - - - -
plans
Employee Benefit Trust purchase - - (2.0 - - - - {2.0)
of shares
Reclassification on IFRS @ adoption - - - - 0.1 {G.1) - -
Change in value of financial assets - - - - - 06 - 0.6
held at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Transfer of share-based payment {5.5) - - - - - - {6.5)
reserve
At 31 May 2019 6.5 71.7 (8.5) - - 05 810 161.2
Equity-settled employee share- 9.7 - - - - - - 9.7
based payments
Foreigh currency translation on - 2.4 - - - - - 2.4
overseas subsidiaries
Exercise of UK share incentive {5.4) - 54 - - - - -
plans
Employee Benefit Trust purchase - - {1.5) - - - - (1.5)
of shares
Change in value of financial assets - - - - - 0.7 - 0.7
held at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Transfer of share-based payment 4.1) - - - - - - (4.1)
reserve
At 31 May 2020 16.7 741 {4.6) - - 1.2 81.0 168.4

T Refertornote 23 7o fiptrer information,

The share-based payments reserve relates to the estimated cost of equity-settled employee share plans based on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period. The foreign currency translation reserve relates to transkation of overseas subsidiaries. It
includes a balance of £53.7 million arising from foreign exchange gains on Japanese goodwiliand customer list assets that
were acquired in 2008, and were subsequently impaired in full in the year ended 31 May 2011. The fair value through other
comprehensive income (FYQOCH) reserve includes unrealised gains or losses in respect of financial investments, net of tax.

In the year ended 31 May 2009, the Group carried out a share placement of 27,864,407 shares at a placing price of £2.95 per
share, raising £82.2 miilion. After deducting £1.2 million transaction costs, £81.0 million was recognised as ‘share premium’.

L
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23. Other reserves o.'J1i.0[0

This placing was facilitated through 1G Jersey Cashbox Limited, a Jersey incorporated company which has since been
liquidated. The Group has now determined that the transactian quatified for merger relief under section 612 Companies Act
2006, As aresult, £81.0 million has now been reclassified to ‘'other reserves’ from ‘share premium), reflecting the merger relief
treatment. The affected financial statement line items for the prior periods are restated as foliows:

Siotete it of Fimenciol Pesition st Breteinenl of Chrpog s e foufiy fes i ot

Freiously
Veportea Adpusting nte Restated
fm £m £

At 1 June 2018
Equity
Share capital and share premium 206 .8 {81.0} 125.8
Otherreserves 716 g81.0 152.6
At 31 May 2019
Equity
Share capital and share premium 206.8 (81.0) 1258
Other reserves 80.2 810 161.2
fovvnehor o eld in Employee Eoene fit e

The movements in own shares held in Employee Benefit Trusts in respect of employee share plans during the year were as
follows:

Year ended Yeor ended

31 May 2020 21 May 2010

Number Iwumber

At the beginning of the year 1,126,490 1,622,024
Subscribed for and purchased during the year 858,852 1.181.072
Exercise and sale of own shares held in trust {706,004) (1,076,613)
At the end of the year 1,279,338 1,126,490

The Group has a UK-resident Employee Benefit Trust which holds shares in the Company to satisfy awards under the Group's
HM Revenue and Customs approved share incentive plan (SIP). At 31 May 2020, 277,478 ordinary shares (31 May 2019
339,934) were held in the trust. The market value of the shares at 31 May 2020 was £2.1 million {31 May 2019 £1.9 million).

The Group has a lersey-resident Employee Benetit Trust which holds shares in the Campany to satisfy awards under the long-
term incentive plan and sustained performance plan. At 31 May 2020, the Trust held 974,678 ordinary shares (31 May 2019:
745,694). The market value of the shares at 31 May 2020 was £7.5 million (31 May 2019: £4.1 million).

The Group has an Australian-resident Employee Equity Plan Trust which holds shares in the Company to satisfy awards under
a SiP. At 31 May 2020, 27,182 ordinary shares (31 May 2019 40,862) were held in the trust. The market value of the shares at
31 May 2020 was £0.2 million (31 May 2019 £0.2 million).

24. Employee share plans
The Company operates three employee share plans; a sustained performance plan (SPP), a long-term incentive plan (LTIP} and
a share incentive plan (SIP}, all of which are equity-settied.

Sestudne et lormanee plan -
The SPP award was introduced in the year ended 31 May 2014 for the Group's Executive Directors and other selected senior
employees. The Remuneration Committee approves any awards made under the plan and is responsible for setting the policy
for the operation of the SPP, agreeing performance targets and participation.

The legal grant of awards under the SPP occurs post the relevant performance period. At the outset of the financial year
the Remuneration Committee approves, and communicates to the participants, performance conditions and a predefined
maximum meonetary award in terms of multiple of salary. The grant of awards, in the form of equity-settled par value options,
is based upon three performance conditions: relative total sharehofder return (TSR), diluted earnings per share (EPS) and
operational non-financial performance {NFP). Awards subseqguently vestin tranches over the longer term, so the participant
retains an ongoing substantial stake in the share price performance of the Company.
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The following table shows the movement of options in the SPP for the year ended 31 May 2020:

Dividend

equivalent

Awxuarded | aprsed Exsercised awarded
Forrormante Atthe start durina during during during At the enc
Penoa Share price Expsoted tull of the yeat the year the year the yeor the yent of the vear
Awara date vear ended) at award west iy date MNuraber Numger Mursbior MLt Numbct MNumber
4 Aug 2014 31 May 2014 609.90p 1 Aug 2025 61,126 - - (24.667) 1,527 37,986
6 Aug 2015 31 May 2015 742.55p 1 Aug 2025 65,325 - - (26,034} 2,680 41,971
2 Aug 2016 31 May 2016 868.65p 1 Aug 2025 303,397 - {11,905) (108,078} 12,912 196,326
1 Aug 2017 31 May 2017 626.50p 1 Aug 2025 223,976 - (6,870) (74.658) 9,712 152,160
7 Aug 2018 31 May 2018 883.00p 1 Aug 2025 760,635 - (26.575) (253,512) 19,747 500,189
6 Aug 2019 31 May 2019 55920p 1 Aug 2025 - 461,366 {12.686) (101, 403) 23 676 370,953
Total 1,414,358 461,366  (58,036) {588,352) 70 248 1,299,585

The average share price at exercise of options during the year was 565.84 pence.
The exercise price of all SPP awards is 0.005 pence.

Further information on the Company’s SPP awards to Executive Directors is given in the Directors’ Remuneration Report.
The SPP awards for the year ended 31 May 2020 will be granted post year-end following the approval of actual performance
against targets set by the Remuneration Committee. A ten-day share price averaging period, that commences after the
Company's closed period. is utilised to convert the notional value awarded into a number of options.

The table below details the number of oplions expected to be awarded for the year ended 31 May 2020, based on the year-

end share price:
Awards expected

for the year ending

Closmmg shure price ot Expected full 31 May 2020

Fxpected award date 31 My 2020 vesting date MNuniber
6 Aug 2020 765.0p 1 Aug 2025 2,307,805

o te e incendioe pion
The LTIP is made available to senior management who are not invited to participate in the SPP.

Awards under the LTIP are nominal cost options, which vest after three years, conditional upon continued employment at the
vesting date. There are no performance targets.

The maximum number of LTIP awards that can vest under the awards made are:

Dividena

eauvals nt
&l the start Awearded during | apsed auring Erere seo dunng awarded during Atthe enid
Shate price  Frpected vesting of e e the year thie yeat the yoaur th e veat af the yeat
Awarg date at award datr Number Numb ot MNumber Numaoer Nuribet Number
1 Aug 2017 626.50p 1 Aug 2020 406,372 - (143, 3?7) - - 262,925
7 Aug 2018 893.00p 7 Aug 2021 270,619 - {43,240) - - 227,379
6 Aug 2019 559.20p 6 Aug 2022 - 491,480 (17,476) - -- 474,004
Total 676,991 491,480 {204,093) - - 964,378

The exercise price of alt options awarded under the LTIP is 0.005 pence. Awards issued on 12 August 2016 and expected to
vest on 12 August 2019 lapsed in full during the year ended 31 May 2018,
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Share incentive plan

SIP awards are made available to all UK, Australian and US employees. The terms of the award are approved by the
Remuneration Committee.

The UK and Australian awards invite all employees to purchase up to £1,800/A%3,000 (31 May 2019: £1,800/A83,000) of
partnership shares, with the Company matching on a one-for-one (31 May 2019: ane-for-one} basis. All matching shares vest
after three vears as long as the employee remains employed with the Group for the term of the award. Shares awarded under
the scheme are held in trust in accordance with local tax authority rules. Employees are entitled to receive dividends on the
partnership and matching shares held in trust for as long as they r‘emain employees.

The US award invites employees to invest a maximum of 5% of their salary to the award. Employees are invited to purchase
shares in IG Group Holdings plc at a discount of 15% to the scheme price, being the lower of the cpening share price and the
closing share price for the period.

The maximum number of matching shares that can vest based on the SIP awards made are:

At Ine start forraravd ouring Lapssagurnng Excroimea durnimg Al the erd

Shareprice  Lapecled esunG of the year the year the year the year ctthbe veor

Country cf award Aveard date ot award dote Number Nuniber Nuriber Numbes Nuarsoer
UK 2 Aug 2016 879.50p 2 Aug 2019 98.175 - {862) (97,313} -
Australia 15 Jul 2016 930.00p 15 Jul 2019 7,234 - - (7,234) -
UK 1 Aug 2017 626.50p 1 Aug 2020 112,936 - (7.902) {3.680) 101,354
Australia 15 Jul 2077 626.50p 15 Jul 2020 12,082 - (240) {1,156) 10,686
UK 7 Aug 2018 893.00p 7 Aug 2021 107,294 - 12,112) (2,814} 92,368
Australia 15 Jul 2018 935.84p 15 Jul 2021 11,156 - (1.024} (1,326) 8,806
UK 6 Aug 2019 559.20p 6 Aug 2022 - 68,745 (1.5691) (956) 66,198
Australia 15 Jul 2019 597.00p 15 Jul 2022 - 3,395 471 {566} 2,358
Total 348,877 72340 (24,202) {115,045} 281,770

Of the above SIP awards exercised during the year ended 31 May 2020, the average weighted share price at exercise was:

We al ten
AVErRDE SNATE
Country of award Award date [<JNS

UK 2 Aug 2016 668 25p
Australia 15 Jul 2016 548.50p
UK 1 Aug 2017 626.50p
Australia 15 Jui 2017 6406.00p
UK 7 Aug 2018 B871.26p
Australia 15 Jul 2018 859.50p
UK 6 Aug 2019 556.00p
Australia 15 Jul 2019 614.12p

The weighted average exercise price of the SIP awards exercised during the year ended 31 May 2020 is 561.14 pence.

Lccentting tor share cohanes
The IFRS expense recognised in the income statement in respect of share-based payments was £9.7 million (31 May 2019
£7.2 million).

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments to employees is determined at the date at which a shared
understanding of the terms and conditions of the arrangement is reached between the Company and the participants.
The weighted average fair value of the equity-settied awards granted or deemed as such under [FRS 2 during the year was
E13.5 million {31 May 2019: £7.8 million).

For SIP awards the fair value is determined to be the share price at the grant date without making an adjustment for expected
future dividends, as award recipients are entitled to dividends over the vesting period.

i
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24, Employee shareplans . .. . -
For LTIP awards the fair value is determined to be the share price at grant date without making an adjustment for the expected
future dividends as dividend eguivalents are awarded on options granted under the LTIP.

For potential SPP awards made under the TSR criteria, fair value is calculated using an option pricing mode! prepared by
advisers. For the SPP awards made under the EPS and NFP operational measures, the fair value is determined by taking the
share price al deemed grant date less the present value of expected future dividends for the duration of the performance
period. Dividend equivalents accrue under the SPP on awarded but not yet vested options post the performance period.
Dividend equivalents cease to accrue on Unexercised opticns after the vesting date.

The inputs below were used to determine the fair value of the TSR element of the SPP awards granted on 6 August 2019;

Date of grant 6 August 2019
Share price at grant date 559.2p
Expected life of awards 0.82 years
Risk-free Sterling interest rate 0.61%
IG Group Holdings plc expected volatility 35.96%

Due to the small exercise price of 0.005 pence, the risk-free rate has no impact on the fair value calcutation.

IG Group Holdings ple's expected volatility is based on historical TSR volatility of |G Group Holdings plc measured daily over a
period prior to the date of grant and commensurate with the remaining performance period.

The weighted average fair values for cutstanding awards across all schemes are as follows:

At the bewaining Awardoed dur ng Lapsed duning Encroined dunimg At the ord

of the yo w1 the yoar e yenir Lhie- year of the year

Year ended 31 May 2020 751.23p 468.83p 743.20p 739.50p 577.48p
Year endea 31 May 2019 749.83p 84511p 87398p 736.38p 751.23p

25. Related party transactions
The Group had no transactions with its Directors other than those disclosed in the Directors’ Remuneration Report.

The Directors and other members of management classified as ‘persons discharging management responsibility” in
accordance with the Market Abuse Regulation are considered to be the key management persennel of the Group in
accordance with IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures. The Directors’ Remuneration Report discloses all benefits and share-
based payments earned during the year and the preceding year by the Executive Directors. The total compensation for key
management personnel was as follows:

Year ended fear ended

31 May 2020 21 Wy 2019

£m £y

Short-term employee benefils 4.6 6.0
Share-based payments 7.9 6.5
12,5 12.5

The average number of key management personne! during the year was nine (year ended 31 May 2019: ten).

g
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26. Financial instruments
Accounting classifications and fuit vatue:

The table below sets out the classification of each class of financial assets and liakilities and their fair values. The Group
considers the carrying value of all financial assets and liabilities to be a reasconable approximation of fair value and represents
the Group's maximum credit exposure as at the balance sheet date without taking account of any collaterat held.

Total carrying

FVTPL Amortized cost FVOCI amount Fair value
As at 31 May 2020 Note £m £m £Em £m £m
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents - 486.2 - 486.2 486.2
Financial investments 13 - - 2243 2243 224.3
Tota! trade receivables — amounts due 15 {1.8) 276.6 - 2748 274.8
(to)/from brokers ;
Trade receivables - own funds in client 15 - 66.5 - 66.5 66.5
money
Trade receivables - amounts due from 15 - 5.7 - 5.7 5.7
clients
Other receivables - 3.9 - 39 3.9
{1.8) 838.9 2243 1,061.4 1,061.4
Financial liabilities:
Trade payables - client funds 19 12.6 (154.0) - {141.4) (141.4)
Trade payables - amounts due to clients 19 - (1.7) - .7} {1.7)
Borrowings 17 - {99.7) - {99.7) (99.7)
Other payables - {81.1) - (81.1) {81.1)
12.6 {336.5) - (323.9) {323.9)
Toin Tanvng
FTFL Anrcrtised cost Lo Far valuc
Al 31 May 2079 foote £m i £ i
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents - 373.3 - 3733 373.3
Financial investments 13 - - 2252 2252 2252
Total trade receivables - amounts due 15 (28.6} 274.0 - 245.4 245.4
(to)/from brokers
Trade receivables - own funds in client 15 - 53.9 ~ 53.9 539
money
Trade receivables - amounts due from 5 - 1.8 - 1.8 1.8
clients
Other receivables - 5.3 - 53 5.3
{28.6) 7083 2252 9049 Q204.2
Financial liabilities:
Trade payables - client funds 19 41.0 (148 .4) - (107.4} (107.4)
Trade payables — amounts due to clients 19 - {3.0) - (3.0) {3.0)
Borrowings 17 - (99.6) - {99.6) (92.6)
Other payables - (60.0) - {60.0) (60.0}
41.0 {311.0) - {270.0) (270.0)
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26. Financlal instruments: ' - ‘
Pinsnciziinvtriment veluation hiererchy
The hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments carried at fair value is as follows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Total fair valua
As at 31 May 2020 £m £m £Em £m
Financial assets:
Total trade receivables - amounts due {to)/from brokers {3.0) 1.2 - (1.8)
Financial investments 224.3 - - 2243
Financial llabilities:
Trade payables - client funds - 12.6 - 12.6

lewel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Totakfair value
As at 31 May 2019 £m £n £ £Em
Financial assets:
Trade receivables - due (io)/from brokers 6.0 (34.6) - {28.6)
Financial investments 2252 - - 225.2
Financial iiabilities:
Trade payables - client funds - 41.0 - 41.0

Fair value hierarchy levels 1 to 3 are based on the degree Lo which Lhe fair value is cbservable:

Level 1 assets are valued using unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical financial instruments. This category
includes the Group's open exchange-traded hedging positions. The guoted market price used for financial assets held by the
Group is the period end bid price.

Leve! 2 assets are valued using techniques where a price is derived based significantly on observable market data. For
example, where an active market for an identical financial instrument to the product used by the Group to hedge its market
risk does nol exist. This category includes the Group’s open non-exchange-traded hedging positions. This comprises shares,
foreign currency and foreign currency options. The fair values used in the valuation of these products are sometimes brokered
values and may occur after the close of a market but before the measurement date. The effects of discounting are generally
insignificant for these Level 2 financial instruments.

Level 3 assets are valued using techniques that incorporate information other than observable market data that is significant
to the overall valuation.

There have been no changes to fair value hierarchy, the valuation techniques and accounting estimates for any of the Group’s
financial instruments held at fair value in the year (31 May 2019: none). There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2
tair value measurements, and no transfers into or out of Level 3 fair value measurements for years ended 31 May 2020 and

31 May 2019,
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26. Financial instruments ¢« * i oo
Fait value of finaneicl essote and nbilitics measweed at amottised cost )
The hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments not carried at fair value is as follows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total fair value
As at 31 May 2020 £m £m £m £m
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents - 486.2 - 486.2
Trade receivables - amounts due from brokers - 2766 - 276.6
Trade receivables - own funds in client money - 66.5 - 66.6
Trade receivables - amounts due from clients - 5.7 - 5.7
Other receivables - 3.9 - 3.9
Financial liabilities:
Trade payables - client funds - {154.0} - (154.0)
Trade payables - amounts due to clients - (1.7) - 1.7}
Borrowings . - {99.7) - (99.7)
QOther payables - (81.1) - (81.1)

Lovel ? Lewve] 2 Levsd d Tota! far value

Auoal 37 May 2019 £m £m Trm £
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents - 3733 - 373.3
Trade receivables — amounts due fiom brokers - 2740 - 274.0
Trade receivables — own funds in client money - 539 - 53.9
Trade receivables - amounts due from clients - 1.8 - 1.8
Other receivables - 53 - 5.3
Financial liabilities:
Trade payables - client funds - (148 4) - (148.4)
Trade payabies —~ amounts due to clients - (3.0} - {(3.0)
Borrowings - (990.6) - {99.6)
Other payables - (60.0) - (60.0}

The fair value of the financial assets and liabllities measure at amortised cost apptoximate thelr carrying amount:

- Cash and cash equivalents

-1 Trade and other receivables (excluding the Group’s open financial derivative hedging positions with brokers above)
- Trade and other payables

- Borrawings

et el intoine erptive, Ot of 1osse:
Alt of the Group’'s gains and losses arising from financial assets and liabilities classifled as fair value through the profit and loss
are included in net trading revenue for the years ended 31 May 2020 and 31 May 2019.

Clivetting bine ngiel eriets cred bataties
The following financial assets and liabilities have been offset and are subject to enforceable netting agreements.

Gross amounts

Gross amounts of recognised
ofr gnised fi ial Net s of
financial assets  liabilities set off financial assets
As at 31 May 2020 Note £Em Em £m
Financial assets
Trade receivables - amount due from/{to) brokers 15 7331 {458.3) 274.8
Financial liabilities
Trade payables — client funds 19 14.8 (156.2) {(141.4)

747.9 (614.5} 133.4
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26. Financial instruments ¢ .-

Gross amounts

Gross amounts of of recogained

recoonised finansial Net amounts or

financisl asuets habilties set off finencial desets

Asat 31 May 2019 hote £ £m £m

Financial assets

Trade receivables - due from/(to} brokers 15 610.6 (365.2) 2454
Financial liabilities

Trade payables — client funds 1% 42.2 (149.6} (107.4}

652.8 {514.8) 138.0

Armounts due from brokers and client funds have been presented gross to reflect the impact of offsetting. The Group is
entitled to offset amounts due from brokers on a broker account level. Client funds represents balances with clients where
the cash held on balance sheet and the valuation of open derivate positions result in an amount due to clients. The offsetting
note has been restated to include these balances, which the Group is entitled to offset.

27. Financial risk management
Financial risks arising from financial instruments are analysed into market, credit, concentration and liquidity risks. Details of
how risks are managed are discussed in the Risk Management section on page 50,

Wirketrich
Market risk disclasures are analysed into these categoties:

> Non-trading interest rate :

> Price and foreign currency risk, which is further analysed between the impact on financial investments beld at fair value
through other comprehensive income and the impact on the Group’s year-end net trading book position. The Group’s
foreign currency exposure on its financial assets and liabiiities denominated in currencies other than the reporting currency
is included in the trading book

Non-trading interest rate risk
The Group has interest rate risk relating to financial instruments not held at fair vaiue through profit or loss. These exposures

are not hedged.

The interest rate risk profile of the Group's financial assets and liabilities at each year-end was as follows:

Within 1 year Bfw.c&n 2 and Hyears » Tc_:»tfi\ o _
31 May 2026 31 May 201% 31 May 2020 3% May 2019 31 May 2626 31 May 2079
£m £ £m Frr £m £m
Fixed rate:

Financial investments 140.5 35.3 83.8 188.9 224.3 2252

Floating rate:
Cash and cash equivalents 486.2 373.3 - - 486.2 3733
Trade receivables - due from brokers 274.8 2454 - - 2748 245.4
Trade receivables - own funds in client 66.5 53.9 - - 66.5 h3.%

money

Borrowings - - {99.7} (99.6) (99.7) {99.6)
968.0 7079 (15.9) 90.3 952.1 7982

There are no financial assets and liabilities which are held for a period over five years.

Non-trading interest rate risk sensitivity analysis - fixed rate
Interest on financial instruments classified as fixed rate is fixed until the maturity of the instrument. The level of future fixed
interest receivable would be similar to that received in the year and is considered immaterial to the Group's profit for the year.
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27. Financial risk management c.. 7.

Non-trading interest rate risk sensitivity analysis — floating rate

Interest on financial instruments classified as fioating rate is re-priced at intervals of [ess than one year. Trade receivables and
payables include client and broker balances upon which interest is paid or recejved based upon market rates.

Interest rate sensitivity has been performed on fioating rate financiai instruments by considering an adverse interest rate
movement of 1% on financial assets and liabilities. The impact of such a movement on the Greoup's profit for the year is
shown below.

Year ended Year enaed
31 May 2020 a1 May 2078
£m fin

Impact.
Cash and cash equivalents {4.9) (3.7}
Trade receivables ~ amount due from brokers (2.7} 2.5
Trade receivables - own funds in client money (0.7) {0.5)
Borrowings 1.0 1.0

The netimpact of such a movement in interest rates is considered to be immaterial to the Group's profit for the year,

Price risk
The Group is exposed to investment securities price risk because finarnicial investments held by the Group are priced based on
closing market prices published by the UK Debt Management Office.

The table below summarises the impact of decreases in the value of financial investments on the Group's post-tax gain or loss
in other comprehensive income. The analysis is based on the assumption that the value of financial investments has decreased
by 1% with all other variables held constant:

Year ended Yesr edod

21 May 2020 21 May 2019

£m £

Impact on FVOCI reserve (equity) (2.2) 2.3

The financial impact of such a movement in fair value is considered to be immaterial to the Group.

The Group is also exposed to price and foreign currency risk in relation to its net trading beok position. The Group accepts
some exposure to market risk in arder to optimise the efficiency and effectiveness of its services to clients. The Group
manages the market risk it faces in providing its services to clients by internalising client flow {allowing individual client trades
1o offset one ancther) and hedging when the residual exposures reach predefined limits. The Group’s Risk Management
Framework is set out on page 50 of the Annual Report, The Group’'s Market Risk Policy incorporates a methodology for setting
market risk limits for each financial market in which clients can trade, as well as certain groups of markets or assets which are
considered to be correlated.

The table below presents the Group’s combined exposure 1o indices and equities, and the Group's largest exposure to foreign

exchange and commodities, as at 31 May 2020. The sensitivity analysis presents the impact on the income statement of a 5%
adverse market movement with all other variables held constant.

31 May 2020 20 May 2019
Notional Noticnsl
exposure Impact EXpoture Irrpact
Em £Em £m £m
Indices and equities 0.7 4.0 (0.2)

Foreign exchange . 2.9 {0.1) 6.9 {0.3)
Commodities 0.6 - 1.8 0.1
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Foreign currency risk

The table below illustrates the sensitivity of the Group’s net assets with regard to currency movements on financial assets
and liabilities included Tn the balance sheets of non-GBP functional currency entities which are denominated in the functional
currency of that entity (and which are not held at fair value through profit and loss} as at the year-end.

Based on a 5% weakening in the following exchange rates, the increase/{decrease) of the Group’s net assets would be
as follows:

Year ended Yeur e nded
31 May 2020 31 May 2019
£m £m
Impact
US Doltar (4.2) {5.0)
Euro (2.0) 1.0
Yen 0.8 0.7
South African Rand (1.6) (0.9)
Swiss Franc (0.2) (1.1)
Other {0.6) 0.2
Credit risk

The principal sources of credit risk to the Group's business are from financial institutions and individual clients.

Amounts due from financial institutions, which are stated net of an expected credit loss of £0.1 million {31 May 2019. £nil),
are all less than 30 days past due. Amounts due from clients, which are stated net of an expected credit loss of £15.7 million
at 31 May 2020 (31 May 2019: expected credit loss of £9.3 millicn), include both amounts less than and greater than 30 days
past due.

The analysis in the following table shows credit exposures by credit rating:

Trade recenvablos - Tradc teceivablos - Trade revetvubles -
Cash and cash egquivalenty Armcunts due from brohes amounts due fromclerts awn fungs ir ol ert money

31 May 2028 31 Moy 7019 31 May 2020 31May 2019 31 May 2020 51 Moy 2079 31 May 2020 31 Ma, 2078

£m £m £m £y £m £m £&m £m
Credit rating:
AA+ & above 25.7 304 - - - - - _
AAtoc AA- 229 22.8 - 42.4 - - 5.4 1.7
A+to A- 420.2 3054 267.8 182.3 - - 60.1 44.6
BBB+ to BBB- 7.2 27 - 147 - - 1.0 4.9
BB+ to B 10.2 1.5 3.3 0.1 - - - -
Unrated - ¢.5 3.7 59 5.7 1.8 - 27
Total carrying amount 486.2 3733 274.8 2454 57 1.8 66.5 53.9

Loy wllowatin e

Below is a reconciliation of the total loss allowance:

Year ended Year ended

31 May 2020 31 May 201G

£m £m

At the beginning of the year 9.3 11.0

Loss allowance for the year:

- Gross charge for the year 13.8 3.0

- Recoveries {2.8) (1.2}

- Debts written off (4.4) (3.6)
Foreign exchange (0.1} 01

At the end of the year 15.8 9.3
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The loss allowance has been calculated in accordance with the Group's expected credit loss model. The following table
provides an overview of the Group’s credit risk by Stage and the associated loss allowance. The financial instruments that
are assessed in accardance with the ‘simplified approach’ as permitied by IFRS 9 are trade receivables {excluding derivative

amounts due from brokers).

B — e ®Maypo20
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month lifetime lifetime Simplified
ECL ECL ECL approach Total
£Em £m Em £m £m
Credit grade:
Investment grade 700.3 - - 328.2 1,028.5
Nonh-investment grade 10.2 - - 40.3 50.5
Gross carrying amount 710.5 - - 368.5 1,079.0
Loss allowance - ~ - (15.8) {15.8)
Total carrying amount 710.5 -~ - 352.7 1,063.2
20 Mey 2019
Stage 1 Slage 7 Stage 2
12-mnnth Ifetinae lretime Simplktied
ECL ECL e, approack Total
Errr £ £n fm £
Credit grade:
Investment grade 5865 - - 319.2 2057
Non-investment grade 12.0 - - 15.8 27.8
Gross carrying amount 5085 - - 535.0 93356
Loss allowance - - - 9.3) (9.3)
Total carrying amount 5985 - - 32567 9242

ot et el

The Group's largest credit exposure to any one individual broker at 31 May 2020 was £70.2 million (A+ rated) (31 May 2019
£58.6 million (A+ rated)). Included in cash and cash equivalents, the Group's largest credit exposure to any bank at 31 May
2020 was £100.1 miliion {A+ rated) (31 May 2019. £29.7 million {A rated)). The Group has no significant credit exposure to any

one particular client or group of connected clients,

bigokadity rav

Amounts receivable and payable on demand

The Group’s financial instruments are all repayable within cne year, with the exception of the Group’s term loan which is

repayable in fullin June 2022,

The Group has non-derivative cash flows payable over five years in relation to the redeemable preference shares of £40,000

at 31 May 2020 (31 May 2019; £40,000).
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28. Cash generated from operations
Year ended Year ended
31 May 2020 31 Mov 2000
£m im

Qperating activities

Operating profit 296.0 192.9
Depreciaticn and amortisation 256 17.3
Share-based payments charge 9.7 72
Gain on sale of subsidiaries (0.7) -
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other recelvables and other assets {35.6) 72.5
Increase/(decrease} in trade and other payables 54.6 (33.1)
Cash generated from operations 3496 256.8

29. Subsequent events
There are no subsequent events that have a materialimpact on the Financial Statements.

30. Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies and interpretations adopted in the preparation of the Financial Statements are consistent with those
followed in the preparation of the Group’s Annual Report for the year ended 31 May 2019, except for the change related to
IFRS 16 Leases as described below, and IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments.

New atcounting ctandard: s ndinterpreteiion: cdopb o durine the yeor

IFRS 16 — Leases

IFRS 16 was endorsed by the EU in November 2017 and is effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. IFRS

16 reflects a major change in the way that operating leases are accounted for by the Group. Previously the annual lease
expense was recognised in the income statement, with future minimum coperaling lease paymenis disclosed ih the notes.
IFRS 16 requires all leased assets, except for short-term or low-value leases, to be recognised as assets, wilh a corresponding
jease liability. This has the effect of grossing up the balance sheet. The depreciation of the asset is recognised in the income
statement, along with a corresponding finance cost.

Where the Group is the lessee, it now recognises a right-of-use asset and a related lease liability from the date at which the
right-of-use asset has been obtained The lease liability is measured as the net present value of future lease payments, which
are discounted at the Group's estimated incremental secured borrowing rate. For low-valuec or short-term leases, payments
are recognised as lease payments on a straight-line basis over the lease term. These are recognised as premises costs in
operating expenses.

e Eer e cnade retingns

The Group adopted IFRS 16 as of 1 lune 2019 using the modified retrospective appreach and as permitted by the standard,
the Group has not restated comparatives. IFRS 16 has had a significant impact on the Group's balance sheet. Prior to
adoption, the future minimum rentals payable for operating leases, all of which relate to office accommaodation totalled
£28.6 million at 31 May 2019. As at 1 June 2019, the Group recognised a right-of-use assct of £24.0 million, a leasc liability
of £24.5 million and an adjustment to retained earnings of £0.5 millicn.

Lease related depreciation of £6.2 million and an interest expense of £0.6 million has been recegnised in the income
statement for the year ended 31 May 2020, Under IAS 17 Leases, the corresponding operating lease expense recognised
in operating expenses would have been £7.0 million.

In applying IFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has used the following practical expedients as at 1 June 2019:

-+ Applying the use of hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains an option to extend
-1 Accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months as short-term leases

PO
Bt A
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The lease liability is measured at the present value of future lease payments, discounted using the Group’s estimated
incremental secured borrowing rate. The lease liability recognised on 1 June 2012 can be reconciled to operating lease
commitments disclosed in note 18 as follows:

£m

Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 31 May 2019 28.6
Less: recognition of lease commitment using the incremental secured borrowing rate {1.8)
Less: short-term leases not recognised as a liability (0.4)
Less: low-value leases not recognised as a liability (1.9)
Lease liability recognised as at 1 June 2019 24.5
Of which are:
Current lease liabilities 4.9
Non-current lease liabilities 19.6
24.5

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, comprising the initial measurement of lease liability, adjusted for lease
payments made at or before commencement date, restoration costs, and lease incentives, The right-of-use asset can be
reconciled to the lease liability as follows:

£m
Lease liability recognised as at 1 June 2019 24.5
Restoration costs 0.5
Less. lease incentives (1.0}
Right-of-use asset recognised as at 1 June 2019 24.0

The adjustment of £0 5 million relating to restoration costs and lease incentives resulted in a £0.5 million transitional
adjustment to retained earnings.

The Group did not need to make any adjustments to lessor accounting as a result of the adoption of IFRS 16.

i o b

The Direclors have prepared the Financial Statements on a gomg-concern basis which requires the Directors to have a
reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future. Further detail is contained in the Going Concern and Viability Statement included in the Strategic Report on page 72.

Brasie oof ot b ties,

Subsidiaries

The Group Financial Statements consolidate the financial results of 1G Group Hoidings plc and the entities it controls (its
subsidiaries) as listed in note 31.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date which the Group obtains contrel until the date on which contrel ceases. Control
comprises the power to govern the financial and operating policies of the investee so as to obtain benefit from its activities.
Control is achieved through direct or ingirect ownership of voting rights; currently exercisable or convertible potential voting
rights; or by way of contractual agreement. The results, cash flows and final positions of subsidiaries used in the preparation
of the Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared for the same reporting vear as the parent company. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the Financial Statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line with those
used by the Group. Allinter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses between the Group entities, including
unrealised profits arising from them, are eliminated on censolidation.
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Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. On acquisition, the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of a subsidiary are measured at their fair values at the date of acquisition. The cost of an acquisition is
measured at the fair value of consideration transferred including an estimate of any contingent or deferred consideration.
Contingent or deferred consideration is remeasured at each balance sheet date with periodic changes to the estimated
liability recognised in the income statement. Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred. Goodwill 1s initially measured
as the excess of the consideration transferred over the fair values of identifiable net assets. If this consideration is lower than
the fair values of identifiable net assets acquired, the difference is credited to the income statement in the year of acquisition.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the income statement from the effective
date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Segrie nta! intorine o

The Group's segrmental information is disclosed in a manner consistent with the basis of internal reporting provided to the
Chief Operating Decision-Maker {CODM! tegarding components of the Group, The Group has identified the CODM as the
Executive Directors of G Group Holdings plc, who regularly review this management information to assess the performance
and allocate rescurces to the ‘operating segments’. Operating segments that do hot meet the quantitative thresholds required
by IFRS 8 are aggregated. ‘

Foreive cuitentiey

The Group's functional currency is Pound Sterling. Transactions in other currencies are initially recorded in the functional
currency by applying spot exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and fiabilities
denominated in foreign currencies ate revalued at the Group's functional currency rate of exchange prevailing at the balance
sheet date. Gains and losses arising on revaluation are taken to the income stalement. Non-monetary assels and liahilities
carried at fair value and denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value
was determined.

The functional currency of each entity in the Group is consistent with the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates. On consalidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s overseas operations are translated into Pound Sterling at
exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year. Exchange differences arising from translation of cverseas operations are recognised in ‘other comprehensive
income’ and the accumulated translation reserve. Such accumulated translation differences are recognised as income or as
expenses in the period in which the overseas operation is disposed of.

Fevert revagnition,
Trading revenue includes revenue arising from each of the Group's four revenue generation models: OTC leveraged
derivatives, exchange traded derivatives, stock trading, and investments.

OTC leveraged derivatives

Revenue from the OTC leveraged derivatives business represents:

i) fees paid by clients for spread, commission and funding charges in respect of the opening, holding and clesing of financial
spread bets, contracts for difference or options contracts, together with gains and losses for the Group arising on client
trading activity; less

i) fees paid by the Group in spread, commissions and funding charges arising in respect of hedging the risk associated with
the client trading activity and the Group's currency exposures, together with gains and losses incurred by the Group arising
on hedging activity.

Open client and hedging positions are falr valued daily with gains and losses arising on this valustion recognised in
revenue. The policies and methodologies associated with the determination of fair value are disclosed in note 26, ‘Financial
Instruments’.

Exchange traded derivatives

Revenue from exchange traded derivatives represents fees paid by members of the Group’s regulated futures and options
exchange, with members of the exchange charged a fee per transaction undertaken. Revenue also represents gains and
losses incurred by the Group arising on its market-making activity on the Group's futures and options exchange and the
Group's multilateral trading facility.
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Stock trading

Revenue from stock trading represents fees and commission earned from the stock trading service after deducting
centracting and trade settlement fees payable to third-party brokers. Revenue is recognised in full on the date of the trade
being placed or the fee being charged.

Investments
Revenue from investments represents management fees, which are earned as a percentage of assets under management.
These are recognised over the period in which the service is provided.

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Group and
can be reliably measured. Revenue is shown net of sales taxes and excludes any inter-company transactions.

Trading revenue is reported before introducing partner commission, betting duties and financial transaction taxes, which are
disclosed as an expense in arriving at net operating income.

Net trading revenue represents trading revenue after adjusting for introducing partner commission, as this is consistent with
the management information received by the CODM.

Incame earned from clients for market data, such as chart fees, and income earned from charging clients for funding using
debit and credit cards, are netted within operating costs as the amounts involved are not considered material.

Pinar e fnceng ondeectr enreprecade d olient fondy
Interest income and expense on segregated client funds is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal amount
outstanding and at the applicable interest rate.

Interest income and interest expense on segregated client funds are disciosed within operating profit, as this is consistent
with the nature of the Group’s operations.

Privicde gy
Dividend distributions to the Company’s shareholders are recognised as a liability in the Group’s Financial Statements in the
period in which the dividends are approved by the Board of Directors.

fropsdbove s o nefits

(aj Pension obligations

The Group cperates defined contribution schemes. Contributions are charged to the incame statement when they become
payable according to the rules of the schemes. Once the contributions have been paid, the Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions.

(b} Bonus schemes
The Group recognises an accrual and an expense for bonuses based on formulae that tekes into consideration specific
financial and non-financial measures.

(c} Termination benefits
Termination benefits are payable when an employment contract is terminated by the Group. The Group recognises
termination benefits when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits.

fe.cet

Prior to 1 June 2019, leases were classified as operating leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits
of ownership of the asset. Lease payments under an operating lease is recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis cver
the lease term unless another systematic basis was more representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit.

‘From 1 June 2019, the Group's leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset with a corresponding lease liability from the date
at which the asset is available for use.

Leasing arrangements can contain both lease and non-lease components. The Group has elected to separate out the non-
lease component and to account for these separately from the right-of-use asset,
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The lease liability is initially measured as the net present value of the following payments:

- Fixed payments less any lease incentives

Variable lease payments dependent on an index or rate initially measured as at the commencement date
Amounts payable by the Group under residual guarantees

Payments of penalties for terminating the lease

[OPRENPERNS

Lease payments are discounted at the Group’s estimated incremental secured borrowing rate. This represents the cost to
borrow funds 1o obtain a similar valued right-of-use asset in & similar economic environment with similar terms and conditions.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising of:

-2 Lease liability at initial recognition

-2 Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date [ess any [ease incentives received
-> Any initial direct costs

-» Restoration costs

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the duration of the lease term.
Lease payments for low-value assets or with a period of 12 months or less are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense.

Tewation

The income tax expense represents the sum of tax currently payable and movements in defened tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income
statement because it excludes items of ihcome or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates in the respective jurisdictions that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is accounted for on all temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the
Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. In principle, deferred tax
liabilities are recodnised for all temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available, against which deductible temporary ditferences may be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination} of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset 1o be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply when
the related asset is realised or liability is settled, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to items credited or charged
directly to equity or other comprehensive income, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity or ‘other
comprehensive income’,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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Properly, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost
comprises the aggregate amount paid and the fair value of any other consideration given to acquire the asset and includes
costs directly attributable to making the asset capable of operating as intended.

Depreciation is provided on all property, plant and equipment at rates calculated to write off the cost, iess estimated residual
value based upon estimated useful lives. Estimated residual value and useful lives are reviewed annually and residual values are
based on prices prevailing at the balance sheet date. Depreciation is charged on a straight-line basis over the expected useful
lives as follows:

Leasehold improvements - over the iease term of up to 15 years
Office equipment, fixtures and fittings - over five years

Computer and other equipment - over two, three or five years
Right-of-Lse asset - over the lease term of up to 15 years

The carrying values of property, piant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable, and are written down immediately to their recoverable amount,

An item of property, plant and eguipment is derecegnised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. The gain or loss arising on derecognition is determined as the difference
between the sale proceeds and carrying amount of the asset and is imimediately recognised in the inceme statement.

[SYRTRIS I ]
Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses, with the carrying value being reviewed for impairment,
at least annually and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Goodwill is recognised as an asset and is allocated to cash-generating units by management for purposes of impairment
testing. Cash-generating units represent the smallest identitiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are (argely
independent of the cash inflows from other asscts of groups of assets. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than its carrying amount, including goodwill, an impairment loss is recognised in the income statement.

The carrying amount of gocdwill allocated to a cash-generating unit is taken into account when determining the gain orloss
on disposal of a business unit, or of an operation within it.

frie ot b aoce iy
Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated armnortisation and impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired separately from e business are carried initially at cost. An intangible asset acquired as partof a
business combination such as a trade name or customer relationship is recognised at fair value and identified separately from
goodwill if the asset is separable or arises from contractual or other legal rights and its fair value can be measured reliably.
Expenditure on internally developed intangible assets, excluding internal software development costs, is taken to the income
statement in the year in which it is incurred. Development expenditure is recognised as an intangible asset only after all the
following criteria are met;

- The project’s technical feasibility and commercial viability can be demonstrated
> The availability of adequate technical and financial rescurces and an intenticn to complete the project have been confirmed
= Probable future economic benefit has been established

Intangible assets with a finite life are amortised over their expected useful lives, as follows:

Internally developed software - straight-line basis over three to five years

Software and licences - straight-line basis over the contract term of up to five years
Trade names - straight-line basis over twa years

Client lists and customer relationships - straight line basis over three years

Domain names and generic top-level domains - straight-line basis over ten years
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The carrying value of intangible assets is reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrying value may not be recoverable. In addition, the carrying value of capitalised development expenditure is reviewed
before being brought into use.

fapaitenss-nd of o dinencind wreein

When impairment testing is requ\red the Directors review the carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. if any such indication exists (or at least annually for goodwill), the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to determine the extent of the impairment loss {if any). Where the asset does
not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

The recoverable amacunt is the higher of fair value less selling costs and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present values using a pre-tax discount rate. This rate reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money as well as the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised as an expense immediately.

An assessment is made at each balance sheet date as to whether there is any indication that previously recegnised
impairment Josses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated
and previously recognised impairment losses are reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. if that is the case, the carrying amount of the
asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, had no impairment loss been recogrised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of animpairment loss is
recognised as income immediately, although impairment losses retating to goodwill may not be reversed.

Frne s linstnone v

Financial instruments - Classification, recognition and measurement

The Group determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition in accordance with the categories
outlined below and re-evaluates this designation at each year-end. When financial instruments are recognised initially, they
are measured at fair value, being the transaction price plus, in the case of financial assels and financial liabilities not at fair
value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs. Financial instruments are disclosed in note 26.

Bl oencinbosred e csperen gt ik wehieiraconhprol Tar g g

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss are financial assets that are not classified and measured at
amortised cost or as fair value through other comprehensive income. The financial assets included in this classification are
the financial derivative open positions included in trade receivables {due from brokers). The Group uses derivative financial
instruments, in order to hedge derivative exposures arising frem open client positions, which are also classified as fair value
through profit and loss.

All financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are carried at fair value with gains or losses recognised in trading
revenue in the income statement.

Ol o asveie g vipes nortive et

Financial assets measured at amortlsed cost are non-derivative financial assets which are held to collect the contractual
cash flows. The contractual terms of the financial assets give rise to payments on specified dates that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater
than 12 months after the end of the reporting period, which are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s financial assets
measured at amortised cost comprise ‘trade receivables’, ‘other receivables’ and ‘cash and cash equivalents’.
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{c) MNinancial pescie messuied oo feoir value thirogoh othor compre ensive income

Financial assets measured as fair value through other comprehensive income are assets that are held to collect the
contractual cash flows or to be sold. The contractual terms of these assets give risé to payments on specified dates that are
solely payments of principai and interest on the principai amount outstanding. They are included in non-current assets uniess
the investment matures or management intend to dispose of them within 12 months of the end of the reporting pericd. The
Group's fair value through other comprehensive income financial assets are ‘financial investments’.

irbimenciallishalitios

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables, lease liabilities and borrowings. These are measured subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, excluding the derivative element of 'trade payables - amounts due from
brokers’ The interest expense is calculated at each reporting period by applying the eftective interest rate, and the resulting
charge is reflected in finance costs on the income statement.

(et Bretermination of fall value

Financial instruments arising from open clent positions and the Group’s hedging positions are stated at fair value and
disclosed according to the valuation hierarchy required by IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. Fair values are predominantly
determined by reference to third-party market values {bid prices for long positions and offer prices for short positions) as
detailed below:

= Level 1: Valued using unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical financial instruments

Level 2: Valued using techniques where a price is derived based significantly on observable market data. For example,

where an active market for an identical financial instrument to the product offered by the Group ta its clients or used by the

Group to hedge its market risk does not exist

-3 Level 3. Valued using technigues that incorporate information other than observable market data that is significant to the
overall valuation

Financial instruments - Impairment of financial assets

The impairment charge in the income statement includes a loss allowance reflecting the change in expected credit losses.
Expected credit losses are recognised for trade receivables {excluding amounts due from brokers held at fair value through
profit and loss), cash and cash equivalents, other receivables and financial investments. Expected credit losseés are calculated
as the difference between the contractual cash flows that are due to the Group and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive given the probability of default and loss given default.

At initial recognition of financial assets, an allowance is made for expected credit losses resulting from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months, except for where the simplified approach is used where an allowance is made for
the lifetime expected credit loss. In the event of a significant increase in credit risk, an aliowance is made for expected credit
losses resulting from possible default events over the expected life of the financial asset. The Group applies the simplified
approach for trade and other receivables. The Group applies the general approach for other financial assets.

Financial assets where 12-month expected credit losses are recognised are cohsidered to be Stage 1; financial assets which
are considered to have experienced a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition are considered to be Stage 2;
and financial assets which have defauited or are otherwise considered te be credit impaired are allocated to Stage 3.

An assessment of whether credit risk has increased significantly considers changes in credit rating associated with the asset,
whether contractual payments are more than 30 days past due and other reasonable information demoenstrating otherwise.
In accordance with the Group's internal credit risk management definition, financial instruments have a low credit risk when
it has an external credit rating of "investment grade’ or if no external credit rating is available, in accordance with the Group's
internal credit risk management definition.

Assets are transferred to Stage 3 when an event of default, as defined in the Group's Credit Risk Management Policy, occurs
or where the asseis are credit impaired. The Group determines that a default ocours when a payment is 80 days past due
for all assets except for receivables from clients where it uses 120 days. This is aligned with the Group’s risk management
practices.

All changes in expected credit losses subsequent to the assets’ initial recognition are recognised as an impairment loss or
gain. Financial assets are written off, either partially or in full, against the related allowance when the Group has ho reascnhable
expectations of recovery of the asset. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off decrease the amount of
impairment losses recorded in the income statement.
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Financial instruments - Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

A financial asset or fiability is generally derecognised when the contract that gives rise to it is settled, sold, cancelled
or expired.
inptinE Nl et
A financial esset is derecognised where the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; the Group retains

the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an ebligation to pay them in full without material delay 1o a
third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; or the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset
and either (i) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (i} has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. Where the Group has transferred
its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement
in the assel, Continuing involverment that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured st the lower
of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required

to repay.

(L b e gl

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. Where an
existing financial liahility is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing lability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecogniticn of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability, such that the difference in the respective carrying amounts together with
any costs or fees incurred are recognised in profit or loss.

B teiine b Lfyrpe o s oty

Assets or liabilities resulting from profit or losses on open positions are carried at fair value. Amounts due from or to clients
and brokers are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultanecusly.
The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of
business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptey of the Group or the counterparty,

Tt pryaldor endl ey Civedsdor
Trade receivables represent balances with counterparties and clients where the combination of cash held on account and the
valuation of financial derivative open positions resuit in an amount due to the Group.

Trade payables represent balances with counterparties and clients where the combination of cash held on account and the
valuation of financial derivative open positions results in an amount payable by the Group.

Trade receivables do not contain a significant financing element and so the Group has applied the simplified approach. The
expected lifetime credit loss is recognised at initial recognition of the financial asset, with the loss allowance calculated by
reference to an aging debt profile. Trade receivables are written off when there is objective evidence of non-collectability or
when an event of default occurs.,

Lhthor e

Other assets represent rights to cryptocurrencies and cryptocurrencies controlled by the Group. The Group offers various
cryptocurrency-related products that can be traded on its platform. The Group purchases and selis cryptocurrencies as part
of its hedging activity.

The Group halds cryptocurrency assets for trading in the ordinary course of its business, effectively acting as a commeodity
broker-dealer in respect of the underlying cryptacurrency asset (because the salient features of these assets are, In economic
terms, consistent with certain commeodities under 1AS 2 Inventories, 3(b}). The assets are measured at fair value less costs to
sell, with changes in valuation being recorded in income statement in the peried in which they arise. Cryptocurrency assets
are not financial instruments and they are categorised as non-financial assets.
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Other tecebvabiles

Other receivables are financial assets which give rise to payments on specified dates that are sofely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding. They are assets that have not been designated as fair value through profit or
Ioss, Such assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method if the time value of meney is significant.

Other receivables do not contain a significant financing element and so the Group has applied the simplified approach, The
expected lifetime credit loss is recognised at initial recognition of the financial asset, with the loss allowance calculated by
reference to an aging debt profile. Other receivables are written off when there is objective evidence of non-collectability or
when an event of default oceours.

Frepoytnenis
Prepayments are assets with fixed or determinable payments made in advance for services or goods. They do not qualify as
financial assets and are amortised over the period in which the economic benefit is expected to be consumed

Ceshang vash g Gidwind a1t

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand and demand deposits which may be accessed without penalty. Cash
equivalents comprise short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purposes of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, net cash
and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

The majority of the Group's cash balances are held with investment-grade banks. The Group considers the risk of default, and
now adverse changes in economic and business conditions might impact the abiiity of the banks to meet their obligations,
The Group assesses the expected credit losses on cash and cash equivaients on a forward-looking basis and if there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

The Group holds money on behalf of clients in accordance with the client money rules of the UK Financial Conduct Authority
{FCA) and other regulatory bodies. Such monies are classified as either ‘cash and cash equivalents’ or 'segregated client funds’
in accordance with the relevant reguiatory reguirements. Segregated client funds comprise individual ¢lient funds held in
segregated client money accounts. Segregated client money accounts restrict the Group's abllity o control the monies and
accordingly such amounts are not held on off-balance sheet.

The amount of segregated client funds held at year-end was £1,964.1 million (31 May 2019: £1,3498.2 miliion) and the amount
of segregated client assets was £1,509.8 million (31 May 2019: £1,096.8 million). These amounts are held off-balance sheet.
The return received on managing segregaled client funds is included within net operating income.

In addition, the Group's Swiss banking subsidiary, |G Bank S A, is reguired to protect customer deposits under the FINMA
Privileged Deposit Scheme. At 31 May 2020, I1G Bank S.A. was required to hold £23.9 million (31 May 2019: £20.0 million)in
satisfaction of this requirement. This amount, which represents restricted cash, is inciuded in cash and cash equivalents,

Title transfer funds are held by the Group under a Title Transfer Collateral Arrangement {TTCA) by which a client agrees
that full ownership of such monies is unconditionally transferred to the Group, Title transfers funds are accordingly hield
on balance sheet with a corresponding liability to clients within trade payables.

Finagndisfinvesiment:

Financial investments are held as fair value through other comprehensive income and are non-derivative financial assets.
Financial investments are recognised on a trade date basis. They are initially recognised at fair value plus directly related
transactions costs. They are subsequently carried at fair value. Fair value is the quoted market price of the specific
investments held.

Unrealised gains or {osses, other than {oss allowances for expected credit losses for investments measured at FVOCI, are
reporied in eguity (in the fair value through other comprehensive income reserve) and in other comprehensive income,
until such investments are sold, collected or otherwise disposed of.
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On disposal of an investment, the accumulated unrealised gain or loss included in equity is recycled to the income statement
for the period and reported in other income. Gains and losses on disposal are determined using the fair value of the
investrent at the date of derecognition.

Interest on financial investments is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest
rate is either the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument, or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating
the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument but
does not consider expected credit losses unless the asset is credit impaired. The calculation includes all fees and points paid
or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all
other premiums or discounts.

When an investment measured at FVQOCl is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to the incorme statement as a reclassification adjustment.

ik povitides
Neon-trading financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method if the time value of money is significant.

bz ions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, itis
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount can be reliably estimated.

Eeorroyrinige

Borrowings are recognised initially at their issue proceeds less transaction costs incurred. Subsequently, taking into
consideration the term of the borrowings, an assessment is made whether to state at amortised cost, with any difference
between net proceeds and the redemption value being recognised in the income statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest rate method.

Shove tapyie!d

(a) Classification of shares as debt or equity

When shares are issued, any component that creates a financial liability of the Group is presented as a liabllity on the balance
sheet; measured initially at fair value net of transaction costs and subseguently at amoertised cost until extinguished on
conversion or regemption. Dividends paid are charged as an interest expense in the income statement,

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded as the proceeds received, net of directissue costs. Equity
instruments are classified accaording to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

{b) Own shares held in Employee Benefit Trusts

Shares held in Employee Benefit Trusts for the purposes of employee share schemes are classified as a deduction from
sharehclders’ equity and are recognised at cost. Consideration received for the sale of such shares is recognised in equity,
with any difference between the proceeds from the sale and the cost being taken to reserves. No gain or loss is recognised
in the income statement on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of equity shares.

(c) Share-based payments
The Company operates three employee share plans: a share incentive plan, a sustained performance plan and a long-term
incentive plan.

For market-based vesting conditions, the cost of these awards is measured at fair value calculated using option pricing models
and are recognised as an expense in the income statement cn a straight-line basis over the vesting period based on the
Comypany’s estimate of the number of shares that will vest.
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For non-market-based vesting conditions, at each balance sheet date before vesting, the cumulative expense is calculated
representing the extent to which the vesting period has expired and management's best estimate of the achieverment or
otherwise of non-market conditions determining the number of equity instruments that will uitimately vest, The movement
in cumulative expense since the previous balance sheet date is recognised in the income statement as part of operating
expenses, with a corresponding credit to equity.

The grant by the Company of options over its equity instruments to employees of the subsidiary undertakings in the Group is
treated as a capital contribution. The fair value of the employee services received is recognised over the vesting period as an
increase in the investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity. Upon awards vesting, the cost of

awards is transferred from the share-based payments reserve into retained earnings.

31. List of investments in subsidiaries

The following comparies are all owned directly or indirectly by 1G Group Holdings plc:

Natne of Cormpary Regiitored ofice and Countr y of 1 orpat afion

Subsidiary undertakings held directly:

—olding

Votmg mighine

Mauture of bLotnosy

IG Group Limited Cannon Bridge House, Crdinary shares 100% Holding company
25 Dowgate Hill, Londan,
ECA4R 2YA, United Kingdom
Subsidiary undertakings held indirectly:
IG Index Limited Cannon Bridge House, Ordinary shares 100% Sptead betting
25 Dowgate Hill, London,
ECAR 2YA, United Kingdom
IG Markets Limited Ordinary shares 100% CFD trading. foreign
exchange and market
tisk management
IG Markets South Africa Limited Ordinary shares 100% CFD trading
Market Data Limited Ordinary shares 100°% Data distribution
IG Nominees Limited Ordinary shares 100% Nominee company
IG Knowhow Limited Ordinary shares 100% Software development
Extrabet Limited Ordinary shares 100% Non-trading
IG Finance Ordinary shares 100% Financing
IG Finance Two Ordinary shares 100% Financing
|G Finance Three Crdinary shares 100% Financing
IG Finance Four Ordinary shares 100% Financing
1G Finance & Limited Ordinary shares 100% Financing
IG Forex Limited Crdinary shares 100% Financing
IG Spread Betting Limited Ordinary shares 100% Financing
1G Finance 8 Limited Ordinary shares 100% Financing
IG Finance 9 Limited Ordinary shares 100% Financing
Financiat Domaigns Limited Crdinary shares 100% Holding company
Financial Domaigns Registry Ordinary shares 100% Holding company
Holdings Limited
Financial Domaigns Registrat Ordinary shares 100% Domains registrar
Limited
Financial Domaigns {Services) Ordinary shares 100% Domains registry
Limited
Oeal City Limited Ordinary shares 100% ETF trading
InvestYourWay Limited Ordinary shares - Non-trading
IG Trading and Investments Ordinary shares 100% Non-trading
Limited
|G Australia Pty Limited Level 15, 55 Coliins Street, Ordinary shares 100% Sales and marketing
Melbourne VIC 3000, Australia office
G Share Trading Australia Pty Ordinary shares 100% Non-trading

Limited
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|G Asia Pte Limited

O Battery Read, 01-02 MYP Ordinary shares
Centre, 049910, Singapore

100% CFD trading and
foreign exchange

Kunxin Translation (Shenzhen)
Co. Limited

Room AQ2-267%, 26/F, Anlian Ordinary shares
Building, Jin Tian Road No. 4018,
Lianhua Street, Futian District,
Shenzhen, 518026, China

100% Transiation services

IG Securities Limited

lzumi Garden Tower 26F, 1-6-1 Ordinary shares
Roppongi, Minato-ku, 106-
6026, Tokyo

100% CFD trading and
foreign exchange

IG Europe GmbH

Westhafenplatz 1, Frankfurtam Ordinary shares
Main, 60327, Germany

100% CFD trading and
foreign exchange

1G Bank S.A.

42 Rue du Rhone, Geneva, Ordinary shares
1204, Switzerfand

100% CFD trading and
foreign exchange

IG Infotech {india) Private Limited

Infinity, 2nd Flcor, Katha No. 436, Ordinary shares
Survey No. 13/1B, 12/2B,
Chailagatta Village, Bangalore,
560071, India

100% Software development
and support services

1G US Holdings Inc.

North American Derivatives
Exchange inc.

Market Risk Management Inc.

FX Publications Inc

Nadex Domains Inc.

IG US LLC

2711 Centerville Road, Suite 400, Ordinary shares

Wilmington, Delaware, 19808,  Ordinary shares
United States
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares

100% Holding company
100% Exchange

100% Market maker

100% Publications

100% Domains registry

100% Foreign exchange
trading

Fox Sub Limited
Fox Sub 2 Limited
Fox Japan Holdings

IG Limited

Office 283, Lt;rel 27, Ordinary shares

57/63 Line Wall Road, Gibraltar  Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares

Currency House — Tower 2,
Dubai International Financial
Centre,

PO Box - 506968 Dubai,
United Arab Emirates

100% Financing
100% Financing
100% Holding company

710_0% CFD trading and

foretgn exchange

Brightpool Limited

Christodoulou Chatzipaviou, Ordinary shares

2271 Helios Court, 3rd floor
3036, Limassol, Cyprus

100% Market maker

IG Markets Kenya Limited

William House, 4th Ngong Ordinary shares
Avenue, Nairobki, Nairohi West
District, PO Box 40111,
00100, Kenya

100% Non-trading

Spectrum MTF Operator GrbH

Raydius GmbH

Westhafenplatz 1, Frankfurt am  Ordinary shares
Main, 60327, Germany

100% Multilateral trading
facility
lssuer of turbo warrants

G International Limited

Canon's Court, 22 Victoria Street, Ordinary shares
Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda

100% CFD trading and
foreign exchange

IG Securities Hong Kong Limited

19/F, Lee Garden One, Ordinary shares
33 Hysan Avenue Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong

1009% Financial services
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The following UK entities, all of which are 100% owned by the Group, are not subject to an audit by virtue of Section 4794 of
the Companies Act 2006 relating to subsidiary companies: IG Finance Three (05297886). |G Finance 5 Limited (06752558},
IG Finance @ Limited (07306407), Financial Domaigns Limited (09233880}, Financial Domaigns Registry Holdings Limited
(09235699), Financial Domaigns Registrar Limited (09235694), Financial Domaigns {Services) Limited {09235591) and

Deal City Limited (09635230).

The fellawing UK entities, all of which are 100% owned by the Group, are exempt from the requirement to prepare individual
Financial Statements by virtue of Section 3944 of the Companies Act 2006 relating to the individual Financial Statements of
dormant subsidiaries: IG Finance (05024562), 1G Finance Two {05137194)}, |G Finance Four (05312015}, |G Nominees Limited
(04371444), 1G Spread Betting Limited (06806588), 1G Finance 8 Limited (06807656), InvestYourWay Limited (07081901},
Extrabet Limited (04560348), |G Forex Limited {06808361) and IG Trading and Investments Limited (11628764).

Eoapsdoye e heneif Tyocts

IG Group Holdings ple Inland Revenue Approved Share Incentive Plan (UK Trust)
1G Group Limited Employee Benefit Trust (Jersey Trust)

IG Group Employee Equity Plan Trust {Australian Trust)
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Company Statement of Financial Position

21 May 2019

31 May 2020 Restated’
Note £m £m
Assets
Non-current assets
Investment in subsidiaries 6 541.9 5086
Property. plant and equipment 7 7.5 -
549.4 508.6
Current assets
Prepayments 0.2 0.2
Other receivables 9 134.3 1681
Cash and cash equivalents 0.2 08
134.7 169.1
TOTAL ASSETS 684.1 6777
Liabilities
Non-current liabkilities
Lease liabilities 6.4 -
6.4 -
Current liabilities
Other payables 10 4.1 10.5
Lease liabilities 1.3 -
5.4 10.5
TOTAL LIABILITIES 11.8 10.5
Equity
Share capital and share premium 11 125.8 1258
Other reserves 12 88.1 831
Retained earnings 458.4 458.3
TOTAL EQUITY 672.3 667.2
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 684.1 6777
1 Refertornote 23 of the Censolidated Financisl Statements for further irformanion

The Financial Statements of |G Group Holdings plc (registered number 04677092) were approved by the Board of Directors

on 23 July 2020 and signed o its behalf by;

CHARLES ROZES
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity
Share Premium’ Other reserves’ Reta ned
Share cap tal’ Restated Restated” carnnygs’ Totul e guty
£m £m £m £m £
At 1 June 2018 - 125.8 824 421.0 629.2
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year - - - 2029 202.9
Equity-settled employee share-based payments - - 8.2 - 82
Employee Benefit Trust purchase of own shares - - (2.0) - (2.0}
Equity dividends paid - - - 711 (171.1}
Transfer of share-based payment reserve - o ( 5.5) 55 T
At 31 May 2019 - 125.8 83.1 4583 0667.2
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year - - - 156.1 156.1
Equity-settled employee share-based payments - - 9.7 - 9.7
Employee Benefit Trust purchase of own shares - - (1.5) - (1.5)
Equity dividends paid - - - {159.2) {159.2)
Transfer of share-based payment reserve - - (4.2) 4.2 -
At 31 May 2020 - 125.8 88.1 458.4 672.3

1 Thesereseryes gre not disinibutable,

2 G Group Holdinas 1GGH) distibutable rescrves as at 21 May 2020 e cstimated as £257 O milhon, The Company has determine dwhether prottis relisad and anrsahsed
I accordance with UK campany law Distributzble reserves as at 31 May 2020 are £207.4 million lower than the Company’s totsl retained earnings as a réault ot an mterrst
reorguiinatipr i 2005 and a Balanco retaimed ¢ armngs 1 lating W vestcd umploy ce shiare bosed payments awarde Inaccordance vath the UR Companies Aut 2006 Sectian
B212). » public campany may make o 2 strbution only f the amourt of 1ts net usscts is not less than the aggreaate aCits called-up share capitaland non disinbutablo reserves
foliowina the ¢ stubutior GG distiibutable recer ves as at 31 May 2019 are estimioted as E265 4 mullon This balance 1vrestated toretiect that o further £58 7 nullion batance ir
retamed eangs reliting tu vests d eniployec share-based payrents awards aro £3 7 nallion Dalarce relating to shrates fransfened to empdoyees s not desabatalde

Retzr tenote 25 of the Consolidated Firancial S atemernts for furthenmtor maticn

i
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Company Cash Flow Statement

Year ended Year endeq
31 May 2020 21 Mee 2009
Note Em £m
Operating activities
Cash generated from operations 8 185.7 1738
Net cash flow generated from operating activities 185.7 173.8
Investing activities
Investment in subsidiary (23.6) -
Net cash flow used in investing activities (23.6) -
Financing activities
Interest unwinding on lease liabilities {0.2) -
Repayment of principal element of iease liabilities {1.8) -
Equity dividends paid tc owners of the parent (159.2) (171.1%
Employee Benefit Trust purchase of own shares (1.5) (2.0)
Net cash flow used in financing activities {(162.7) (173.1)
Net (decrease}/increase in cash and cash equivalents (0.6) 0.7
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 08 0.1
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 0.2 0.8
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Authorisation of Financial $tatements and statement of compliance with IFRS

The Financial Statements of |G Group Holdings plc (the Company) for the year ended 371 May 2020 were authorised forissue by
the Board of Directors on 23 July 2020 and Statement of Financial Position was signed on the Board’s behalf by Charles Rozes.

}G Group Hoidings plc is a public limited company, which is listed on the London Stock Exchange and incorporated and demiciled
in England and Wales. The address of the registered office is Cannon Bridge House, 25 Dowgate Hill, London, EC4R 2YA.

The Company's Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with EU adopted International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), interpretations issued by the IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRS IC) and with the Companies Act 2006
applicable toc companies reporting under IFRS. The Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention.

The preparation of Financial Staterments in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. There are
no significant areas of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company’s
Financial Statements.

As permitted by Section 408(1)(b), (4 of the Companies Act 2006, the individual income statement of I1G Group Holdings
ple (the Company) has not been presented in these Financial Statements. The amount of profit for the year included within
the Financial Statements of |G Group Holdings plc is £156.1 million (year ended 31 May 2019: £202.9 million). A Statement
of Comprehensive income for IG Group Hoeldings plc has alse not been presented in these Financial Staternents. No items
of other comprehensive income arose in the year (31 May 2019: £ni).

2. Accounting policies
The accounting policies applied are the same as those set out in note 30 of the Consolidated Financial Statements except for
the following:

-} Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses

-2 The Company has share-based payment schemes involving employees of its subsidiaries. The costs of awards under these
schemes is recognised as an increase in the investment in the ermploying subsidiary

= Dividends receivable are recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive the payment is established

3. Auditors’ remuneration
Auditors” remuneration is disclosed within note 4 of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

4. Directors’ remuneration
Directors remuneration is disclosed within the Directors’ Remuneration Report section of the Annual Report.

5. Staff costs
The Company has no employees (31 May 2019: nil).

6. Investment in subsidiaries

At cost:
37 May 2020 31 May 2019
£m £m
At the beginning of the year 508.6 501.3
Additions in the year 33.3 7.3
541.9 508.6

Additions in the year include equity-settled share-based awards for employees of subsidiaries of £2.7 million.
A full list of the Group’s direct and indirectly cwned subsidiaries is provided in note 31 of the Consolidated Financial Statements,

The Directors consider the carrying amount of the Company’s investments in subsidiary to be supported by the net present
value of future cash flows.
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7. Property, plant and equipment
Right-af-use
assets

£m

Cost:

At 31 May 2019 -
IFRS 16 transitional adjustment 9.0
At 1 June 2019 9.0
Additions in the year -
At 31 May 2020 9.0

Accumulated depreciation:
At 31 May 2019 -

Provided during the year 1.5
At 31 May 2020 1.5
Net book value ~ 31 May 2020 75

Net book value ~ 31 May 2012 -

The Company’s right-of-use asset represents the commercial lease for office space. Following the application of (FRS 16
at 1 Jurme 2019, the Group now recognises a lease liability on the balance sheet to represent its obligation to make lease
payments. The table below shows the rental commitments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

31 May 2020 1 Ma, 209
£m Fo
Future minimum payments due:
Not later than one year 1.3 1.8
After one year but not more than five years 6.4 /4
After more than five years - 1.4
7.7 106
8. Cash generated from operations
31 May 2020 ) May 20158
£m £
Operating activities
Operating Joss (4.4) (7.0
Dividends received 160.8 209.9
Lease asset depreciation 1.5 -
Decrease/(increase) intrade and other receivables 33.8 (32.0)
(Decrease)increase in trade and other payables (6.0) 29
Cash generated from operations 185.7 173.8

Operating losses consist of legal and professional fees and external audit fees.




INTRODUCTION

STRATEGIC REPORT
GOVERNANCE REPORT
IYPINANC i BTATERAINTL
SHAREHOLDER AND COMPANY

INFORMATION
9. Other receivables

31 May 2020 3" May 2013
£m fin

Amounts due from Group companies:
- Market Data Limited 131.2 130.9
- iG Markets Limited 1.8 32.6
- Other Group companies 1.2 4.5
Other debtors 0.1 0.1
1343 1681

Under the Group's cash management framework, entities holding cash that is surplus to short-term requirements lend the
motiey to another Group entity, These amounts are repayabile on demand and are non-interest bearing.

10. Other payables
31 May 2020 31 May 7019
£m £m
Accruals 3.2 27
Amounls due to Group companies 0.7 7.8
3.9 10.5

11. Share capital and share premium

Share capital and share premium is disclosed within note 22 of the Consolidated Financial Statements. Share premium has
been restated, resulting in a reclassification of £81.0 millicn from share premium to other reserves. For further information
refer to note 23 of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

12. Other reserves

Owr sriares held Total other

Share buyved in Employoe MAcrgor rosct ve Fuserves

Paymernts Bernefil Trasts testated restatod!

£m £ £m £in

At 1 June 2019 8.8 (7.4) 81.0 824
Equity-settled empleyee share-based payments 8.2 - - 8.2
Exercise of UK share incentive plans (sh=) 0.9 - -
Employee Benefit Trust purchase of shares - (2.0} - (2.0)
Transfer of share-based payments reserve - (58 - - (5-5)\

At 31 May 2019 106 (8.5) 81.0 831
Equity-settled employec share-based payments 9.7 - - 9.7
Exercise of UK share incentive plans {5.4) 5.4 - -
Employee Benefit Trust purchase of shares - (1.5) - (1.5)
Transfer of share-based payments reserve {3.2) - - (3.2)

At 31 May 2020 11.7 (4.6) 81.0 88.1

1 Befertonmts 23 of the Consohdated Frranciad Statemonts for further viformation
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13. Directors’ shareholdings
The Directors of the Company hold shares as disclosed in the Group Annual Report,

14, Risk management
Financial risks arising from financial instruments are managed at a Group-wide jevel and details are in the Risk Management
section of the Group Annual Report.

Creditrisk

Held within other receivables are amounts receivable by the Company from related parties that are unrated. The Directors
consider the Company’s receivables to be recoverable as they are with Group companies and the companies have adequate
resource to ensure repayment in full. Therefore, credit risk is minimal.

Liguidity tisk
The Company is able to obtain financial support from other Group companies if this is needed. Therefore, liquidity risk
is minimal.

15. Subsequent events
The subsequent events of the entity are the same as those disclosed in note 29 to the Group Consolidated Financiat Statements

16. Dividends paid and proposed
The dividends paid and proposed by the entity are the same as those disclosed in note 10 to the Group Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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Shareholder and Company Information

Shareholder information

Receiving chierehotder information by epeil

You can opt to receive shareholder information from
us by email rather than by post. We will then emaif you
whehever we add shareholder communications to
the Company website. To set this up, please visit

www investorcentre.co.uk/ecomms and register for
electronic communications (e-comms).

If you subsequently wish to change this instruction or revert
to receiving documents or information by post, you can do so
by contacting the Company’s registrars at the address shown
in the company information overleaf. You can also change
your communication method back to post by logging in to

your Investor Centre account and going to 'update my details’

followed by ‘communication options’.

The Registrar can also be contacted by telephone on

0371 495 2032. Calls to this number cost no mere than a
naticnal rate call from any type of phone or provider. These
prices are for indication purposes only; if in doubt, please
check the cost of calling this number with your phone line

Ihtetit Tefotrt

As part of cur e-comms programme, we have decided not to
produce a printed copy of our Interim Report. We will instead
publish the report on our website, where it will be available
around mid-January each year.

Company information

Dhieetons

Executive Directors

JY Felix {Chief Executive Officer)

C A Rozes (Chief Financial Officer)

B E Messer {Chief Commerciai Officer)
J M Noble (Chief Gperating Officer)

Non-Executive Directors
R M McTighe (Chairman)
A Didham

M Le May

1P Moulds

JANewman

i 5-A Hibberd
- HC Stevenson

provider. Lines are open 8.30am to 5.30pm, Monday to Friday

excluding bank holidays.

EﬁrE(E?( ;ﬁ)}’;"l t
It you have any gueries relating to your shareholding,
dividend payments or lost share certificates, orif any of your
details change, please contact Computershare by visiting
www.investorcentre.co.uk or by using the contact

details above.

e sty ie

I AT
IG's ADR programimie trades in the US over-the-counter
(OTCY market, under the symbol IGGHY. Each ADR currently
represents one ordinary share.

e Prornnle sy Be e o b {8 TiRe]

Lrivis ot ot

Ex-dividend date

Record date

Last day to elect for dividend
reinvestment plan

Final dividend payment date
20217 interim dividend

24 September 2020
25 September 2020

1 October 2020
22 October 2020
February 2021

ISR
Company reporting
Final results announced
Annual Report published
Annual General Meeting

Pehigre boddder Oy nn

23 July 2020

30 August 2020
17 September 2020

Please note thal these: dates are provisionael and subjzct to chanige

R Bhasin

Compeny Do tony

. J S Nayler

Wideponad-nt fnditers
PricewaterhauseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

¢ 7 More London Riverside

Lendon
SE1 2RT

g
Barclays Bank plc
1 Churchill Place
London
E14 5HP

- HSBC Holdings plc

8 Canada Square

' London
- E14 5HGQ

Lloyds Banking Group plc
25 Gresham Street
London

EC2V 7AE

Roval Bank of Scotiand Group plc
280 Bishopsgate

London

EC2M 4RB
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Soliciors . Cautionary statement
Linklaters LLP - Certain statements included in our 2020 Annual Report, or
1 Sitk Street " incorporated by reference to it, may constitute ‘forward-
London } looking statements’ in respect of the Group's operations,
EC2Y 8HQ . performance, prospects and/or financial condition.
Registrors ‘ Forward-tooking statements involve known and unknown
Computershare Investor Services PLC . risks and uncertainties because they are beyond the Group's
The Pavilions + control and are based on current beliefs and expectations
Bridgwater Road , about future events about the Group and the industry in
Bristol . which the Group operates.
BS99 627 i

" No assurance can be given that such future results will
Erokors . be achieved; actual events or resufts may differ materally
Barclays Bank plc , as aresult of risks and uncertainties tacing the Group. If
5 The North Colonnade the assumplions on which the Group bases its forward-
Canary Wharf ' looking statements change, actual results may differ from
London  those expressed in such statements. The forward-looking
€14 4BB - statements contained herein reflect knowledge and

information available at the date of this Annual Report and
Numis Securities Limited the Group undertakes no obligation to update these forward-
10 Paternoster Square looking statements except as required by law.
London
EC4M 7LT This report does not constitute or form part of any offer ar

invitation to sefl, or any solicitation of any offer 1o purchase,

Be vt iicrea office any shares or other securities in the Company, and nothing in
Cannon Bridge House this report should be construed as a profit forecast.
25 Dowgate Hill
London Market share
EC4R 2YA Market share data has been provided by investment Trends

© Pty Limited (website: www.investmenttrends.co.uk). Contact:
ke gitteted i b Suzie Toohey (email: s tochey@investmenttrends.com) or
04677092 Brian Chong (emall: b.chong@investmenttrends. com). Unless

: stated, market share data is sourced from the following
. current reports:

Investment Trends France Leverage Trading Report,
released October 2019

Investment Trends US Leverage Trading Report, released
Octaber 2019

¥ (nvestment Trends Singapore Leverage Trading Report,

. released December 2019

- =¥ Investment Trends Australia Leveraged Trading Report,

‘ released February 2020

= Investment Trends Hong Kong Warrants & FX Report,

' released February 2020

. -¢ Investment Trends Germany Leverage Trading Report,
released May 2020

Investment Trends Spain Leverage Trading Report,
released June 2020

Investment Trends UK Leverage Trading Report, released
Suly 2020

e

oy
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Financial and non-financial Key Performance indicators (KPls}

Client income (Em)

The gross revenue generated from our products and
services, before hedging activity. This consists of the
transaction fees (spread, commission and funding) paid
by clients for the trading service we offer.

Conversion of client income to net trading revenue {%)
The percentage of cur total clientincome that we're able te
monetise into net trading revenue,

ESG KPls

Scope 1-3 greenhouse gas emissions per employee (TCO,e)
Total scope 1-3 greenhouse gas emissions in the financial
year, divided by headcount on 31 May 2020.

Net own funds generated from operations after
investments (Em)

Measures the teve!l of net own funds {cash) that we generate
from our operations after deductions for investment aclivity
and taxes.

Net trading revenue (Em)

Represents the transaction fees paid by clients (client
income}, net of introducing partner commissions, our
external hedging costs, client trading profit and losses,
and corresponding hedging profits and losses.

Net trading revenue from Core Markets (Em)
Represents the revenue we source from our Core Markets
(the ESMA region, Australia, Singapore, Switzerland, Dubai
and South Africa). The Core Markets represent revenue
from locations where we already have a well-established,
often market-leading presence in the local leveraged
trading market.

Net trading revenue from Significant Opportunities
(Em)

Represents the revenue from IG's portfolic of identified
Significant Opportunities (Japan, Emerging Markets, US,
Institutional, Spectrum and Greater China) as detailed in
our strategy. The Significant Opportunities represent IG's
operations where we're less well established, or where

the leveraged derivative market is at an early stage

of development.

Designed and produced by EITiperor

W osit Us Gt emparorworks ~

Number of young lives positively impacted
The number of young lives we have positively impacted
threugh cur work with our educational partners, including

. Teach First in the UK. This figure incorporates students
. directly impacted via initiatives such as hosted workplace
" visits for pupils at |G, as well as those indirectly impacted

by our annual funding to recruit and train eight science,
technology, engineering and mathematics teachers, and an
additional 16 teachers and their pupils who will be coached
and supported by trained |G employees in the coming
academic year.

' Operating profit margin (%)

Measures the operating profit that we generate as
a percentage of net trading revenue.

Percentage of OTC leveraged revenue generated
by clients that have traded with IG for at least three
years (%)

The proportion of OTC leveraged revenue generated by
clients that have traded with us for three or more years.

Proportion of employees who would recommend
working for IG (%)

Proportion of employees who would recommend working
for IG, as measured in our annual engagement survey,

Total dividend per share (pence)
The total value of our full-year dividend.

" Total number of active OTC leveraged clients {000)

The total number of clients who have generated revenue
in the relevant financial year by trading our leveraged
OTC products.
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